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Dear Mr. Parsons:

This is in response to your letters dated-January 17, 2005, February 22, 2005,
February 28, 2005, and March 8, 2005 concerning the shareholder proposal submitted to
ExxonMobil by Ram Trust Services, Inc. We also have received letters on the
proponent’s behalf dated February 16, 2005 and March 8, 2005. Our response is attached
to the enclosed photocopy of your correspondence. By doing this, we avoid having to
recite or summarize the facts set forth in the correspondence. Copies of all of the
correspondence also will be provided to the proponent.

In connection with this matter, your attention is directed to the enclosure, which

sets forth a brief discussion of the Division’s informal procedures regarding shareholder
proposals.

yic;i 0 Srgean

Jonathan A. Ingram
Deputy Chief Counsel

Enclosures

cc: Michael J. Barry
Grant & Eisenhofer P.A.
Chase Manhattan Centre
1201 North Market Street
Wilmington, DE 19801
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February 28, 2005

VIA FAX and UPS Next Day Air

Office of Chief Counsel

Division of Corporation Finance

U. S. Securities and Exchange Commission
450 Fifth Street, NW

Washington, DC 20549

RE:  Securities Exchange Act of 1934 -- Section 14(a), Rule 14-8
Omission of Shareholder Proposal Regarding Independent Chairman

Gentlemen and Ladies:

By letter dated January 17, 2005, ExxonMobil advised the staff of our intention to
omit a proposal submitted by RAM Trust Services from the proxy material for our
upcoming annual meeting. The proposal asks ExxonMobil's Board to take the necessary
steps to amend the by-laws to require that an independent director serve as Chairman of
the Board and that the Chairman of the Board not also serve as the CEO. Counsel for the
proponent submitted counter-arguments in a letter to the staff dated February 16, 2005, to
which we in turn responded by letter dated February 22, 2005.

The extended correspondence on this proposal reflects in part the fact that the
staff has reached different conclusions regarding the omission under Rule 14a-8(1)(6) of
shareholder proposals dealing with this topic in several recent no-action letters. Most
notably, in H. J. Heinz (available June 14, 2004), a proposal requesting the Board to
adopt a by-law requiring that an independent director who is not also the CEO serve as
Chairman was found to be excludable on 14a-8(1)(6) grounds, whereas in The Walt
Disney Company (available November 24, 2004), a proposal that the board establish a
policy of separating the Chairman and CEO positions, with flexibility to craft exceptions
should there be situations in which such policy might not be possible to implement, was
upheld over Rule 14a-8(1)(6) objections. :
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As we argued in our prior correspondence, we believe the different results in these
letters reflect differences in the underlying proposals. This view has been affirmed by the
recent staff response in Bristol-Myers Squibb Company (available February 7, 2005).' In
that letter, the staff declined to concur in the omission of a proposal requesting the Board
to "establish a policy of, whenever possible, separating the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, so that an independent director” serves as Chairman [emphasis added].

The proposal in Heinz, like the proposal submitted to ExxonMobil by RAM Trust
for our 2005 annual meeting, contemplates a binding by-law with no room for
exceptions. The proposal in Bristol-Myers, on the other hand, like the proposal in
Disney, contemplates only a policy and expressly allows room for reasonable flexibility.
We believe this is the key distinction between the two types of proposals. As counsel for
the proponent in Bristol-Myers points out (distinguishing the proposal in that case from
precedents such as Heinz):

... the Proponent's proposal ... asks for a policy, not a rigid requirement. Even
more telling, the policy is to apply, in the words of the proposal itself, "whenever
possible". In short, there is no requirement. '

The six no-action letters cited by the Company [including Heinz] ... each
concerned a by-law amendment, which, by the very nature of by-laws, would be
binding. The Staff concluded that since the Company could not insure that a
person meeting the mandatory requirements of the by-law would be elected by the
shareholders and be willing to serve, that such a mandatory requirement could not
be effectuated by the Company."?

Since the ExxonMobil proposal, unlike the Disney and Bristol-Meyers proposals,
calls for arigid by-law rather than a flexible policy, the ExxonMobil proposal falls
squarely in the Heinz line of precedents cited in our prior correspondence and therefore
may be excluded under Rule 14a-8(i)(6).

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact me
directly at 972-444-1478. In my absence, please contact Lisa Bork at 972-444-1473.

Please file-stamp the enclosed copy of this letter and return it to me in the
enclosed self-addressed postage-paid envelope. In accordance with SEC rules, I also

' We were not aware of the Bristol-Myers precedent at the time we submitted our February 22 letter and are
therefore supplementing our correspondence with this additional letter.

? See letter from Paul M. Neuhauser dated January 14, 2005, relating to proposal submitted to Bristol-
Myers Squibb Company by the Sisters of Charity of Saint Elizabeth.
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enclose five additional copies of this letter. A copy of this letter is also being sent to the
proponent and proponent's counsel.

Sincerely,

),,,,, S { g

JEP:clh
Enclosure

cc Mr. John P.M. Higgins
President
RAM Trust Services, Inc.

Michael J. Barry
Grant & Eisenhofer P. A.
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January 17, 2005

VIA NETWORK COURIER

U. S. Securities and Exchange Commission
Division of Corporation Finance

Office of Chief Counsel

450 Fifth Street, N.-W.

Washington, DC 20549

RE:  Securities Exchange Act of 1934 -- Section 14(a); Rule 14a-8
Omission of Shareholder Proposal Regarding Independent Chairman

Gentlemen and Ladies:

Enclosed as Exhibit 1 are copies of correspondence between Exxon Mobil
Corporation and RAM Trust Services regarding a shareholder proposal for ExxonMobil's
upcoming annual meeting. We intend to omit the proposal from our proxy material for
the meeting for the reasons explained below. To the extent this letter raises legal issues,
this letter is my opinion as counsel for ExxonMobil.

Background.

The proposal asks ExxonMobil's Board to take the necessary steps to amend the
by-laws to require that, subject to any presently existing contractual obligations of the
-~ Company, an independent director shall serve as Chairman of the Board of Directors, and
that the Chairman of the Board of Directors shall not concurrently serve as the Chief
Executive Officer. '

The proposal is a repeat submission by this proponent. Last year, ExxonMobil
declined to seek 14a-8 relief and the proposal was included in our 2004 proxy materials.
However, since last proxy season we have become aware of a number of precedents in
which proposals essentially identical to the current proposal have been excluded from
company proxy materials on grounds not previously asserted by ExxonMobil. We
believe these recent precedents apply to the current proposal and therefore seek to omit
the proposal from the proxy material for our 2005 annual meeting.
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Proposal is beyond the power of the board to implement.

In arecent letter to H. J. Heinz Co. (available June 14, 2004), the staff agreed
with the company's view that the proposal could be excluded under Rule 14a-8(i)(6) as
being beyond the power of the board to implement. The staff noted that "it does not
appear to be within the board's power to ensure that an individual meeting the specified
criteria would be elected as director and serve as Chairman of the Board."

The proposal in Heinz is virtually identical to the current ExxonMobil proposal.
Specifically, the Heinz proposal asked the board of directors to amend the by-laws to
require that an independent director who has not served as an officer of the company
serve as the Chairman of the Board.

The Heinz no-action request follows a number of recent letters in which the staff
has reached the same conclusion with respect to the same or substantially the same
proposal. See, for example: ‘

¢ Bank of America Corporation (available February 24, 2004) (proposal to
amend the by-laws to separate the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
positions and to require that an independent director serve as Chairman of the
Board may be excluded under Rule 14a-8(1)(6) as it does not appear to be
within the Board's power to ensure that an individual meeting the specified
criteria would be elected as director and serve as Chairman of the Board),

o  Wachovia Corporation (available February 24, 2004) (proposal
recommending amendment of the by-laws to separate the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer positions and to require that an independent director serve
as Chairman of the Board may be excluded as beyond the power of the board
of directors to implement since it does not appear to be within the board's
power to ensure that an individual meeting the specified criteria would be
elected as director and serve as the Chairman of the Board);

o AmSouth Bancorporation (available February 24, 2004) (proposal to amend
the by-laws to separate the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer positions
and to require that an independent director serve as Chairman of the Board
may be excluded as beyond the power of the board of directors to implement
since it does not appear to be within the board's power to ensure that an
individual meeting the specified criteria would be elected as director and serve
as Chairman of the Board),

¢ Cintas Corporation (available August 27, 2004) (proposal requesting the board
to adopt a policy that the Chair will be an independent director who has not
previously served as an executive officer of the company may be excluded
since it does not appear to be within the power of the board of directors to
ensure that its Chairman retains his or her independence at all times and the
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proposal does not provide the board with an opportunity or mechanism to cure
such a violation of the standard requested in the proposal),

e Peabody Energy Corporation (available February 23, 2004) (proposal to adopt
a policy that no board member shall serve on the audit, compensation, or
nominating and corporate governance committees if that member is not
independent may be excluded as beyond the power of the board of directors to
implement as it does not appear to be within the board's power to ensure the
election of individuals as director who meet specified criteria), and

e Archon Corporation (available March 16, 2003) (proposal requesting the
board to take such action as necessary to effect a policy that a majority of the
board members representing the common shareholders shall be independent
and the executive, audit and compensation committees be established
consisting entirely of independent directors may be excluded as beyond the
power of the board of directors to implement since it does not appear to be
within the board's power to ensure the election of individuals as director who
meet specified criteria).

The arguments outlined in detail in the letters cited above apply equally to Exxon
Mobil Corporation. In particular, under the laws of the State of New Jersey where
ExxonMobil is incorporated, it is the shareholders and not the Board which has the
authority to elect directors.’ It is therefore not within the power of ExxonMobil's board
to ensure that a sufficient number of independent directors would be elected to serve as
chairman and to meet the various requirements of the NYSE listing standards and
ExxonMobil's corporate governance guidelines for independent directors to serve on key
board committees. Further, as pointed out by company counsel in a number of the cited
letters, the board cannot ensure that, even if the shareholders did elect an "independent”
director within the meaning of the shareholder proposal, any such director would agree to
take on the onerous responsibilities of serving as chairman. Finally, as in Cintas, the
proposal provides no cure mechanism should a currently serving independent chairman
cease to be independent or resign from serving as chairman without an immediately
available replacement.

We are aware that the staff recently issued a letter that could be viewed as a
change in position to The Walt Disney Company (available November 24, 2004). In that
letter, the staff declined to concur with the company's view that a proposal relating to the
independence of the chairman of the board could be excluded under Rule 14-a(i)(6).
However, we believe Disney does not reflect a change in the staff's position from the
view expressed in Heinz and the numerous other letters cited above, but rather reflects
the fact that the proposal submitted to Disney was different than the proposal submitted
to ExxonMobil, Heinz, and the other companies cited above.

! The Board of Directors has limited authority to elect directors but only to fill a vacancy on the Board until
the next annual meeting of shareholders.
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Specifically, the Disney proposal contemplated only that the board would amend
the company's corporate governance guidelines and take other actions as necessary to
establish a company policy that the chairman of the board of directors be an independent
member of the board of directors. In requesting the Disney board simply to establish a
policy, the Disney proposal recognized that the best the board can do is strive for
independence (i.e., by nominating a management slate containing a sufficient number of
candidates that the board has determined to be independent at the time of nomination).
The Disney proposal even explicitly permitted the board to craft exceptions to deal with
situations in which it might not be possible to have an independent chairman. More
fundamentally, the Disney proposal sought only to establish a company policy similar to
policies on independence reflected in the corporate governance guidelines of many public
companies including ExxonMobil.

Unlike the Disney proposal, but like the proposals in Heinz and the other letters
cited above, the current proposal submitted by RAM Trust Services to ExxonMobil seeks
a by-law amendment to require that an independent director serve as chairman. It is one
thing for a company to have a policy of independence regarding its chairman; it is quite
another matter for a company to be in breach of its by-laws should the shareholders fail to
elect sufficient independent directors, or should an independent director decline to serve
as chairman. The current proposal to ExxonMobil may therefore be distinguished from
the Disney proposal and may be excluded from our proxy materials under Rule 14a-
8(1)(6) on the same grounds as the same proposal submitted recently to Heinz and
numerous other companies.

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact me
directly at 972-444-1478. In my absence, please contact Lisa K. Bork at 972-444-1473.

Please file-stamp the enclosed copy of this letter and return it to me in the
enclosed self-addressed postage-paid envelope. In accordance with SEC rules, I also
enclose five additional copies of this letter and the enclosures. A copy of this letter and
enclosure is being sent to the proponent.

Sincerely,

}wﬂw

JEP:clh
Enclosure

cc-w/enc:  Mr. John P.M. Higgins
RAM Trust Services, Inc.



Y S B LAanlbli 1

DEC 15 2004

H. H. HUBBLE

RAM TRUST SERVICES

Registered Investment Advisor

December 13, 2004

Dr. Lee R Raymond RECEWE? 3:{
Chief Executive Officer OFFICE OF THE CHAIRMAN
Exxon Mobil Corporation DEC 15 »ii
15 ot
5959 Las Colinas Boulevard C15
Irving, Texas 75039-2298 Routed for Aciion te:
Informational Copy to:

Dear Dr. Raymond,

Ram Trust Services, Inc., an SEC-registered investment advisor, and its clients are
greatly concerned about Exxon Mobil’s corporate governance structure. More .
specifically, we believe that as the board is charged with oversight of the Chief Executive
Officer, that same Chief Executive Officer should not also serve as the Chairman of the
Board of Directors. Furthermore, we believe that an independent director should serve as
Chairman.

Consequently, Ram Trust Services, Inc. has been authorized by certain of its clients (who
together own 101,817 shares of common stock of Exxon Mobil Corporation) to submit on
behalf of those clients the attached shareholder proposal. The proposal is being submitted
jointly by these clients. These clients will maintain throughout the period ended with
Exxon Mobil’s 2005 annual meeting not less than $2,000 worth of Exxon Mobil common
stock and will be represented at Exxon Mobil’s 2005 annual meeting to present the
proposal.

|
d

Each individual client represented in this filing has owned Exxon Mobil continuously for
more than twelve months. Proof of ownership is being submitted to you under separate
cover.

If Exxon Mobil would like to discuss the substance of the proposal with us, please
contact Robert A.G. Monks at (302)644-7484.

John P.M. Higgins
President

Ram Trust Services, Inc. SHAREHOLDER PROPOSAL
DEC 1 5 2004

NO. OF SHARES
DISTRIBUTION: HHH: FLR: REG:
5P AGH: SMD

45 EXCHANGE STREET PoRTLAND MAINE 04101  TrELEPHONE 207 775 2354 FacsiMmiie 207 775 4289



EXXONMOBIL RESOLUTION

RESOLVED, that the shareholders urge the Board of Directors to take the necessary
steps to amend the by-laws to require that, subject to any presently existing contractual
obligations of the Company, an independent director shall serve as Chairman of the
Board of Directors, and that the Chairman of the Board of Dlrectors shall not
concurrently serve as the Chief Executive Officer. :

SUPPORTING STATEMENT

According to ExxonMobil’s proxy statement filed in connection with the
~ Company’s 2004 annual meeting, “[tlhe Board of Directors and its committees
perform a number of functions for ExxonMobil and its shareholders, including:

¢ Overseeing the management of the company on your behalf;

" Reviewing ExxonMobil’s long-term strategic plans;

e Exercising direct deciston-making authority in key areas, such as
declaring dividends;

¢ Selecting the CEO and evaluating the CEO’s performance; and

e Reviewing development and succession plans for ExxonMobil’s top
executives.”

We believe that the most important function of the Board of Directors is to
protect shareholders’ interests by providing independent oversight of management,
including the CEO. We believe that this role may be compromised when the CEO,
whose performance should be independently monitored, is also the Chairman of the
very Board charged with evaluating his or her performance.

We fuither believe that separation of the roles of Chairman of the Board and
CEO will provide greater accountability of management to shareholders, will
strengthen the integrity of the Board, and will better ensure that the Board will be able
to effectively perform the important functions described above.

The Conference Board Commission on Public Trust and Private Enterprise
noted that the separation of the roles of the Chair and CEO is one of the principal
approaches that should be taken to provide the “appropriaté balance” between board
and management: “The roles would be performed by two separate individuals...the
~chair would be one of the independent directors.”*

Additionally, we believe that combining the roles of Chairman and CEO can
interfere with effective communication between shareholders and members of the
Board. We believe that this occurred at the Company’s 2004 annual meeting when a
shareholder was prevented by the CEO, who was also conducting the meeting as
Chairman of the Board, from asking questions directly to a member of the Board’s
Audit Committee relating to what provisions the Company made on its financial
statements for potential Liability arising from climate change. We believe that a risk
exists that a shareholder who wishes to communicate with the Board of Directors with



respect to a topic upon which the shareholder and the Company’s management do not
agree could be discouraged or prohibited from engaging in such communication when
the positions of CEO and Chairman of the Board are occupied by the same individual.

Vote “YES” on this proposal to support Board independence!

* Source: The Conference Board Commission on Public Trust and Private Enterprise,
Part 2: Corporate Governance, released on January 9, 2003.



THE BANK OF NEW YORK

NEW YORK’S FIRST BANK-FOUNDED 1784 BY ALEXANDER HAMILTON

ONE WALL STREET, NEW YORK, N.Y. 10286

: RECEIVED BY
Date: December 13, 2004 OFFICE OF THE CHAIRMAN
6 2004
Dr. Lee R Raymond DEC 1
Chief Executive Officer Routed for Action t0}————————
Exxon Mobil Corporation Informational Copy to:

5959 Las Colinas Boulevard
Irving, TX 75039-2298

Re: Exxon Mobil Corporation (Shareholder Resolution)
CUSIP 30231G102

Account: D2301 Ram Trust Services Inc. # 298227

Dear Dr. Raymond:

The Bank of New York is the custodian for Ram Trust Services, Inc. As
of December 10, 2004 Ram Trust Services, Inc. held 140,849 shares of
Exxon Mobil Corporation CUSIP # 30231G102.

The above account for the period of December 1, 2003 through December

10, 2004 has not held fewer than 126,620 shares of common stock in their
account.

Sincerely, n

Vice President
The Bank of New York
One Wall Street-14" Floor

New York NY 10286 SHAREHOLDER PROPOSAL

DEC 1 6 2004

NO. OF SHARES IR REG
DISTRIBUTION: HHH: : :
JEP: DGH: SMD




Exxon Mobil Corporation Henry H. Hubble
5959 Las Colinas Boulevard Vice President, Investor Relations
irving, Texas 75039-2298 and Secretary

Ex¢onMobil

December 15, 2004
VIA UPS - OVERNIGHT DELIVERY

Mr. John P.M. Higgins
President

Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, Maine 04101

Dear Mr. Higgins:

This will acknowledge receipt of the proposal concerning an independent Board Chairman,
which you have submitted in connection with ExxonMobil's 2005 annual meeting of
shareholders.

You should note that, if your proposal is not withdrawn or excluded, you or a representative,
who is qualified under New Jersey law to present the proposal on your behalf, must attend the
annual meeting in person to present the proposal.

Rule 14a-8 (copy enclosed) requires that, in order to be eligible to submit a proposal, you must
have continuously held at least $2,000 in market value of the company's securities entitled to
vote at the meeting for at least one year by the date you submit a proposal. Note that, for this
purpose, the date of submission of the proposal is December 15, 2004, the date the proposal
was received in our principal executive offices. A statement of eligibility must by provided by the
record holder of the securities. Since Ram Trust Services does not appear on our records as a
registered shareholder and you have not provided the names of your clients, we cannot verify
eligibility without additional evidence such as a statement from the record holder of securities
(usually a bank or broker). You must also demonstrate your authority as investment advisor to
act on behalf of the actual beneficial owners, such as by providing a copy of a written instrument
from the clients authorizing you to file this shareholder proposal on their behalf. See paragraph
(b)(2) of Rule 14a-8 (Question 2) for more information on ways to prove eligibility.

Documentation establishing your eligibility and correcting the deficiencies specifically noted in
this letter must be postmarked, or transmitted electronically at 972.444.1505, to us no later than
14 days from the date you receive this notification.

As | have said in the past, we are interested in continuing our dialogue on this issue.

Sincerely,

Sy A

c: Mr. Robert A. G. Monks



RAM TRUST SERVICES

Registered Investment Advisor

December 27, 2004 RECEIVED
VIA FEDEX PRIORITY OVERNIGHT DEC 2 ’8 2004
. .M. DERKACZ

Henry H. Hubble

Vice President — Investor Relations
ExxonMobil Corporation

5959 Las Colinas Boulevard
Irving, TX 75039

Dear Mr. Hubble,

This letter will confirm ownership by our clients' of at least 101,817 shares of
ExxonMobil common stock. As illustrated by the attached spreadsheet of clients’
holdings of ExxonMobil common stock, each of the clients individually meets the
requirements set forth in rule 14a-8(b)(1). These shares are held by The Bank of New
York as custodian for Ram Trust Services, Inc. All of the shares have been held
continuously since at least December 1, 2003, and each of Ram Trust’s clients intends to
continue to hold such shares through the date of ExxonMobil’s 2005 annual meeting.

I enclose The Bank of New York’s letter dated December 20, 2004, as proof of
ownership in our account for the requisite time period. Please accept this telefax copy of
The Bank of New York letter, as the original was sent from Bank of New York via
overnight mail to Mr. Raymond for delivery on December 22, 2004.

I have also enclosed copies of our clients’ written authorizations to file this shareholder
proposal on their behalf and an investment management agreement that specifically gives
us the aforementioned authority.

Please contact me if I can

her assistance, or if you should require additional
documentation related to"Our propos :

Director of Operations

Enc.

' For the purposes of this letter, “clients” refers to our clients on whose behalf we have submitted a
shareholder proposal for inclusion in the ExxonMobil’s proxy materials for distribution in connection with
the Company’s 2005 annual meeting.

45 EXCHANGE STREET PORTLAND MAINE 04101  TEeLErPHONE 207 775 2354 FacsiMiLe 207 775 4289
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THE BANK OF NEW YORK

NEW YORX'S FIRST BANK-FOUNDED 1784 BY ALEXANDER HAMILTON

ONE WALL STREET, NEW YORK, N.Y. 10286

Date: Decembar 20, 2004

Dr. Lee R Raymoend

Chief Executive Officer
Exxon Mobi] Corporation
5959 L as Colinas Boulevard
Irving, TX 75039-2298

Re: Exxon Mobil Corporation (Shareholder Resolution)
. CUSIP 30231G102

Account: D2301 Ram Trust Scrvices Inc. # 298227

Dear Dr. Raymond:

The Bank of New Yark is the custodian for Ram Trust Services, Inc. As
of December 15, 2004 Ram Trust Services, Inc. held 140,839 shares of
Exxon Mobil Corporation CUSIP # 30231G102.

The abave account has continuously held at least 126,620 shares of Exxon Mobil
coramon stock for the period of December 1, 2003 through December 157 2004

The Bank of New York
One Wal] Street-14™ Floor
New York NY 10286

DEC 21 28e4 12:83
PRGE. 81



~Ram Trust Services; Inc: List:of Holders .

Sﬁérés sﬁpportmg Ekﬁ(on Mobil Resolution

Security Description ShortTitle Units
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM ELLEN M. HIGGINS TRUST 1996 200
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM BRYAN S MONKS REV TR 1998 500
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM TIMOTHY BG HERRICK REV TR 1998 250
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM ANNA A PERTZOFF TRUST 1989 50
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM TATIANA A PERTZOFF WELLS TR 1995 250
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM TATIANA P FISCHER INTERVIVOS REV TR 367
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM A. HENSHAW TTEE, ANNE HENSHAW REV TR 2200
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM JESSICA GARDNER GOLDBLATT TRUST 1992 350
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM J NICHOLAS KEARNS TR 1993 400
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM MELISSA CUNNINGHAM REV TR 1989 3300
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM AMOS S ENO REV TR 1996 3338
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM MARJORIE B ENO REV TR 1996 1412
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM DANA CHATFIELD JONES REV TR 2000
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM ELLEN E MONKS TR 1945 (25A) 700
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM ELLEN M HIGGINS TRUST 1959 (29A) 150
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM ELLEN M HIGGINS GRDCHILD TR 1985 190
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM BLANCHE K. WALLACE TRUST FBO NMC 15590
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM SAMUEL ROOS LIVING TR, W. ROOS TTEE 264
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM GEORGE G MONKS TR 1945 (25B) 800
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM WILLIAM FK MONKS TR 1959 (29D) 500
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM WILLIAM FK MONKS TR 1976 (76D) 300
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM ANNA A PERTZOFF IRREV TR 800
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM OLGA MONKS PERTZOFF FAM TR 61 (OMP1) 800
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM OLGA MONKS PERTZOFF TR 1945 (OMP 27) 1250
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM OLGA MONKS PERTZOFF TR 1954 (OMP 28B 1800
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM OLGA MONKS PERTZOFF TR 1975 (OMP#2) 350
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM WESTON BONNEY IRR INS TR 1994 200
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM AMOS P L ENO IRREV TRUST 608
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM ANGUS C ENO IRREV TRUST 608
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM BLANCHE WALLACE TR FBO DANA C JONES 16000
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM JACKSON ROOS LIVING TR, W. ROOS TTEE 264
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM CHARLOTTE H ALEXANDER 200
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM GEORGE G MONKS 2500
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM ROQUE ISLAND GARDNER HOMESTEAD CORP 20000
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM NANNETTE C HERRICK 150
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM DOLLY H. PATTERSON 3800
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM DEBORAH D. MILITE 384
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM RUSSELL Y. SMITH 18256
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM AMOS P L ENO CUSTODY ACCOUNT 236
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM ANGUS ENO CUSTODY ACCOUNT 236
EXXON MOBIL CORP COM HELEN CHASE ROOS SEP IRA 264

101817




ELLEN M. HIGGINS TRUST 1996
John P.M. Higgins, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
200 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.

Sincerely,




BRYAN S MONKS REV TR 1998
John P.M. Higgins, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
500 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.




TIMOTHY BG HERRICK REV TR 1998
John P.M. Higgins, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
250 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.




ANNA A. PERTZOFF TRUST 1989
John P.M. Higgins, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of 50
shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.




TATIANA A. PERTZOFF WELLS TR 1995
John P.M. Higgins, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
250 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005. -

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.




TATIANA P FISCHER INTERVIVOS REV TR
John P.M. Higgins, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward;

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
367 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.

Sincerely,




Uvec «/7 U4 1lc:UlP

Anne S. Henshaw
346 Bunganuc Road
Brunswick, ME 04011

December 17, 2004

John P M. Higgins
President

Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Mr. Higgins:

I hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on my behalf
at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices of
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. I am the beneficial owner of 2,200
shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which I intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

I specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on my behalf, with any
and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
Tesolution.

Sincerely,

o (Lo |orr—

Anne Henshaw



JESSICA GARDNER GOLDBLATT TRUST 1992
John P.M. Higgins, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
350 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.




JNICHOLAS KEARNS TR 1993
John P.M. Higgins, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
400 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.




MELISSA A CUNNINGHAM REV TR 1989
John P.M. Higgins, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
3300 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year,
and which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.




AMOS S ENO REV TR 1996
John P.M. Higgins, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
3,338 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year,
and which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.




MARIJORIE B ENO REV TR 1996
John P.M. Higgins, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
1,412 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year,
and which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.




DANA CHATFIELD JONES REVOCABLE TRUST
1554 Campus Drive
Berkeley, CA 94708

December 17, 2004

John P.M. Higgins
President

Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Mr. Higgins:

I hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on my behalf
at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices of
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. I am the beneficial owner of 2,000
shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that I have held for over one year, and which
I intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

I specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on my behalf, with any
and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.

Sincerely,
Dana Chatfield Jones J




ELLEN E MONKS TR 1945 (25A)
John P.M. Higgins, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
700 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.




ELLEN M HIGGINS TRUST 1959 (29A)
John P.M. Higgins, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
150 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.




ELLEN M HIGGINS GRDCHILD TR 1985
John P.M. Higgins, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
190 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.




BLANCHE K. WALLACE TRUST FBO NANCY M. CHATFIELD
Ram Trust Company, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 17, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

I hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on my behalf
at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices of
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. | am the beneficial owner of 15,590
shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which I intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

I specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on my behalf, with any
and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.

Sincerely,

Ram Asyst Company, Trustee

MJOM P.M. Higgin@&ent




SAMUEL ROOS LIVING TRUST
36 Kettle Cove Road
Cape Elizabeth, ME 04107

December 17, 2004

John P.M. Higgins
President

Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Mr. Higgins:

I hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on my behalf
at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices of
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. I am the beneficial owner of 264
shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which | intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

I specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on my behalf, with any
and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.

Sincerely,

W Ll

Warren Roos, Trustee




GEORGE G MONKS TR 1945 (25B)
John P.M. Higgins, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
800 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.




WILLIAM FK MONKS TR 1959 (29D)
John P.M. Higgins, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
500 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.




WILLIAM FK MONKS TR 1976 (76D)
John P.M. Higgins, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
300 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.




ANNA A PERTZOFF IRREV TR
John P.M. Higgins, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
800 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.




OLGA MONKS PERTZOFF FAM TR 61 (OMP1)
John P.M. Higgins, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
800 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.

Sincerely,

<; /
Jo P.M.}m



OLGA MONKS PERTZOFF TR 1945 (OMP 27)
John P.M. Higgins, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
1,250 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year,
and which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.




OLGA MONKS PERTZOFF TR 1954 (OMP 28B)
John P.M. Higgins, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
1,800 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year,
and which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.

Singesely,




OLGA MONKS PERTZOFF TR 1975 (OMP #2)
John P.M. Higgins, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
350 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.

Sincgrely,




WESTON BONNEY IRR INS TR 1994
Ram Trust Company, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
200 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned

resolution.

Sincerely,

Ram Trust Company, Trustee

Bk John P. M. Bigdin® President




AMOS P L ENO IRREV TR
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
608 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.




ANGUS C ENO IRREV TR
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
608 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.




BLANCHE WALLACE TR FBO DANA C JONES
Ram Trust Company, Trustee
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
16,000 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year,
and which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned

resolution.

Sincerely,

Ram Trust Company, Trustee

| W
B}.\John P. M. Pﬁgﬂsiﬁresident




JACKSON ROOS LIVING TRUST
36 Kettle Cove Road
Cape Elizabeth, ME 04107

December 17, 2004

John P.M. Higgins
President

Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Mr. Higgins:

I hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on my behalf
at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices of
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. I am the beneficial owner of 264
shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which I intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

I specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on my behalf, with any
and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.

Sincerely,

WWL

Warren Roos, Trustee



CHARLOTTE H ALEXANDER
77 Monastery Road
Cape Elizabeth, ME 04107

December 17, 2004

John P. M. Higgins
President

Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Mr. Higgins:

I hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on my behalf
at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices of
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. [ am the beneficial owner of 200
shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that I have held for over one year, and which
I intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

I specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on my behalf, with any
and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.
Sincerely,
Cleannd ! ()
Wbt H (s D

Charlotte H. Alexander



GEORGE G MONKS
30 Morton Street
Andover, MA 01810

December 17, 2004

John P. M. Higgins
President

Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Mr. Higgins:

I hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on my behalf
at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices of
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. I am the beneficial owner of 2500
shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that I have held for over one year, and which
I intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

I specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on my behalf, with any
and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our

name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.

Sincerely,

RN

P
rd (\,’.’:szl--v_//

George G. Monks



ROQUE ISLAND GARDNER HOMESTEAD CORP.
John P. M. Higgins, Treasurer
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 14, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
20,000 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year,
and which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.

Sincerely,




NANNETTE C HERRICK
31 Bowery Street
Newport, RI 02840

December 17, 2004

John P. M. Higgins
President

Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Mr. Higgins:

I hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on my behalf
at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices of
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. I am the beneficial owner of 150
shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that I have held for over one year, and which
I intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

I specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on my behalf, with any
and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.

Sincerely,

%ﬂ/é p )V e

Nannette C. Herrick



DOLLY H PATTERSON
49 Bayberry Hill Road
Ridgefield, CT 06877

December 17, 2004

John P.M. Higgins
President

Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Mr. Higgins:

I hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on my behalf
at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices of
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. I am the beneficial owner of 3,800
shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which I intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

I specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on my behalf, with any
and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We uhderstand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.

Sincerely,

NS
W

U
Dolly H. Patterson



DEBORAH D MILITE
75 South Freeport Road
South Freeport, ME 04032

December 17, 2004

John P. M. Higgins
President

Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Mr. Higgins:

I hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on my behalf
at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices of
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. I am the beneficial owner of 384
shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that I have held for over one year, and which
we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

I specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on my behalf, with any
and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.

Sincerely,

Dihoed L Ml t—

Deborah D. Milite
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RUSSELL Y SMITH
70 Captain John Parker Road
Box 206
Phippsburg, ME 04562

December 17, 2004

John P. M. Higgins
President

Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Mr. Higgins:

I hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on my behalf
at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices of
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. I am the beneficial owner of 18,256
shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that [ have held for over one year, and which
we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

I specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on my behalf, with any
and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.

Sincerely,

/
Russell Y. Smit}}-“'



AMOS P L ENO CUSTODY ACCOUNT
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 17, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
236 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.




ANGUS ENO CUSTODY ACCOUNT
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

December 17, 2004

Sandy Ward

Director of Operations
Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Ms. Ward:

We hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on our
behalf at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. We are the beneficial owner of
236 shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which we intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

We specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on our behalf, with
any and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.




HELEN CHASE ROOS SEP IRA
36 Kettle Cove Road
Cape Elizabeth, ME 04107

December 17, 2004

John P.M. Higgins
President

Ram Trust Services, Inc.
45 Exchange Street
Portland, ME 04101

Dear Mr. Higgins:

[ hereby authorize Ram Trust Services, Inc. to file a shareholder resolution on my behalf
at ExxonMobil Corp. addressing the need for the company to separate the offices of
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. I am the beneficial owner of 264
shares of ExxonMobil Corp. common stock that we have held for over one year, and
which I intend to hold through the date of the annual meeting in 2005.

[ specifically give Ram Trust Services, Inc. full authority to deal, on my behalf, with any
and all aspects of the aforementioned shareholder resolution. We understand that our
name may appear on the corporation’s proxy statement as the filer of the aforementioned
resolution.

Sincerely,

Ne (o, Mo Kt

Helven Chase Roos
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INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

RAM TRUST SERVICES Client: Dana Chatfield Jones Revocable Trust
45 Exchange Street, Suite 400 : 1554 Campus Drive
Portland, ME 04101 Berkeley, California 94708

This INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT is made as of November 1, 2001 between RAM TRUST
SERVICES ("RAaM") and the above-referenced client (the "Client").

1. The Client requests that RAM open and maintain an investment account (the "Account") in the name of
the Client {or such other name as the Client and RAM agree) and that RAM hold in the Account and manage, in
accordance with this Agreement, all securities and other property accepted by RAM at any time from or for the
account of the Client (the "Property”). RAM is hereby designated as the Client's agent and attorney-in-fact,
with full authority and discretion, on Client's behalf and at Client's sole risk, to:

(a) purchase and sell securities, in such amounts and at such prices and in such manner as RAM may
deem advisable, for the Account from time to time, and otherwise deal with and manage the Property
as fully to all intents and purposes as the Client might or could do in person;

(b) take custody of and safeguard the Property, in accordance with RAM's customary practices;

(c) collect and credit to the Account all receive all interest, dividends, income and other cash
distributions on the Property; and '

(d) collect and credit to the Account all matured or called securities in the Account and all other cash
payments on account of principal of the Property.

RAM shall perform these services in a careful and prudent manner, with due consideration for the Client's
investment objectives and investment restrictions expressly set forth on Schedule A hereto. The Client may
change these investment objectives and investment restrictions from time to time by wriften instruction to
RAM, in which case RAM shall implement the revised objectives and restrictions as soon as practicable.

2. RAM shall keep appropriate records of the Account, in accordance with RAM's custoniary practices,
and shall fumish the Client with a report of all transactions on a quarterly basis.

U In addition, RAM will furnish a copy of all such reports to:

3. This Agreement is not intended to create a trust, and the Client shall at all times own and retain
ultimate ownership and control of the Property. RAM shall accept the Client's written, signed instructions
regarding the Property, provided that such instructions are given sufficiently far in advance to reasonably
permit RAM to act upon them. In addition, RAM may accept any oral, telephonic or electronic instruction RAM
believes to be authorized by the Client. From time to time as the Client or RAM deems appropriate, the Client
will confirm to RAM in writing which persons are authorized to give instructions to RAM in connection with
the Account. RAM will not be held accountable for delays or losses resulting from failure to receive timely and
suitable instructions from the Client; for any failure to provide in Schedule A an accurate description of the
Client's investment objectives and investment limitations; or for any failure by the Client to provide timely
notice of any change in such objectives or limitations.

RAM TRUST SERVICES Page 1



4. The Client expressly assumes all risk of loss on investments for the Account. The Client agrees that
RAM shall not be liable for loss or expense resulting from any action or decision by RAM or its employees or
agents pursuant to this Agreement, or any failure to so act or decide, made in good faith and in a manner
consistent with RAM s obligations under paragraph I page 1 except, except that this provision is not intended
to limit liability for willful misfeasance, bad faith, or gross negligence, and is not intended to waive any rights
or remedies that the Client may have under any applicable law or regulation. In cases where RAM relies in
good faith on any written or oral instruction from the Client or the Client's agent or legal representative, the
Client agrees reimburse RAM for all brokerage charges, other similar charges and other authorized charges
Ram may incur. ‘

5. RAM may, in its discretion and at its expense, avail itself of the services of one or more investment
advisers, subadvisers, nominees, custodians, subcustodians, depositories, clearing corporations or other
financial intermediaries of RAM's selection, and RAM agrees that its responsibilities under this Agreement will
not be affected thereby.

6. Except as RAM otherwise determines, all securities in a form requiring registration shall be registered in
RAM's name or in the name of RAM's nominee. Unless otherwise instructed by the Client, RAM will execute all
requested purchases and sales of securities through Atlantic Financial Services of Maine, Inc. ("AFS"), or
another registered broker-dealer of RAM's selection. The Client acknowledges that AFS is an introducing
broker that is an affiliate of both RAM TRUST COMPANY and Ram Trust Services, Inc.

7. As the Client's agent and attorney-in-fact, RAM is granted full power and discretion to endorse, transfer,
or deliver Account securities; to vote such securities on any and all matters; to execute proxies, waivers,
consents, and other instruments relating to such securities; and to consent (or withhold consent) to any
proposed merger, consolidation, reorganization, or liquidation requiring a vote of security holders.

8. RAM is authorized and requested to file on behalf of the Client any ownership, exemption or other
certificate that in RAM's judgment is necessary or appropriate under applicable tax laws or other laws or
regulations, and to report such other information concering the Account as may in RAM's judgment be
necessary or appropriate in connection therewith. Unless the box at the end of this paragraph is checked,
however, the Client objects to disclosure by RAM of the Client's name, address and security position for
purposes of reporting beneficial ownership under SEC Rule 14b-2 for securities held in the Account. O

9. The Client agrees that the Account will be subject to all applicable RAM TRUST SERVICES rules and
regulations of general application, as in effect from time to time, and that RAM reserves the right to change
such rules and regulations at any time.

10. Except as otherwise agréed in writing, the Client shall pay fees for RAM's services hereunder in
accordance with Schedule B below. The Client acknowledges that RAM reserves the right to change RAM's fee
schedule at any time, in which case the new fees shall become effective 60 days after written notice thereof to
the Client (or such later date as RAM determines). Except as RAM and the Client otherwise agree, all fees and
expenses incurred for the Account shall be:

Debited from the Account QUDebited from the following account:

QO Invoiced to

11. The Client agrees to reimburse RAM for all charges and taxes RAM may incur as the Client's agent or
custodian in connection with the Account or any transaction hereunder. RAM is hereby authorized to charge
the Account and the Client for all expenses (including, without limitation, brokerage costs and attorneys' fees)

RAM TRUST SERVICES ' Page 2



reasonably incurred by RAM in connection with its performance of this Agreement. To secure any payment
obligations to RAM arising from or in connection with the Account or any other accounts maintained by the

Client with RAM, the Client hereby grants RAM a security interest in all cash, securities and other property held
in or through such accounts.

12. Either the Client or RAM may terminate this Agreement upon 30 days' prior written notice to the other
party. The client may request that RAM trade only upon written request during the 30-day notice. In the
absence of such a termination, the investment discretion and other powers conferred upon RAM will continue
notwithstanding the death, disability, or legal incompetence of the Client or (as the case may be) any agent or
legal representative of the Client. Termination shall not relieve the Client of responsibility for any prior act
taken or any obligation previously incurred by RAM under this Agreement. Within a reasonable time after
notice of termination is received, RAM will distribute all funds and other Property in the Account to the Client
(or the Client's designee, if RAM is so instructed), after deduction by RAM for any fees, expenses, or other
payments due to RAM from the Client. RAM will refund the unearned portion of any fees prepaid to RAM fora

given period, based on the number of days remaining in the period as of the date the Property is finally
distributed from the Account. -

13. Any and all ¢ontroversies or claims arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be settled by
arbitration in accordance with the Commercial Arbitration Rules (as then in effect) of the American Arbitration
Association, or other procedures mutually agreed upon by the parties within 30 days of the initial demand for
arbitration. Except as the parties may otherwise agree within such period, the arbitration shall take place in
Portland, Maine before a panel of three neutral arbitrators having prior experience and training as arbitrators, at
least one of whom shall be a Maine attorney having substantial securities law experience, and the arbitrators
shall be required to decide each claim in accordance with applicable law and to set forth in writing the award
and a summary of those facts considered by the arbitrators to be material to such decision. Judgment on the
award rendered by the arbitrators may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. This agreement to
arbitrate shall be enforceable under the Maine Uniform Arbitration Act. It is understood that the parties are

hereby waiving the right to seek judicial remedies, including the right to jury trial, in the event of a controversy
or claim.

14. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Maine, without giving effect to the
conflict-of-law principles thereof.

RaM TRUST SERVICES Page 3



SCHEDULE A:

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES:

INVESTMENT LIMITATIONS:

OTHER SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS, IF ANY:

RAM TRUST SERVICES Page 4



RAM TRUST SERVICES, INC.

(A Maine Corporation)

RaM TRUST COMPANY

(A MAINE NON-DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY)

MANAGED ACCOUNT FEE SCHEDULE

(as of June 27, 2001)

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES

M%a{ffﬂ Q&w Nov. © Sep;

Signature c{i Chent Date
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The Client hereby represents that the information set forth below is true and correct as of the date hereof,
and the Client agrees to give RAM prompt written notice of any change in such information. In the case of
joint accounts, please specify the form of ownership (e.g. JTWROS {joint tenants with right of
survivorship] or TIC [tenants in common])

Name of Account:  Dana Chatfield Jones Revocable Trust

Client’s Address: 1554 Campus Drive

Berkeley, California 94708

Telephone: (510) 845-6194 Fax: (510) 845-9669 e-mail: jejones@ousd.k12.ca.us

Under penalties of perjury, the Client (or each Client, in the case of joint accounts) certifies that (1) the
number shown on this form is the Client's correct taxpayer identification number and (2) the Client is not
subject to backup withholding either because the Client has not been notified the Client is subject to backup
withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or because the Internal Revenue Service
has notified the Client that the Client is no longer subject to backup withholding. The Internal Revenue
Service does not require the Client's consent to any provision of this document other than certifications
required to avoid backup withholding. '

Dana Chatfield Jones Revocable Trust

Date: NN 8,; 9—%/ ;@mc&aﬂ%w )%YULA

Dana Chatfield Jones
Social Security Number: 567-66-7510

Accepted as of ' |~ O/
by RAM TRUST SERVICES

— 7 T e ]‘, ..
By, o (o X

Authorlz¢d Representatwe

RaM TRUST SERVICES Page 6



THE BANK OF NEW YORK

NEW YORK'’S FIRST BANK-FOUNDED 1784 BY ALEXANDER HAMILTON

ONE WALL STREET, NEW YORK, N.Y. 10286

Date: December 20, 2004  RECEIVED

DEC 2 1 2004
Dr. Lee R Raymond
Chief Executive Officer SM. DERKACZ
Exxon Mobil Corporation
5959 Las Colinas Boulevard

Irving, TX 75039-2298

Re: Exxon Mobil Corporation (Shareholder Resolution)
CUSIP 30231G102

Account: D2301 Ram Trust Services Inc. # 298227

Dear Dr. Raymond:

The Bank of New York is the custodian for Ram Trust Services, Inc. As
of December 15, 2004 Ram Trust Services, Inc. held 140,839 shares of
Exxon Mobil Corporation CUSIP # 30231G102.

The above account has continuously held at least 126,620 shares of Exxon Mobil
common stock for the period of December 1, 2003 through December 15™ 2004

Vice Presid
The Bank of New York
One Wall Street-14™ Floor
New York NY 10286
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Exxon Mobil Cerporation James Earl Parsons
¢ 5259 Las Colinas Boulevard Counsel

Irving, Texas 75039-2296

972 444 1478 Telephone

972 444 1432 Facsimile

james.e.parsons @ exxonmobil.com

Ex¢onMobil

March 8, 2005

VIA FAX

Office of Chief Counsel

Division of Corporation Finance

U. S. Securities and Exchange Commission
450 Fifth Street, NW

Washington, DC 20549

RE:  Securities Exchange Act of 1934 -- Section 14(a); Rule 14-8
Omission of Shareholder Proposal Regarding Independent Chairman

Gentlemen and Ladies:

. In their latest letter dated March 8, 2005, counsel for RAM Trust completely
misreads our February 28, 2005 letter citing Bristol-Meyers Squibb Company (available
February 7, 2005). We recognize that the Bristol-Meyers letter covered two
chairman/CEO proposals: one proposal relating to a flexible policy and a second
proposal relating to an inflexible by-law. Our February 28 argument dealt with the first
of these proposals, relating to a flexible policy. Although the staff ruled against the
company on that proposal under Rule 14a-8(i)(6), we believe the facts and arguments
presented by proponent's counsel for that proposal support the distinction we have drawn
in prior correspondence between flexible policy proposals, which the staff has generally
allowed to be included, and rigid bylaw proposals (such as the RAM Trust proposal),
which the staff has recently found excludable.

Our February 28 letter did not cite or rely on the Bristol-Meyers by-law proposal
-- which was excluded under Rule 14a-8(i)(11) -- in support of our argument under Rule
14a-8(1)(6). Rather, we continue to rely on the numerous other recent letters we have
cited in which by-law proposals have been excluded under Rule 14a-8(i)(6).

Finally, since counsel for the proponent insists that we cite New Jersey law in
support of our argument, we cite Section 14A:6-3 of the New Jersey Business
Corporation Act:



U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
Page 2
February 28, 2005

"... [a]t the first annual meeting of sharcholders and at each annual meeting
thereafter the shareholders shall elect directors ...."

This is the only aspect of New Jersey law relevant to our 14a-8(i)(6) argument.

[f you have any questions or require additional informnation, please contact me
directly at 972-444-1478. In my absence, please contact Lisa Bork at 972-444-1473.

In the interest of time, this letter is being sent to the staff by fax. A copy is also
being faxed to the proponent and proponent's counsel.

Sincerely,

o o

JEP:clh

cc: Mr. John P.M. Higgins
President
RAM Trust Services, Inc.

Michael J. Barry
Grant & Eisenhofer P.A.
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Exxon Mobil Corporation ' James Earl Parsons
5959 Lag Colinas Blvd. Counsel

Irving, TX 75039-2298

972-444-1478 Tclephone

972-444-1488 Pacsimile

james. e.parsons@exxonmobil.com

FACSIMILE TRANSMITTAL SHEET

Datc_- March 8, 2005

TO:

Lo . Division of Corporationm Finance
‘ COMPANY: Office of Chief Counsel

FAX #: 202-942-9525

This facsirnile consists of ES pages (including this page).

Message:

'THIS TRANSMITTAL 18 INTENDED ONLY FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY TO WIHICIIIT IS ADDRESSED,
AND MAY CONTAIN INFORMATION THAT IS PRIVILEGFD, CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT FROM DISCLOSURE UNDER
APPLICABLE LAW, IF YOU ARE NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENT OF THIS TRANSMITTAL (ORTHE EMPLOYEE OR
ACENT RESPONSIBLE FOR DELIVERING THE TRANSMITTAL TO THE INTENDED RECIPIENT), YOU ARE HEREBY
NOTIFIED THAT ANY DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION OR COPYING OF THIS COMMUNICATION I8 STRICTLY
PROHIBITED. IF YOUHAVE RECEIVED THIS COMMUNICATION IN ERROR, PLEASE NOTIFY US IMMEDIATELY BY A
COLLECT TELEPHONE CALL, AND RETURN THE ENTIRE ORIGINAL MESSAGE TO US AT THE ABOVE ADDRESS VIA
THE U.8. POSTAL SERVICE. THANK YOU.

To report transmission problems, please call Cindy Hayre @ (972) 444-1482.



Grant & Eisenhofer PA. HUO

Joy W. Eisenhofer Chase Manhattan Centre Lo T INaumdn ATATESE 0OUN Getherine Pratsinakis*
Stuart M. Grant 1201 North Market Street COREI8 ATdiads F [N & HCGuren E. Wagner
Megan D. Mclntyre wilmington, DE 19801 Christine S. Azar Kimberly L. Wierzel
Geoffrey C. Jarvis Tel 302:6227000 = Fax: 302-622-7100 James R. Banko Michelle T. Wirtner
Sidney S. Liebesman 445 Park Avenue, 9th Floor Cynthia A. Calder
John C. Kairis New York, New York 10022 Redmond L. Clevenger
Michael J. Barry ' Tel 2127556501 ¢ Fax: 212-7556503 John A. Curseaden’ * Admitted in NJ & PA Only
. t Adrmined in NJ, NY & PA O
Dog’?::-s é‘jic:’zi‘r?' www.gelaw.com ij"ﬂ‘:b’d delf . ¥ Admited in MA & NY Only
tiiesianihars ol ydia Ferrarese ¢ Admitied in ME & MA Only
Srephen G. Grygiel’ James P. MCEVi"Y’ nr + Admitted in NY Only
Diane T. Zilka March 8, 2005 Sharan Nirmul * % Admitied in MD, NY & DC C
Russell D. Paul® ¥ Admitted in Yialy Only

Direct Dial: (302) 622-7065

VIA TELECOPY AND OVERNIGHT MAIL

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
Division of Corporation Finance

Office of Chief Counsel

450 Fifth Street, N.'W.

Washington, D.C. 20549-0402

Re:  Shareholder Proposal Submitted by RAM Trust Services, Inc. for
Inclusion in Exxon Mobil Corporation’s 2005 Proxy Statement

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This letter responds to the letters dated February 22, 2005 (the “February 22, 2005
letter”) and February 28, 2005 (the “February 28, 2005 letter”), on behalf of ExxonMobil
(“ExxonMobil” or the “Company”) in further support of the Company’s January 17, 2005
request for no-action relief (the “No-Action Request™) with respect to a shareholder
proposal (the “Proposal”)1 submitted by RAM Trust Services, Inc. (“RAM” or the
“Proponent”).

Like the Company’s No-Action Request, the Company’s latest submissions are
wholly devoid of legal analysis whatsoever and again attempt to satisty the Company’s
burden of demonstrating that it may exclude the Proposal as “beyond the power of the
board to implement” solely by poorly-reasoned analogy to distinguishable no-action
letters.” Neither the February 22, 2005 letter nor the February 28, 2005 letter identifies a

' The Proposal urges that ExxonMobil’s Board take the necessary steps to amend the Company’s Bylaws to
prescribe a valid director qualification. The same proposal was submitted by RAM and included in the
Company’s 2003 and 2004 proxy statements and received significant shareholder support at the Company’s
2003 and 2004 annual meetings.

? RAM distinguished the no-action letters cited by the Company in its previous letter to the SEC in this
matter dated February 16, 2005. Neither the Cintas nor Peabody Energy Corporation letters (again cited by



SEC Division of Corporation Finance
March 8, 2005
Page 2 of 5

single provision of law that could support the Company’s bald proposition that it is
somehow beyond the power of the board of directors of a New Jersey corporation to
implement a bylaw amendment prescribing a director qualification unless the board “can
ensure compliance” with such amendment. Indeed, neither letter even addresses RAM’s
opinion of New Jersey counsel specifically opining that the Proposal is within the power
of the Board to implement under New Jersey law. In fact, the Company essentially
admits that the Board in fact possesses the power to implement the Proposal. See
February 22, 2005 letter at p. 2 (“We do not claim that it would violate New Jersey law
for the words [suggested by the Proposal] to be added to ExxonMobil’s by-laws.”).

ExxonMobil’s suggestion that New Jersey law is irrelevant to the question of
whether it is within the power of the Board to implement the Proposal is absurd. After
all, the Proposal involves an issue of internal corporate governance that is regulated not
by the SEC, but by the law of the state of a company’s incorporation.” The SEC cannot
decide in a vacuum what powers board of directors can and cannot exercise.® Similarly,
ExxonMobil’s Board cannot decide arbitrarily what powers it possesses; those powers are
conferred and delineated by the law of the state of New Jersey.” Accordingly, the fact
that ExxonMobil chose not to seek exclusion of the Proposal pursuant to Rule 14a-8(i)(1)
and (2), does not somehow obviate the need to look to New Jersey law in order to
determine whether the Company has the power and authority to implement the Proposal.

Thus, it is not RAM, but ExxonMobil that has misconstrued the nature of the 14a-
8(1)(6) exclusion, because it is the Company that bears the burden of demonstrating that a
Proposal is beyond the power of the Company to implement. ExxonMobil has not
carried this burden. Instead, the Company admits that the Board possesses the power to

the Company in its February 22, 2005 letter) involved the same proposal nor addressed the legal arguments
set forth by the proponent in The Walt Disney Company (available November 24, 2004) and made by RAM
in this case. As discussed below, ExxonMobil’s reliance on Bristol-Myers Squibb Company (available
February 7, 2005) is misplaced because, the staff did not reach the issue presented in this matter in the
course of the no-action proceedings in that case.

® The United States Supreme Court has made clear that: “Corporations are creatures of state law, and
investors commit their funds to corporate directors on the understanding that, except where federal iaw
expressly requires certain responsibilities of directors with respect to stockholders, state law will govern
the internal affairs of the corporation.” Santa Fe Industries, Inc. v. Green, 430 U.S. 462, 479 (1977)
(quoting Cort v. Ash, 422 U.S. 66, 84 (1975)) (emphasis supplied).

* The Division of Corporate Finance should not use its role in interpreting Rules promulgated by the
Commission to inject federal regulation into matters of internal corporate governance that traditionally have
been left for resolution under state law. See The Business Roundtable v. SEC, 905 F.2d 406, 408 (D.C. Cir.
1990) (“[W]e find that the Exchange Act cannot be understood to include regulation of an issue that is so
far beyond matters of disclosure (such as are regulated under § 14 of the Act, and of the management and
practices of self-regulatory organizations, and that is concededly a part of corporate governance
traditionally left to the states.”)
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amend the by-laws in exactly the manner contemplated by the Proposal. What it argues
is that it cannot guarantee compliance with the valid director qualification established by
the proposed amendment. See February 22, 2005 letter at 2 n.2. Thus ExxonMobil is
attempting to blur the distinction between two legally distinct concepts — ensuring
implementation of the Proposal on the one hand, and ensuring the future election of
directors meeting validly adopted qualifications on the other. Viewed clearly, however,
ExxonMobil does not — and cannot — maintain that the Company’s board lacks the ability
to implement the Proposal. As such, the Proposal may not be excluded under Rule 14a-

8(1)(6).

ExxonMobil’s reliance upon Bristol-Myers Squibb Company (available February
7, 2005) in its February 28, 2005 letter is also misplaced. Bristol-Myers involved the
SEC Staff’s consideration of two separate shareholder proposals. The first proposal
requested “that the board of directors establish a policy of, whenever possible, separating
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer so that an independent director who has
not served as an executive officer of the company serves as chair of the board of
directors.” The second proposal, like the proposal submitted to ExxonMobil by RAM,
“urge[d] the board of directors to amend the bylaws to require that an independent
director who has not served as chief executive officer of the company shall serve as
chairman of the board.” Bristol-Myers received the first proposal on November 8, 2004
and did not receive the second proposal until November 16, 2004.

Bristol-Myers sought to exclude both proposals pursuant to Rule 14a-8(i)(6) and,
like ExxonMobil, attempted to rely upon distinguishable no-action precedent, such as
H.J. Heinz Company (available June 14, 2004), Bank of America Corporation (available
February 24, 2004), Wachovia Corporation (available February 24, 2004), AmSouth
Bancorporation (February 24, 2004), SouthTrust Corporation (available January 16,
2004) in support of the flawed. argument that it would not be within the board’s power “to
ensure that an individual meeting the specified criteria would be elected as director and
serve as chairman of the board.” Bristol-Myers also sought to exclude the second
proposal (the one similar to RAM’s) pursuant to Rule 14a-8(1)(11) as “substantially
duplicative” of the first proposal. Like ExxonMobil, Bristol-Myers sought to distinguish
The Walt Disney Company (available November 24, 2004), because the proposal in Walt
Disney “provided an exception to the independence requirement ‘in rare and explicitly
spelled out, extraordinary circumstances,’” and that qualification did not appear in either
of the proposals submitted to Bristol-Myers.®

® Similarly, in its January 17, 2005 letter, ExxonMobil argued that Walt Disney was distinguishable because
the proposal in that case “explicitly permitted the board to craft exceptions to deal with situations in which
it might not be possible to have an independent chairman.” See January 17, 2005 letter at p. 4. As RAM
has explained, ExxonMobil’s Board can unilaterally: (i) enlarge the size of the board; (ii) elect directors to
fill vacancies; and (iii) amend the Company’s by-laws as it, in its sole discretion, deems necessary and thus
ExxonMobil’s suggestion that it would be left with “no remedy” should an independent Chairman “leave
office or unexpectedly cease to be independent” is patently frivolous.
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However, the SEC Staff disagreed, stating that: “{w]e are unable to concur in your
view that Bristol-Myers may exclude the first proposal under rule 14a-8(i}(6).
Accordingly, we do not believe that Bristol-Myers may omit the first proposal from its
proxy materials in reliance on rule 14a-8(i)(6).” With respect to the second proposal, the
SEC Staff stated:

There appears to be some basis for your view that Bristol-Myers may
exclude the second proposal under rule 14a-8(i)(11), as substantially
duplicative of the first proposal that will be included in Bristol-Myers'
2005 proxy materials. Accordingly, we will not recommend enforcement
action to the Commission if Bristol-Myers omits the second proposal from
its proxy materials in reliance on rule 14a-8(i)(11). In reaching this
position, we have not found it necessary to address the alternative bases
for omission of the second proposal upon which Bristol-Myers relies.

(emphasis supplied). Thus, the SEC expressly did not, as ExxonMobil facetiously claims
in its February 28, 2005 letter, “affirm” ExxonMobil’s erroneous viewpoint that “the
different results in these letters reflect differences in the underlying proposals.”’ To the
contrary, not only did the SEC Staff decline to decide the issue of whether the second
proposal could be excluded pursuant to Rule 14a-8(1)(6), but in allowing the second
proposal to be excluded pursuant to Rule 14a-8(i)(11) as “substantially duplicative” of
the first proposal, the SEC Staff implicitly recognized that the two proposals were
essentially identical.® Thus, ExxonMobil grossly misstates the basis upon which no-
action relied was denied and granted in Bristol-Myers, and its reliance upon that letter is
misplaced.

For all the foregoing reasons, and as described in detail in RAM’s February 16,
2005 letter responding to the Company’s No-Action Request, ExxonMobil’s newly
claimed inability “to ensure compliance” with the proposed by-law amendment is both
irrelevant, and demonstrably false. Specifically, RAM has amply demonstrated that New
Jersey law expressly authorizes the board of directors of a New Jersey corporation to
amend the corporation’s bylaws in order to prescribe director qualifications and does not

7 Inexplicably, ExxonMobil quotes to language from a letter from Bristol-Myers which addressed the first
proposal (which like the proposal in Walt Disney concerned a policy) but the SEC Staff obviously rejected
this argument in determining that the proposal could not be excluded pursuant to Rule 14a-8(i)(6). See
February 28, 2005 letter at p. 2 n.2 (quoting letter on behalf of Bristol-Myers arguing for exclusion of first
proposal).

® Indeed the exclusion provided by Rule 14a-8(i)(11) is intended “to eliminate the possibility of
shareholders having to consider two or more substantially identical proposals submitted to an issuer by
proponents acting independently of each other.” SEC Exchange Act Release No. 24-12999 (1976)
(emphasis added).
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limit such authority to only those qualifications that a company can guarantee will be
met. RAM also attached an opinion by New Jersey counsel specifically opining that the
Board has the power and authority to implement the Proposal under New Jersey law.

In accordance with Rule 14a-8(j), we have enclosed six (6) copies of this letter.
We have also enclosed an additional copy, which we ask that you kindly date-stamp and
return to us in the enclosed, self-addressed stamped envelope.

Sincerely,

Michael J. Barry
Enclosures

cc: Robert A.G. Monks
James Earl Parsons, Esquire




Exxon Mobil Corporation
5959 Las Colinas Boulevard
Irving, Texas 75039-2298
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972 444 1432 Facsimile

James Earl Parsons
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Counsel
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Washington, DC 20549

RE:

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 -- Section 14(a); Rule 14-8
Omission of Shareholder Proposal Regarding Independent Chairman

Gentlemen and Ladies:

By letter dated January 17, 2005, ExxonMobil advised the staff of our intention to
omit a proposal submitted by RAM Trust Services from the proxy material for our
upcoming annual meeting. The proposal asks ExxonMobil's Board to take the necessary

steps to amend the by-laws to require that an independent director serve as Chairman of
the Board and that the Chairman of the Board not also serve as the CEO.

counsel.

We received a letter dated February 16, 2005, from Grant & Eisenhofer P.A ,
letter. We are writing to respond briefly to this February 16 submission by proponent's

counsel for the proponent, which attempts to rebut the arguments made in our January 17

Proponent's counsel implies that it is inconsistent for ExxonMobil to challenge
inclusion of the Ram Trust proposal in our 2005 proxy material since substantially the
same proposal was included in our 2004 proxy, and an ExxonMobil letter seeking
omission of the proposal was denied by the SEC staff in 2003. However, we do not
believe it is inappropriate to seek a no-action letter for a repeat proposal if there is a
change in facts’, or when new grounds for exclusion emerge. As we explained in our
own January 17 letter, our challenge of the current proposal rests upon the issuance of a

number of very recent precedents in which substantially identical proposals have been

! For example, in Exxon Mobil Corporation (available March 20, 2002), the staff concurred with our

request to exclude the Ram Trust proposal from our 2002 proxy material under Rule 14a-8(1)(8) since the
supporting statement contained language personally attacking our incumbent Chairman and directors.
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held excludable by the staff under Rule 14a-8(i)(6) on the basis of an argument
ExxonMobil has not previously asserted.

Proponent's counsel misconstrues the nature of the 14a-8(i)(6) argument with
respect to this proposal. Specifically, counsel's letter goes to great lengths to establish
that, under New Jersey corporate law, directors have the authority to amend company by-
laws. However, that point is irrelevant to our no-action request. We do not claim that it
would violate New Jersey law for the words requested by the proposal to be added to
ExxonMobil's by-laws.> Rather, our argument, like the argument in H.J. Heinz (available
June 14, 2004) and the other recent letters cited in our January 17 letter, is that the Board
would not be able to ensure compliance with such a by-law since it is the shareholders
who elect the directors. As the staff noted in Heinz, it is not within the power of the
Board to ensure that an individual meeting the specified criteria would be elected as
director and serve as Chairman of the Board.> Moreover, as the staff noted in Cintas
Corporation (available August 27, 2004), even if an independent director were elected as
Chairman it is not within the power of the Board to ensure that the Chairman retains his
or her independence at all times, and a proposal such as the current Ram Trust proposal
would, if implemented, leave the Board no remedy should an independent Chairman
leave office or unexpectedly cease to be independent.

Proponent's counsel attempts to distinguish the recent precedents cited in our
January 17 letter in part on the grounds that the proponents in those letters did not make
adequate counter-arguments. However, the public records in both Cintas and Peabody
Energy Corporation (available February 23, 2004) include vigorous rebuttals from a
sophisticated institutional proponent (in both cases, the AFL-CIO) pointing out, as does
counsel for Ram Trust, the requirements of Sarbanes-Oxley and stock exchange listing
requirements regarding director independence. Despite these arguments, the staff
concurred in the exclusion of the proposals under Rule 14a-8(i)(6). *

As explained in more detail in our January 17 letter, we believe the recent staff
response in The Walt Disney Company (available November 24, 2004) reflects
differences in the underlying shareholder proposal, not a change in the staff's position.
The current ExxonMobil proposal is significantly different from the proposal held
includable in Disney, but is essentially identical to the proposal held excludable in Heinz.

% Such an argument, if applicable, would in any case more properly be raised under Rule 14a-8(i)(2).

? Proponent's counsel implicitly concedes the relevant argument by admitting that the board cannot
guarantee the requirements of the by-law requested by the proposal will be met. See p. 2 and p. 11 of
counsel's February 16 letter, noting that the directors' ability to add requirements to the by-laws is not
limited to "only those qualifications the Company can guarantee will be met."

* The proponents in these letters may not have raised the identical state law arguments made by RAM
Trust's counsel, but as explained earlier in this letter the state law arguments of RAM Trust's counsel are
irrelevant to the omission of the proposal under Rule 14a-8(1)(6).
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The recent letter issued to First Mariner Bancorp (available January 10, 2005)
cited by proponent's counsel is also not applicable to the argument made in ExxonMobil's
no-action request. Although the company letter in First Mariner cited Rule 14a-8(i)(6),
the company's argument was that adopting a policy to separate the Chairman and CEO
positions would violate its by-laws since that company's by-laws currently provide for the
positions to be held by the same person. This is not the argument made in Heinz nor is it
the argument being made by ExxonMobil.

To summarize, the staff has recently found a number of proposals, as cited in our
January 17 letter, excludable on the basis of a particular Rule 14a-8(1)(6) argument that,
to our knowledge, has not previously been asserted. The current Ram Trust proposal is
substantively the same as those recently excluded proposals, and the same arguments for
exclusion under Rule 14a-8(i)(6) apply. The lengthy February 16 submission by counsel
for Ram Trust boils down to a single proposition: that Heinz, Bank of America
Corporation (available February 24, 2004), Wachovia Corporation (available February
24, 2004), AmSouth Bancorporation (available February 24, 2004), Cintas, Peabody, and
Archon Corporation (available March 16, 2003), as well as SouthTrust Corporation
(available January 16, 2004), were all wrongly decided by the staff and should be
reversed. We believe those letters were rightly decided and that the same result should
apply to ExxonMobil.

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact me
directly at 972-444-1478. In my absence, please contact Lisa Bork at 972-444-1473.

Please file-stamp the enclosed copy of this letter and return it to me in the
enclosed self-addressed postage-paid envelope. In accordance with SEC rules, 1 also
enclose five additional copies of this letter. A copy of this letter is also being sent to the
proponent and proponent's counsel.

Sincerely,

/jwffm

JEP:clh
Enclosure

cc: Mr. John P.M. Higgins
President
RAM Trust Services, Inc.

Michael J. Barry
Grant & Eisenhofer P.A.
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 Grant & Eisenhofer PA.

Chase Manhattan Centre
1201 North Market Street
wilmington, DE 19801
Tel: 302-622-7000 ¢ Fax: 302-622-7100

www.gelaw.com

February 16, 2005

Direct Dial: (302) 622-7065

VIA TELECOPY AND OVERNIGHT MAIL

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
Division of Corporation Finance

Office of Chief Counsel

450 Fifth Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20549-0402

Re:  Shareholder Proposal Submitted by RAM Trﬁst Services, Inc. for
Inclusion in Exxon Mobil Corporation’s 2005 Proxy Statement

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Attached is our letter dated February 16, 2005 submitted on behalf of our client,
RAM Trust Services, Inc. (“RAM?”), in response to the letter dated January 17, 2005 sent
on behalf of ExxonMobil Corporation (“ExxonMobil”) to the Division of Corporation
Finance of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”), pursuant to
which ExxonMobil seeks to exclude the shareholder proposal submitted by RAM from
ExxonMobil’s 2005 proxy statement. The attachments to RAM’s letter are being sent
separately to the Commission by overnight delivery.

Sincerely,
Michael J. Barry
Enclosures

cc: Robert A.G. Monks (w/enclosures)
James Earl Parsons, Esq. (w/enclosures)
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February 16, 2005

Direct Dial: (302) 622-7065

VIA TELECOPY AND OVERNIGHT MAIL

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
Division of Corporation Finance

Office of Chief Counsel

450 Fifth Street, N.'W.

Washington, D.C. 20549-0402

Re:  Shareholder Proposal Submitted by RAM Trust Services, Inc. for
Inclusion in Exxon Mobil Corporation’s 2005 Proxy Statement

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This letter is submitted on behalf our client, RAM Trust Services, Inc. (“RAM”),
in response to the letter dated January 17, 2005 (the “January 17, 2005 letter”), sent on
behalf of ExxonMobil Corporation (“ExxonMobil” or the “Company”) to the Division of
Corporation Finance of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Division”), in
which the Company maintains that the shareholder proposal submitted by RAM may be
excluded from the Company’s 2005 proxy statement pursuant to Rule 14a-8(i)(6).

RAM’s proposal (the “Proposal™) seeks a resolution urging the Company’s Board
of Directors (the “Board”) “to take the necessary steps to amend the by-laws to require
that, subject to any presently existing contractual obligations of the Company, an
independent director shall serve as Chairman of the Board of Directors, and that the
Chairman of the Board of Directors shall not concurrently serve as the Chief Executive
Officer.” This is the same proposal submitted by RAM and included in the Company’s
proxy statement in 2003 and 2004. The proposal received 21.5% of the votes cast at the
2003 annual meeting, and 27.1% of the votes cast at last year’s annual meeting. The SEC
declined to grant no-action relief to ExxonMobil regarding this exact same proposal in
2003." See ExxonMobil Corporation (available March 24, 2003).

' The Proposal submitted by RAM for inclusion in ExxonMobil’s 2005 proxy statement includes a new
supporting statement. ExxonMobil does not challenge the Proposal’s new supporting statement in RAM’s
current submission.
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In seeking to exclude this proposal from this year’s proxy statement, however,
ExxonMobil makes a new argument based on a series of “no-action” letters issued by the
SEC in the first part of 2004. Specifically, ExxonMobil argues that, if adopted by the
shareholders, the Company would “lack the authority” to implement RAM’s Proposal.
As such, ExxonMobil seeks permission to exclude the Proposal under Rule 14a-8(i)(6).
The burden is on ExxonMobil to establish that it has a reasonable basis for excluding the
Proposal from the proxy materials. See Staff Legal Bulletin No 14 (CF) (July 13, 2001).
It has failed to carry this burden.

As discussed below, ExxonMobil’s argument is completely devoid of merit.
Indeed, its position that the Company’s Board would “lack the authority” to implement a
proposal that “urges” the adoption of a bylaw requiring an independent Chairman is
contradicted not only by New Jersey law (which governs the internal operations of the
Company), but also by ExxonMobil’s certificate of incorporation and bylaws, and by the
historical conduct of the ExxonMobil Board of Directors. In short, ExxonMobil’s
January 17, 2005 letter, which purports to be a legal “opinion,” but is devoid of any legal
support, is a hollow attempt to latch on to a few no action letters that are either
distinguishable or lacked the benefit of a thorough legal analysis. The Company’s claim
of legal impotence is unfounded and ExxonMobil’s request for no-action relief should be
dismissed out of hand.

The Company’s January 17, 2005 letter does not offer any substantive legal
analysis but instead seeks to meet the Company’s burden solely by (i) referencing a
handful of no-action letters allowing other companies to exclude similar proposals
pursuant to Rule 14a-8(1)(6), in each case after the proponents of those proposals failed to
offer any response to the companies’ erroneous legal position; and (ii) attempting to
distinguish The Walt Disney Company (available November 24, 2004), in which the SEC
staff (the “Staff”) recently denied no-action relief with respect to a similar proposal after
the proponent demonstrated that the actions the proposal asked the board of directors to
take were expressly authorized by state law.

While the Januvary 17, 2005 letter purports to be a legal opinion, it does not
contain a single reference to any specific provision of New Jersey law. The reason is
obvious: New Jersey law directly contradicts ExxonMobil’s position. In fact, as
discussed below, New Jersey law specifically authorizes the board of directors of a New
Jersey corporation to amend the corporation’s bylaws in order to prescribe director
qualifications. Moreover, nowhere does any applicable law limit such authority to only
those qualifications that a company can guarantee will be met. Therefore, the Company’s
argument that the Proposal is beyond the Company’s power to implement is frivolous.
Additionally, the prior no-action letters relied upon by the Company are wholly
distinguishable, because in those cases the proponents failed to offer any response to the
no-action requests and/or failed to demonstrate (as the proponent here can demonstrate)
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that the proposals at issue were authorized by state law. Moreover, in more recent cases,
the Staff has correctly declined to issue no-action relief when a proponent demonstrates
that the actions contemplated by a proposal are expressly authorized under the law of a
company’s state of incorporation.

Finally, repeated actions by the ExxonMobil Board of Directors indicate that they
don’t even believe they “lack the authority” to ensure the appointment of an independent
Chairman. In countless “policies” and resolutions, and indeed in their stated opposition
to the very same Proposal that RAM offered last year, the ExxonMobil Board has touted
its ability to ensure the independence of board members, and the ability — if it chose to do
so — to appoint an independent Chairman. Thus, even if the Proposal could be correctly
characterized as advocating the adoption of a bylaw requiring the Board to ensure the
election of at least one qualifying director (and it does not), it is clearly within the power
of the Board to do so. As such, the Company’s January 17, 2005 letter fails to set forth
any legal basis whatsoever as to why such a bylaw could not be adopted under New
Jersey law, and ExxonMobil has not established any reasonable basis to exclude the
Proposal.

I. The Proposal May Not Be Excluded Under Rule 14a-8(i)(6), Because New
Jersey Law Expressly Grants To The Board The Power And Authority To
Implement The Proposal

The Proposal urges the ExxonMobil Board to amend the Company’s bylaws to
require that the position of Chairman be held by an independent director, and that the
Chairman not concurrently serve as Chief Executive Officer. As a matter of law,
ExxonMobil’s Board has the power to implement the Proposal.

ExxonMobil is a New Jersey corporation. Under New Jersey law, boards of
directors are expressly given the authority to “make, alter and repeal by-laws” unless such
right is reserved to the shareholders in the company’s certificate of incorporation.
Section 14A:2-9 of the New Jersey Business Corporation Act (“NJBCA™) (a provision
that is obviously relevant but which is conveniently ignored by ExxonMobil), provides
that:

(1) The initial by-laws of a corporation shall be adopted by the board at its
organization meeting. Thereafier, the board shall have the power to make,
alter and repeal by-laws unless such power is reserved to the shareholders
in the certificate of incorporation, but by-laws made by the board may be
altered or repealed, and new by-laws made, by the shareholders. The
shareholders may prescribe in the by-laws that any by-law made by them
shall not be altered or repealed by the board.?

2N.J. Stat. Ann. § 14A:2-9 (West Supp. 2005) (emphasis supplied) (attached hereto as Exhibit A).
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ExxonMobil’s certificate of incorporation does not reserve the power to amend
the Company’s Bylaws to the Company’s shareholders. In fact, Article IX of
ExxonMobil’s existing bylaws expressly permits the Board to adopt bylaws. It provides:

The board of directors shall have the power to make, alter and repeal the
by-laws of the corporation, but by-laws made by the board may be altered
or repealed, and new by-laws made, by the shareholders.?

Indeed, to make things perfectly clear, ExxonMobil’s Board has expressly
reserved for itself the power to amend the bylaws of the Company. In a “Resolution
Regarding Powers and Functions Reserved to the Board,” adopted by the ExxonMobil
Board May 30, 2001, the Board stated:

RESOLVED, that, in light of the responsibility of the Board of Directors
for the management of the business and affairs of the Corporation and of
the provisions of Article IV of the By-Laws, as amended, dealing with the
management responsibilities of the officers of the Corporation:

A. the Board reserves the following functions to itself (and, to the

extent delegated thereto, to its Committees):

(1) amendment of the By-Laws,

(2) filling vacancies on the Board and designation of nominees for
election to the Board by the shareholders,

(3) establishment of committees of the Board and appointment of
committee members,

(4) election of officers of the Corporation, designation of the chief
executive officer of the Corporation and authorization to any
officer of the Corporation to appoint assistant officers, . . .

Finally, it is well established that the bylaws of a corporation may establish
qualifications for directors. Section 14A:6-1 of the NJBCA provides as follows:

(1) The business and affairs of a corporation shall be managed by or under
the direction of its board, except as in this act or in its certificate of
incorporation otherwise provided. Directors shall be at least 18 years
of age and need not be United States citizens or residents of this State

* See Exxon Mobil’s Bylaws (as revised July 31, 2002) (emphasis supplied), publicly available at
http://www.exxonmobil.com/Corporate/InvestorInfo/Corp 1I_Bylaws.asp (attached hereto as Exhibit B).

* See Exxon Mobil’s Resolution Regarding Powers and Functions Reserved to the Board (May 30, 2001)
(emphasis supplied) publicly available at
http://www.exxonmobil.com/Corporate/lnvestorinfo/Corp 1I_Powers.asp (attached hereto as Exhibit C).
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or shareholders of the corporation unless the certificate of
incorporation or by-laws so require. The certificate of incorporation
or by-laws may prescribe other qualifications for directors.’

Because ExxonMobil’s board of directors clearly possesses the power to amend
the Company’s bylaws — both as a matter of New Jersey law and under the terms of the
existing by laws of the corporation, and under New Jersey law, bylaws may prescribe
qualifications for directors, this necessarily means that the ExxonMobil Board has the
capacity to amend the Company’s bylaws to establish director qualifications. This
conclusion is supported by the attached Certification of Robert A. Fagella, Esq. (“Fagella
Cert.,” attached hereto as Exhibit D), an attorney licensed in New Jersey, who confirms
that “New Jersey law, specifically N.J.S.A. 14A:2-9, confers upon the ExxonMobil
Board the authority necessary to amend the Company’s by-laws to require that an
independent director serve as Chairman of the Board of Directors and that the Chairman
shall not concurrently serve as the Chief Executive Officer.” Fagella Cert. § 7. Further,
Mr, Fagella opines that “N.J.S.A. 14A:6-1, authorizes the ExxonMobil Board to establish
qualifications for the Company’s directors, consistent with RAM’s proposed amendment
to the by-laws.” Fagella Cert. 8.

In short, there is nothing in New Jersey law or ExxonMobil’s governing
documents that would prevent the adoption of a qualification providing that the director
who serves as Chairman must be independent and may not concurrently serve as the
Chief Executive Officer. Fagella Cert. ] 6-9. This is exactly what the Proposal
requests. The January 17, 2005 letter submitted by the Company (which purports to be a
legal opinion) fails to address any relevant provisions of New Jersey (or any other law) to
the contrary.

Because ExxonMobil Board’s has the legal authority to amend the Company’s
bylaws to establish qualifications of directors, its suggestion that it “lacks the authority”
to implement the Proposal rings hollow. In this regard, ExxonMobil’s argument is
exactly like the argument that the SEC recently rejected in First Mariner Bancorp
(available January 10, 200S). In First Mariner, the company sought to exclude a
proposal to adopt a policy requiring that an independent director serve as Chairman
pursuant to Rule 14a-8(i)(6) by arguing that such a policy would result in a violation of
the company’s bylaws. In response, the proponent attached relevant portions of the
company’s bylaws and correctly pointed out that the proposal was consistent with
Maryland law because First Mariner’s board “can unilaterally change the by-laws at any
time without shareholder approval.” The Staff properly declined to issue no-action relief.

SN.J. Stat. Ann. § 14A:6-1 (West Supp. 2005) (emphasis supplied) (attached hereto as Exhibit E).
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II. The ExxonMobil Board Repeatedly Has Touted Its Ability To Appoint
Independent Directors To Various Positions.

Wholly ignoring New Jersey law, ExxonMobil blithely proclaims that it “lacks
the authority” to implement the Proposal because the Board can not “ensure that a
sufficient number of independent directors would be elected to serve as chairman.” This
argument is based on the underlying assumption that because shareholders elect directors,
the ExxonMobil Board somehow is incapable of making sure that the individual they
designate to serve as Chairman is not the Chief Executive Officer. ExxonMobil does not
even believe this statement. In point of fact, ExxonMobil’s Board has repeatedly —
indeed incessantly — touted its ability to appoint “independent directors” to a number of
positions, and even has represented to the shareholders its ability to appoint a separate
CEO and Chairman if it decides to do so.

For example, its statement in opposition to RAM’s proposal last year, the
Company touted the independence of its board of directors, stating that:

o “Independent directors make up a substantial majority of the Board and
normally meet in executive session after each regular Board meeting.”

e “Only independent directors serve on the Audit, Board Affairs, Compensation,
Contributions, and Public Issues Committees.”

o “Ten of ExxonMobil’s 13 current directors are independent. The independent
directors hold regular and frequent executive sessions.”

o “At ExxonMobil, the CEO’s performance is evaluated solely by the independent
directors meeting outside the presence of the CEO or any other Company
employee.” 6

Additionally, the Company’s 2004 proxy statement unambiguously stated the Company’s
position that it possesses the power to separate the offices of Chairman and CEO if it so
chooses, stating:

o “The Board retains the authority to separate the offices of Chairman and CEQ if
it deems such a change appropriate.”

§ See Exxon Mobil’s 2004 proxy statement at p. 38 (emphasis supplied), publicly available at
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/34088/000104746904011934/a2 130444zdefl4a.htm (attached
hereto as Exhibit F).

71d atp. 39.




SEC Division of Corporation Finance
February 16, 2005
Page 7 of 15

Further, the ExxonMobil Board has adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines
that require that a substantial majority of the Board consist of independent directors. As
described in the Company’s 2004 proxy statement:

Corporate Governance Guidelines

The Board has adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines that govern the
structure and functioning of the Board and set out the Board’s policies ¢n
a number of governance issues. . ..

Director Independence

Our Corporate Governance Guidelines require that a substantial majority
of the Board consist of independent directors. In general, the Guidelines
require that an independent director must have no material relationship
with ExxonMobil, directly or indirectly, except as a director. The Board
determines independence on the basis of the standards specified by the
New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) and other facts and circumstances the
Board considers relevant.

The Board has reviewed business and charitable relationships between
ExxonMobil and each non-employee director to determine compliance
with the NYSE standards described above and to evaluate whether there
are any other facts or circumstances that might impair a director’s
independence. Based on that review, our Board has determined that all
our non-employee directors are independent ®

ExxonMobil’s Corporate Governance Guidelines also provide that:

Chairman and CEQ. The Board believes it is appropriate and efficient for
ExxonMobil’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO) also to serve as Chairman
of the Board. However, the Board retains the authority to separate those
Junctions if it deems such action appropriate in the future.

Similarly, the Board has adopted “Guidelines for the Selection of Non-Employee
Directors” which (as revised September 24, 2004) provide:

8 Id at pp. 3-4.
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A substantial majority of the Board must meet the independence standards
described in the Corporation’s Corporate Governance Guidelines, and all
candidates must be free from any relationship with management or the
Corporation which would interfere with the exercise of independent
Jjudgment. Candidates should be committed to representing the interests of
all shareholders and not any particular constituency, and must be willing
to challenge and stimulate management.

Additionally, ExxonMobil’s Board has established Committees of the Board and has
prescribed qualifications for membership thereon which require that all members be
independent directors. For example, ExxonMobil’s Compensation Committee Charter
(as revised by the Board on February 25, 2004) provides that:

The Committee shall consist of not less than three nor more than six
members. . . .Each member of the Committee must satisfy such criteria of
independence as the Board may establish and such additional regulatory or
listing requirements as the Board may determine to be applicable or
appropriate. Accordingly, each member must qualify as a “non-employee

director” under rule 16b-3 of the Securities and Exchange Commission
(the “SEC™); .. .'°

Likewise, the Company’s Audit Committee Charter provides that:
II. Committee Membership

The Committee shall consist of not less than four nor more than seven
members. . . . Each member of the Committee must satisfy such criteria of
independence as the Board may establish and such additional regulatory or
listing requirements as the Board may determine to be applicable or
appropriate.

Accordingly, each member of the Committee shall be financially literate
within a reasonable period of time after appointment to the Committee;
must be “independent” within the meaning of Rule 10A4-3 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and may not serve on more than two
other public company audit committees unless the Board determines that

? See Exxon Mobil website at http://www.exxonmobil.com/Corporate/InvestorInfo/Corp_[1_Selection.asp
(empbhasis supplied) (attached as Exhibit G).

95ee Exxon Mobil website at

http://www.exxonmobil.com/corporate/Investorinfo/Corp_I1_ChartersCompensation.asp (emphasis
supplied) (attached as Exhibit H).
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such simultaneous service would not impair the ability of the member to
serve effectively on the Committee."’

Finally, as a New York Stock Exchange-listed company, ExxonMobil is required
by law and listing standards to ensure that a majority of its directors be independent
(NYSE Listing Standards § 303A.01) and that its audit committee, nominating/corporate
governance committee, and compensation committee consist solely of independent
directors. See 15 U.S.C. § 78j-1(m)(3); NYSE Listing Standards §§ 303A.04, 303A.05.
It is inherently illogical to suggest that the Company can ensure that its stockholders will
elect sufficient directors to comply with these legal and listing requirements, and with the
policies in its own Corporate Governance Guidelines, but not with a bylaw requiring an
independent Chairman.

In view of this extensive history, ExxonMobil’s suggestion that its Board
somehow is incapable of selecting one independent director from within its ranks to serve
as Chairman is latughable.12 ExxonMobil’s Board repeatedly has exhibited that it

' See ExxonMobil’s website at
http://www.exxonmobil.com/corporate/Investorinfo/Corp 1I_ChartersAudit.asp (emphasis supplied)
(attached hereto as Exhibit I).

12" Even if ExxonMobil someday might be faced with a situation where none of its existing independent
directors could serve as Chairman, the ExxonMobil Board still could ensure the appointment of an
independent Chairman by expanding the Board and designating an individual who is willing to serve in that
capacity. Article SEVENTH of Exxon Mobil’s Certificate of Incorporation provides that:

SEVENTH. The number of directors at any time may be increased or diminished by vote
of the board of directors, and in case of any such increase the board of directors shall
have power to elect each such additional director to hold office until the next succeeding
annual meeting of shareholders and until his successor shall have been elected and
qualified.

ExxonMobil’s Certificate of Incorporation, Article SEVENTH (emphasis supplied) (attached hereto as
Exhibit J). Similarly, in accordance with the NJBCA § 14A:6-2, ExxonMobil’s bylaws further provide as
follows:

The business and affairs of the corporation shall be managed by its board of directors
consisting of not less than ten nor more than nineteen members, who shall hold office
until the next annual meeting and until their successors shall have been elected and
qualified. The actual number of directors shall be determined from time to time by
resolution of the board If at any time, except at the annual meeting, the number of
directors shall be increased, the additional director or directors may be elected by the
board, to hold office until the next annual meeting and until their successors shall have
been elected and qualified.

ExxonMobil’s bylaws (as revised July 31, 2001), Article II, paragraph 1 (emphasis supplied) (attached
hereto as Exhibit B). Thus, in addition to possessing the power to amend or repeal a bylaw requiring that an
independent director serve as Chairman in the extraordinarily unlikely event that shareholders do not elect
“a sufficient number of independent directors” (the sufficient number is one (1) independent director), the -
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possesses the authority to adopt director qualifications relating to the independence of its
directors and in fact successfully has implemented such qualifications.” It strains
credulity for the Board now to claim that it is somehow legally precluded from doing so.

III.  The Division’s Previous No-Action Letters Do Not Support ExxonMobil’s
Position.

A. The No-Action Letters Relied Upon By The Company Are
Distinguishable Because The Proponents Never Responded To The
Companies’ Arguments Or Failed To Point Out That The Director
Qualifications At Issue Were Expressly Authorized By State Law

The Proposal submitted by RAM is nearly identical to legions of shareholder
resolutions put forth at other companies, urging boards of directors to take all steps
necessary, whether by setting guidelines or through bylaw amendments, to establish
independence as a necessary qualification for the chairman. The Division’s staff has
repeatedly declined to issue no-action lefters to companies seeking to exclude these
proposals. See, e.g., International Paper Company (publicly available March 8, 2004)
(proposal urging the board to amend the bylaws to require that an independent director
who has not served as CEO serve as chairman of the board); Alaska Air Group, Inc.
(publicly available March 1, 2004) (proposal requesting that the board take all necessary
steps to amend the bylaws and adopt a policy to ensure that the Lead Independent
Director is truly independent); The Home Depot, Inc. (publicly available February 25,
2004) (proposal urging the board to adopt a policy of electing an independent director to
serve as lead director of the board); Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. (publicly available February
18, 2004) (proposal urging the board to amend the bylaws to require that an independent
director be its chairman); First Mariner Bancorp (publicly available February 11, 2004)
(proposal urging the board of directors to adopt a policy that the board’s chairman and
the chief executive officer be two different individuals and that the chairman be an
independent director); First Mariner Bancorp (publicly available March 20, 2002)
(same); Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc. (publicly available February 6, 2004) (proposal urging
the board to amend the bylaws to require that an independent director who has not served
as the chief executive of the company serve as board chair); Swift Transportation
Company, Inc., (publicly available April 1, 2003) (same); Peoples Energy Corp. (publicly
available November 3, 2002) (same); UAL Corporation (publicly available January 25,
2002) (same); America West Holdings Corp. (publicly available April 14, 1998) (same);
Exxon Mobil Corp. (publicly available March 24, 2003) (proposal urging the board to

Directors may also avoid violation of the Bylaws simply by increasing the size of the Board and then itself
electing a director meeting the required criteria.

1> Whether the authority of the Board to impose director qualifications is exercised by resolution or bylaw
amendment is inconsequential for the present purposes, because in either case the Board possesses the
express authority to repeal or amend any such resolution or bylaw whenever it deems necessary. See N.J.
Stat. Ann. § 14A:2-9 (West Supp. 2005); ExxonMobil’s bylaws, Article IX.
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amend the bylaws to require that an independent director serve as chairman of the board,
and that the chairman not concurrently serve as the chief executive officer);
Weyerhaeuser Company (publicly available January 15, 2003) (proposal urging the board
to amend the bylaws to require that an independent director who has not served as an
officer of the company be its chairman); Community Bancshares, Inc. (publicly available
March 15, 1999) (proposal requesting the board to adopt a bylaw amendment requiring
that the positions of Chairperson and president are not held by the same person); and 17T
Corporation (publicly available January 13, 1995) (proposal requesting the board of
directors to take appropriate action to ensure that the positions of chief executive officer
and chairman of the board are held by different people).

The Staff has also declined to issue no-action letters in a number of cases
involving proposals seeking the adoption of a policy to fill all openings on certain board
committees, as they occur, with independent directors. In doing so, the Staff rejected the
very argument made by the Company here: that they could not guarantee that
shareholders would elect directors meeting the necessary criteria, and that the proposals
were therefore excludable under Rule 14a-8(1)(6). See, e.g., The Gap, Inc. (publicly
available March 18, 2002) (proposal to implement policy providing for transition to a
corporate governance committee composed entirely of independent directors, as openings
occur); Commerce Bancorp, Inc. (publicly available March 15, 2002) (same,
compensation committee); and 4Apple Computer, Inc. (publicly available February 26,
2002) (same, nominating committee).

Despite this long line of authority, the Company has latched onto a recent string
of no-action letters involving proposals to require an independent chairman, and is trying
to fit itself within their rubric by arguing that the Company lacks the power to implement
RAM’s Proposal, not because it cannot amend the Company’s bylaws, but because it
cannot “cnsure” (i) that the shareholders elect a sufficient number of independent
directors to fill the Chairman position; and (ii) that one of the Company’s independent
directors would be willing to serve as Chairman.

As described above, the Company’s argument completely ignores the facts that:
(i) under the Company’s bylaws and New Jersey law, the Board has the express legal
authority to establish qualifications for the Company’s directors and (ii) nowhere does
any applicable law limit that authority to only those qualifications which the Company
can guarantee will be met.

Moreover, while the Company has cited to four no-action letters issued by the
Staff with respect to proposals seeking to amend a company’s bylaws to require that an
independant director serve as Chairman, none of the proponents of those proposals ever
made pointed out the fallacy of the companies’ position under applicable state law. In
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fact, each one of those no-action letters was issued in circumstances where the
proponenis of the proposals did not submit any written submissions to the Staff at all. 14

The other three no-action letters upon which the Company seeks to rely involved
proposals which urged the respective companies’ boards to adopt or implement a policy
requiring either that an independent director serve as Chairman or the presence of
independent directors on the board and/or certain committees thereof.'> While the
proponenis of those proposals responded, no proponent mentioned (if indeed it was true
of any of those companies) that the board had the legal authority to implement bylaws
prescribing qualifications for directors. '

Thus, when issuing the no-action letters upon which the Company seeks to rely,
the Staff did not have the benefit of any argument by the respective proponents that the
boards had the express authority under state law to implement the policies being
proposed. For that reason alone, those no-action letters should not be given any
precedential effect. Had the Staff been presented with complete information and both
sides of the argument, RAM is confident that it would not have issued the no-action
letters.

' See H.J. Heinz Company (publicly available June 14, 2004); Bank of America Corporation (publicly
available February 24, 2004); Amsouth Bancorporation (publicly available February 24, 2004); and
Wachovia Corporation (publicly available February 24, 2004).

'> Only Cintas Corporation (available August 27, 2004) involved a proposal seeking adoption of a policy
requiring that an independent director serve as Chairman. Peabody Energy Corporation (available
February 23, 2004) involved a proposal seeking adoption of a policy requiring that only independent
directors may serve on the company’s audit, compensation, nominating or corporate governance
committees. Archon Corporation (available March 16, 2003) involved a proposal to adopt a policy
requiring a majority of board members be independent and also requiring the establishment of executive,
audit and compensation committees consisting entirely of independent directors, “including an appointee
from each class of stock. . . .”

'® For example, Cintas Corporation is a Washington corporation. Washington state incorporation law
provides that “bylaws may prescribe qualifications for directors.” Wash. Code 23B.08.020. Washington
law also permits a board of directors to adopt bylaws, but only under certain circumstances. Wash Code
23B.10.200. It is not clear whether those circumstances were present at Cintas Corporation. Similarly,
Peabody Energy Corporation is a Delaware corporation. Delaware law also provides that “bylaws may
prescribe other qualifications for directors,” (8 Del C. § 141(b)) and also permits a board of directors to
adopt bylaws under certain circumstances. 8 Del. C. § 109(b). It is not clear whether those circumstances
were present at Peabody Energy Corporation. Finally, Archon is a Nevada company. Nevada law also
generally permits directors to make adopt, amend or repeal the bylaws of the corporation (NV ST 7§.120),
but does not expressly address whether the bylaws of a Nevada corporation may prescribe qualifications for
directors.
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B. Recent No-Action Letters Illustrate That A Company May Not
Exclude Proposals Pursuant to Rule 14a-8(i)(6) When The Contested
Director Qualifications Are Expressly Authorized By State Law

In recent no-action proceedings, the Staff has declined to grant no-action relief
with respect to similar shareholder proposals, when the proponent of such a proposal
demonstrates that the action sought by the proposal is expressly authorized by state law
and the company’s certificate of incorporation and/or bylaws. For example, in The Walt
Disney Company (available November 24, 2004) (“Disney”), the company sought to
exclude a proposal pursuant to Rule 14a-8(i)(8) requesting that the board amend its
corporate governance guidelines and take other necessary actions to adopt a policy
requiring that the Chairman will always be an independent member of the board of
directors except in rare and explicitly spelled out circumstances. Like ExxonMobil, the
company sought to rely upon the Heinz, Bank of America, SouthTrust, Wachovia and
Cintas nc-action letters discussed above. But unlike the proponents in those letters, the
proponent in Disney responded by demonstrating that “under the Companies Certificate
of Incorporation and Delaware law, the Board has the express legal authority to establish
qualifications for the Company’s directors” and further pointed out that “[n]Jowhere does
the law limit that authority to only those qualifications which the Company can guarantee
will be met.” When these critical facts were called to the Staff’s attention, it declined to
issue no-action relief pursuant to Rule 14a-8(i)(6).

In its January 17, 2005 letter, the Company attempts to distinguish Disney by
arguing that the Disney proposal only requested that the board amend the corporate
governance guidelines and take other necessary actions to establish a policy requiring that
an independent director serve as Chairman. The Company states “[i]t is one thing for a
company to have a policy of independence regarding its chairman; it is quite another
matter for a company to be in breach of its by-laws should the shareholders fail to elect
sufficient independent directors, or should an independent director decline to serve as
chairman” But, notably, the January 17, 2005 letter, which purports to be a legal
opinion, fails to offer one iota of legal support for this conclusory statement — and in fact,
as discussed above, it is demonstrably false. In fact, there is no meaningful distinction
between the Company establishing director' qualifications by resolution or by bylaw
amendment in this case because, as proponent has demonstrated above, the Board is
authorized under both New Jersey law and the Company’s bylaws to unilaterally amend
or repeal the Company’s bylaws whenever it deems necessary or appropriate. Thus in
either case, the Company can simply amend or repeal the resolution or bylaw, as the case
may be, in the unlikely event it becomes necessary to do so. Moreover, the Company has
failed to identify any applicable law which would limit the Board’s express authority to
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amend the Bylaws in order to prescribe director qualifications to a situation in which the
Company could guarantee the election of directors meeting such qualifications."”

Another very recent no-action proceeding, First Mariner Bancorp (available
January 10, 2005), also refutes the Company’s argument. In First Mariner, the company
sought to exclude a proposal to adopt a policy requiring that an independent director
serve as Chairman pursuant to Rule 14a-8(i)(6) by making an argument very similar to
the argument made by ExxonMobil. Specifically, First Mariner argued that the Policy
suggested by the proposal would require the company to violate its bylaws.”® In
response, the proponent effectively refuted this baseless argument by calling the Staff’s
attention to relevant portions of the company’s bylaws which specifically authorized First
Mariner’s board to “unilaterally change the by-laws at any time without shareholder
approval.”'® Similarly, in the instant case, RAM has shown that New Jersey law and
Article IX of the Company’s bylaws both specifically authorize the Board to (i) amend
the Company’s bylaws in order to prescribe director qualifications and do not limit such
authority to only those qualifications that a company can guarantee will be met and (ii) in
fact authorize the Board to unilaterally make, alter or repeal the Company’s bylaws,
whenever it deems necessary.

Conclusion

For the foregoing reasons, we believe that RAM’s Proposal should be included in
ExxonMobil’s 2005 Proxy Statement and that ExxonMobil’s request for a no-action letter
should be denied. Specifically, as set forth above, it is our legal opinion that the subject
matter of the Proposal is specifically authorized by New Jersey law. In the event that the

'7 See also The Kroger Company (publicly available March 22, 2004). There, the company, an Ohio
corporation, sought to exclude from its proxy materials a proposal requesting the Board to “take the
necessary steps to amend the by-laws to require that, subject to any presently existing contractual
obligations of the Company, the Chairman of the Board of Directors shall not concurrently serve as the
Chief Executive Officer.” In support of exclusion under Rule 14a-8(i)}(6), the company correctly noted that
the Proposal might be appropriate under the laws of such states as Delaware, in which directors have the
ability to amend the bylaws, but argued that it was beyond the power of the board to implement the
proposal under Ohio law. The Staff denied the no-action letter, in part because it was unable to concur with
the view that Kroger lacked the power to implement the proposal.

'® The company’s argument in First Bancorp was actually stronger than the argument made by the
Company in this case, because as discussed herein, the Company does not argue (like the company in First
Mariner) that the Proposal would violate the Company’s bylaws, but rather only that numerous theoretical
circumstances could simultaneously transpire in the future which could potentially have the effect of
causing the Company to “be in breach of its bylaws.”

' Unlike the Disney proposal, the proposal in First Mariner did not “explicitly permit[] the board to craft
exceptions o deal with situations in which it might not be possible to have an independent chairman” (See
January 17, 2005 letter at p. 4). Thus this particular characteristic of the Disney proposal was obviously not
critical to the SEC Staff’s determination that the proposal could not be excluded, and thus the Company’s
attempt to distinguish the Disney letter on this basis is without merit.
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Staff disagrees with our position, or requires any additional information, we would
appreciate: the opportunity to meet and confer to discuss these issues. Please feel free to
call the undersigned at your convenience. In accordance with Rule 14a-8(j), we have
enclosed six (6) copies of this letter. We have also enclosed an additional copy, which
we ask that you kindly date-stamp and return to us in the enclosed, self-addressed
stamped envelope.

Sincerely,

Michael ¥ Barry

cc: Robert A.G. Monks (w/enclosures)
James Earl Parsons, Esq. (w/enclosures)

Enclosures
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New Jersey Statutes Annotated Currentness
Title 14A. Corp: )ratlons General (Refs & Annos)
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+14A:2-9. By-laws; making and altering

(1) The initial by-laws of a corporation shall be adopted by the board at its organization meeting. Thereafter, the
board shall have the power to make, alter and repeal by-laws unless such power is reserved to the shareholders in
the certificate of incorporation, but by-laws made by the board may be altered or repealed, and new by-laws made,
by the shareholders. The shareholders may prescribe in the by-laws that any by-law made by them shall not be
altered or repealed by the board.

(2) The initial by-laws of a corporation adopted by the board at its organization meeting shall be deemed to have
been adopted by the shareholders for purposes of this act.

(3) Any provision which this act requires or permits to be set forth in the by-laws may be set forth in the certificate
of incorporation with equal force and effect.

COMMISSIONERS' COMMENT--1968

Subsection 14A:2-9(1) is largely derived from section 13.1-24 of the Virginia Act. The Virginia Statute
and the introductory portion of subsection 14A:2- 9(1) follow section 25 of the Model Act in requiring
that the first board of directors named in the certificate of mcorporation shall adopt the initial by-laws of
the corporaticn at their organization meetmg, and in vesting in the board the subsequent power to make,
alter or repeal by-laws unless that power is reserved to the shareholders in the certificate of mcorporatlon
Present New Jersey law confers the power to make by-laws on the shareholders, unless that power is
conferred upen the directors in the certificate of incorporation. The remainder of subsection 14A:2-9(1)
continues present law, as expressed in the second sentence of R.S. 14:3-2, by providing that directorial
power over by-laws always remains subject to the right of shareholders to alter or repeal any by-laws
made by the directors and to adopt new by-laws. The last sentence of subsection 14A:2-9(1) does not
appear in the Model Act. It permits the shareholders to "lock in" any by-law that they make by
prohibiting its alteration or repeal by the board. This provision is taken from the Virginia Statute.

Subsection 14A:2-9(2) is based on section 33-306(b) of the Connecticut Act. Under the Connecticut Act,
as under Title 14, the incorporators adopt the initial by-laws. As noted above, the Revision assigns that
responsibility to the first board. For the limited role of the incorporators under this Revision, see the
Comment to section 14A:2-6. Subsection 14A:2-9(2) is of significance in relation to various sections of
this Revision which require that particular provisions appear in the certificate of incorporation or a by-law
adopted by the shareholders. See subsection 14A:6-5(3) (the certificate of incorporation or a by-law
adopted by the shareholders may authorize the board to fill any newly created directorship); subsection
14A:6-6(3) (the certificate of incorporation or a by-law adopted by the shareholders may provide that the
board shall have the power to remove directors for cause and to suspend directors pending a final
determination that cause exists for removal); section 14A:6-11 (a corporation shall not lend money to,
guarantee any obligation of, or otherwise assist, any officer or other employee who is also a director of the
corporation, unless such loan, guarantee or assistance is authorized by the certificate of incorporation or a
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Page 2
N.JS.A. 14A:2-9
by-law adopted by the shareholders, and then only when authorized by a majority of the entire board).
Subsection 14A:2-9(3) does not appear in Title 14 or the Model Act. It was added by the Commission to
round out the statutory scheme of this Revision. No section of this Revision which prescribes or
authorizes a particular provision in the by-laws is intended to constitute the by-laws the sole and exclusive
repository of such provision. Compare Gow v. Consolidated Coppermines Corp., 19 Del.Ch. 172, 165 A.
136 (1933); and see 1 O'Neal, Close Corporations § 3.79 (1958). Any such provision may be set forth in
the certificate of incorporation (see paragraph 14A:2-7(1)(f) and, in such case, has equal force and effect
under subsection 14A:2-9(3).
HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES
2003 Main Volume
Source: R.S. 14:3-2; Model Act § 25; Conn.S.C.A. § 25; Supp. § 33- 306(b); Va.S.C.A. § 13.1-24,
Prior Laws: R.S. 14:3-2.
L.1896, c. 185, § 11, p. 281 [C.S. p. 1606, § 11].
CROSS REFERENCES
Filing of vacancies, see § 14A:6-5.
Loans to officers, see § 14A:6-11.
Removal of directors, see § 14A:6-6.
LAW REVIEW AND JOURNAL COMMENTARIES

Employment arrangements in close corporations. Robert A. Kessler (1980) 11 Seton Hall L.Rev. 187.

Skeleton of close: corporation provisions of the New Jersey Business Corporation Act. Robert A. Kessler (1971)
94 N.J.L.J. 173,

LIBRARY REFERENCES
2003 Main Volume
Corporations €55, 56.
Westlaw Topic No. 101,
C.J.S. Corporations § 112-115, 119.
RESEARCH REFERENCES
2004 Electronic Update

Forms

New Jersey Forms Legal and Business § 4C:12, Creation of the Cooperative; Certificate of Incorporation and
Bylaws.
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New Jersey Forms Legal and Business § 4C:61, Bylaws.
New Jersey Forms Legal and Business § 4C:74, Bylaws.
New Jersey Forms Legal and Business § 17:139, Introduction.
New Jersey Form:s Legal and Business § 17:186, Amendment of Bylaws.
New Jersey Forms Legal and Business § 17:199, Staggered Terms.
New Jersey Forms Legal and Business § 17:411, Introduction.
New Jersey Forms Legal and Business § 17A:14, Certificate of Incorporation.
Treatises and Practice Aids
15 N.I. Prac. Series § 20.1, Incorporation Procedures.
15 N.J. Prac. Series § 20.5, Optiona‘l Certificate of Incorporation Clauses.
| 15 N.J. Prac. Series § 20.8, Sample Bylaws for a Business Corporation.
15 NLJ. Prac. Series § 24.1, Overview, ‘
21A NJ. Prac. Series § 3172, By-Laws.
21A N.J. Prac. Series § 3173, By-Laws-Form.
NOTES OF DECISIONS
In general 1
Amendments 3
Force and effect of by-laws 2
Injunction 5
Objection by siockholders 4
1. In general
Corporate structure must be established and managed in conformity with provisions of Corporation Act; and
by-law or amendinent to by-law which is repugnant to any part of Corporation Act is illegal and void. Penn-Texas

Corp. v. Niles-Bement-Pond Co., 34 N.J.Super. 373, 112 A.2d 302 (Ch.1955). Corporations €= 55; Corporations
€= 56

2. Force and effect of by-laws
"Corporate by-laws" are a contract between corporation and its stockholders and the stockholders inter sese.
Delmarmo Associates v. New Jersey Engmeermg & Supply Co., 177 N.J.Super. 15, 424 A.2d 847 (A.D.1980).
Corporations €= 54

Where by-laws of incorporated association of shopping center tenants were by vote of membership sent to
committee for study and committee voted to pass by-laws which were never resubmitted to entire membership for
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approval although association had bound itself so to do, by-]awé had not been enacted in proper manner and .
technical defects should be rectified by submitting by-laws to entire membership. Moorestown Management, Inc.
v. Moorestown Bookshop, Inc., 104 N.J.Super. 250, 249 A.2d 623 (Ch.1969). Corporations €= 56

Although by-laws of incorporated association of shopping center tenants had not been properly adopted, all
tenants, except for the two who had challenged by-laws, would be precluded from challenging any previous action
by association pursuant to by-laws on principles of ratification and estoppel, since they had participated in
operation of association for four years and had accepted benefits thereof and considerable monies and efforts had
been expended by association for benefit of tenants. Moorestown Management, Inc. v. Moorestown Bookshop,
Inc., 104 N.J.Super. 250, 249 A.2d 623 (Ch.1969). Corporations €= 56; Estoppel €= 90(6)

Power to make by-laws resides in constituent body, either members or stockholders of corporation, unless
corporate charter or statute provides otherwise, and although this power may be delegated by members to selected
body, such delegation will not ordinarily be inferred in absence of definite and clearly disclosed intention to this
effect. Moorestown Management, Inc. v. Moorestown Bookshop, Inc., 104 N.J.Super. 250, 249 A.2d 623
(Ch.1969). Corporations €= 55

Where inconsistency exists between bylaws and certificate of incorporation, certificate of incorporation ordinarily
governs. L. L. Constantin & Co. v. R. P. Holding Corp., 56 NJ. Super. 411, 153 A.2d 378 (Ch.1959).
Corporations €= 54 :

Certificate of incorporation, constitution and by-laws of a corporation constitute a contract between the corporation
and its stockholders and the stockholders inter sese. Faunce v. Boost Co 15 N.J.Super. 534, 83 A2d 649
(Ch.1951). Corporations €= 18; Corporations €= 57

A corporation has the power to adopt by-laws, but only such as are consistent with the law under which it was
incorporated and the certificate of incorporation itself. Leeds v. Harrison, 15 N.J.Super. 82, 83 A.2d 45 (Ch.1951),
reversed 9 N.J. 202, 87 A.2d 713. Corporations €= 54 '

Generally, a by-law of a corporation can neither enlarge the rights and powers conferred by the certificate of
incorporation nor restrict the duties and liabilities specially conferred thereby, and in case it attempts to do so, the
certificate of incorporation will prevail. Leeds v. Harrison, 15 N.J.Super. 82, 83 A.2d 45 (Ch.1951), reversed 9
N.J. 202, 87 A.2d 713. Corporations €= 55

Where retail druggist applied for and was accepted as a member of a corporation organized for furtherance of
co-operative plan to serve participating independent druggists' common trade interests, constitution and by-laws
formed a contract between druggist and corporate defendant. Fleischer v. James Drug Stores, 7 N.J.Super. 529, 72
A.2d 404 (Ch.1950). Corporations €= 57

The certificate of incorporation, constitution and by-laws of a corporation constitute a contract between
corporation and members as well as between members inter sese, and trustees or directors bear a fiduciary
relationship to the members, requiring them to comply with certificate and by-laws. Leeds v. Harrison, 7
N.J.Super. 558, 72 A.2d 371 (Ch.1950). Corporations €= 9; Corporations €= 57; Corporations €= 307

The by-laws of a corporation provided that at special meetings of the stockholders the Corporation Act of 1896
should apply as to the casting of all votes. The only provision of the Corporation Act relating to the casting of
votes was P.L.1896, § 36, p. 289, incorporated in § 14:10-12 (see, now, §§ 14A:5-10, 14A:5-19), authorizing votes
by shares at elections of the directors. The voting at a special meeting was required to be by shares, and a
provision in the by-laws relating to amendments thereof, requiring the affirmative vote of a majority of the
stockholders at a special meeting, meant the majority in interest. Weinburgh v. Union Street-Railway Advertising
Co., 55N.J. Eq. 640, 37 A. 1026 (Ch.1897). Corporations €= 200
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3. Amendments

In general, the exercise of a reserved right to amend the by-laws of a corporation should be confined to matters
touching the administrative policies and affairs of the corporation, the relations of members and officers with the
corporation and among themselves, and like matters of internal concern, Lambert v. Fishermen's Dock Co-op., Inc.,
61 N.J. 596,297 A.2d 566 (1972). Corporations €= 56

Reserved power to amend corpdrate by-laws may not affect basic rights. Lambert v. .Fishermen’s Dock Co-op.,
Inc., 61 N.J. 596,297 A.2d 566 (1972). Corporations €= 56

Notwithstanding provision of § 14:7-1 (see, now, §§ 14A:6-1 to 14A:6-3), that directors should hold office "until
others are chosen and qualified in their stead", and charter provision, authorizing Board to make or alter by-laws
without assent or vote of stockholders, directors were without authority to amend by-laws so as to postpone day of
annual meeting of stockholders, where effect would be to extend their own terms of office. Penn-Texas Corp. v.
Niles-Bement-Pond Co., 34 N.J.Super. 373, 112 A.2d 302 (Ch.1955). Corporations €= 56

Amendment of by-laws, as provided therein, by a majority vote of board of directors so as to delete by-law
prohibiting lease of any realty owned by corporation except upon resolution of board of directors authorizing such
lease, approved in writing by holders of not less than 75 per cent of stock of corporation, was valid, but did not
eliminate the necessity for obtaining approval of proposed lease by stockholders as required by similar provision in
charter of corporation. Warren v. 536 Broad St. Corp., 4 N.J.Super. 584, 68 A.2d 175 (Ch.1949), affirmed 6
N.J.Super. 170, 70 A.2d 782. Corporations €= 54; Corporations €= 57; Corporations €= 442

Under by-law permitting by-laws to be altered, amended, or repealed by board of directors by majority vote and
without consent of the stockholders, the directors had authority to amend by-law permitting officers and employees
to participate in corporate profits without submitting the matter to stockholders. Bookman v. R.J. Reynolds
Tobacco Co., 138 N.J. Eq. 312, 48 A.2d 646 (Ch.1946). Corporations €= 56

The stockholders of a corporation could amend the by-laws by a provision for an additional board of directors, to
take office at once. In re A. A. Griffing Iron Co., 63 N.J.L. 357, 46 A. 1097 (1899).

4. Objection by stockholders

Where corporaticn's by-laws were amended, pursuant to statute, to authorize executive committee, mere allegation
that creation of committee and its actions were in contravention of law was insufficient to sustain complaint
seeking declaration that executive committee was. illegal. Pilat v. Broach Systems, Inc., 108 N.J.Super. 88, 260
A.2d 13 (L.1969). Declaratory Judgment €= 314

Stockholders' acquiescence in adoption of by-law did not preclude objection to disadvantageous amendment
thereto. Scott v. . Lorillard Co., 108 N.J. Eq. 153, 154 A, 515 (Ch.1931), affirmed 109 N.J. Eq. 417, 157 A, 388.
Corporations €= 56

5. Injunction
Bill to restrain submission of unauthorized corporate by-law at stockholders' meeting may be maintained. Scott v.
P. Lorillard Co., 108 N.J. Eq. 153, 154 A. 515 (Ch.1931), affirmed 109 N.J. Eq. 417, 157 A. 388. Injunction&=
73
Submission of resolution purporting to authorize directors of corporation to issue stock to officers and employees
should be enjoin:d, where to permit vote would be grossly unfair to stockholders voting for it. Scott v. P. Lorillard
Co., 108 N.J. Eq. 153, 154 A. 515 (Ch.1931), affirmed 109 N.J. Eq. 417, 157 A. 388. Injunction €= 73
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Stockholders objecting to unauthorized by-law of corporation need not wait until after its adoption and then sue to
restrain payments thereunder. Scott v. P. Lorillard.Co., 108 N.J. Eq. 153, 154 A. 515 (Ch.1931), affirmed 109 N.J.
Eq. 417,157 A. 388. Injunction €= 112
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- EXXON MOBIL CORPORATION
INCORPORATED IN NEW JERSEY

BY-LAWS

ARTICLE I
Meetings of Shareholders

1. Meet:ings of shareholders may be held on such date and at such time and
place, within or without the State of New Jersey, as may be fixed by the
board of directors and stated in the notice of meeting.

2. The date for each annual meeting of shareholders, fixed as provided in
Section 1 of this Article I, shall be a date not more than thirteen months
after the date on which the last annual meeting of shareholders was held.
The directors shall be elected at the annual meeting of shareholders.

3. Special meetings of the shareholders may be called by the board of
directprs, the chairman of the board or the president.

4, Except as otherwise provided by statute, written notice of the date,
time, place and purpose or purposes of every meeting of shareholders shall
be given not less than ten nor more than sixty days before the date of the
meeting, either personally or by mail, to each shareholder of record
entitled to vote at the meeting. The business transacted at meetings shall
be confined to the purposes specified in the notice.

5. Unless otherwise provided by statute the holders of shares entitled to
cast a majority of votes at a meeting, present either in person or by
proxy, shall constitute a quorum at such meeting. Less than a quorum may
adjourn. :

6. For the purpose of determining the shareholders entitled to notice of
or to vcte at any meeting of shareholders or any adjournment thereof, or
for the purpose of determining shareholders entitled to receive payment of
any dividend or allotment of any right, or for the purpose of any other
action, the board of directors may fix in advance a date as the record date
for any such determination of shareholders. Such date shall not be more
than sixty nor less than ten days before the date of such meeting, nor more
than sixty days prior to any other actiom.

7. The: board of directors may, in advance of any sharehclders' meeting,
appcint one or more inspectors to act at the meeting or any adjournment
thereof. If inspectors are not so appointed by the board or shall fail to
qualify, the person presiding at a shareholders' meeting may, and at the
request of any shareholder entitled to vote thereat, shall, make such
appointment. 1In case any person appointed as inspector fails to. appear or
act, the vacancy may be filled by appointment made by the board in advance
of the meeting or at the meeting by the person presiding at the meeting.
Each insipector, before entering upon the discharge of the duties of
inspector, shall take and sign an oath faithfully to execute such duties at
such meeting with strict impartiality and according to the best of the
inspector's ability.

The inspectors shall determine the number of shares outstanding and
the voting power of each, the shares represented at the meeting, the
existence of a quorum, the validity and effect of proxies, and shall
receive votes or consents, hear and determine all challenges and gquestions
arising in connection with the right to vote, count and tabulate all votes
or consents, determine the result, and do such acts as are proper to
conduct the election or vote with fairness to all shareholders. If there




are three or more inspectors, the act of a majority shall govern. On
request of the person presiding at the meeting or any shareholder entitled
to vote thereat, the inspectors shall make a report in writing of any
challenge, question or matter determined by them. Any report made by them
shall be prima facie evidence of the facts therein stated, and such report
shall be filed with the minutes of the meeting.

ARTICLE II
Board of Directors

1. The business and affairs of the corporation shall be managed by its
board of directors consisting of not less than ten nor more than nineteen
members, who shall hold office until the next annual meeting and until §
their successors shall have been elected and qualified. The actual number
of direcfors shall be determined from time to time by resolution of the
board. I[f at any time, except at the annual meeting, the number of
directors shall be increased, the additional director or directors may be
elected by the board, to hold office until the next annual meeting and
until their successors shall have been elected and qualified.

2. The organization meeting of the board of directors, for the purpose of
organization or otherwise, shall be held without further notice ‘on the day
of the annual meeting of shareholders, at such time and place as shall be
fixed from time to time pursuant to resolution of the board. Other regular
meetings of the board may be held without further notice at such times and
places as shall be fixed from time to time pursuant to resolution of the
board. The chairman of the board, the president, any vice president who is
a member of the board, or the secretary may change the day or hour or place
of any single regular meeting from that determined by the board upon
causing that prior notice of such change be transmitted to all directors.

Special meetings of the bocard may be called at the direction of the
chairman of the board, of the president or of any vice president who is a
member of the board, or, in the absence of such officers, at the direction
of any one of the directors. Any such meeting shall be held on such date
and at such time and place as may be designated in the notice of the
meeting. '

Notices required under this section may be transmitted in person, in
writing, or by telephone, telegram, cable or radio, and shall be effective
whether or not actually received, provided they are duly transmitted not
less than forty-eight hours in advance of the meeting. Notice may be
waived in writing before or after a meeting. " No notice or waiver need
specify the business scheduled for any board meeting and any business may
be transacted at either a regular or special meeting.

3. Five directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business, except that any directorship not filled at the annual meeting and
any vacancy, however caused, occurring in the board may be filled by the
affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining directors even though less
than a cuorum of the board, or by a sole remaining director. At any
meeting of the board, whether or not a quorum is present, a majority of
those present may adjourn the meeting. Notice of an adjourned meeting need
not be given if the time and place are fixed at the meeting adjourning and
if the period of adjournment does not exceed ten days in any one
adjournment.

4. (a) The provisions of this Section 4 of Article II shall be operative
during any emergency in the conduct of the business of the corporation
resulting from an attack on the United States or any nuclear or atomic
disaster or from the imminent threat of such an attack or disaster. For
the purpose of this Section 4 of Article II, such an emergency is defined
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" as any period following (i) an enemy attack on the continental United
States or any nuclear or atomic disaster as a result and during the period
of which the means of communication or travel within the continental United
States are disrupted or made uncertain or unsafe, or (ii) a determination
as herein provided that such an attack or disaster is imminent or has
occurred. The commencement and termination of the period of any such
emergency may be determined by the chairman of the board or, in the event
of the death, absence or disability of the chairman of the board, by the
president, or in the -event of the death, absence or disability of both the
chairman of the board and the president, by such person or persons as the
board of directors may from time to time designate, but in the absence of
such specific designation, by the executive or senior vice president who
has been designated pursuant to the authority of Section 6§ of Article IV of
these by-laws to exercise the powers and perform the duties of the chairman
of the bcard and the president. To the extent not inconsistent with the
provisions of this Section 4 of Article II, the by-laws in their entirety
shall remain in effect during any such emergency.

(b) Before or during any such emergency, the board may change the head
office or designate several alternative head offices or regional offices,
or authorize the officers to do so, said change to be effective during the
emergency.

(c) The officers or other persons designated by title in a list
approved by the board before or during the emergency, all who are known to
be alive and available to act in such order of priority and subject to such
conditions and for such period of time, not longer than reasonably
necessary after the termination of the emergency, as may be provided in the
resclution of the board approving the list, shall, to the extent required
to provicle a quorum at any meeting of the board, be deemed and shall have
all the powers of directors for such meeting. Unless so designated, an
officer who is not a director shall not be deemed a director for the
foregoing purpose.

(d) Meetings of the board may be called by any officer or director or
in the absence of all officers and directors by any person designated in a
list approved by the board pursuant to subsection (c) of this Section 4.
Any such meeting shall be held on such date and at such time and place as
may be designated in the notice of the meeting. Notice of any such meeting
need be given only to such of the directors as it may be feasible to reach
at the time and such of the persons designated in such list as is
considered advisable in the judgment of the person calling the meeting.
Any such notice may be transmitted in person, in writing, or by telephone,
telegram, cable or radio, or by such other means as may be feasible at the
time, shall be effective whether or not actually received. and shall be
given at such time in advance of the meeting as, ‘in the judgment of the
person calling the meeting, circumstances permit.

(e) Three directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business, ‘

(f) Before or during any such emergency, the board by resolution may
(i) appoint one or more committees in additiocn to or in substitution for
one or more of those appointed pursuant to the provisions of Article III of
these by-laws to act during such emergency and (ii) take any of the actions
listed in Section 2 of Article III of these by-laws in regard to any
committe2 established pursuant to (i) of this subsection (f). Each such
committez shall have at least three members, none of whom need be a
director. To the extent provided in such resolution, each such committee
shall have and may exercise all the authority of the board, except that no
such comnittee shall take the action which Section 1 of Article III of
these by-laws prohibits committees of the board to take.




(g) Before or during any such emergency, the board may provide and
from time to time modify, lines of succession in the event that during such
an emergency any or all officers or agents of the corporation or any or all
members of any committee of the board shall for any reason be rendered
incapable of discharging their duties.

{h) No officer, director or employee acting in accordance with this
Section 4 of Article II shall be liable except for willful misconduct. No
officer, director or employee shall be liable for any action taken in good
faith in such an emergency in furtherance of the ordinary business affairs
of the corporation even though not authorized by the by-laws then in
effect.

(i) Persons may conclusively rely upon a determination made pursuant
to subsection (a) of this Section 4 that an emergency as therein defined
exists regardless of the correctness of such determination.

5. No contract or other transaction between the corporation and one or
more of its directors or between the corporation and any other corporation,
firm or association of any type or kind in which one or more of its
directors are directors or are otherwise interested, shall be void or
voidable solely by reason of such common directorship or interest, or
solely bacause such director or directors are present at the meeting of the
board or a committee thereof which authorizes or approves the contract or
transaction, or solely because such director's or directors' votes are
counted for such purpose, if (a) the contract or other transaction is fair
and reasonable.as to this corporation at the time it is authorized,
approved or ratified, or (b) the fact of the common directorship or
interest is disclosed or known to the board or committee and the board or
committee authorizes, approves or ratifies the contract or transaction by
unanimous written consent, provided at least one director so consenting is
disinterested, or by affirmative vote of a majority of the disinterested
directors, even though the disinterested directors be less than a quorum,
or (c) the fact of the common directorship or interest is disclosed or
known to the shareholders and they authorize, approve or ratify the
contract or transaction.

ARTICLE III
Committees of the Board

1. The board, by resolution adopted by a majority of the entire board,
may appoint from among its members an executive committee and one or more
other ccmmittees, each of which shall have at least three members. To the
extent provided in such resolution, each such committee shall have and may
exercise all the authority of the board, except that no such committee
shall (a) make, alter or repeal any by-law of the corporation; (b) elect
any director, or remove any officer or director; (c) submit to shareholders
any action that requires shareholders' approval; or (d) amend or repeal any
resolution theretofore adopted by the board which by its terms is amendable
or repealable only by the board.

2. The board, by resolution adopted by a majority of the entire board,
may (a) fill any vacancy in any such committee; (b) appoint one or more
directors to serve as alternate members of any such committee, to act in
the absence or disability of members of any such committee with all the
powers ¢f such absent or disabled members; (¢} abolish any such committee
at its pleasure; (d) remove any director from membership on such committee
at any time, with or without cause; and (e) establish as a quorum for any
such committee less than a majority of the entire committee, but in no case
less than the greater of two persons or one-third of the entire committee.




3. Actions taken at a meeting of any such committee shall be reported to
the board at its next meeting following such committee meeting; except
that, when the meeting of the board is held within two days after the
committe= meeting, such report shall, if not made at the first meeting, be
made to the board at its second meeting following such committee meeting.

ARTICLE IV
Officers

1. The board of directors at the organization meeting on the day of the
annual election of directors shall elect a chairman of the beard, a
president, one or more vice presidents as the board may determine, any one
or more ©f whom may be designated as executive vice president or as senior
vice president or in such special or limiting style as the board may
determine, a secretary, a treasurer, a controller, a general counsel, and a
general tax counsel. The chairman of the board and the president shall
each be a director, but the other officers need not be members of the
board.

2. The board of directors may from time to time elect, or authorize an
officer of the corporation to appoint in writing, assistant secretaries,
assistant treasurers, assistant contrcllers, and such other officers as the
board may designate.

3. All officers of the corporation, as between themselves and the
corporation, shall have such authority arnd perform such duties in the
management of the corporation as may be provided in these by-laws, or as
may be determined by resolution of the board not inconsistent with these
by-laws.

4. The chairman of the board shall be chief executive cofficer of the
corporation and shall preside at all meetings of shareholders and
directors. Subject to the board of directors, the chairman of the board
shall have general care and supervision of the business and affairs of the
corperation. In the absence of the president, the chairman of the board
shall exercise the powers and perform the duties of the president.

5. The president shall, subject to the board of directors, direct the
current administration of the business and affairs of the corporation. 1In
the absence of the chairman of the board, the president shall preside at
meetings of the shareholders and directors and exercise the other powers
and duties of the chairman.

6. In the event of the death, absence, or disability of the c¢hairman of
the board and the president, an executive or senior vice president may be
designated by the board to exercise the powers and perform the duties of
those offices.

7. The secretary shall give notice of all meetings of the shareholders
and of the board of directors. The secretary shall keep records of the
votes at elections and of all other proceedings cf the sharehclders and of
the board. The secretary shall have all the authority and perform all the
duties normally incident to the office of secretary and shall perform such
additional duties as may be assigned to the secretary by the board, the
chairman of the board or the president.

The assistant secretaries shall perform such of the duties of the
secretary as may be delegated to them by the secretary.

8. - The treasurer shall be the principal financial officer of the
corporation. The treasurer shall have charge and custody of all funds and
securities of the corporation; receive and give receipts for monies paid to
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the corporation, and deposit such monies in the corporation's name in such
banks or other depositories as shall be selected for the purpose; and shall
cause money to be paid out as the corporation may require. The treasurer
shall have all the authority and perform all the duties normally incident
to the office of treasurer and shall perform such additional duties as may
be assigned to the treasurer by the board of directors, the chairman of the
board or the president.

The assistant treasurers shall perform such of the duties of the
treasurer as may be delegated to them by the treasurer.

8. The controller shall be the principal accounting and financial control
officer of the corporation. The controller shall be responsible for the
system of financial control of the corporation, including intermnal audits,
the maintenance of its accounting records, and the preparation of the
corporation's financial statements. The controller shall periodically
inform the board of directors of the corporation's financial results and
position. The controller shall have all the authority and perform all the
duties normally incident to the office of controller and shall perform such
additional duties as may be assigned to the contrcller by the board of
directors, the chairman of the board or the president.

The assistant controllers shall perform such of the duties of the
controller as may be delegated to them by the controller,.

10. The general counsel shall advise the board of directors and officers
on legal matters, except those relating to taxes. The general tax counsel
shall advise the board of directors and officers on legal matters relating
to taxes. Each shall perform such additional duties as may be assigned to
either of them by the board of directors, the chairman of the board or the
president.

11. Any vacancy occurring among the officers, however caused, may be
filled by the bcocard of directors except that any vacancy in the office of
an assistant secretary, assistant treasurer or assistant controller
appointed by an officer of the corporation may be filled by the officer, if
any, then authorized by the board to make appointments to such office.

12. BAny officer may be removed by the board with or without cause, and any
assistant secretary, assistant treasurer or assistant controller appointed
by an officer of the corporation may be removed with or without cause by
the officer, if any, then authorized by the board to make appointments to
such office.

ARTICLE V
Divisions and Division Officers

1. The board of directors may from time to time establish one or more
divisions of the corporation and assign to such divisions responsibilities
for such of the corporation's business, operations and affairs as the board
may designate.

2. The board of directors may appoint or authorize an officer of the
corporation to appoint in writing officers of a division. Unless elected
or appointed an cfficer of the corporation by the board of directors or
pursuant to authority granted by the board, an officer of a division shall
not as such be an officer of the corporation, except that such person shall
be an officer of the corporation for the purposes of executing and
delivering documents on behalf of the corporation or for other specific
purposes, if and to the extent that such person may be authorized to do so
by the board of directors. Unless otherwise provided in the writing
appointing an officer of a division, such person's term of office shall be
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for one year and until that person's successor is appointed and qualified.

Any officer of a division may be removed with or without cause by the board
of directors or by the officer, if any, of the corporation then authorized

by the board of directors to appoint such officer of a division.

3. The beocard of directors may prescribe or authorize an officer of the
corporation or an officer of a division to prescribe in writing the duties
and powers and authority of officers of divisions.

ARTICLE VI

Transfer of Shares

1. Shares of the corporation shall be transferable on the records of the
corporation in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 8 of the Uniform
Commercial Code (New Jersey Statutes 12A:8-101 et seg.), as amended from

time to time, except as otherwise provided in the New Jersey Business
Corporation Act (New Jersey Statutes 14A:1-1 et seq.).

2. In the case of lost, destroyed or wrongfully taken certificates,
transfer shall be made only after the receipt of a sufficient indemnity
bond, if required by the board of directors, and satisfaction of other
reasonabl.e requirements imposed by the board.

3. The board of directors may from time to time appoint one or more
transfer agents and one or more registrars of transfers. BAll share
certificates shall bear the signature, which may be a facsimile, of a
transfer agent and of a registrar. The functions of transfer agents and
registrars shall conform to such regulations as the board may from time to
time prescribe. The board may at any time terminate the appointment of any
transfer agent or registrar. ‘

ARTICLE VII

Fiscal Year

The figcal year of the corporation shall be the calendar year.

ARTICLE VIII
Corporate Seal

1. The corporate seal is, and until otherwise ordered by the board of
directors shall be, a circle containing the words "EXXON MOBIL CORPORATION,
CORPORATHE SEAL, 1882, NEW JERSEY" and may be an impression thereof or
printed or other facsimile reproduction.

2. The impression of the seal may be made and attested by either the
secretary or an assistant secretary for the authentication of contracts and
other papers requiring the seal.
ARTICLE IX
Amendments
The board of directors shall have the power to make, alter and repeal

the by-laws of the corporation, but by-laws made by the board may be
altered or repealed, and new by-laws made, by the shareholders.




ARTICLE X
Indemnification

1. The corporation shall indemnify to the full extent from time to time
permitted by law any director or former director or cofficer or former
officer made, or threatened to be made, a party te, or a witness or other
participant in, any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or
proceedirg, whether civil, criminal, administrative, arbitrative,
legislative, investigative, or of any other kind, by reason of the fact
that such person is or was a director, officer, employee or other corporate
agent of the corporation or any subsidiary of the corporation or serves or
served ary other enterprise at the request of the corporation (including
service &s a fiduciary with respect to any employee benefit plan of the
corporation or any subsidiary of the corporation) against expenses
(including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines, penalties, excise taxes and
amounts paid in settlement, actually and reasonably incurred by such person
in connection with such action, suit or proceeding, or any appeal therein.
No indemnification pursuant to this Article X shall be required with -
respect to any settlement or other nonadjudicated disposition of any
threatened or pending action or proceeding unless the corporation has given
its prior consent to such settlement or other disposition.

2. As any of the foregoing expenses are incurred, they shall be paid by
the corporation for the director or former director or officer or former
officer in advance of the final disposition of the action, suit or
proceeding promptly upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of such
person to repay such payments if it shall-ultimately be determined that
such person is not entitled to be indemnified by the corporation.

3. The foregoing indemnification and advancement of expenses shall not be
deemed exclusive of any other rights to which any person indemnified may be
entitled.

4. The rights provided to any person by this Article X shall be
enforceable against the corporation by such perscon, who shall be presumed
to have relied upon it in serving or continuing to serve as a director or
in any oI the other capacities set forth in this Article X. ©No elimination
of or amendment to this Article X shall deprive any person of rights
hereunde:r arising out of alleged or actual occurrences, acts or failures to
act occurring prior to notice to such person of such eliminaticn or
amendment:. The rights provided to any person by this Article X shall inure
to the benefit of such person's legal representative.
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May 30, 2001

"RESOLVED, That, in light of the responsibility of the Board of Directors

for the management of the business and affairs of the Corporation and of
the provisions of Article IV of the By-Laws, as amended, dealing with the
management responsibilities of the officers of the Corporation:

A. the Board reserves the following functions to itself (and, to the extent
delegated thereto, to its Committees):

SEC Filings

E-mail Alerts

Investor FAQ 1. amendment of the By-Laws,

Dividend Reinvestment Plan 2. filling vacancies on the Board and designation of naminees for

election to the Board by the shareholders,

3. establishment of committees of the Board and appointment of
committee members,

4. election of officers of the Corporation, designation of the chief
executive officer of the Corporation and authorization to any
officer of the Corporation to appoint assistant officers,

5. establishment of divisions of the Corporation and appomtment of

the chief executives thereof,

remuneration of the Directors,

setting the date, time and place of shareholder meetings,

submission to shareholders of any action that requires

shareholder approval,
9. approval of the Annual Report and proxy statement

10. appointment of independent auditors, subject to shareholder
ratification and receiving of auditors' reports,

11.  declaration of dividends,

12, issuance and acquisition of long-term debt or shares of stock, and
the fixing of the consideration for treasury shares to be disposed
of by the Corporation, except as delegated to the Treasurer as
described in B.7 below,

13.  registration and listing of securities and appointment of transfer
agents and registrars,

14, review of summary financial and operating results (quarterly},

15, adoption of any new major employee benefit plans and programs
and approval of any major amendment of an existing major
employee benefit plan or program (e.g., Pension Pian and
Savings Plan) which might involve substantial cost to the
Corporation or significantly alter the scope, nature or degree of
benefits,

18. review of overall policies and objectives for corporate
contributions, and approvai of contributions budget (annually),

17. authorization of political contributions and political action
committees, except as delegated to officers of the Corporation as
described in B.11 below,

18. adoption of such policies and the taking of such other actions as
the Board deems to be in the best interests of the Corporation;
and
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Powers of the Board Page 2 of 2

B. the Board notes that it, or a Board Committee, has heretofore
delegated the following specific standing powers to one or more officers of
the Corporation and reserves to itself or such Board Committee power to
alter any such delegation:

authority to execute documents on behalf of the Corporation,
authority to open and maintain bank accounts,

authority to open and maintain brokerage accounts,

authority to make foreign exchange transactions,

authority to maintain an inventory of Corporation stock in the
Treasury,

authority to advance or loan money to, subscribe to equity capital
in, guarantee obligations of, and accept deposits from affiliated
companies,

7. authority to enter into tax-exempt financing of the facilities and
operations of the Corporation or of its affiliates,

8. authority to determine whether an indemnity bond shall be

i required as a condition to the transfer of a share certificate
alleged to have been lost, destroyed or wrongfully taken and, if
50, the sufficiency thereof,

9. authority to adopt, terminate, or change employee benefit plans or
programs, except major additions or changes to major employee
benefit plans or programs,

10.  authority for short term borrowing,

11,  authority to make political contributions in connection with
propositions and referenda, to political parties in the United States
and to candidates for certain state offices in the United States;
and

G W

o

- - C. the Board requests that the chief executive officer refer to it (or to a
committee of the Board to which it has delegated responsibility) for
consideration and, as appropriate, concurrence:

1. the corporate plan of the Corporation, and significant changes
thereto,

2. investment plans which would involve significant commitments of
financial, technological or human resources, or would involve
significant risks for the Corporation,

3. significant sales, transfers, or other dispositions of property or

assets,

significant changes in policies of broad application,

major organization changes,

an annual review of political contributions made by Corporation

interests in the United States and Canada, and .

7. other matters relating to the Corporation’s business which in the
judgment of the chief executive officer are of such significance as
to merit the Board's consideration.

R

FURTHER RESOLVED, That the resolution on this subject adopted by
the Board on on May 31, 2000 be and it hereby is revoked."
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CERTIFICATION OF ROBERT A. FAGELLA

Robert Fagella, of full age, upon his oath, herby certifies as follows:

1. I am the managing partner of the firm of Zazzali, Fagella, Nowak,
Kleinbaum & Friedman, with offices in Newark and Trenton.

2. I make this certification in support of the application by RAM Trust
Services (“RAM?”) in opposition to Exxon’s contention that New Jersey law precludes the
shareholder proposals sought by RAM.

3. I have practiced law in New Jersey for almost 25 years. I graduated cum
laude from New York University in 1973 and was graduated with honors from Rutgers
Law School in Newark from 1977.

4, I served as a Deputy Attomey General for five years, from 1977-1983,
representing various state colleges and various state agencies. For the last 21 years, 1
have been in private practice handling civil litigation and appeals.

5. I am a member of the bars of New York and New Jersey, the United States
Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit, District Court for New Jersey and the United
States District Court for the Southern District of New York. I have served as a former
past chairman of the labor law section of the Essex County Bar Association, an adjunct
professor at Seton Hall School of Law, and currently serve as a member of the New
Jersey Supreme Court Advisory Committee on Professional Ethics.

6. In conjunction with Joshua Savitz, Esq., a senior associate with this firm
who represented the New Jersey Bureau of Securities for several years, we have reviewed
the position advanced by Exxon with reference to its application. In particular, we have

reviewed and researched its contention that New Jersey law somehow precludes the




requested relief sought by RAM in its shareholder proposal. In our opinion, the
contention that New Jersey law would preclude the implementation of the requested
shareholder proposal is unsupported in New Jersey law.

7. We concur in the opinion and submission expressed by Michael Barry,

Esq. on behalf of RAM, that New Jersey law, specifically N.J.S.A. 14A:2-9, confers upon
the ExxonMobil Board the authority necessary to amend the Company’s by—laWs to
require that an independent director serve as Chairman of the Board of Directors and that
the Chairman shall not concurrently serve as the Chief Executive Officer.

8. It is also our opinion, as articulated by RAM, and contrary to that of the
ExxonMobil Board, that New Jersey law, specifically NJ.S.A.. 14A:6-1, authorizes the
ExxonMobil Board to establish qualifications for the Company’s directors, consistent
with RAM’s proposed amendment to the by-laws. |

S. In short, consistent with RAM’s analysis, and contrary to the assertions
made by the ExxonMobil Board, we have found no New Jersey statute or case law which
would prohibit the ExxonMobil Board from implementing RAM’s proposed amendment
to the by-laws, nor has the ExxonMobil Board cited any New Jersey law which provides
as such. Because these reasons are already expressed comprehensively in Mr. Barry's
correspondence, we do not believe a separate legal analysis is necessary.

10.  The foregoing statements are true. I am aware that if any of same are

willfully false, I am subject to punishment,

Robert A. Fagella, Esq.
Dated: ‘;1\// e
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N.J.S.A. 14A:6-1

C .
New Jersey Statutes Annotated Currentness
Title 14A. Corporations, General (Refs & Annos)
& Chapter 6. Directors and Officers (Refs & Annos)

= 14A:5-1. Board of directors

(1) The business and affairs of a corporation shall be managed by or under the direction of its board,

except as in this act or in its certificate of ihcorporation otherwise provided. Directors shall be at
least 18 years of age and need not be United States citizens or residents of this State or shareholders
of the corporation unless the certificate of incorporation or by-laws so require. The certificate of
incorporatiqn or by-laws may prescribe other qualifications for directors.

(2) In discharging his duties to the corporation and in determining what he reasonably believes to
be in the best interest of the corporation, a director may, in addition to considering the effects of any
action on shareholders, consider any of the following: (a) the effects of the action on the
corporation's employees, suppliers, creditors and customers; (b) the effects of the action on the
community in which the corporation operates; and (c) the long term as well as the short-term
interests of the corporation and its shareholders, including the possibility that these interests may best
be served by the continued independence of the corporation.

(3) If on the hasis of the factors described in subsection (2) of this section, the board of directors
determines that any proposal or offer to acquire the corporation is not in the best interest of the
corporation, it may reject such proposal or offer, If the board of directors determines to reject any
such proposal or offer, the board of directors shall have no obligation to facilitate, remove any
barriers to, or refrain from impeding the proposal or offer.

CREDIT(S)

Amended by L.1973, c. 366, § 21, eff. May 1, 1974; L.1988. c. 94. § 24, eff. Dec. 1, 1988; L.1989,
c. 106, § 1, eff. June 29, 1989.

COMMISSIONERS' COMMENT--1988 AMENDMENTS

This section was revised to reflect the fact that corporations are managed by their officers

© 2005 Thomson/West. No Claim to Orig. U.S. Govt. Works.
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N.J.S.A. 14A:6-1
with the board providing supervision and overall direction. This change brings New Jersey
law into conformity with the laws of other jurisdictions. See Del. G.C.L. § 141(a); Model
B.C.A. (1984 revision) § 8.01(b).
COMMISSIONERS' COMMENT--1972 AMENDMENTS

This section has been amended to change the age qualification of a director from 21 to 18.
See Comiment to N.J.S. 14A:2-6.

COMMISSIONERS' COMMENT--1968

This section enacts the substance of section 33 of the Model Act, except as noted below. The
provisions concerning age and residence of directors have no counterpart in Title 14, but are
probably declaratory of the common law. The provision that directors need not be
shareholders changes existing statutory law. R.S. 14:7-2 requires that directors be bona fide
shareholders of the corporation or of another corporation owning at least 25% of the
outstanding stock of the corporation.

The words "except as in this Act or in its certificate of incorporation otherwise provided”
have no counterpart in the Model Act or in Title 14. They are patterned after section 141(a)
of the Delaware Act. Together with paragraph 14A:2-7(1)(f), these words mean that
provisiors in the certificate of incorporation are not unlawful if they restrict the discretion
or powers of the Board in the management of the business or conduct of the affairs of the
corporation, unless they are prohibited by this Act or by other statute law. See Katcher v.
Ohsman, 26 N.J.Super. 28, 97 A.2d 180 (Ch.Div., 1953) which illustrates that some
restrictions upon the Board are permissible without explicit authorization in the statute. See
also Lonyg Park. Inc. v. Trenton-New Brunswick Theatres Co., 297 N.Y. 174, 77 N.E.2d 633
(1948), construing New Jersey law, holding invalid an agreement vesting the Board's
management powers in a named manager. In any case in which there is doubt as to the

~ validity cf arestriction imposed by the certificate, the unanimous consent procedure set forth
in subsection 14A:5-21(2) should be employed.

Sections 14A:6-9 and 14A:6-15 permit delegation of authority by the board of directors to
committees by provisions in the by-laws, and to officers by resolution or by-laws provisions.

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES
2003 Main Volume

© 2005 Thomson/West. No Claim to Orig. U.S. Govt. Works.
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N.J.S.A. 14A:6-1

Source: R.S. 14:7-1, 14:7-2; Model Act § 33 (1960); Del.Code Ann. tit. 8, § 141(a).

Prior Laws: R.S. 14:7-1, amended by L.1968, c. 263, § 2; 14:7-2, amended by L.1947, ¢. 299, p.
1011, § 1; L.1961,c. 44, p. 476, § 1.

L:.1896‘, c. 185, § 12, p. 281 [C.S. p. 1606, § 12], amended by L..1915,¢c. 197, § 1, p. 362, L.1921,
c.335,§ 1, p. 923 [1924 Suppl. § 47-12], L.1926, c. 318, § 4, p. 531. L.1896, c. 185, § 39, p. 290
[C.S.p. 1624, § 39], amended by L.1930, ¢. 122, § 1, p. 381.
The 1973 amendment lowered the age qualification of a diréctor from 21 to 18.
The 1988 amendment inserted "or under the direction of" in the first sentence.
L.1989, c. 106, § 1, designated existing text subsec. (1) and added subsecs. (2) and (3).
iFS?atem.ent: (lon{miﬁée statement tcs Senéte, No. 2115;-L.1988, c. 94, see § 14A:1-2.1.
CROSS REFJ:RENCES
Benefit plans, see § 14A:8-1.
Certificate of incorporation,
Generally, see § 14A:2-7.
Control of directors, see § 14A:5-21.
Director defined, see § 14A:1-2.1.
Electiori of directors, see § 14A:5-24.
Emergency powers, see § 14A:2-10.
Exeﬁutive committee, delegation of authority, see § 14A:6-9.
General corporate powers, see § 14A:3-1.

Indemnification of directors, see § 14A:3-5.

Officers, authority, see § 14A:6-15.

© 2005 Thomson/West. No Claim to Orig. U.S. Govt. Works.
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N.J.S.A. 14A:6-1

Residence of directors and officers of corporations organized under special charter, see Acts
Saved from Repeal § 14:7-5.

LAW REVIEW AND JOURNAL COMMENTARIES

Attorney as ccrporate director. (1973) 96 N.J.L.J. 53.

Constituency statutes: An appropriate vehicle for addressing transition costs? CommenL 28
Colum.J.L. & Soc.Probs. 145 (1995). o

Litigating the duty to disclose pending litigatibh. Myron J. Bromberg and Anastasia P. Slowinski,
131 N.JL.J. 6 (1992). |

New Jersey shores up against hostile takeovers. Russell U. Schenkman, 124 N.J.L.J. 1185 (1989).

P N

LIBRARY REFERENCES
2003 Main Volume
Corporations €282, 297, 307, 310.

Westlaw Topic No. 101.
C.1.S. Corporations §§ 447-448, 460-461, 475-479.

RESEARCH REFERENCES
2004 Electronic Update

Forms

New Jersey Forms Legal and Business § 17:45, Certificate of Incorporation-General Form.

New Jersey Forms Legal and Business § 17B:6, Introduction.

New Jersey Forms Legal and Business § 4C:71, Certificate of Incorporation.

New Jersey Forms Iegal and Business § 17:195, Qualifications and Number.

New Jersey Forms Legal and Business § 17:205, Powers-In General.

© 2005 Thomson/West. No Claim to Orig. U.S. Govt. Works.
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N.J.S.A. 14A:6-1

New Jersey Forms Legal and Business § 17:249, Introduction.

New Jersey Forms Legal and Business § 17:250, Form Drafting Principles.

New Jersey Forms Legal and Business § 17:258, Introduction-Powers of Directors or Executive

Committee.
Treatises and Practice Aids

29 N.J. Prac. Series § 6.9, Business Associations-Corporations; Partnerships; Unincorporated
Associations; Joint Ventures.

29 N.J. Prac. 3eries § 7.5, Execution by Corporétion.

13 N.J. Prac. 3eries § 10.22, Corporate Resolution of Conveyance-Form.

15 N.J. Prac. Series § 20.5, Optional Certificate of Incorporation Clauses.

15 N.J. Prac. Series § 24.1, Overview.

15 N.J. Prac. Series § 20.17, Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation-Termination
of Management by Shareholders.

21 N.J. Prac. Series § 1970, Corporations.
21A N.J. Prac. Series § 3163, Certificate of Incorporation-Contents.

21A N.J. Prac. Series § 3171, Directors.

21A N.J. Prac. Series § 3172, By-Laws.

21A N.J. Prac:. Series § 3463, Corporate Formalities.
NOTES OF DECISIONS

Access to books and records 18
Actions 24
Authorization of mortgages by directors 22

© 2005 Thomson/West. No Claim to Orig. U.S. Govt. Works.




N.J.S.A. 14A:6-1

Business judgment rule 15

Close corporations 7

Collective action 13

Competing corporation, interest in, qualifications 5

Conduct of business, in general 12
Contracts in general 19
Corporate opportunity 9
Discretion 10
Employment of personnel 17
Evidence of stock ownership, qualifications 4
Fiduciary capacity 8
Financial affairs, in general 16
Judicial control of directors' acts 26, 27
Judicial control of directors' acts - In general 26
Judicial control of directors' acts - Particular acts, judicial control 27
Management policy 14 :
Meetings 11
Mismanagement 31-35
Mismanagement - In general 31
Mismanagement - Particular acts of mismanagement 32
Mismanagement - Parties, proceedings arising from mismanagement 34
Mismanagement - Pleading, proceedings arising from mismanagement 35
Mismanagement - Remedies for mismanagement 33
Mortgages 21, 22
Mortgages - In general 21

AR e e e . [

Mortgages - Authorization of mortgages by directors 22
Necessity of stock ownership, qualifications 3
Negotiable instruments 20
Notice to directors as notice to corporation 30
Particular acts, judicial control, judicial control of directors' acts 27
Particular acts of mismanagement 32
Parties, proceedings arising from mismanagement 34
Pleading, proceedings arising from mismanagement 35
Powers and duties in general 6
Presumptions and burden of proof 25
Qualifications 1-5

© 2005 Thomson/West. No Claim to Orig. U.S. Govt. Works.
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N.J.S.A. 14A:6-1

Qualifications - In general 1 _
Qualifications - Competing corporation, interest in 5
Qualifications - Evidence of stock ownership 4
Qualifications - Necessity of stock ownership 3
Qualifications - Stock ownership 2

Ratification and waiver 29

Remedies for mismanagement 33

Sales 23

Stock owne l'Shlp, quallﬁcatlons 2

Stockholders' rights, in general 28

1. Qualifications--In general
To become a director of a corporation, a person must not only be eligible but must be elected and

accept election. Cohen v. Miller, 5 N.J.Super. 451, 68 A.2d 421 (Ch.1949). Corporations €= 282;
Corporations €= 283(1); Corporations €= 286 -

2. ---- Stock ownership, qualifications

Evidence estzblished that corporation formed for purpose of taking over a bus theretofore operated
by president of corporation, now deceased, issued ten shares of its capital stock, that deceased
president was beneficial owner of all of such shares, and that president's wife and sister each had
share issued 1o them as a "dummy" in order to comply with requirements of former § 14:7-2. Fox
v. Fox, 135 N.J. Eq. 186, 37 A.2d 194 (Ch.1944). Corporations €= 171

Where corporation A had acquired all the capital stock of corporation B, and at the time of such
acquisition corporation B owned and held a large number of the shares of the capital stock of
corporation A, the officers and directors of neither corporation had the right, at a stockholders'
meeting of corporation A, held for the purpose of electing directors of that corporation, to vote upon
the shares of the stock of corporation A held by corporation B at the time of the acquisition of its
stock by corporation A. O'Connor v. International Silver Co., 68 N.J. Eq. 680, 62 A. 408 (1505).

Corporations €= 283(2)

Where one of the three directors of a corporation required to be elected before any business could
be done, and to be stockholders, ceased to be a stockholder, and the remaining directors executed
chattel mortgages to one not having notice that the third had ceased to be a director, the mortgages
were valid as between the mortgagees and a receiver. Kuser v. Wright, 52 N.J. Eq. 825. 31 A, 397
(1895). Corporations €= 487(3)

© 2005 Thomson/West. No Claim to Orig. U.S. Govt. Works.
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Where a mort;zagee had no notice that one of the directors had ceased to be a stockholder when the

mortgage was made, he would be deemed a director de facto. Kuser v. Wright. 52 N.J. Eq. 825, 31
A. 397 (1895). Corporations €= 289

Under the Corporation Act of 1875, Rev.1877, p. 175, (repealed), subscribers for stock were
regarded as stockholders. American Pig Iron Storage Co. v. State Board of Assessors, S6 N.J.L. 389,

29 A. 160 (1894).

A. bought stock with his wife's money as an investment for her, but the certificate was accidentally
made out to him. At first he ordered it to be changed, but afterwards concluded to take the stock
himself, and countermanded the order, and transferred the cost from his wife's account to his own.
It was held that he was a bona fide holder of stock and eligible as director. In re Election of

Directors of St. Lawrence Steamboat Co., 44 N.J.L. 529 (1882).

The inspectors of election had no power to decide question whether director was bona fide holder
of stock, but it could only be raised in the courts. In re Election of Directors of St. Lawrence
Steamboat Co., 44 N.J.L. 529 (1882).

Former §§ 14:7-1, 14:7-2 requiring that every corporation shall have at least three directors selected
from its stockholders or from the stockholders of a corporation owning not less than 25% of'its stock
were not in conflict with the limited-dividend housing corporation law and applied to corporations
organized thereunder, thus, when a Title 14 corporation was the sole stockholder of a
limited-dividend housing corporation, three directors of the latter corporation were required to be
stockholders in the Title 14 corporation. F.0.1961, No. 9.

3. ---- Necessity of stock ownership, qualifications

General Corporation Act, § 16, Rev.1877, p. 180 (repealed), which provided that the business of
every such company should be managed and conducted by the directors thereof, who should be
shareholders therein, did not apply to the first directors of a new corporation formed by the
consolidation, under P.L.1893, p. 121 (repealed), of existing corporations. Camden Safe-Deposit

& Trust Co. v. Burlington Carpet Co., 33 A. 479 (Ch.1895). Corporations €= 282

No person could be elected a director who was not a bona fide holder of some of the stock at the time
of such election, and he ceased to be a director when he had disposed of his stock. Wright v. First
Nat. Bank, 52 NJ. Eq. 392, 28 A. 719 (Ch.1894), reversed 52 N.J. Eq. 825,31 A. 397. See, also,
In re Election of Directors of St. Lawrence Steamboat Co., 44 N.J.L. 529 (1882). Corporations €=
282; Corporations €= 293

© 2005 Thomson/West. No Claim to Orig. U.S. Govt. Works.
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A director does not need to be a stockholder, in the absence of any provision on the subject in the
charter. Hovt v. Bridgewater Copper-Min. Co., 6 N.I. Eq. 253 (1847) affirmed 6 N.J. Eq. 625.

4. ---- Evidence of stock ownership, qualifications

Evidence that person was mentioned as director in prospectus of corporation or that another
stockholder had told such person that stockholder had had two shares of stock put in such person's
name "to be a director" and wanted such person to "join" company was insufficient to show that such
person was a director, liable to account for funds distributable among stockholders in liquidation.
Du Bois v. Century Cement Products Co.. 119 N.J. Eq. 472, 183 A. 188 (1936). Corporations €=
629

The fact that no person could be elected a director of a corporation unless he was at the time of his
election a bona fide holder of some stock was not proof that one elected a director was the owner of
stock. Fidelity Trust-Co. v. Newark Milk & Cream Co.. 89 N.J. Eq. 224, 108 A. 54 (1918).
Corporations €= 171

The registry of the stock of a stockholder is prima facie evidence of his qualifications for the office
of director. His right to be a director can be impeached only by showing that the title of the stock
was put in him colorably with a view to qualify him to be a director for some dishonest purpose, in
furtherance of’ some fraudulent scheme touching the organization and control of the company. In
re Leslie, 58 IN.J.L. 609, 33 A. 954 (1896). Corporations € 282

A person may be qualified to be a director, whose vote cannot be received at the election by reason
of the transfer of stock to him not being entered on the books; and he may appear as a stockholder
on the books, and still be disqualified for the office of director for reasons aliunde. In re Election
of Directors of St. Lawrence Steamboat Co., 44 N.J.L. 529 (1882). Corporations €= 282

5. ---- Competing corporation, interest in, qualifications

Amendments to certificate of incorporation, declaring person interested in competing business
ineligible to bscome or remain director, and subjecting director so disqualified to immediate removal
by majority vote of remaining directors, were not ultra vires, as contravening property rights of
stockholders under provision for cumulative voting for directors. Costello v. Thomas Cusack Co.

96 N.J. Eg. 83. 96 N.J. Eq. 90, 124 A. 615 (Ch.1922), affirmed 94 N.J. Eq. 423, 120 A. 15.
Corporations €= 294

Under General Corporation Law, §§ 8, 39, P.L.1896, pp. 280, 290, a corporation could not amend
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its articles of incorporation to prohibit stockholders from becoming directors because of their interest

in competing corporations. Costello v. Thomas Cusack Co., 94 N.J. Eq. 423. 120 A. 15 (1923).
Corporations <= 282

6. Powers and duties in general

Inherent nature of a corporate director's job necessarily implies that he must have a basic idea of
.corporation's activity; director should know what business the corporation is in, and he should have
some broad iclea of scope and rafnge of corporation's affairs. Francis v. United Jersey Bank, 162
N.J.Super. 353, 392 A.2d 1233 (L.1978), affirmed 171 N.J.Super. 34. 407 A.2d 1253, certification
granted 82 N.I. 285,412 A.2d 791, affirmed 87 N.J. 15. 432 A.2d 814. Corporations €= 310(1)

Director of corporation should have known that corporation was in reinsurance business as a broker
and that it annually handled millions of dollars belonging to, or owing to, ceding companies and
reinsurers, and, charged with that knowledge, director had, at bare minimum, an obligation to ask
for and read annual financial statements of corporation and to react appropriately to what reading of
statements revealed. Francis v. United Jersey Bank, 162 N.J.Super. 355,392 A.2d 1233 (L.1978),
affirmed [71 N.J.Super. 34. 407 A.2d 1253, certification granted 82 N.J. 285, 412 A.2d 791,
affirmed 87 N.J. 15, 432 A.2d 814. Insurance &= 1133

Entire management of corporate affairs is committed to directors' charge upon trust and confidence
that they will be cared for and managed within limits of powers conferred by law upon corporation
and for common benefit of stockholders. Pilat v. Broach Systems, Inc., 108 N.J.Super. 88, 260 A.2d
13 (1..1969). Corporations €= 310(1)

Requirement that no binding corporate action could be taken by stockholders or directors of closed
threeman corporation unless 90 per cent in stock interest voted in favor of such action was valid, and
by-law in conformity therewith would be lawful. Katcher v. Qhsman, 26 N.J.Super. 28,97 A.2d 180
(Ch.1953). Corporations €= 195; Corporations €= 298(5)

A director of a corporation is not, because of his office, a trustee for the stockholders with respect
to their several holdings of stock over which he has no control, and is not duty bound to disclose to
individual stockholder, before purchasing his stock, that which the director may know as to the real

condition of the corporation affecting the value of the stock. Gardner v. Baldi, 24 N.J.Super. 228,
93 A.2d 644 (Ch.1952). Corporations €= 316(3)

It is duty of corporation or its directors to inform or advise stockholder inquiring as to matter to be
voted upon by stockholders. Eliasberg v. Standard Qil Co., 23 N.J.Super. 431, 92 A.2d 862

© 2005 Thomson/West. No Claim to Orig. U.S. Govt. Works.




Page 11

N.J.S.A. 14A:6-1

(Ch.1952), affirmed 12 N.J. 467, 97 A.2d 437. Corporations €= 194

Directors proposing stock option plan under which they and executives of corporation could obtain
stock at cost below market price were not required to disclose to stockholders the tax advantages
accruing to the beneficiaries of the plan and the tax disadvantages the corporation would thereby

incur. Eliasberg v. Standard Qil Co.. 23 N.J.Super. 431, 92 A.2d 862 (Ch.1952), affirmed 12 N.J.
467,97 A.2d 437. Corporations €= 316(3)

The failure of directors to advise stockholders of the participation of directors and employees in
corporate profit under by-law did not constitute either fraud or breach of trust. Bookman v, R.J.

Reynolds Tobacco Co., 138 N.J. Eq. 312, 48 A.2d 646 (Ch.1946). Corporations €= 317(3)

Stockholders have a right to call on officers for any information they fnay wish. Bookman v. R.J.
Reynolds Tobacco Co., 138 N.J, Eq. 312, 48 A.2d 646 (Ch.1946). Corporations €<= 181(7)

Corporation can act only through board of directors who have duty to give same care, attention, and
honest judgment to management of corporation's business as they would to their own, and to act
-honestly for what in their judgment is for best interest of corporation, as entity distinct from its
stockholders. Whitfield v. Kern, 120N.J. Eq. 115,184 A. 333 (Ch.1936), reversed 122 N.J. Eq. 332
192 A. 48. Corporations €= 310(2)

Corporation’s president, though its executive head, cannot bind corporation in all its business affairs
in view of provisions of this section. Economy Auto Supply Co. v. Fidelity Union Trust Co., 105
N.J.L. 206, 144 A. 30 (1928). Corporations €= 405 .

- Corporate by-laws may regulate official duties and salaries notwithstanding provision of this section
as to manageraent of corporate business by directors. Lillard v. Oil. Paint & Drug Co., 70 N.J. Eq. -
197, 56 A. 254 (Ch.1903). '

7. Close corporations

Relationship of principals in close corporation is that of partners or coventurers. 68th St. Apts., Inc.

v. Lauricella, 142 N.J.Super. 546, 362 A.2d 78 (1.1976), affirmed 150 N.J.Super. 47, 374 A.2d
1222 Corporations €= 174

8. Fiduciary capamty

Business Corporation Act imposes standard of ordinary care, skill, and judgment on directors of
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corporations; dummy, figurehead, or accommodation directors are anachronisms with no place in

New Jersey law. Mulford v. Computer Leasing, Inc.. 334 N.J.Super. 385. 759 A.2d 887 (L.1999).
Corporations €= 310(1) -

All directors of a corporation are responsible for managing the business and affairs of the
corporation. Mulford v. Computer Leasmg Inc.. 334 N.J.Super. 385, 759 A.2d 887 (L.1999).
Corporations &= 310(1)

In their dealings with a cdrporation and its assets, officers and directors are quasi-trustees for the
benefit of shareholders. Judson v. Peoples Bank & Trust Co., 25 N.J. 17, 134 A.2d 761 (1957).
Corporations €= 307

Under New Jersey law, directors of a corporation are fiduciaries and are held to the utmost fidelity
in their dealings with the corporation and its stockholders. Daloisio v. Peninsula Land Co., 43
N.J.Super. 79, 127 A.2d 885 (A.D.1956). Corporations €= 307

When elected to office, directors of a corporation become trustees of the entire body of corporate
owners and owe loyalty not only to the majority or minority but to all of them, represented by the
corporate entity, and to disregard the rights of either group, or of the corporation as such even for
a moment, is a violation of their fiduciary obligation. Daloisio v. Peninsula Land Co., 43 N.J.Super.
79.127 A.2d 885 (A.D.1956). Corporations €= 307

Directors of private corpbration bear fiduciary relationship to corporation and to its stockholders,
and such directors are quasi trustees for stockholders. Hill Dredgmg Corp. v. Risley, 18 N.J. 501,
114 A.2d 697 (1955). Corporatlons &= 307

Directors of 2 private corporation, while not trustees in the strict, technical sense, are considered in
equity as bearing a fiduciary relation to corporation and its stockholders, and relationship has two
facets, agency in the normal sense and trusteeship in relation to corporate moneys and properties.
Pomeroy v. Simon, 17 N.J. 59, 110 A.2d 19 (1954). Corporations €= 307

At least until insolvency occurs, stockholders alone comprise the cestuis que trust for whose benefit

directors are quasi trustees. Pomeroy v. Simon, 17N.J. 59. 110 A.2d 19 (1954) Corporations €=
307

Directors of corporation are fiduciaries, and in their dealings with corporation and stockholders,
utmost fidelity is demanded. Eliasberg v. Standard Oil Co., 23 N.J.Super. 431, 92 A.2d 862
Ch.1952), affirmed 12 N.J. 467, 97 A.2d 437. Corporations €= 307
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The certificate of incorporation, constitution and by-laws of a corporation constitute a contract
~ between corporation and members as well as between members inter sese, and trustees or directors
bear a fiduciary relationship to the members, requiring them to comply with certificate and by-laws.
Leedsv. Harrison, 7N.J.Super. 558,72 A.2d 371 (Ch.1950). Corporations €= 9; Corporations €=
57; Corporations €= 307

The directors of a corporation are trustees and bound in the exercise of their duty to endeavor to
secure the highest and best price obtainable for corporate assets, and one of tests of unfairness of a
contract is inadequacy of price. Bresnick v. Franklin Capital Corp.. 6 N.J.Super. 579, 70 A.2d 524

Ch.1949), set aside 10 N.J.Super. 234, 77 A.2d 53, certification granted 6 N.J. 398, 79 A.2d 108,
affirmed 7 N.J. 184. 81 A.2d 6. Corporations €= 312(5)

The directors of a corporation occupy a fiduciary position toward the corporation and are bound to
act for its best interests. Riddle v. Mary A. Riddle Co., 140 N.J. Eq. 315. 54 A.2d 607 (Ch.1947).
Corporations € 307 :

Directors of corporation occupy a fiduciary position toward stockholders and it is directors' duty to
see that proper and clear records are kept of receipts and disbursements of corporate funds and to
take and preserve vouchers for all payments made. Hollander v. Breeze Corp., 131 N.J. Eq. 585. 26
A.2d507(Ch.1941), affirmed 131 N.J. Eq. 613, 26 A.2d 522. Corporations €= 307; Corporations €=
312(1)

A director of management corporation holding cemetery land and the president of the corporation
were charged with the duty of maintaining the integrity of capital of the corporation as a trust fund
for security of creditors and for benefit of the corporation and those beneficially interested in it in
its character as a "charitable trust"., Emmerglick v. Vogel, 131 N.J. Eq. 257,24 A.2d 861 (Ch.1942).
Associations €= 18; Cemeteries €= 5

In the case of Whitfield v. Kern, 122 N.J. Eq. 332, 192 A. 48 (1937) the Court of Errors and Appeals
said:

"At common law, and by the modern current of authority in this country and in England, the directors
of a private corporation, while not regarded as trustees in the strict, technical sense (for title to the
corporate property is in the corporation itself and not in its directors), are considered in equity as
- bearing a fiduciary relation to the corporation and its stockholders. The relationship has a twofold
aspect, viz.: Agency in the ordinary sense, and a trusteeship in relation to the corporate moneys and
property, if not, indeed, the exercise of corporate powers generally. They are quasi trustees for the
stockholders. At least until insolvency occurs, the latter alone comprise the cestuis que trust. Until
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then the directors bear the same relation to its creditors as the agent of an individual holds to his
creditors. The latter have rights against the corporation, but no special rights against the directors
as such, except such as may be created by statute or may arise from tortious conduct imposing direct
liability upon the directors."

Director bears fiduciary relation to corporation. Jennings v. Studebaker Sales Corp. of America, 112
N.JL. 399, 170 A. 626 (1934). Corporations €= 307 '

Board of management of corporation acts as trustee in dealing with corporation's business affairs.
Cuthbert v, McNeill, 103 N.J. Eq. 199, 142 A. 819 (Ch.1928). Religious Societies €= 11

The officers and directors of a private corporation are in a fiduciary relation to the corporation and
to the stockhclders. Their duty under the principles of equity is to serve their trust beneficiaries
honestly, faithfully, and without negligence. Stephany v. Marsden, 75 N.J. Eq. 80, 71 A. 598
(Ch.1908), affirmed 76 N.J. Eq. 611. 75 A. 899. Corporations €= 307

Complainant purchased from a concern in Holland a process for detinning tin scrap, the secret of
which was zezlously guarded. After the success of the process had been shown, an original director,
charged with the duty of secrecy, and who held in individual trust for the complainant the copy of
the process, became president of defendant corporation, and with the assistance of discharged
employees of complainant installed for defendant, as competitor, the process so purchased by
complainant. It was held that the former director should be enjoined for breach of trust. Vulcan
Detinning Co. v. American Can Co., 72 N.J. Eq. 387, 67 A. 339 (1907). Corporations €= 318

9. Corporate opportunity

Corporate opportunity concept is one aspect of general rule that fiduciary's loyalties may not be
divided. Valle v. North Jersey Auto. Club. 141 N.J.Super. 568,359 A.2d 504 (A.D.1976), affirmed
as modified on other grounds 74 N.J. 109, 376 A.2d 1192. Corporations €= 315

If there is presented to corporate officer or director a business opportunity which corporation is
financially able to undertake, which from its nature is in corporation's line of business, of practical
advantage to it, and one in which corporation has interest or reasonable expectancy, and by
embracing opportunity, self-interest of officer will be brought into conflict with that of corporation,
he cannot seize opportunity for himself; if he betrays corporation, corporation may elect to claim
all benefits of transaction for itself, and law will impress trust in favor of corporation. Valle v. North
Jersey Auto. Club, 141 N.J.Super. 568, 359 A.2d 504 (A.D.1976), affirmed as modified on other
grounds 74 N.J. 109, 376 A.2d 1192. Corporations €= 315
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10. Discretion

Rule which grants wide discretion to directors of corporation is sound but is inapplicable to a
situation which involves fraud, self-dealing, or unconscionable conduct. Daloisio v. Peninsula Land
Co.. 43 N.J.Super. 79, 127 A.2d 885 (A.D.1956). Corporations €= 317(3)

Whether stoclkholders should be advised of participation of directors and employees in profits under
by-law was a matter that rested within the discretion of the directors. Bookman v. R.J. Reynolds
Tobacco Co., 138 N.J, Eq. 312, 48 A.2d 646 (Ch.1946). Corporations €= 310(1)

The point at which a company may providently and safely cut into its cash resources for purpose of
expansion rests in honest business judgment of managers of company, and courts should not
substitute their judgment. Solimine v. Hollander, 128 N.J. Eq. 228, 16 A.2d 203 (Ch.1940).
Corporationis €= 322 :

Questions of bookkeeping "writeoffs", where no fraud is shown, are matters of business policy
resting altogether in judgment of directors. Solimine v. Hollander, 128 N.J. Eq. 228, 16 A.2d 203
(Ch.1940). Corporations €= 310(1)

Whether two noncompetitive corporations of similar general character may enter into an arrangement
whereby eacli exchanges with the other information and assistance concerning the operation and
management of their respective businesses is a matter which is left solely to honest decision of
directors of the corporations. Solimine v. Hollander, 128 N.J. Eq. 228, 16 A.2d 203 (Ch.1940).
Corporations €= 310(1)

11. Meetings

See, also, Notes of Decisions under §§ 14A:6-7, 14A:6-10.

Where the personal interest of a director disqualifies him from voting on a given resolution, he
cannot be counted for the purpose of ascertaining a quorum. A director so disqualified, for the time
being, loses his character as a director. Enright v. Heckscher, 1917. 240 F. 863, 153 C.C.A. 549.
Corporations €= 298(5)

A lawful meeting of a board of directors of a corporation requires due notice to all of the directors

of the time, place, and object of the meeting, unless there is a waiver of such notice. Inre Joseph
Feld & Co., D.C.N.J.1941, 38 F.Supp. 506. Corporations €= 298(3)
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A special meeting of directors held without notice to one of three directors was not legally convened

meeting and action purportedly taken at such meeting was not act of corporation nor binding upon
it. Hill Dredging Corp. v. Risley. 18 N.J. 501, 114 A.2d 697 (1955). Corporations €= 298(3)

Where corporation directors' meeting was held without notice to one of its three directors, such
absent director could not, upon receiving knowledge of such meeting, effectively waive notice of
such meeting and express approval of action taken thereat, and could not thereby validate action
purportedly taken. Hill Dredging Corp. v. Risley, 18N.J. 501, 114 A.2d 697 (1955).Corporations €=
298(3)

Where one of three corporate directors was absent from special meeting called by its president, and
where president himself, by virtue of fact that he sought approval of stock purchase adverse to
_ corporation interest, could not be counted in make-up of quorum, no quorum for such meeting
existed, making such meeting a nullity, and purported action of board authorizing sale of stock to
president was null and void and not binding upon corporation. Hill Dredging Corp. v. Risley, 18
N.J. 501, 114 A.2d 697 (1955). Corporations €= 298(5)

A corporation's directors can act only as a body, lawfully assembled. ~Worley v. Dunkle. 2
N.J.Super. 161, 62 A.2d 699 (Ch.1948). Corporations €= 298(1)

A quorum of the board of directors of a corporation has no power to do corporate business, unless
notice is given to the absent members, or unless there is a standing rule fixing time for stated
meetings, or unless there is a waiver of notice of these meetings, and consent given by the absentees
subsequent tc the meeting, looking to ratification of what was done is without force to validate the
action taken. Holcombe v. Trenton White City Co., 82 N.J. Eq. 364, 91 A. 1069 (1913).
Corporations €= 298(3) :

A resolution by the board of directors of a corporation passed at a meeting held without formal call
or notice was valid, where every member of the board was present, and it was the result of their joint
action. Robson v. C.E. Fenniman Co., 83 N.J.L. 453. 85 A. 356 (1912). Corporations €= 298(3)

The act of a corporation which depends for its validity upon proper notice to all of its directors, is
not affected by want of notice to a person who has been nominated and elected as director, but who
has declined io accept the office and refused to perform any of its duties. Whittaker v. Amwell Nat.
Bank, 52 N.J. Eq. 400, 29 A. 203 (Ch.1894). Corporations €= 298(3)

A majority of the directors of a corporation constitute a quorum. Wells v. Rahway White-Rubber
Co., 19 N.J. Eq. 402 (Ch.1869). Corporations €= 298(5)
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A majority of a quorum of the board of directors of a corporation have authority to decide any

question upon which they are authorized to act. Wells v. Rahway White-Rubber Co., 19 N.J. Eq. 402
(Ch.1869). Ccrporations €= 298(5)

On an issue whether a meeting of the board of directors of a corporation was attended by a quorum,
an entry in the minute book of the board, showing the number of directors present at the meeting in
question, is prima facie evidence that the meeting in question was attended by the directors therein
named as being present. Van Hook v. Somerville Manufacturing Co., 5 N.J. Eqg. 137 (Ch.1845),
reversed on other grounds 5 N.J. Eq. 633. Corporations €= 298(5)

12. Conduct of business, m general

Propriety of directors' action as to intra vires matter is, in absence of fraud or breach of trust,
exclusively question for directorate. General Inv, Co. v. Bethlehem Steel Corp.. D.C.N.J.1918. 248
F. 303. Corporations €= 297 : '

Director of corporation cannot protect himself from performance of his legally imposed duties
behind a paper shield bearing the motto "dummy director.” Mulford v. Computer Leasing. Inc.. 334
N.J.Super. 385, 759 A.2d 887 (1..1999). Corporations €= 310(1)

Directors of a corporation may owe a duty to employees, as far as payment of their owed
compensation is concerned. Mulford v. Computer Leasing, Inc., 334 N.J.Super. 385, 759 A.2d 887
(L.1999). Ccrporations €= 342

Generally menagement of corporate affairs is committed by law to directors assembled in board
meeting, and it is generally to be understood that an officer, such as a treasurer or president, has no
more authority over corporate property than any other director. Gabriel v. Auf Der Heide-Aragona,
Inc., 14 N.J.Super. 558, 82 A.2d 644 (A.D.1951). Corporations €= 297; Corporations € 300;
Corporations €= 301

As a general rule, a corporation may act only through its board of directors. O'Connor v. Fifst Bank
& Trust Co., 12 N.J.Super. 281, 79 A.2d 687 (A.D.1951). Corporations €= 398(2)

The board of directors of a corporation is the governing body of the corporation and is vested with
the management of the corporate property, business, and affairs. Riddle v. Mary A. Riddle Co., 140
N.J. Eq. 315. 54 A.2d 607 (Ch.1947). Corporations €= 297

The affairs of a corporation are managed by a board of directors chosen by stockholders, and
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stockholders not liking the way the corporation is managed should elect a new board of directors.
Casson v. Bosinan, 137 N.J. Eq. 532, 45 A.2d 807 (1946). Corporations €= 297

A minority stcckholder cannot complain against directors whose management of corporation is
conducted in good faith and with reasonable judgment. Casson v. Bosman, 137 N.J. Eg. 532, 45
A.2d 807 (1946). Corporations €= 320(6)

A director of & corporation cannot be heard in repudiation of his own affirmative act in corporate
matters, in absence of mistake, fraud, or deceit. Cohen v. Camden Refrigerating & Terminals Co.,
129 N.J.L. 519, 30 A.2d 428 (1943). Corporations €= 290

The declaration of dividends is a corporate problem entrusted to the wisdom and discretion of the
directors. Laredef Corporation v. Federal Seaboard Terra Cotta Corporation, 131 N.J. Eq. 368, 25
A.2d 433 (Ch.1942). Corporations €= 152

Questions of business policy devolve upon officers and directors of corporation who are elected by
stockholders for precise purpose of determining such problem and it is peculiarly their duty to
evaluate business outlook. Laredef Corporation v. Federal Seaboard Terra Cotta Corporation, 131
N.J. Eq. 368. 25 A.2d 433 (Ch.1942). Corporations €= 297

Inview of this section, courts will not interfere with corporate management when directors are acting
within their powers and are giving evidences of good faith. Smith v. Banister, 127 N.J. Eq. 385, 13

- A.2d 485 (Ch.1940). Corporations €= 393

Where the issue in a case is purely one of business and economic problems of a corporation, and
there is no allzgation of fraud, or abuse of power, the issue is to be determined by the corporation's
directors and not by the court. Smith v. Banister, 127 N.J. Eq. 385, 13 A.2d 485 (Ch.1940).
Corporations €= 310(1); Corporations €= 393

Authority of directors of corporation in conduct of its business must be regarded as absolute when
they act within law. Shonnard v. Elevator Supplies Co., 111 N.J. Eq. 94, 161 A. 684 (Ch.1932).
See, also, Mzdsen v. Burns Bros.. 108 N.J. Eq. 275, 155 A. 28 (1931). Corporations €= 297

Where overwhelming majority of shareholders approved business plan submitted by directors, and
it did not appear that proposed plan was without legal authority, meager number of dissentients
should not be permitted to defeat plan. Madsen v. Burns Bros., 108 N.J. Eq. 275, 155 A. 28
(Ch.1931). Corporations €= 310(1)
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Judgment of raajority of board of directors must prevail in absence of fraud, ultra vires action,

illegality, showing of mala fides, or abuse of power tantamount to fraud. Madsen v. Burns Bros.,
108 N.J. Eq. 275, 155 A. 28 (Ch.1931). Corporations €= 393

Acts of a board of directors which are ultra vires, fraudulent, or illegal cannot be sustained against
the will of a single dissenting stockholder, who in such case, and in cases of voidable contracts
which have been repudiated by the stockholders, may maintain a bill for relief in behalf of the
corporation, where it declines to sue in its own behalf. Endicott v. Marvel. 81 N.J. Eq. 378. 87 A.
230 (Ch.1913), affirmed 83 N.J. Eq. 632, 92 A. 373, bill denied 85 N.J. Eq. 52, 95 A. 361.
Corporations ‘&= 320(6)

An agreement between shareholders controlling the stock of a corporation that other directors shall

act as nominal directors, subservient to such parties' will, is illegal, and cannot be enforced in equity.
Jackson v. Hooper, 76 N.J. Eq. 592. 75 A. 568 (1910). Contracts €= 121

The fact that boards of directors of two mining corporations are appointed by a third corporation as
a holding company of the majority of the stock of the mining corporations does not subject the
government of the mining companies to a common control, so as to make directors of one of the
mining companies, who are also directors of the holding company, common to each of the mining
companies, where it is established that the directors of the two original companies, appointed by the
holding company, are not mere "dummies,” subject to the will of the directors of the holding

company. Picrce v. Old Dominion Copper Mining & Smelting Co.. 67 N.J. Eq. 399, 58 A. 319
(Ch.1904). Corporations €= 318

In the absence of special restrictions in the charter or by-laws, the general management of the
corporation is in the hands of the directors, and the acts of a de facto board of directors bind the
corporation. Collier v. Consolidated Ry., Lighting & Refrigerating Co.. 70 N.J.L.313. 57 A. 417
(1904). Corporations €= 398(2)

Where, by reason of dissensions among the directors of a trading corporation, there is a deadlock in
the management of its business by them, a receiver pendente lite should be appointed. Sternberg v.
Wolff, 56 N.J. Eq. 389, 39 A. 397 (1898). Corporations €= 190

Directors, by virtue of their office, cannot as individuals represent the corporation as agents. Titus
v. Cairo & F.R. Co.,37 N.J.L. 98 (1874).

When the object of a bill in the name of a corporation is to restrain acts of defendants which they
could legally do only as directors, defendants must show either a legal election that would put them
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in possession of the offices or that they are de facto directors. Johnston v. Jones, 23 N.J. Eq. 216

(1872).

13. Collective action
The power to manage the affairs of a corporation is vested in the board of directors, and it is not
conferred on the members as individuals and cannot be so exercised. In re Joseph Feld & Co.,
D.C.N.J.1941, 38 F.Supp. 506. Corporations €= 398(2)

Where for 10 years or more corporation had not functioned as ordained by law because of
irreconcilable differences between equally divided shareholders and directors, and one of the
directors and stockholders took over and managed the corporate business as if it were his own
individual interest and responsibility, there was a flouting of the fundamental policy of the General
Incorporation Act warranting intervention. Petition of Collins-Doan Co.. 3 N.J. 382, 70 A.2d 159
(1949). Corporations €= 599

Mere fact that party was director of corporation did not of itself authorize him to act as its agent.
Hudson Co-op. Loan Ass'n v. Horowytz, 116 N.J.L. 605. 186 A. 437 (1936). Corporations &=
398(2)

Management of corporate affairs is committed by law to directors assembled in board meeting.
Knopf'v. Alma Park, Inc., 107 N.J. Eq. 140, 152 A. 919 (1930). Corporations €= 298(1)

Power reserved to corporation grantor to fno&ify restrictive covenants was subject to exercise only
by board of directors collectively. Bahr v. Orr, 102 N.J. Eq. 566, 141 A. 752 (Ch.1928).
Corporations €= 298(1)

Board of corporation directors can act only as body lawfully assembled. Moffatt v. Niemitz, 102
N.J. Eq. 112, 139 A. 798 (Ch.1928). Corporations €= 298(1)

The director of a corporation has no authority as such to act for the corporation, except in his place
as a member of the board of directors. Clement v. Young-McShea Amusement Co., 70 N.J. Eq. 677,
67 A. 82, 118 Am.St.Rep. 747 (1906). Corporations €= 297

The director of a corporation acquires no additional authority to act for the corporation because he
owns a majority of the corporate stock. Clement v. Young-McShea Amusement Co.. 70 N.J. Eq.
677.67 A. 82, 118 Am.St.Rep. 747 (1906). Corporations €= 297
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Directors, by virtue of their office, cannot as individuals represent the corporation as agents. Titus
v. Cairo & F.R. Co.. 37 N.J.L. 98 (1874).

Acts required to be done by the directors of a company, as designating a time for electi’on, must be
done by them as a board when lawfully convened. Johnston v. Jones, 23 N.J. Eq. 216 (1872).

The consent of a director not sitting in a legal board is nugatory. Van Hook v. Somerville
Manufacturing Co., 5 N.J. Eq. 137 (Ch.1845), reversed on other grounds 5 N.J. Eq. 633.
Corporations = 298(1)

An agreement of New Jersey corporation and stockholders thereof for New York corporation's
management of theatres leased and operated by New Jersey corporation in such state was illegal as
violating New York and New Jersey statutes requiring that corporation's business be managed by its
board of directors. Long Park v. Trenton-New Brunswick Theatres Co., 1948, 297 N.Y. 174. 77
N.E.2d 633. motion denied 298 N.Y. 856. 84 N.E.2d 324. Corporations € 305; Corporations €=
297

14. Management policy

Questions of policy of corporation's management are left solely to directors. Smith v. Banister, 127
N.J.Eq. 385, 13 A.2d 485 (1940). See, also, Elevator Supplies Co. v. Wylde. 106 N.J. Eq. 163, 150
A. 347 (1930); Shonnard v. Elevator Supplies Co.. 111 N.J. Eq. 94, 161 A. 684 (1932); Ellerman
v. Chicago Junction Railways & Union Stock-Yards Co., 49 N.J. Eq. 217, 23 A. 287 (1892).

Questions of management policy, expediency of contracts or action, adequacy of consideration not
grossly disproportionate, and lawful appropriation of corporate funds to advance corporate interest
are left solely to honest decision of directors if their powers are without limitation and free from
restraint. Eliasberg v. Standard Qil Co., 23 N.J.Super. 431, 92 A.2d 862 (1953) affirmed 12 N.J.

467, 97 A.2d 437. See, also, Bresnick v. Franklin Capital Corp.. 10 N.J.Super. 234, 77 A.2d 53
(1951); Solinine v. Hollander, 128 N.J. Eq. 228. 16 A.2d 203 (1940). '

Individual stockholders cannot question, in judicial proceedings, corporate acts of directors if they
are within powers of the corporation and, in furtherance of its purposes, are not unlawful or against
good morals and are done in good faith and in the exercise of an honest judgment, and questions of
policy of management, of expediency of contracts or action, of adequacy of consideration not grossly
disproportionate, and of lawful appropriation of corporate funds to advance corporate interests are
left solely to the honest decision of the directors if their powers are without limitation and are free
from restraint. Daloisio v. Peninsula Land Co., 43 N.J.Super. 79, 127 ‘A.2d 885 (A.D.1956).
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Corporations €= 310(1); Corporations €= 312(1); Corporations €= 316(1)

Questions of business policy of corporation ordinarily devolve upon its directors, and, where such
policies are not in furtherance of a purpose which is unlawful or against good morals or are not
adopted in bad faith and in exercise of dishonest judgment to detriment of any stockholder, court of
chancery will not interfere. Riddle v. Mary A. Riddle Co., 142 N.J. Eq. 147, 59 A.2d 599 (Ch. 1948)
Corporations €= 297; Corporations €= 393

Directors of corporation are free to change corporation's policies, providing directors keep within
corporation's charter powers and do not change essential character of business upon which
stockholders have embarked their investments, Solimine v. Hollander. 128 N.J. Eq. 228, 16 A.2d

- 203 (Ch.1940). Corporations €= 310(1)

15. Business judgment rule

The "business judgment rule" instructs that a decision made by a board of directors pertaining to the
manner in which corporate affairs are to be conducted should not be tampered with by the judiciary
so long as the decision is one within the power delegated to the directors and there is no showing of
bad faith. Exajaktilos v. Cinnaminson Realty Co., Inc., 167 N.J.Super. 141,400 A.2d 554(1..1979),
affirmed 173 N.J.Super. 559. 414 A.2d 994, certification denied 85 N.J. 112, 425 A.2d 273.
Corporations &= 310(1)

16. Financial affairs, in general

Action of New Jersey corporation in issuing additional stock which was purchased by friendly third
party was permissible, based on business judgment of directors of New Jersey corporation that
acquisition of it by Delaware corporation which sought takeover would not be in best interests of
New Jersey corporation. Treadway Companies. Inc. v. Care Corp.. C.A.2 (N.Y.)1980. 638 F.2d 357.
Corporations €= 66

Domestic corporation directors are authorized to apply corporation's funds to payments of its debts,
agree with its creditors on extension of debts and funding of interest in arrears, and issue evidence
of indebtedness. Hodgev. Cuba Co., 142 N.J. Eq. 340. 60 A.2d 88 (Ch.1948). Corporations &=
310(1)

- A domestic corporation's directors have power to issue new debéntures at six per cent discount
thereby bringing interest rate to more than six per cent pursuant to plan for refunding of corporation's
indebtedness. Hodge v. Cuba Co.. 142 N.J. Eq. 340. 60 A.2d 88 (Ch.1948). Corporations €=
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310(1)

While corporation directors have power to agree upon terms of payment of company's debt and
arrange for security, they should seek stockholders' approval of plan to exercise power in such
manner as to change substantially corporation's capital structure and control in important respects
their successors' and stockholders' discretion for a long period. Hodge v. Cuba Co., 142 N.J. Eq.
340, 60 A.2d 88 (Ch.1948). Corporations €= 310(1)

A director is chargeable with knowledge of the financial condition of the corporation. Matthews v.
Pope.95N.J.Eq. 76,121 A, 746 (Ch.1923), affirmed 95 N.J. Eq. 695, 123 A. 358. Corporations &
542(3)

17. Employment of persormel

Directors have the discretionary power to employ, fix compensation and generally to use legitimate
ends and means to retain employees or induce them to continue in the corporation's service, and in
such matters the honest exercise of business judgment is controlling. Eliasberg v. Standard Oil Co.,
23 N.J.Super. 431, 92 A.2d 862 (Ch.1952), affirmed 12 N.J. 467, 97 A.2d 437.

A minority stockholder who was vice president and manager of corporation had no vested right to
employment by corporation, and he was subject to discharge at any time by the corporate officers.

Casson v. Bosman, 137 N.J. Eq. 532, 45 A.2d 807 (1946). Corporations € 294

Evidence esteblished that discharge of minority stockholder as vice president and manager of
corporation was not part of a conspiracy to injure his interest as a stockholder, where at the time he
was discharged he received a dividend then declared on his and other stockholders' shares. Casson
v. Bosman, 137 N.J. Eq. 532, 45 A.2d 807 (1946). Corporations €= 294

Where testator bequeathed stock in a family corporation to testator's sons, testator's direction in will
that sons employ testator's brother in the business was unenforceable. D'Arcangelo v. D'Arcangelo,
137 N.J. Eq. 63, 43 A.2d 169 (Ch.1945). Wills €= 641

A contract by owners of a majority of corporate stock to employ a person would not bind the

corporation. [)'Arcangelo v. D'Arcangelo. 137N.J. Eq. 63,43 A.2d 169 (Ch.1945). Corporations €=
- 398(3) : A

18. Access to books and records
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Showing of hostile intent will not affect director's right of inspection of books of corporation. Pilat
v. Broach Systems, Inc., 108 N.J.Super. 88, 260 A.2d 13 (L.1969). Corporations €= 311

Director has absolute, unqualified right to inspect corporate books and records of account,
irrespective of motive. Pilat v. Broach Systems, Inc., 108 N.J.Super. 88, 260 A.2d 13 (L.1969).
Corporations € 311

A director of a corporation is entitled to access to all its books. Lawton v. Bedell. 71 A. 450
(Ch.1908). Corporations € 181(3); Corporations €= 311

19. Contracts in general
Corporations having common directors, contracts between, see Notes of Decisions under §14A:6-8. |
Interest of directors in corporate contracts and transactions, see Notes of Decisions ﬁnder § 14A:6-8.
Stockholders' resolution, purportedly ratifying all acts and proceedings of officers and directors, did
not effect ratification of contract not disclosed at stockholders' meeting or otherwise made known

to stockholders. Iback v. Elevator Supplies Co.. 118 N.J. Eq. 90. 177 A. 458 (Ch.1935).
Corporations ‘&= 426(12) ‘

Agreement between two owners of capital stock, intrusting management of corporations to one of
them, and providing that he should do nothing to "jeopardize" interests of other stockholders,
contemplated maintenance of corporate organizations and was not illegal. Reade v. Broadway
Theatre Co. of Long Branch, 99 N.J. Eq. 282, 132 A. 477 (Ch.1926). Corporations €= 401

Plaintiff was employed by a stockholder and director of a company at $100 per month, but found his
name on the pay roll entered at $75 per month. For two years he received the wages at the latter rate
under protest, on being advised by the director who employed him, who promised that the balance
should be paid at the end of the work, when he brought suit for its recovery. The evidence showed
that such director was general manager of the company and was permitted to employ necessary help
and to fix the wages, but if there was a question as to the wages, the executive committee, of which
the director was one, must approve; but this limitation was not known to plaintiff. It was held that
the director's authority as general agent carried with it the power to hire and pay or fix a price. Kelly
v. Jersey City Water Supply Co., 74 N.J.L. 734, 67 A. 108 (1907). Corporations €= 407(5)

An offer to prove that a resolution of a board of directors of a corporation providing for the
employment of a sales agent was passed by a dummy board having no real interest in the corporation,
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that the president only had the power to employ, and that he immediately notified the agent employed
that he was not employed by the company, is not an offer to prove that the employment of the agent
was a fraud on the stockholders because the directors had no authority to employ an agent, since, in
the absence of restrictions in the charter or by-laws of the corporation, the general management
thereof was in the hands of the board of directors. Collier v. Consolidated Ry., Lighting &
Refrigerating (Co., 70 N.J.L. 313, 57 A. 417 (1904). Corporations €= 297

Directors of a corporation clothed with full authority to carry on its business may make any contract
necessary or proper to accomplish the purposes of its creation. Park v. Grant Locomotive Works,
40N.J. Eq. 114,3 A, 162 (Ch.1885), affirmed 45 N.J. Eq. 244, 19 A. 621. Corporations €= 406(1)

20. Negotiable instruments _
The act of de facto diréctors in authorizing the execution of a note by the corporation for a valuable
consideration moving to it was binding, notwithstanding they were neither duly qualified nor legally
elected. Savage v. Ball, 17 N.J. Eq. 142 (Ch.1864). Corporations €= 289

21. Mortgages--In general

Where a director and the principal stockholder of a corporation, on negotiating a sale of all of his
stock to another party, accepted from the corporation a mortgage for the principal part of the sale
price, and had conveyed to him remaining unissued shares in payment of the balance, held, in the
absence of any showing of fraud, enforcement of the mortgage against the corporation which was
solvent was not precluded because given to a director and officer, nor was he precluded from
recovering the: full price of the stock on the theory that the price he had paid to the corporation for
1t was substantially less. Heidler v. Werner & Co.. 95 N.J. Eq. 374, 124 A. 45 (Ch 1924), affirmed
97 N.J. Eq. 505, 128 A. 237. Corporations €= 316(1)

Where stockholders of a corporation, at a meeting legally called, voted to ratify the acts of its officers
and directors in executing and delivering a mortgage to secure bonds, such ratification was
equivalent to an original authorization, and precluded a minority stockholder from restraining the
execution of the project. McAlpin v. Universal Tobacco Co 57 A.802 (Ch.1904). Corporations €=
426(1)

A corporation gave a bond and mortgage to secure the payment of a debt to complainant.
Subsequently the directors, at a meeting which was alleged to be informal and unlawful, gave, as a
substitute for the first, a second mortgage, which included additional indebtedness, increasing the
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amount. It was held that the further action by the board of directors causing the original mortgage
to be cancelec in order that the company might be able to secure a certificate that there was no
mortgage on the property except the last one so given to complainant amounted to a ratification and
sanction of the second mortgage given by a former board. Hoyt v. Bridgewater Copper Mining Co.,
6 N.J. Eq. 253 (Ch.1847), affirmed 6 N.J. Eq. 625.

Where the board of directors appointed "a finance committee,” with "a general authority in collecting
and providing ways and means, and negotiating financial operations, and the power of discounting,"
the finance committee had no power to mortgage the real estate. Leggett v. New Jersey Mfgp. &
Banking Co.. I N.J. Eq. 541, 23 Am.Dec. 728 (1832).

22. ---- Authorization of mortgages by directors

Corporation was estopped to set up defense of no resolution of directors authorizing execution of
mortgages where all stockholders knew of it but made no objection and corporation received
proceeds. Trifeld v. Winchester Development Co.. 105 N.J. Eq. 50, 146 A. 873 (Ch.1928).
Corporations €= 477(8)

Where purchase-money mortgage by corporation composed of four stockholders, although not
authorized by resolution of directors or signed by one authorized to act as president, was signed by
one recognized as president and attested by the secretary, with the knowledge of all the stockholders,
and the corporation continued in possession for 17 months without questioning the validity of the
mortgage, it vas estopped from asserting that the mortgage was improperly executed. Scala Realty
Co. v. Bayonne Ice Co., 96 N.J. Eq. 152, 125 A. 493 (Ch.1924). Corporations €= 477(8)

Mortgage of real estate executed by corporation to bona fide holder was not invalid because
authorized by board of only two directors. Felinv. Arrow Motor Mach. Co., 96 N.J. Eq. 44. 124 A.
448 (Ch.1924). Corporations €= 477(2) :

A corporation cannot attack the execution of a mortgage because of the absence of proof of a formal
authorizing resolution of the directors where it had received and used the entire consideration paid
to it on the faith of the mortgage. Earle v. National Metallurgic Co., 77 N.J. Eq. 17. 76 A. 555
(Ch.1910). Corporations €= 477(8)

A mortgage by a corporation, duly executed by the proper officer and attested by its seal, and for
which valuable consideration passed, would not be held invalid for want of proof of a resolution of
the directors authorizing the making of the same. Reed v. Helois Carbide Specialty Co., 64 N.J. Eq.
231, 53 A. 1057 (Ch.1903). Corporations €= 477(2)

© 2005 Thomson/West. No Claim to Orig. U.S. Govt. Works.




Page 27

N.J.S.A. 14A:6-]

A mortgage by a corporation was not affected by the fact that the directors who ordered it executed
were irregularly appointed, their right to hold their offices having been recognized by the
stockholders. Savage v. Miller, 56 N.J. Eq. 432. 36 A. 578 (Ch.1897), reversed on other grounds
56 N.J. Eg. 432. 39 A. 665. Corporations €= 290

One taking a mortgage from a corporation is not bound to know that proper notice of a meeting
authorizing the mortgage was given to all of the directors. Kuser v. Wright, 52 N.J. Eq. 825. 31 A.
397 (1895). Corporations €= 429

A mortgage executed by a corporation pursuant to a resolution of the board of directors, passed at
a meeting at which four members were present, was void where five directors were required to
constitute a quorum. Holcomb's Ex'rs v. New Hope Delaware Bridge Co., 9N.J. Eq. 457 (Ch.1853).
Corporations = 298(5)

Where the cherter provides that the property and business of the corporation shall be managed by
five directors, a majority of whom is given authority to appoint such officers and agents as they think
proper, two directors cannot authorize the mortgaging of lands of the corporation, at a meeting
attended by three. Van Hook v. Somerville Manufacturing Co., SN.J. Eq. 137 (Ch.1845), reversed
on other grounds 3 N.J. Eq. 633. Corporations €= 298(5)

23. Sales

Where corporation owned all the stock of mortgage company, and the directors of the two
corporations were identical, and also owned 63 per cent of common stock of trust company, and two
of the directors of the latter company were directors of the two other corporations, and there was no
proof that the directors endeavored to obtain any offer for the assets and property of the mortgage
company other than the single offer by the trust company, and it affirmatively appeared that another
person had offered $50,000 in excess of the consideration to be paid by the trust company, the
consideration offered by the trust company was clearly inadequate and unfair, and transaction would
not be permitted. Bresnick v. Franklin Capital Corp., 6 N.J.Super. 579, 70 A.2d 524 (Ch.1949), set
aside 10 N.J.Sluper. 234, 77 A.2d 53, certification granted 6 N.J. 398, 79 A.2d 108, affirmed 7 N.J.
184, 81 A.2d 6. Corporations &= 401

The board of directors of defendant, a corporation organized for the purpose, inter alia, of buying and
selling stocks, formally authorized a committee to accept any offers for certain stock which they
deemed best for the company, and to make such arrangements with reference thereto as they might
be advised were necessary for the delivery of the stock and payment therefor; all such agreements
to be subject o ratification by the stockholders. The committee gave complainant a written option
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to purchase, which said nothing about ratification by the stockholders. It was held that the sale must
be ratified by the stockholders before becoming binding on the company, since the directors had seen
fit to make that a condition of the sale, though they need not have done so. Kelsey v. New England
St. Ry. Co., 60 N.J. Eq. 230, 46 A. 1059 (Ch.1900), affirmed 62 N.J. Eq. 742, 48 A. 1001.
Corporations ‘&= 426(1) '

Defendant's board of directors appointed a committee to sell certain stock, and to make arrangements
for delivery and payment therefor, subject to the ratification of the stockholders. The committee
gave complainant a written option, which stated they were acting on behalf of, and by the written
consent of, the board of directors, but made no mention of the necessity for ratification by the
stockholders. It was held that the agency of the committee was special, and complainant was
chargeable with notice of its extent, since his option expressly stated that they were acting under
written authority. Kelsey v. New England St. Ry. Co.. 60 N.J. Eq. 230, 46 A. 1059 (Ch.1900),
affirmed 62 N.J. Eq. 742, 48 A. 1001. Corporations €= 429

A bill by a stockholder to contest the validity of an agreement made by the directors of his company
for the sale of the corporate lands to defendant, which merely charges that the directors "have no
power or authority to accept the stock of said company in payment or part payment of the price of
the lands of said company sold by them," is demurrable for failing to show the incidents and
conditions of fact under which the agreement was entered into. Thompson v. Moxey. 47 N.J. Eq.
538,20 A. 854 (Ch.1890). Corporations €= 211(6)

24. Actions

Where the directors of a corporation are themselves the wrongdoers, or the partisans of the
wrongdoer, they are incapacitated from acting as the representatives of the corporation in any
litigation which may be instituted for the correction of the wrong which it is alleged they have
committed or approve. Bohmrich v. Knoop, S0 N.J. Eq. 485. 27 A. 636 (1893). See, also, Knoop
v. Bohmrich. 49 N.J. Eq. 82.23 A. 118 (1892).

A majority of a board of directors who have been legally elected and are in fact in possession of their
offices, and in whose place no directors have been legally elected, have the right to use the corporate
name in a suit. Johnston v. Jones, 23 N.J. Eq. 216 (Ch.1872). Corporations €= 289

25. Presumiptions and burden of proof

Under business judgment rule, corporate directors are presumed to have acted properly and in good
faith and ar: called to account for their actions only when they are shown to have engaged in
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self-dealing or fraud, or to have acted in bad faith; once a plaintiff demonstrates that director has
interest in transaction at issue, burden shifts to director to prove that transaction was fair and
reasonable to corporation and only if director carries this burden will transaction be upheld;
however, initial burden of proving director's interest or bad faith always rests with plaintiff.
Treadway Cornpanies, Inc. v. Care Corp.. C.A.2 (N.Y.)1980, 638 F.2d 357. Corporations €=
310(1); Corporations €= 320(11) '

The condition of various scorched earth tactics on a change in control of corporation which was
target of hostile tender offer properly raised strong inference that the board of directors acted only
to entrench itself and was sufficiently strong to shift burden to directors under New Jersey business
judgment rule to show that board acted to protect shareholders as a whole. Minstar Acquiring Corp.
. v. AMF Inc., 1985, 621 F.Supp. 1252. Corporations €= 310(1)

26. Judicial control of directors' acts--In general

So long as the directors of a corporation keep within the scope of their powers and act in good faith
and with honest motives, their acts are not subject to judicial control or revision. Edison v. Edison
United Phoncgraph Co., 52 N.J. Eq. 620, 29 A. 195 (1894). See, also, Storrs v. James Butler -
Grocery Co., 96 N.J. Eq. 359, 124 A. 504 (1924); General Inv. Co. v. American Hide & Leather Co.,
97 N.J. Eq. 214, 127 A. 529 (1925) affirmed 98 N.J. Eq. 326, 129 A. 244: Hamilton v. United
Laundries Corporation, 111 N.J. Eq. 78. 161 A. 347 (1932).

Court cannot substitute its judgment for judgment of directors acting within law on questions of
corporate policy and management. Auburn Button Works v. Perryman Electric Co., 107 N.J. Eq.
554, 154 A. | (1931). See, also, Madsen v. Burns Bros.. 108 N.J. Eq. 275, 155 A. 28 (1931);

Benedict v. Columbus Construction Co., 49 N.J, Eq. 23. 23 A. 485 (1892).

Relief can be granted against illegal or unconscionable acts of a corporate director, notwithstanding
the acquiescence, ratification, or laches of some of the stockholders, if there remains but a single
stockholder v/ho is not subject to such defenses. Daloisio v. Peninsula Land Co.. 43 N.J.Super. 79.
127 A.2d 885 (A.D.1956). Corporations € 316(4); Corporations €= 316(5); Corporations €
©320(3)

Where directors of corporation have acted in bad faith and have failed to exercise an honest
judgment, the court will interfere. Daloisio v. Peninsula Land Co., 43 N.J.Super. 79, 127 A.2d 885
(A.D.1956). Corporations €= 393

Judicial intervention in affairs of a private corporation is justifiable only where complaining party
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has suffered invasion of civil rights of person or property. Joseph v. Passaic Hospital Ass'n, 35

N.J.Super. 450, 114 A.2d 317 (Ch.1955), reversed 38 N.J.Super. 284. 118 A.2d 696. certification
denied 20 N.J. 535, 120 A.2d 661. Corporations €= 393

Ordinarily, if directors have power to act, court will not interfere with or review exercise of judgment
unless fraud, self-dealing or unconscionable conduct is shown. Penn-Texas Corp. v.

Niles-Bement-Pond Co., 34 N.J.Super. 373, 112 A.2d 302 (Ch.1955). Corporations €= 393

In stockholder’s action on behalf of and for benefit of defendant corpdration, the Superior Court
would not interfere with those actions of corporate directors which allegedly constituted misconduct,
but came within powers of the corporation, and were in furtherance of its objects in view of fact that
the directors were not shown to have acted in bad faith or to have failed to exercise honest judgment.
Welchman v. Koschwitz, 21 N.J.Super. 304, 91 A.2d 169 (Ch.1952). Corporations €= 393

Where dissension among shareholders of a corporation is such as to work a paralysis of corporate
function, the sovereign power granting franchise to such corporation has an interest that will sustain
its intervention for the dissolution and liquidation of the corporation, and it may intervene, too, for
the protection of shareholders. RKO Theatres v. Trenton-New Brunswick Theatres Co.. 9 N.J.Super.
401, 74 A.2d 314 (Ch.1950). Corporations €= 592; Corporations €= 606

Questions of the business and economic policy of a corporation are to be determined by the directors,
and the court intervenes in the corporate internal affairs with reluctance. RKO Theatres v.
Trenton-New Brunswick Theatres Co., 9N.J.Super. 401, 74 A.2d 914 (Ch.1950). Corporations €=
297; Corporations €= 393

The business of a corporation is normally entrusted to board of directors, and, if directors exercise
their judgment honestly and sincerely, in absence of a purpose which is unlawful or against good
morals, courts will not substitute their judgment for that of the board. Mimnaugh v. Atlantic City
Elec. Co.. 7N.J.Super. 310, 70 A.2d 904 (Ch.1950). Corporations €= 297; Corporations €= 393

The court will not prevent two corporations having free relations, a third corporation holding the
majority of the stock of each of them, from contracting with one another until it appears that the
proposed coniract is inequitable. Bresnick v. Franklin Capital Corp.. 6 N.J.Super. 579. 70 A.2d 524
(Ch.1949), set aside 10 N.J.Super. 234, 77 A.2d 53, certification granted 6 N.J. 398. 79 A.2d 108,
affirmed 7N.J. 184, 81 A.2d 6. Corporations €= 447

A court will not intrude into the internal affairs of a corporation and substitute its own business
judgment for that of duly constituted business managers of the corporation. Warren v. 536 Broad
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St. Corp., 4 N.J.Super. 584, 68 A.2d 175 (Ch.1949), affirmed 6 N.J.Super. 170. 70 A.2d 782.
Corporations = 393

Where due to an impasse among directors or stockholders the only asset of a corporation stands idle
and untenanted for years, producing no income and being continuously subjected to depreciation and
a mounting burden of taxes and other carrying charges, equity may intervene to prevent devastating
loss to investors. Warren v. 536 Broad St. Corp.,4 N.J.Super. 584, 68 A. 2d 175 (Ch.1949), affirmed
6 N.J.Super. 170, 70 A.2d 782. Corporations €= 393

Doubt of validity of domestic corporation's minority stockholders' asserted cause of action to enjoin
consummation of directors' plan for refunding most of corporation's debenture indebtedness by issue
of new debentures and payment of cash or cash and common stock for old debentures was not
adequate reason for refusing interlocutory injunction, since plan would immediately be put into
effect and new securities issued to many persons and sold to innocent holders if injunction were
denied, and decree for complainants after final hearing would be futile. Hodge v.CubaCo., 142 N.J.
Eq. 340, 60 A.2d 88 (Ch.1948). Corporations €= 320(13)

Corporation directors' acts done in good faith and in exercise of good judgment will not be reviewed
or set aside by court on ground that they are impolitic or inexpedient. Hodge v. Cuba Co., 142 N.J.
Eq. 340, 60 A.2d 88 (Ch.1948). Corporations €= 393

Generally, Court of Chancery will not interfere with internal affairs of a corporation because of
dissension unless there is no legally constituted governing body or dissensions are such as to make
it impossible o carry on its affairs, and mere disagreement among members of board of directors is
insufficient. Appleton v. Womne Plastics Corp.. 140 N.J. Eq. 324, 54 A.2d 612 (Ch.1947).
Corporations €= 393 |

The dissension among members of board of directors, which moves Court of Chancery to act, is not
merely a disagreement as to policy or business judgment in which a majority force an honest
judgment upcn a minority, but there must be present a fraudulent motive on part of majority of board
of directors or lack of properly constituted board with result that there arises an urgency for
protection of property or business interests of the corporation. Appleton v. Worne Plastics Corp..
140 N.J. Eq. 324, 54 A.2d 612 (Ch.1947). Corporations €= 393

Generally, so long as directors of a corporation exercise their judgment on questions of policy or
management honestly and sincerely, court is without authority to substitute its judgment as to the
advisability of proposed course of action after such judgment of board of directors. Riddle v. Mary
A. Riddle Co., 140 N.J, Eq, 315, 54 A.2d 607 (Ch.1947). Corporations €= 393
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27. ---- Particular acts, judicial control
See, also, other notes under this section relating to particular acts of directors.

Whether business should be operated at loss during depression or closed down is purely business and
economical problem for determination by directors and not by court. Madsen v. Burns Bros., 108
N.J. Eq.275. 155 A. 28 (1931). See, also, Kelly v. Kelly-Springfield Tire Co.. 106 N.J. Eq, 545,152
A. 166 (1930); Farmers' Loan & Trust Co. v. Hewitt, 94 N.J. Eq. 65. 118 A. 267 (1922) affirmed
94 N.J. Eq. 187, 118 A. 926.

Minority stockholders were not entitled to order restraining prospective dissolution of foreign
corporation where no statutory action had been initiated at time of application for restraining order
and only a meeting of stockholders had been called to consider future of corporation. Appleton v.
Worne Plasti¢s Corp., 140 N.J. Eq. 324, 54 A.2d 612 (Ch.1947). Injunction €= 11

Bill seeking injunction or receivership against directors paying excessive prices and borrowing

money disclosed merely matters entrusted to directors. Dvorin v. Greenberg, 106 N.J. Eqg. 495,151
A. 95 (Ch.1930). Corporations €= 320(7)

Whether a corporation, owning assets of large value and having readily salable securities in the

treasury, but in need of funds, shall obtain them by issuing bonds or by selling such securities and

thus stripping the treasury of quick assets is a matter to be decided exclusively by the board of
directors, anc. equity cannot review its decision. Farmers' Loan & Trust Co. v. Hewitt, 94 N.J. Eq.
65, 118 A. 267 (Ch.1922), affirmed 94 N.J. Eq. 187, 118 A. 926. Corporations €= 393

28. Stockholders' rights, in general

Plaintiff sharzholder's resolution proposing, inter alia, that defendant corporation intensify its efforts
to encourage the development of petroleum reserves beneath world's continental shelves and that the
corporation encourage creation of a stable international regime having jurisdiction over the mineral
resources of underseas areas beyond the limits of national jurisdiction was not a proper subject for
action by security holders and thus could legally be omitted by the corporation from proxy statement
it planned to mail in connection with its annual meeting. Brooks v. Standard Oil Co., 1969, 308
F.Supp. 810. Corporations € 198(3); Securities Regulation €= 49.17

Unless legal authority to do so is reserved to it, corporation cannot, without consent of all of its
stockholders, sell or even lease its assets and business as whole and invest stockholders' capital in
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other enterprises. Bresnick v. Franklin Capital Corp., 10 N.J.Super. 234, 77 A.2d 53 (A.D.1950),

certification granted 6 N.J. 398, 79 A.2d 108, affirmed 7 N.J. 184, 81 A 2d 6. Corporations €=
377(2); Corporations €= 439; Property €= 11

The business of a corporation is operated by and under the direction and authority of its board of
directors, and ownership by trustee in its representative capacity of controlling interest of outstanding
stock of corporation did not confer power on trustee to bind corporation. Blauvelt v. C1t1zens Trust
Co.,3N.J. 545, 71 A.2d 184 (1950). Corporations €= 398(2) :

Where corporation owned all stock of mortgage company, and directors were identical, and also
owned 63 per cent of common stock of trust company, two directors of which were directors of the
other two corporations, the stockholders of the parent corporation had sufficient interest to attack
transactions entered into between the parent corporation and its subsidiaries, since stockholders of
the parent corporation were the de facto proprietors of the assets and franchises of the subsidiaries.
Bresnick v. Franklin Capital Corp., 6 N.J.Super. 579, 70.A.2d 524 (Ch.1949), set aside 10 N.J.Super.
234, 77 A.2d 53, certification granted 6 N.J. 398, 79 A.2d 108, affirmed 7 N.J. 184, 81 A.2d 6.
Corporations €= 401

Minority common stockholders of domestic holding corporation holding entire common stock of
Cuban corporation which held all common stock of another such corporation owning two Cuban
railroad companies' common stock were not entitled to injunction against consummation of directors’
plan to refund most of domestic corporation's debt or principal of an interest on debentures thereof

on ground that such corporation should borrow enough from railroad companies to pay debentures
in full. Hodgs v. Cuba Co., 142 N.J. Eq. 340, 60 A.2d 88 (Ch.1948). Corporations €= 320(13)

Minority common stockholders of domestic holding corporation owning entire common stock of
Cuban sugar corporation holding all common stock of Cuban railroads’ holding corporation which
owned Cuban railroad companies' common stock were not entitled to injunction against
consummation of directors' plan for refunding most of domestic corporation's debt. Hodge v. Cuba
Co., 142 N.J. Eq. 340, 60 A.2d 88 (Ch.1948). Corporations €= 320(13).

Individual stockholders of a corporation cannot question in a Court of Chancery the business
judgment of a regularly elected board of directors, where such judgment is honestly exercised.
Riddle v. Mary A. Riddie Co.. 140 N.J. Eq. 315, 54 A.2d 607 (Ch.1947). Corporations €= 393

Whether court will permit a stockholder to maintain a derivative suit on behalf of his corporation
is a matter of discretion and court will exercise such discretion having in view the circumstances of
the parties, their relationships to each other and to the cause of action and the refusal of corporation
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to sue. Slutzker v. Rieber, 132 N.J. Eq. 412, 28 A 2d 528 (Ch.1942). Corporations &= 320(6)

In determining right of stockholders to seek relief by way of derivative suit against officers and
directors of corporation, motives and knowledge of underwriter selling stock of corporation were
immaterial as to stockholders who were such prior to underwriter's sale. Hollander v. Breeze Corp..
131 N.J. Eq. 585, 26 A.2d 507 (Ch.1941), affirmed 131 N.J. Eq. 613, 26 A.2d 522. Corporations
&= 320(4)

In seeking to ¢nforce their rights against officers and directors of corporation, stockholders who
purchased stock from underwriter were not chargeable with notice of any facts or information
concerning the management or affairs of the corporation merely because such facts or information
became knowr to or were available to the underwriter. Hollander v. Breeze Corp.. 131 N.J. Eq. 585,
26 A.2d 507 (Ch.1941), affirmed 131 N.J. Eq. 613.26 A.2d 522. Corporations €= 320(4)

Where neither shareholders of corporation nor its board.of directors were chargeable with, or guilty
of, mala fides, abuse of power, or fraud in refusing to foreclose mortgage because of defaults, one
who was a stockholder of corporation and executor of estate of deceased stockholder could not

foreclose morigage. Smith v. Banister, 127 N.J. Eq. 385. 13 A.2d 485 (Ch. 19401 Corporations €=
202

Stockholder seeking to hold person liable as director had burden to prove that person charged was
actually a director. Du Bois v. Century Cement Products Co., 119 N.J. Eq. 472, 183 A. 188 (1936).
Corporations €= 320(11)

Individual stockholders cannot question, in judicial proceedings, directors' corporate acts, if within
lawful corporate powers and done in good faith. Madsen v. Burns Bros., 108 N.J. Eq. 275, 155 A.

28 (Ch.1931). Corporations €= 189(2)

Individual stockholders cannot, in judicial proceedings, question the corporate acts of directors,
within the powers of the corporation, and in furtherance of its purposes, unless they are unlawful or
against good morals, or are in bad faith, and not in the exercise of an honest judgment, since
questions of policy of management, etc., are left solely to the directors’ honest decision. Merriman

v. National Zinc Corporation. 82 N.J. Eq. 493, 89 A. 764 (Ch.1914). Corporations €= 310(1)

Individual stockholders cannot question, in judicial proceedings, the corporate acts of directors, if
the same are within the powers of the corporation and in furtherance of its purposes, are not unlawful
or against good morals, and are done in good faith, and in the exercise of an honest judgment;
questions of policy of management, of expediency of contracts or action, of adequacy of
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consideration not grossly disproportionate, of lawful appropriation of corporate funds to advance
corporate interests, being left solely to the honest decision of the directors, if their powers are
without limitation, and free from restraint. Ellerman v. Chicago Junction Railways & Union
Stock-Yards Co., 49 N.J. Eq. 217, 23 A. 287 (Ch.1891). Corporations €= 189(2)

29. Ratificarion and waiver

Ratification by stockholders of voidable acts of directors is effective for all purposes unless action

of directors constitutes a gift of corporate assets to directors or is ultra vires, illegal, or fraudulent.
Eliasberg v. Standard Oil Co., 23 N.J.Super. 431, 92 A.2d 862 (Ch.1952), affirmed 12 N.J. 467. 97
A.2d 437 Ccrporations €= 316(4)

Unauthorized acts of officers and directors of corporation which are ultra vires, illegal or fraudulent
are not subject to ratification by majority of the stockholders. Slutzker v. Rieber. 132 N.J. Eq. 406,
28 A.2d 525 (Ch.1942). Corporations €= 386

Corporation may adopt act of director benefiting corporation. Camp Namaschaug v. Kennedy, 7N.J.
Misc. 1060, 147 A. 723 (1929). Corporations €= 426(2)

From equivocal circumstances, positive affirmance by stockholders of unauthorized acts of directors
will not be inferred, and prompt disaffirmance is unnecessary, and mere delay in bringing suit
without prejudice to defendants does not raise an estoppel, nor deprive stockholders of their
remedies. Gerhard v. Welsh, 80 N.J. Eq. 203, 82 A. 871 (1912). Corporations €= 425(4)

The aid of a board of directors as a means of corporate action cannot be dispensed with by waiver
on the part of the stockholders or otherwise. Audenried v. East Coast Milling Co., 68 N.J. Eqg. 450,
59 A, 577 (Ch.1904).

30. Notice to directors as notice to corporation

Directors of a corporation are chargeable with knowledge of corporate transactions. Cole v. Brandle,
127 N.J. Eq. 31, 11 A.2d 255 (1940). Corporations €= 310(1)

A corporation is not chargeable with information casually obtained by a director when he is not

officially engaged for the corporation. Thomson v. Central Passenger Ry. Co., 83 N.J.L. 777. 85 A.
201 (1912). Corporations €= 428(9)
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Casual information to directors of a contract entered into by the president of the corporation without
authority was insufficient to charge the corporation with such knowledge as to impute a ratification
of the contract. Thomson v. Central Passenger Ry. Co.. 83 N.J.L. 777, 85 A. 201 (1912).
Corporations €= 428(9) ‘

A corporation discounting a note for one of its directors is not chargeable with notice of equitable
defenses which the maker has to the note, and which were known to the director, where the director
did not act with the board of directors in making the discount, and did not acquire his knowledge
while acting for the corporation. First Nat. Bank v. Christopher, 40 N.J.L. 435, 29 Am.Rep. 262 .

(1878).

31. Mismanagement--In genetal

Liability cannot be imposed upon director of corporation for acts committed and completed by
codirectors prior to the time that director assumed office. Solimine v. Hollander, 128 N.J. Eq. 228.
16 A.2d 203 (Ch.1940). Corporations €= 310(1)

WL,AN¢pP.L.1896, p. 281, § 12, incorporated in this section, does not make failure of directors to
perform duties of management a matter which concerns only stockholders, or, as respects insurance
companies, policyholders. McCarter v. Firemen's Ins. Co., 74 N.J. Eq. 372, 73 A. 80, 135

Am.St.Rep. 708, 18 Am.Ann.Cas. 1048 (1909).

The fact that, after the directors of a corporation have practically wrecked the corporation through
their gross negligence, a stockholder becomes a director, and attempts to retrieve the loss, does not
constitute a waiver of their liability to him for such misconduct. Landis v. Sea Isle City Hotel Co.,

31 A. 755 (Ch.1895). Corporations € 344

Acquiescence by the directors of a corporation in a fraud perpetrated on it by another director will
not relieve the latter from liability to the company. Williams v..Riley, 34 N.J. Eq. 398 (Ch.1881).
Corporations &= 317(6)

32. ---- Particular acts of mismanagement

Director of corporation was responsible, just as were his codirectors, for managing the business and
affairs of the corporation, and even as inactive director, and manifestly as active officer
(secretary-treasurer), director was considered part of management of the corporation, and as such,
director and his codirectors were personally liable to employee, jointly and severally, for payment

of commissions earned by employee. Mulford v. Computer Leasing, Inc., 334 N.J.Super. 385. 759
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A.2d 887 (1..1999). Corporations €= 310(1); Cdrporations &= 343

Corporation, along with its directors, was liable to employee, jointly and severally, for failing to pay
employee commissions which were due him, and directors' liability was secondary to that of
corporation, so that directors' personal liability would only come into play to the extent that

corporation did not pay its judgment. Mulford v. Computer Leasing, Inc., 334 N.J.Super. 385, 759
A.2d 887 (1..1999). Corporations €= 343; Labor And Employment €= 224

Individual corporate officers and directors who ratified and acquiesced in corporate use of trust funds
contributed by limited partnership for specific purpose of purchasing shopping center were guilty
of conversion and liable to partners for losses sustained. McGlynn v. Schultz, 90 N.J.Super. 505,
218 A.2d 408 (Ch.1966), affirmed 95 N.J.Super. 412,231 A.2d 386. certification denied SON.J. 409
235 A.2d 901 Corporations €= 306 .

Directors of corporatien should not be held liable for the way in which expenses of retirement and
group-insurance fund were handled on the books of the company where the company had sustained
no loss and neither the directors nor employees holding stock involved in such fund had secured any
gain. Bookman v. R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Co., 138 N.J. Eq. 312, 48 A.2d 646 (Ch.1946).
Corporations &= 320(1)

In stockholders' derivative suit, directors of corporation were liable to corporation for corporate
funds withdrawn by the corporation's president without itemization or supporting vouchers, in.
absence of convincing proof of propriety of such withdrawals. Hollander v. Breeze Corp., 131 N.J.
Eq. 585,26 A.2d 507 (Ch.1941), affirmed 131 N.J. Eq. 613,26 A.2d 522. Corporations €= 320(11)

Where charter of corporation authorized purchase of its own stock on the open market, directors
were free to use an honest judgment as to when they would or would not use its cash on hand in
purchase of stock in their own corporation, and fact that directors permitted another corporation to
purchase stock in its corporation was no reason to conclude that directors had formed a dishonest
judgment. Giubman v. American General Corporation, 130 N.J. Eq. 607, 23 A.2d 578 (1942).
Corporations &= 312(5)

Directors of corporation were liable for amount of unwarranted increase in president's salary.
McMahon v. Burdette, 106 N.J. Eq. 79, 150 A. 12 (Ch.1930), modified 109 N.J. Eq. 84, 156 A. 420.
Corporations &= 306

Appropriatior: of corporation's funds for entire expense of office occupied by president's law firm
was unwarranted, and directors must account for such appropriation. McMahon v. Burdette, 106

© 2005 Thomson/West. No Claim to Orig. U.S. Govt. Works.




Page 38

N.JS.A. 14A:6-1

N.J.Eq. 79, 150 A. 12 (Ch.1930), modified 109 N.J. Eq. 84, 156 A. 420. Corporations €= 312(3)

Directors of corporation were personally liable for an ultra vires act in authorizing related
corporation to use profits it had agreed to pay the first corporation, in the purchase of real estate.

Storrs v. James Butler Grocery Co., 96 N.J. Eq. 359, 124 A. 504 (1924). Corporations €= 312(1)

Directors were not liable for neglect in failing to collect indebtedness due from related corporation

which was wholly unable to pay it. Storrs v. James Butler Grocery Co., 96 N.J. Eq. 359, 124 A. 504
(1924). Corporations €= 310(3)

The directors of an hotel corporation were charged with negligence in making a sale of its property,
and were sought to be made liable therefor. The evidence showed that the directors sold the property
for the best obtainable price, in order to change the location of the hotel, which had become
unprofitable. The number of shares of stock was 126, which had never sold for more than $1,000
a share. The property sold for $129,000 in cash, the furniture being reserved. A boom occurred in
the city, and the purchasers, by a sale, made a large profit; but the directors had no reasonable belief
that such boomn would occur, as same was brought on by a combination of circumstances. It was

held the directors were not liable. Freeman v. Sea View Hotel Co., 57 N.J. Eq. 68, 40 A. 218
(Ch.1898). Corporations €= 312(5)

Director, who delayed for several years in satisfying incumbrances on plant which were due and
pressing for payment when the funds were furnished him, is chargeable with interest on the amount
of the incumbrances, because it was his duty to satisfy them within a reasonable time after the funds
came into his possession. Bailey v. Burgess. 48 N.J. Eq. 411,22 A. 733 (Ch.1891). Corporations &=
340(1)

A director of a corporation, to whom another of the directors, at the instance of the corporation,
furnishes money to enable him to purchase a plant for the corporation, and free it from
incumbrances, is bound to account to a receiver of the corporation for his disbursement, and is liable
for such sums as he expended improperly. Bailey v. Burgess, 48 N.J. Eq. 411,22 A. 733 (Ch.1891).
Corporations &= 312(5)

33. ---- Remedies for mismanagement

A bill in equity, in the name of a corporation, to enforce the personal liability of its directors for
waste and misapplication of the corporate funds, may be sustained, although an adequate remedy
exists at law. Lyon v. Citizens' L.oan Ass'n of Newark., 30 N.J. Eq. 732 (1879). See, also, Lyon v.
Bower, 30 N.J. Eq. 340 (1878); Citizens' Loan Ass'n of City of Newark v. Lyon, 29 N.J. Eq. 110
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1878).

Director of corporation, who did not make slightest effort to discharge any of her responsibilities as
director, but who, if she had done so, would have readily discovered from reading annual financial
statements wrongdoing of her sons, who controlled corporation after death of their father,
corporation's principal stockholder, with respect to unlawful payments made by corporation while
it was insolvent to members of principal stockholder's family and recorded on corporate books as
"loans," and who could easily have taken effective steps to stop wrongdoing, was negligent in
performing her duties as director, resulting in loss to customers and creditors in excess of $10
million, and trustees in bankruptcy for corporation were entitled to recover that amount against
director's estate. Francis v. United Jersey Bank, 162 N.J.Super. 355, 392 A.2d 1233 (L.1978),

affirmed 171 N.J.Super. 34. 407 A.2d 1253, certification granted 82 N.J. 285, 412 A.2d 791,

affirmed 87 N J. 15. 432 A .2d 814. Bankruptcy €= 3066(4.1)

On apphcat}on for a custodial receiver of a solvent corporation and a preliminary restraint against
its officers and directors on ground of fraudulent violation of trust relationship, there must appear
imposing and persuasive proof, free from doubt, that applicants are entitled to relief requested, and
that irreparabls injury is impending. Riddle v. Mary A. Riddle Co.. 140 N.J. Eg. 315, 54 A.2d 607
(Ch.1947). Corporations € 557(5); Injunction €= 147

In stockholders' derivative suit, where charges of dereliction against directors of corporation were
substantiated, the directors were required to repay to corporation all corporate funds expended for
purpose of aiding them as individual defendants in defending the suit and for employment of counsel
to represent the corporate defendant against whom no affirmative relief was sought. Hollander v.
Breeze Corp., 131 N.J. Eq. 585, 26 A.2d 507 (Ch.1941), affirmed 131 N.J. Eq. 613.26 A.2d 522.
Corporations = 320(12)

Corporation has action against its directors for breach of directors' duty of maintaining integrity of
capital as trust fund for security of creditors as well as for benefit of corporation. Whitfield v. Kemn.

122 N.J. Eq. 332. 192 A. 48 (1937). Corporations €= 319(.5)

Minority stockholders may have relief if directors selected by majority stockholder endeavor to
improperly manage corporation's affairs in interest of other corporations. Elevator Supplies Co. v.
Wylde, 106 N.J. Eq. 163, 150 A. 347 (Ch.1930). Corporations €= 320(6)

A Court of Chancery may relieve against the operation of fraudulent action of a board of directors
of a corporation at the instance of a single stockholder in the absence of intervening rights of
innocent thir¢. parties. Merriman v. National Zinc Corporation, 82 N.J. Eq. 493, 89 A. 764
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(Ch.1914). Corporations €= 320(6)

Where the directors of a corporation, by gross negligence in the management of the corporation,
wreck it, the stockholders may sue the directors for damages without first suing to set aside
apparently valid incumbrances created through the connivance of such directors. Landis v. Sea Isle
City Hotel Co., 31 A. 755 (Ch.1895). Corporations € 320(2)

An action at law cannot be maintained against a director by an individual shareholder of a
corporation, for his individual benefit, to recover damages for malfeasance or misfeasance in the
performance of his duties in managing the corporate business. Ackerman v. Halsey, 37 N.J. Eq. 356
(Ch.1883). Corporations €= 320(6)

On a bill against corporate officers for mismanagement, where it appears that some of defendants
were in office longer than others, the respective liabilities may be adjudged in the same decree.
Ackerman v: Flalsey, 37 N.J. Eq. 356 (Ch.1883). Corporations €= 320(14)

34. ---- Parties, proceedings arising from mismanagement

Where underwriter selling corporate stock circularized customers, outlining facts in underwriter's
possession anc. suggesting that customers join in derivative suit against directors and officers of
corporation for mismanagement, the stockholders on joining in the suit to enforce their rights became
the actual and "real complainants" as against defendants' contention that the underwriter was the real
complainant. Jollander v. Breeze Corp.. 131 N.J.-Eq. 585, 26 A.2d 507 (Ch.1941), affirmed 131
N.J. Eq. 613, 26 A.2d 522. Corporations € 320(4)

In suit against clirectors for mismanagement in behalf of corporation, relief cannot be granted against
another director who was complainant and not defendant, no relief being prayed against him. Storrs
v. James Butler Grocery Co., 96 N.J. Eq. 359, 124 A. 504 (1924). Corporations €= 320(14)

An individual cannot be made a party to a suit by stockholders of a dissolved corporation against its
directors, for mismanagement of its affairs, upon allegations that, before the formation of the
corporation, he held certain assets which he promised to transfer to it, and that plaintiffs are ignorant
whether he transferred them or not, and therefore ask a discovery. Camp v. Taylor, 19 A. 968
(Ch.1890). Ccrporations €= 320(4)

As the creditors of the corporation have an interest in the proceeds of stockholders' suit against
directors for mismanagement, in order to determine in one proceeding all the questions likely to
arise, they should be made parties. Camp v. Taylor, 19 A. 968 (Ch.1890). Corporations €= 320(4)
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In anaction against directors of a corporation for misfeasance or culpable negligence in the discharge

of their official duty, the corporation, and not the stockholders, is the proper party plaintiff. Conway
v. Halsey, 44 W.J.L. 462, 28 Alb.Law J. 27 (1882)

35. ---- Pleading, proceedings arising from mismanagement

Complaint alleging-directors "negligently" permitted expiration of corporation's option, alleging no
facts showing negligence, was insufficient as against equivalent of common-law special demurrer.
Bentley v. Colgate, 9 N.J. Misc. 790, 155 A. 553 (1931). Corporations €= 360(1)

Rules applicatle to pleading negligence in personal injury cases apply equally to complaint alleging

directors negligently permitted expiration of corporation's option. Bentley v. Colgate, 9 N.J. Misc.
790, 155 A. 553 (1931). Corporations €= 360(1)

Bill seeking-injunction.or receivership, against directors allegedly paying excessive prices, borrowing
money, etc., disclosed merely matters intrusted to directors. Dvorin v. Greenberg, 106 N.J. Eq. 495,
151 A. 95 (Ch.1930). Corporations €= 320(7) .

A bill against the directors of a dissolved corporation, which alleges that they grossly mismanaged
its affairs, in that they permitted one of their number to take control of its funds and other assets and
appropriate them to his own use, and to the benefit of his individual creditors, is sufficiently definite
and certain as to the acts of mismanagement. Camp v. Taylor, 19 A, 968 (Ch.1890). Corporations €=
360(4)
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Dear Shareholder:

We invite you to attend the annual meeting of shareholders on Wednesday, May 26, 2004, in
Dallas, Texas. The meeting will begin promptly at 9:00 a.m. At the meeting, you will hear a
report on our business and have a chance to meet your directors and executives.

This booklet includes the formal notice of the meeting, the proxy statement, and financial
statements. The proxy statement tells you about the agenda, procedures, and rules of conduct
for the meeting. It also describes how the Board operates, gives personal information about
our director candidates, and provides information about the other items of business to be
conducted at the meeting.

Even if you own only a few shares, we want your shares to be represented at the meeting.
You can vote your shares by internet, toll-free telephone call, or proxy card. If you vote this
year's proxy via the internet, you can elect to access future proxy statements and annual
reports on our internet site. If you are a registered shareholder, you can choose to
discontinue receiving more than one annual report.

‘To attend the meeting in person, please follow the instructions on page 2. If you are not able
to attend, you may listen to a live audiocast of the meeting on the internet. Instructions for
listening to this audiocast will be available at our internet site, www.exxonmobil.com,
approximately one week prior to the event. A report on the meeting will be available on our
internet site.

Sincerely yours,

Yot

Lee R. Raymond
Chairman of the Board

April 14, 2004

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF EXXON MOBIL CORPORATION

Time:
Doors open: 8:00 a.m., Central Daylight Time
Meeting begins:  9:00 a.m., Central Daylight Time
Date:
Wednesday, May 26, 2004
Place:
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Morton H. Meyerson Symphony Center
2301 Flora Street
Dallas, Texas 75201

Purpose:
* Elect directors
+ Ratify appointment of independent auditors
* Approve the 2004 Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Plan
* Vote on § shareholder proposals
» Conduct other business if properly raised

Only shareholders of record on April 5, 2004, or their proxy holders may
vote at the meeting. Attendance at the meeting is limited to shareholders
or their proxy holders and ExxonMobil guests. Guests are not permitted

to speak at the meeting.

Your vote is important. Please vote your shares promptly. To vote
your shares, use the internet; or call the toll-free telephone number
as described in the instructions on your proxy card; or complete,
sign, date, and return your proxy card.

Patrick T. Mulva
Secretary

April 14, 2004
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GENERAL INFORMATION
Who May Vote

Shareholders of ExxonMobil, as recorded in our stock register on April 5, 2004, may vote at the
meeting.

How to Vote

You may vote in person at the meeting or by proxy. We recommend you vote by proxy even if you plan

to attend the meeting. You can always change your vote at the meeting.

How Proxies Work

ExxonMobil's Board of Directors is asking for your proxy. Giving us your proxy means you authorize us
to vote your shares at the meeting in the manner you direct. You may vote for all, some, or none of our

director candidates. You may also vote for or against the other proposals, or abstain from voting.

If your shares are held in your name, you can vote by proxy in one of three convenient ways:
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Via internet: Go to www.eproxyvote.com/xom and follow the instructions. You will need to have
your proxy card in hand. At this internet site, you can elect to access future proxy statements and
annual reports via the internet.

. By telephone: Call toll-free 1-877-779-8683 (within the continental U.S. and Canada) or 1-201-536-
8073 (outsicle the continental U.S. and Canada), and follow the instructions. You will need to have -
your proxy card in hand.

In writing: Complete, sign, date, and return your proxy card in the enclosed envelope.

Your proxy card covers all shares registered in your name and shares held in your Shareholder
Investment Program (SIP) account. If you own shares in the ExxonMobil Savings Plan for employees
and retirees, your proxy card also covers those shares.

If you give us your signed proxy but do not-specify how to vote, we will vote your shares in favor of our
director candidates; in favor of the ratification of the appointment of independent auditors; in favor of
the 2004 Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Plan; and against the shareholder proposals.

If you hold shares through someone else, such as a stockbroker, you will receive material from that firm
asking how you want to vote. Check the voting form used by that firm to see if it offers internet or
telephone voting.

Voting Shares in the ExxonMobil Savings Plan

The trustee of the ExxonMobil Savings Plan will vote Plan shares as participants direct. To the extent
participants do not give instructions, the trustee will vote shares as it thinks best. The proxy card also
serves to give voting instructions to the trustee.

Revoking a Proxy

You may revoke your proxy before it is voted by:
d Submitting a new proxy with a later date, including a proxy given via the internet or by telephone;
Notifying ExxonMobil's Secretary in writing before the meeting; or

Voting in person at the meeting.

Confidential Voting

Independent inspectors count the votes. Your individual vote is kept confidential from us unless special
circumstances exist. For example, a copy of your proxy card will be sent to us if you write comments on
the card.

Quorum
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In order to carry on the business of the meeting, we must have a quorum. This means at least a majority
of the outstanding shares eligible to vote must be represented at the meeting, either by proxy or in
person. Treasury shares, which are shares owned by ExxonMobil itself, are not voted and do not count
for this purpose. '

Yotes Needed

The director candidates who receive the most votes will be elected to fill the available seats on the
Board. Approval of the other proposals requires the favorable vote of a majority of the votes cast. Only
votes for or against a proposal count. Abstentions and broker non-votes count for quorum purposes but
not for voting purposes. Broker non-votes occur when a broker returns a proxy but does not have
authority to vote cn a particular proposal.

Attending in Person

Only shareholders or their proxy holders and ExxonMobil's guests may attend the meeting. For safety
and security reascns, no cameras, audio or video recording equipment, large bags, briefcases or
packages will be permitted in the meeting. In addition, each shareholder and guest will be asked to
present a valid government-issued picture identification, such as a driver's license, before being admitted
to the meeting.

For registered shareholders, an admission ticket is attached to your proxy card. Please bring the
admission ticket with you to the meeting.

If your shares are held in the name of your broker, bank, or other nominee, you must bring to the
meeting an account statement or letter from the nominee indicating that you beneficially owned the
shares on April 5, 2004, the record date for voting. You may receive an admission ticket in advance by
sending a written request with proof of ownership to the address listed under "Contact Information” on
page 3.

Shareholders who do not present admission tickets at the meeting will be admitted only upon
verification of ownership at the admissions counter.

2

Conduct of the Meeting

The Chairman has broad authority to conduct the annual meeting in an orderly and timely manner. This
authority includes establishing rules for shareholders who wish to address the meeting. Copies of these
rules will be available at the meeting. The Chairman may also exercise broad discretion in recognizing
shareholders whc wish to speak and in determining the extent of discussion on each item of business. In
light of the number of business items on this year's agenda and the need to conclude the meeting within
a reasonable period of time, we cannot assure that every shareholder who wishes to speak on an item of
business will be able to do so. The Chairman may also rely on applicable law regarding disruptions or
disorderly conduct to ensure that the meeting is conducted in a manner that is fair to all shareholders.
Shareholders making comments during the meeting must do so in English so that the majority of
shareholders present can understand what is being said.
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Contact Information
If you have questions or need more information about the annual meeting, write to:

Secretary

Exxon Mobil Corporation
5959 Las Colinas Boulevard
Irving, TX 75039-2298

or call us at (972) 444-1157.

For information about shares registered in your name or your Shareholder Investment Program account,
call ExxonMobil Shareholder Services at 1-800-252-1800 or access your account via the internet at
www.equiserve.com. We also invite you to visit ExxonMobil's internet site at www.exxonmobil.com. -
Internet site materials are not part of this proxy solicitation.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Board of Directors

The Board of Dirzctors and its committees perform a number of functlons for ExxonMobil and its
shareholders, including: :

Overseeing the management of the Company on your behalf;

Reviewing ExxonMobil's long-term strategic plans;

Exercising direct decision-making authority in key areas, such as declaring d1v1dends
Selecting the CEO and evaluating the CEO's performance; and

Reviewing development and succession plans for ExxonMobil's top executives.

Corporate Governance Guidelines

The Board has acopted Corporate Governance Guidelines that govern the structure and functioning of
the Board and set out the Board's policies on a number of governance issues. A current copy of our
Corporate Goverance Guidelines is included as Appendix C to this proxy statement. The Guidelines are
posted on the Corporate Governance section, listed under Investor Information, of our internet site at
www.exxonmobil.com. They are also available to any shareholder on request to the Secretary at the
address given under "Contact Information" above.

Director Independence

Our Corporate Governance Guidelines require that a substantial majority of the Board consist of
independent directors. In general, the Guidelines require that an independent director must have no
material relationship with ExxonMobil, directly or indirectly, except as a director. The Board determines
independence on the basis of the standards specified by the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) and
other facts and circumstances the Board considers relevant.
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Subject to some exceptions and transition provisions, the NYSE standards generally provide that a
director will not be: independent if (1) the director or a member of the director's immediate family is, or
in the past three years has been, an executive officer of ExxonMobil; (2) the director or a member of the
director's immediate family has received more than $100,000 per year in direct compensation from
ExxonMobil other than for service as a director; (3) the director or a member of the director's immediate
family is, or in the past three years has been, employed in a professional capacity by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our independent auditors; (4) the director or a member of the director's
immediate family is, or in the past three years has been, employed as an executive officer of a company
where an ExxonMobil executive officer serves on the compensation committee; or (5) the director or a
member of the director's immediate family is an executive officer of a company that makes payments to,
or receives payments from, ExxonMobil in an amount which, in any twelve-month period during the
past three years, exceeds the greater of $1 million or two percent of that other company's consolidated
gross revenues.

The Board has reviewed business and charitable relationships between ExxonMobil and each non-
employee director to determine compliance with the NYSE standards described above and to evaluate
whether there are any other facts or circumstances that might impair a director's independence. Based on
that review, our Board has determined that all our non-employee directors are independent.

Term of Office; Mandatory Retirement

All ExxonMobil dlirectors.stand for election at the annual meeting. Non-employee directors cannot stand
for election after they have reached age 70.

Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board met 10 times in 2003. ExxonMobil's directors, on average, attended approximately
98 percent of Board and committee meetings during 2003.

Executive Sessions

ExxonMobil's non-employee directors held seven executive sessions in 2003. Normally, the Chair of the
Board Affairs Committee and the Chair of the Compensation Committee preside at executive sessions
on a rotational basis, but the non-employee directors may, in light of the subject matter under discussion,
select another presiding director for a particular session.

4

Annual Meeting Attendance

As specified in our Corporate Governance Guidelines, it is ExxonMobil's policy that directors should
make every effort to attend the annual meeting of shareholders. All directors attended last year's
meeting.

Code of Ethics and Business Conduct

The Board maintains policies and procedures (which we refer to in this proxy statement as our Code)
that represent both the code of ethics for the principal executive officer, principal financial officer, and
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principal accounting officer under SEC rules, and the code of business conduct and ethics for directors,
officers, and employees under NYSE listing standards. The Code applies to all directors, officers, and
employees. The Code is attached as Appendix I to this proxy statement.

The Code is posted on our internet site and is available free of charge on request to the Secretary at the
address given under "Contact Information" on page 3. The Code is also filed as an exhibit to our Annual
Report on Form 10-K. Any amendment of the Code wiil be promptly posted on our internet site.

The Board Affairs Committee will review any issues under the Code involving an executive officer or
director and will report its findings to the Board. The Board does not envision that any waivers of the
Code will be granted, but should a waiver occur for an executive officer or director, it will also be
promptly disclosed on our internet site.

Director Selection

The Board Affairs Committee has adopted Guidelines for the Selection of Non-Employee Directors that
describe the qualifications the Committee looks for in director candidates. The current Guidelines are
included as Appendix D to this proxy statement. The Guidelines are also posted on our internet site and
are available free of charge on request to the Secretary at the address given under "Contact Information”
on page 3.

The Committee-identifies director candidates primarily through recommendations made by the non-
employee directors. These recommendations are developed based on the directors’ own knowledge and
experience in a variety of fields, and research conducted by ExxonMobil staff at the Committee's
direction. The Committee also cons1ders recommendations made by the employee directors,
shareholders, and others, including search firms. The Committee has the authority to engage consultants
" 10 help identify or evaluate potential director nominees but has not done so recently.

All recommendations, regardless of the source, are evaluated on the same basis against the criteria
contained in the Cuidelines.

Shareholders may send recommendations for director candidates to the Secretary at the address given
under "Contact Information” on page 3. A submission recommending a candidate should include:

Sufficient tiographical information to allow the Committee to evaluate the candidate in light of
the Guidelines;

Information concerning any relationships between the candidate and the shareholder
recommencling the candidate; and

Material indicating the willingness of the candidate to serve if nominated and elected.
Communication; with Directors

The Board Affairs Committee has approved procedures for shareholders and other interested persons to
send communications to individual directors or the non-employee directors as a group.

Written communications. Written correspondence should be addressed to the director or directors in care of
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the Secretary at the address given under "Contact Information" on page 3. All correspondence will be
forwarded to the intended recipient and to the Chair of the Board Affairs Committee. A log of all
correspondence addressed to the directors will also be kept for periodic review by the Board Affairs
Committee and any other interested director.

Electronic communications. You may also send email to individual non-employee directors or the non-
employee directors as a group by using the form provided for that purpose on our internet site. These
communications are sent directly to the specified director's electronic mailbox. Email can be viewed by
staff of the Office of the Secretary but can only be deleted by the director to whom it is addressed.

More information about our procedures for handling communications to non-employee directors is -
posted on our internet site.

Additional Information

The Corporate Governance section of our internet site contains additional information, including our
Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws; written charters for each Board committee; and Board policy
statements. :

6

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
(Item 1 on the proxy card)

The Board of Directors has nominated the director candidates named on the following pages. Personal
information on each of our nominees is also provided. Effective March 1, 2004, Mr. Rex W. Tillerson
was elected as President and Director. All of our nominees currently serve as ExxonMobil directors.
Mr. Donald V. Fites and Mrs. Helene L. Kaplan have reached the age of mandatory retirement and are
not standing for election.

If a director nominee becomes unavailable before the election, your proxy authorizes the people named
as proxies to vote for a replacement nominee if the Board names one.

The Board recornmends you vote FOR each of the following candidates:

Michael J. Boskin  T. M. Friedman Professor of Economics, and Senior Fellow,
Hoover Institution, Stanford University. Holds bachelor's,
master's, and Ph.D. degrees in economics, Joined Stanford
University in 1970. Adjunct Scholar, American Enterprise
Institute; Research Associate, National Bureau of Economic
Research. Director, First Health Group Corporation; Oracle
Corporation; Vodafone Group PLC. Chairman, Congressional
Advisory Commission on the Consumer Price Index, 1995-96;
Council of Economic Advisors, 1989-93. Member, Commerce
Department, Advisory Committee on the National Income and
Product Accounts; Panel of Advisors to the Congressional
Budget Office. Dr. Boskin is the recipient of numerous
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Age 58
Director since 1996
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professional awards.

James R. Houghton

Age 68
Director since 1994

Chairman of the Board and CEO, Coming Incorporated.
Holds bachelor of arts and master of business administration
degrees. Joined Corning, a communications, advanced
materials, and display products company, in 1962. Held a
variety of management positions. Elected Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer of Corning in 1983.
Retired in 1996. Elected Chairman of the Board in June 2001.
Resumed his role as Chairman and CEO in April 2002.
Director, Corning Incorporated; MetLife, Inc. Trustee,
Corning Museum of Glass; The Metropolitan Museum of Art;
The Pierpont Morgan Library. Member, The Business
Council; Council on Foreign Relations; Harvard Corporation.

~ William R. Howell

Age 68
Director since 1982

Chairman Emeritus, J.C. Penney Company, Inc. Holds
bachelor of business administration degree. Joined J.C.
Penney, a department store and catalog chain, in 1958. Held a
variety of management positions. Elected Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer in 1983. Retired as
Chairman of the Board in 1997. Director, American Electric
Power Company, Inc.; Halliburton Co.; Pfizer Inc.; The
Williams Companies, Inc. Mr. Howell is also a Director of
Deutsche Bank Trust Corporation and Deutsche Bank Trust
Company Americas, non-public wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Deutsche Bank AG; and Viseon, Inc., where he will not stand
for re-election to the board in 2004.

Reatha Clark King

Former Chairman, Board of Trustees, General Mills
Foundation, the philanthropic foundation of General

Mills, Inc., a manufacturer and marketer of consumer food
products. Holds bachelor of science degree in chemistry and
mathematics, master of science degree in chemistry, master of
business administration degree in finance management, and
Ph.D. degree in thermochemistry. Prior to joining the General
Mills Foundation in 1988, Dr. King held a variety of scientific
and educational positions, including Research Chemist,
National Bureau of Standards; Chemistry Professor, Associate
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Dean for Division of Natural Science & Mathematics, and
Age 66 Associate Dean for Academic Affairs, York College, City
Director since 1997  University of New York; President, Metropolitan State

' University. Director, Minnesota Mutual Companies, Inc.;

Wells Fargo & Company; Department 56, Inc.; International

Trachoma Initiative. Trustee, Clark Atlanta University;

Congressional Black Caucus Foundation. Life Trustee,

University of Chicago. Dr. King is the recipient of numerous

awards, including 14 honorary doctorate degrees.

Philip E. Lippincott Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Scott Paper

. Company. Retired Chairman of the Board, Campbell Soup
Company, a global manufacturer and marketer of branded
convenience food products. Holds bachelor of arts and master
of business administration degrees. Joined Scott Paper, a
company involved in sanitary paper, printing and publishing
papers, and forestry operations, in 1959. Held a variety of
management positions. Elected Director in 1978, Chief
Executive Officer in 1982 and Chairman in 1983, Retired in
1994. Director, Campbell Soup Company. Retired Chairman
of the Board and Life Director, Fox Chase Cancer Center.
Age 68 Trustee, The Penn Mutual Life Insurance Company. Member,
Director since 1986  The Business Council.

Harry J. Longwell  Executive Vice President, Exxon Mobil Corporation. Holds
bachelor's degree in petroleum engineering. Principal
responsibilities include the Corporation's worldwide upstream
oil and gas activities; Imperial Qil Limited; aviation; corporate
planning; public affairs; and human resources. Since joining
the ExxonMobil organization in 1963, Mr. Longwell has held
a variety of management positions in domestic and foreign
operations, including Vice President-Production and
President, Exxon Company, U.S.A.; Vice President, Esso
Europe Inc.; Senior Vice President-Upstream and Executive
Vice President, Exxon Company, International. Elected Senior
Age 62 Vice President and Director of Exxon in 1995, Executive Vice
Director since 16995  President and Director of ExxonMobil in 2001. Director,
National Action Council for Minorities in Engineering.
Chairman of Board of Trustees, University of Dallas.
Member, Board of Visitors, University of Texas M.D.
Anderson Cancer Center; Advisory Board, Dallas Area
Habitat for Humanity.
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Henry A. McKinnell, Chairman and Chief Executiife Officer, Pfizer Inc. Holds a

Jr.

Age 61
Director since 2002

bachelor's degree in business, master of business
administration and Ph.D. degrees in business. Joined Pfizer, a
pharmaceutical company, in 1971. Became Executive Vice
President in 1992, and President and Chief Operating Officer
in 1999, Elected Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer in 2001. Chairman, Stanford University Graduate
School of Business Advisory Council. Director, Pfizer Inc.;
Moody's Corporation; John Wiley & Sons, Inc.; The Business
Council. Chairman, The Business Roundtable. Fellow, New
York Academy of Medicine. Member, M.I.T. Corporation;

.Board of Trustees, New York City Public Library, New York

City Police Foundation.

Marilyn Carlson
Nelson

Age 64
Director since 1921

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Carlson Companies.
Co-Chair and Co-CEO, Carlson Holdings, Inc. Holds
bachelor's degree in international economics. Since joining
Carlson Companies, a travel, hotel, restaurant and marketing
services company, in 1968, Mrs. Nelson has held a number of
management positions, including Director, Senior Vice
President, and Vice Chair. Director, Carlson Companies;
Mayo Clinic Foundation. Chair, National Women's Business
Council. Past National Chair, Travel Industry Association of
America. Member, International Business Council of the
World Economic Forum; World Travel and Tourism Council.
Board of Overseers, Curtis L. Carlson School of Management,
University of Minnesota. Mrs. Nelson is the recipient of
numerous awards, including three honorary doctorate degrees.
She was named 2002 Minnesotan of the year.

a4

Lee R. Raymond

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, Exxon
Mobil Corporation. Holds bachelor's and Ph.D. degrees in
chemical engineering. Since joining the ExxonMobil
organization in 1963, Mr. Raymond has held a variety of
management positions in domestic and foreign operations,
including Exxon Company, U.S.A.; Creole Petroleum
Corporation; Exxon Company, International; Exxon
Enterprises; Esso Inter-America, Inc. Elected Senior Vice
President and Director of Exxon in 1984, President in 1987,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in 1993, and added

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/34088/000104746904011934/a2130444zdef14a.h... 2/15/2005




title of President in 1996. Director, J.P. Morgan Chase & Co.;
Age 65 United Negro College Fund; American Petroleum Institute.
Director since 1984  Trustee and Vice Chairman, American Enterprise Institute.
Trustee, Wisconsin Alumni Research Foundation. Member,
The Business Council; The Business Roundtable; Council on
Foreign Relations; Emergency Committee for American
Trade; National Academy of Engineering; National Petroleum
Council; President's Export Council; Secretary of Energy
Advisory Board; Singapore-U.S. Business Council; Trilateral
Commission; University of Wisconsin Foundation.

Walter V. Shipley  Retired Chairman of the Board, The Chase Manhattan
Corporation and The Chase Manhattan Bank, a banking and
finance company. Holds bachelor of science degree. Joined
Chase Bank in 1956. Held a variety of management positions.
Director, Verizon Communications; Wyeth. Director,
Goodwill Industries of Greater New York & Northern New
Jersey, Inc. Chairman, The Wallace Foundation. Trustee,
American Museum of Natural History. Member, American
Academy of Arts & Sciences; The Business Council.

Age 68
Director since 1998

Rex W. Tillersomn President, Exxon Mobil Corporation. Holds bachelor of
science degree in civil engineering. Since joining the
ExxonMobil organization in 1975, Mr. Tillerson has held a
variety of management positions in domestic and foreign
. operations, including President, Exxon Yemen Inc. and Esso
Exploration and Production Khorat Inc.; Vice President,
Exxon Ventures (CIS) Inc.; President, Exxon Neftegas
Limited; Executive Vice President, ExxonMobil Development
Company. Elected Senior Vice President of ExxonMobil in
2001, President and Director in 2004. Director, U.S.-Russia
Business Council. Member, Engineering Foundation Advisory
Age 51 Council for the University of Texas at Austin; Society of
Director since 2004  Petroleum Engineers; American Petroleum Institute;
: Executive Board of the Circle Ten Council, Boy Scouts of
America.

10

Director Relationships
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ExxonMobil and its affiliates have business relationships in the ordinary course of business with
companies for which our non-employee dlrectors serve as executives, but these relationships are not
material by any reasonable standard.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

The table below shows the total compensation paid in 2003 to each of our current non-employee
directors.

Annual Base Committee Restricted Stock

Director Fee (8) Fees ($) Awards* ($) Total (3)

Dr. Boskin 75,000 38,000 85,128 198,128
Mr. Fites 75,000 24,000 85,128 184,128
Mr. Houghton 75,000 48,000 85,128 208,128
Mr. Howell 75,000 48,000 85,128 208,128
Mrs. Kaplan 75,000 31,000 85,128 191,128
Dr. King 75,000 38,000 85,128 198,128
Mr. Lippincott 75,000 31,000 85,128 191,128
Dr. McKinnzll 75,000 31,000 85,128 191,128
Mrs. Nelson 75,000 38,000 85,128 198,128
Mr. Shipley ) 75,000 24,000 85,128 184,128

* The value shown is the number of restricted shares granted in 2003 (2,400 shares) times the

closing price of ExxonMobil stock on the day of grant. The total annual restricted stock
grant for 2004 will be increased to 4,000 shares if the 2004 Non-Employee Director
Restricted Stock Plan is approved by shareholders (see page 28).

ExxonMobil emrployees receive no extra pay for serving as directors. Non-employee directors receive
compensation coinsisting of cash and restricted stock. The base fee is $75,000 a year. We also pay
members of the Audit and Compensation Committees a fee of $15,000 per year, and an additional fee of
$10,000 per year to the Chairs of those Committees. For other Committees, non-employee directors
receive $8,000 per year for each Committee on which they serve, and the Chairs receive an additional
fee of $7,000 per year. No fees are paid to members of the Executive Committee. Non-employee
directors are reimbursed for actual expenses to attend meetings.

Non-employee directors may elect to defer all or part of these fees either into ExxonMobil stock
equivalents with dividends or into a deferred account that earns interest at the prime rate. Deferred fees
are payable in one to five annual installments after the director leaves the Board.

In addition to the fees described above, we pay a significant portion of director compensation in stock.
At the beginning of 2003, each incumbent non-employee director received 2,400 shares of restricted
stock under ExxonMobil's 1997 Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Plan. While on the Board, the
non-employee director receives the same cash dividends on restricted

11

shares as a holder of regular common stock, but the director is not allowed to sell the shares. The
restricted shares can be forfeited if the director leaves the Board early.
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No further grants may be made under the 1997 Plan. Subject to shareholder approval at the annual
meeting, future restricted stock awards to the non-employee directors will be made under the new 2004
Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Plan described on page 28.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board appoints committees to help carry out its duties. In particular, Board committees work on key
issues in greater detail than would be possible at full Board meetings. Only non-employee directors may
serve on the Audit, Compensation, Board Affairs, Contributions, and Public Issues Committees. Each
Committee has a written charter. The charters are posted on our internet site and are available free of
charge on request to the Secretary at the address given under "Contact Information" on page 3. Charters
of key committees are also included with this proxy statement.

The table below shows the current membership of each Board Commlttee and the number of meetings
each Committee held in 2003.

Board Public

Director Audit Compensation Affairs  Contributions Finance Issues Executive(2)
Dr. Boskin X X* X
Mr. Fites X X X
Mr. Houghton . X* X X X
Mr. Howell X X X - X
Mrs. Kaplan X X X
Dr. King X X X
Mr. Lippincott X X X* X
Dr. McKinnell X X X
Mrs. Nelson X X* X X
Mr. Raymond X* X*
Mr. Shipley X X X
2003 Meetings 11 oM 8 2 13 1
* Chair
(€3] Committee also acted once by written consent in 2003,
2) Other directors serve as allernate members on a rotationa) basis.
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Audit Committee

Mr. Houghton (Chair)
Mr. Howell

Mrs. Kaplan

Dr. King

Mrs. Nelson

The Audit Committee met 11 times during 2003, The Committee oversees accounting and internal
control matters. [ts responsibilities include appointing the independent auditors to audit ExxonMobil's
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financial statements. The Committee's report on its activities for the fiscal year 2003 is on page 26. Fees
paid to the independent auditors.are provided on page 27 and a description of the Committee's policy
and procedure for pre-approving those fees is provided in Appendix F. The Committee's charter is
attached as Appendix E to this proxy statement.

The Board has determined that all members of the Committee are independent within the meaning of
both SEC rules and NYSE listing standards. The Board has further determined that all members are
financially literate within the meaning of the NYSE standards, and Mr. Houghton, Mr. Howell, and
Mrs. Nelson are "eudit committee financial experts” as defined in SEC rules.

Compensation Committee

Mr. Howell (Chair)
Dr. Boskin

Mr. Houghton

Dr. King

Dr. M:Kinnell

The Compensation Committee met nine times and acted by written consent one time during 2003. The
Committee oversees compensation for ExxonMobil's senior executives, including salary, bonus, and
incentive awards. The Committee also reviews succession plans for key executive positions. The
Committee's report on exécutive compensation starts on page 17. The Board has determined that all
members of the Compensation Committee are independent within the meaning of the NYSE listing
standards. The Committee's charter is attached as Appendix G to this proxy statement.
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Board Affairs Committee

Mrs. NWelson (Chair)
Mr. Fites ~
Mr. Howell

Mr. Lippincott

Dr. McKinnell

Mr. Shipley

The Board Affairs Committee met eight times during 2003. The Committee recommends director
candidates; reviews non-employee director compensation; and reviews other corporate governance
practices, including the Corporate Governance Guidelines attached as Appendix C to this proxy
statement. The Board has determined that all members of the Board Affairs Committee are independent
within the meaning of the NYSE listing standards. The Committee's charter is attached as Appendix H
to this proxy statzment. :

Advisory Comniittee on Contributions

Dr. Boskin (Chair)
Mrs. Kaplan
Dr. King
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Mr. Lippincott
Mrs. Nelson

The Advisory Committee on Contributions met two times during 2003. The Committee reviews the
level of ExxonMobil's support for education and other public service programs, including the
Company's contributions to the ExxonMobil Foundation. The Foundation works to improve the quality
of education in America at all levels, with special emphasis on math and science. The Foundation also
supports the Company's other cultural and public service giving. The Board has determined that all
members of the Advisory Committee on Contributions are independent within the meaning of the NYSE
listing standards.

Finance Committee

Mr. Razymond (Chair)
Dr. Boskin

Mr. Fites

Mr. Houghton

Dr. McKinnell

Mr. Shipley

The Finance Committee met one time and acted by written consent one time during 2003. The
Committee revievs ExxonMobil's financial policies and strategies, including our capital structure, and
authorizes corporate debt within limits set by the Board.
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Public Issues Committee

Mr. Lippincott (Chair)

Mr. TFites
Mrs. Kaplan
Mr. Shipley

The Public Issues Committee met three times during 2003. The Committee reviews ExxonMobil's
policies and practices on relevant public issues, including their effects on safety, health, and the
environment. The Committee hears reports from operating units on safety and environmental activities.
The Committee also visits operating sites to observe and comment on current operating practices. The
Board has determined that all members of the Public Issues Committee are independent within the
meaning of the NYSE listing standards.

Executive Committee

Mr. Raymond (Chair)

Mr. Houghton
Mr. Howell
Mr. Lippincott
Mrs. Nelson
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Other directors serve as alternate members on a rotational basis.

The Executive Committee met one time during 2003. The Committee has broad power to act on behalf
of the Board. In practice, the Committee meets only when it is impractical to call a meeting of the full
Board.

15

DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE OFFICER STOCK OWNERSHIP

These tables show how much ExxonMobil common stock each executive named in the Summary
Compensation Table on page 21 and each non-employee director and nominee owned on February 29,
2004. In these tables, ownership means the right to direct the voting or the sale of shares, even if those
rights are shared with someone else. None of these individuals owns more than 0.13 percent of the
outstanding shares.

Shares

Covered by
) Shares Exercisable
Named Executive Officer Owned Options*
Lee R. Raymond ) 2,547,105(H 6,150,000
Harry J. Longwell 837,970 3,100,000
Edward G. Galante ' . 302,3793) 622,080
Rex W. Tillerson 288,7304) 602,688
Jon L. Thompson 432,996(5) 1,054,080
¢)) Includes 312 shares owned by spouse.
(2)  Includes 107 shares owned by spouse and 82,250 shares jointly owned with spouse.
(3)  Includes 2,250 shares owned by dependent child.
4) Includes 1,000 shares owned by dependent child.
(5) Includes 2,031 shares owned by spouse.
*Includes options that will become exercisable within 60 days.
Shares
Non-Employee Director/Nominee Owned*
Michael J. Boskin 30,700
Donald V. Fites 29,570
James R. Houghton 39,3000
William R. Howell 37,1002
Helene L. Kaplan 44,822
Reatha Clark King ‘ 32,3041)
Philip E. Lippincott 40,300
Henry A. McKinnell, Jr. 22,800
Marilyn Carlson Nelson 53,2284
Walter V. Shipley 30,940

) Includes 5,000 shares owned by spouse.
(2)  Includes 5,400 restricted shares held as constructive trustee for former spouse.
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‘(3)  Includes 1,000 shares owned by spouse.
@ Includes 18,5238 shares held as co-trustee of family trusts.

*The non-employee d:rectors are not granted ExxonMobil stock options.

On February 29, 2004, ExxonMobil's directors and executive officers (27 people) together owned
7,349,213 shares of ExxonMobil stock and 18,775,392 shares covered by exercisable options,
representing about 0.40 percent of the outstanding shares.

16

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT
Overview

The compensation program of ExxonMobil is an integral part of our strategy for achieving high levels of
business performance over the long term. Specifically, several business and operating factors require
continuous and substantial investment in executive talent. They include the complexity, size, and global
reach of the Company; the long investment lead times in the industry; and the highly technical nature of
the business. For these reasons, we must retain the best talent for a full career and continuously grow
their experience and capability. Executives must also remain strongly aligned with shareholder interests
throughout their careers, which include frequently changing business and economic cycles.

The compensation system helps achieve these objectives. Requirements of the system include constancy
of purpose in how it is developed, a program that rewards results, a career-oriented approach, and
substantial ownership of stock by senior executives who influence the long-term direction of the
Company. These underlying fundamentals reflect a long-standing strategy at ExxonMobil, which has
proven successful. This success is measured in the retention of superior talent and their achievement of
sustainable, competitive advantage.

Alignment with ¢hareholder interests is underscored by current stock ownership among senior
executives, which ranges from 16 to 32 times base salary for the five highest-paid officers, and from 12
to 20 times for the other officers of the Company. These levels of ownership far exceed the common
practice across industries in the U.S., and they reflect a significant personal investment in the Company
by the same executives responsible for determining the future success of the organization and the return
to shareholders.

Background

The Compensation Committee approves all compensation paid or awarded to senior executives. The
Committee is made up solely of non-employee directors who do not participate in any of the
compensation plans they administer. In addition, the Committee relies on the expertise of an external
consultant, with whom we meet annually to gain insight into compensation trends and issues. The
consultant also provides a perspective on the structure and competitive standing of the ExxonMobil
compensation program for executives.

Our executive compensation program is comprised of the following three main components:
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* Competitive base salaries
d Short term rewards
. Long term incentives

All three of these major components are described on the following pages in more detail.

17

Competitive Bas: Salaries

The competition for executives extends beyond the oil industry. Therefore, we compare our salary
structure with U.5.-based multinational companies and domestic, integrated oil companies. Because
ExxonMobil is significantly larger and more diverse than most of the other comparison companies, we
do not target an exact percentile at which to align salaries. We focus on a broader and more flexible
target, generally ebove the 50th percentile. This allows us to respond better to changing business
conditions, manage salaries more evenly over a career, and minimize the potential for automatic
ratcheting-up of salaries, which could result from linking salary alignment to an inflexible and narrow
target. This orientation also provides more flexibility to differentiate salaries for a range of experience
and performance levels among executives.

Within the competitive orientation described, executive salaries are based on business performance;
general economic factors; and individual levels of responsibility, performance, and experience. This
approach applies uniformly throughout the Company for all employees and determines how the
Committee sets the salaries for the CEO and other senior executives.

Short Term Rewards

The size of individual, annual awards under this program is highly dependent on the financial
performance and operating results of the Company each. year. It is expected that short-term awards may
vary significantly year-over-year, versus other forms of compensation. The objective is to give
executives a stroiag incentive to maintain focus on continuous improvement of results and meeting
shareholder expectations. In addition, this element of the compensation program provides emphasis on
short-term milestones against which we measure progress toward strategic goals.

Short term incentive awards consist of cash bonuses and earnings bonus units. See page 22 for a
description of the terms of earnings bonus units. We grant cash bonuses to executives to reward their
contributions to the business during the past year. We grant earnings bonus units as incentives for
strong, mid-term corporate performance. Earnings bonus units help stress that decisions and
contributions in any year affect future years. In 2003, approximately one-half of executive short-term
awards were in the form of earnings bonus units. Cumulative earnings of $3.00 per share are required
for each earnings bonus unit granted in 2003 to pay out, which is the same level for awards granted in
2002.

Each year, the Committee establishes a ceiling for cash bonuses and earnings bonus units. The combined
ceiling for 2003 was $168 million. This ceiling was increased from the 2002 level by about 45 percent.
In reaching this decision, the Committee considered several factors. These included the record-setting
financial performance of the Company in 2003, demonstrated by an 87 percent increase in net income
over 2002; continued strengthening of our worldwide competitive position; and progress toward long-
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range strategic goals, which include performance objectives in the areas of environment, safety, and
health. The Committee does not give specific

18

weights to these measures, nor is a particular formula applied. The entire amount was granted in awards
to approximately 1,200 employees.

Once the level of the bonus ceiling is determined based on the performance considerations described, the
bonus received by each executive varies depending on individual performance and level of
responsibility. To determine individual performance, each year the Company conducts a rigorous
assessment of individual contributions. The assessment considers many factors, including business
results, applied technical expertise, and leadership. These individual performance assessments are also
applied in differentiating salary increases and the long term incentive awards described below.

Long Term Incentives

The petroleum business requires long-term, capital-intensive investments. These investments often take
many years to generate returns to shareholders. The long-term incentive program is intended to
underscore the heed for executives to maintain a focus on the strategic goals of the business. It balances
the emphasis on long and short-tefm business objectives and reinforces that one should not be achieved
at the expense of the other. Long term incentive awards are also intended to develop and retain strong
management through share ownership and recognition of future performancé. Long term incentives have
less year-to-year variability due to these design considerations and the nature of the business as
described.

Last year was the second year in which restricted stock was used in place of stock options as the vehicle
for long term incentive awards. The Committee concluded that restricted stock is more effective at this
time in meeting the objectives of retention and shareholder expectations. The total number of shares
granted under this approach is substantially less than the number that would be required under an option
program designed to deliver equivalent levels of compensation.

In administering the long-term program, we are sensitive to the potential for dilution of future earnings
per share. For this reason and other compensation design considerations, we do not run a broad-based
stock program. Instead, we have always focused the majority of the program on employees who will
have the greatest impact on the strategic direction and long-term results of the Company by virtue of
their roles. Restricted stock awards were granted to executive officers and just over 5,000 other select
employees in 2003, or about five percent of total employees. The resulting level of share utilization in
the incentive program is substantially less than most other large, multinational companies of similar
scope and size. For senior executives, the restrictions on 50 percent of the shares are lifted in five years,
and the remaining 50 percent are lifted after 10 years or retirement, whichever is later. These vesting
provisions are among the longest of awards by comparable companies in multiple industries. They help
achieve the long-term objectives of the program and ownership levels described above. See page 21 for
more information on restricted stock.

Restricted stock awards must be sufficient in size to provide a strong, long-term incentive for executives
and to increase their vested interest in the business. The number of restricted shares

19
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granted to executive officers is based on individual performance and level of responsibility. For this
purpose, the Cominittee measures individual and Company performance the same as described for short
term awards. The number of shares held by an executive is not a factor in determining subsequent
grants.

CEO Compensation

Within the framevvork described above, the Committee determines the salary and bonus of the CEO
based on his leadership, the execution of business plans, and strategic results. The size and complexity
of the business and his experience are also key factors. The Committee does not use narrow, quantitative
measures or formulas in determining the CEO's compensation.

The restricted stock granted to Mr. Raymond recognizes his outstanding leadership of the business,
continued strengthening of our worldwide competitive position, and continuing progress toward
achieving long-range strategic goals. The restrictions on 50 percent of the shares will be lifted in five
years and the remaining 50 percent will be lifted after 10 years. These restrictions are not accelerated
upon retirement. ’

The Committee bzlieves his total compensation is appropriately positioned relative to CEOs of U.S.-
based, integrated oil companies and other major U.S.-based corporations.

U.S. Income Tax Limits on Deductibility

U.S. income tax law limits the amount ExxonMobil can deduct for compensation paid to the CEO and
the other four most highly paid executives. Performance-based compensation that meets Internal
Revenue Service requirements is not subject to this limit. The short term awards and restricted stock
grants described above are designed to meet these requirements so that ExxonMobil can continue to
deduct the related expenses. Specifically, the shareholders have approved the material terms of
performance goals for awards to the top executives. These material terms limit short term and long term
awards to these executives to 0.2 and 0.5 percent of operating net income respectively. Actual award
levels have been significantly less based on the factors and judgments described in the preceding
sections of this report.

Summary

ExxonMobil continues to have an appropriate and competitive compensation program which has served
the Company anc! shareholders well. The combination of base salary, short term bonuses, and the
emphasis on long term incentives provides a balanced and stable foundation for strong and effective
leadership going forward.

William R. Howell, Chair  Reatha Clark King
Michael J. Boskin Henry A. McKinnell, Jr.
James R. Houghton ‘

20
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION TABLES

The following tables show the compensation of ExxonMobil's Chairman and the four other most highly
paid executives. Sce the Compensation Committee Report beginning on page 17 for an explanation of
our compensation philosophy.

Summary Compensation Table

Long Term Compensation

Awards Payouts
Annual Compensation
Restricted
Other Annual Stock LTIP All Other

Name and Salary Bonus Compensation Award(s) Options Payouts Compensation
Principal Position Year (€3] ) ($)(a) (8)b) # $)(c) (8)(d)
L. R. Raymond 2003 3,250,000 3,564,000 81,590 17,910,000 0 2,700,000 277,550
Chairman and CEO 2002 3,250,000 2,160,000 96,675 17,320,000 0 2,700,005 297,960

2001 2,850,000 2,700,000 77,941 7,424,000 1,050,000 1,355,130 261,288
H.J. Longwell 2003 1,565,000 1,138,500 4,500 6,680,430 0 862,020 145,479
Executive Vice Presiclent 2002 1,415,000 690,000 5,264 6,460,360 0 862,015 131,727
and Director 2001 1,250,000 863,000 6,590 742,400 500,000 443,520 116,300
E. G. Galante 2003 691,667 726,000 131,418 3,832,740 0 399,990 51,136
Senior Vice Presiden: 2002 562,500 440,000 5,250 3,706,480 0. 300,025 41,960

2001 444583 400,000 4,680 371,200 200,000 120,150 33,283
R. W. Tillerson 2003 691,667 726,000 7618 3,832,740 0 399,990 43,500
President and Director 2002 562,500 440,000 15,312 3,706,480 0 300,025 35,750

2001 441,667 400,000 8,774 371,200 200,000 165,030 28,200
J. L. Thompson 2003 820,000 628,700 6,332 2,987,388 0 474,990 77,178
Vice President; 2002 760,000 380,000 10,497 2,888,976 0 412,500 71,677
President, ExxonMobil 2001 680,000 475,000 2,281 371,200 220,000 199,980 64,042

Exploration Company

(@

(b)

Represents certain perquisites, including membership fees (Mr. Raymond: $42,301 (2003), $49,228 (2002), and
$36,920 (2001); and Mr. Galante: $71,203 (2003)); and tax assistance (Mr. Raymond: $29,880 (2003), $37,897
(2002), and $31,598 (2001); and Mr. Galante: $47,107 (2003)). For security reasons, the Board requires the Chairman
to use company aircraft for both business and personal travel. This table does not reflect amounts attributable to the
Chairman's personal aircraft usage because we consider those costs a necessary business expense rather than a
perquisite. The incremental cost for Mr. Raymond's personal use of company aircraft was $79,711 (2003), $64,418
(2002), and $36,596 (2001). Mr. Raymond is taxed on the imputed income attributable to such personal use and does
not receive tax assistance from the Company with respect to those amounts.

The value shown is the number of restricted shares times the market price of ExxonMobil stock on the day of grant.
As of December 31, 2003, the total number and value of restricted shares held by these executives was:

Mr. Raymond: 2,160,000 shares ($88,560,000); Mr. Longwell: 525,000 shares ($21,525,000); Mr. Galante: 232,000
shares ($9,512,000); Mr. Tillerson: 232,000 shares ($9,512,000); and Mr. Thompson: 238,800 shares ($9,790,800).
Restricted shares granted in 2001 and prior years may not be sold unti! after retirement. Restricted shares granted in
2002 or later may not be sold (i) for half the shares, unti! five years after grant; and (ii) for the balance, until 10 years
after grant or until after retirement, whichever occurs later. The values given do not reflect the transfer restrictions or
the fact that, during the restricted period, the awards are subject to forfeiture in case of detrimental activity or early
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termination of employment. The executives receive the same cash dividends on restricted shares as holders of regular
common stock, but cannot sell the shares during the restricted period. Grants in 2002 and prior years were made under
the 1993 Incentive Program. Grants in 2003 were made under the 2003 Incentive Program. See page 19 for more

details.

(©) Settlements of earnings bonus units. See page 22 for more details.

(d) 2003 values represent company credits and other allocations under defined contribution plans (Mr. Raymond:
$195,000; Mr. Longwell: $95,900; Mr. Galante: $43,500; Mr. Tillerson: $43,500; and Mr. Thompson: $51,200); and
costs of execuiive life insurance (Mr. Raymond: $82,550; Mr. Longwell: $49,579; Mr. Galante: $7,636; and

Mr. Thompson: $25,978).

21

Aggregated Option/SAR Exercises in Last Fiscal Year and FY-End Option/SAR Values

Number of Securities
Underlying Unexercised

Value of Unexercised,
In-the-Money Options/SARS

Number of
Shares Options/SARs at FY-End (#) at FY-End ($)*
Underlying
Options/SARs Value

Exercised Realized
Name # (3] Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisabls
L. R. Raymond 756,608 15,899,821 6,643,392 0 56,781,916 '
H. J. Longwell 240,000 5,099,458 3,300,000 0 31,088,121 !
E. G. Galante 20,000 419,500 632,080 0 3,832,371 |
R. W. Tillerson 71,348 1,510,807 602,688 0 3,171,884 '
J. L. Thompson 91,020 1,779,929 1,114,080 0 9,757,939 |

*

The difference between the option exercise price and the market price of ExxonMobil stock at

year-end. The actual gain, if any, an executive realizes will depend on the market price of
ExxonMotil stock at the time of exercise. “In-the-money" means the market price of the stock is
greater than the exercise price of the option on the date specified.

Long Term Incentive Plans—Awards in Last Fiscal Year

Performance or

Estimated Future

Number of Other Period Until Payouts Under Non-

Shares, Units or Maturation or Stock Price-Based Plans

Name Other Rights (#) Payout Maximum (8)
L.R. Raymond 1,188,000 5 years maximum 3,564,000
H. J. Longwell 379,500 5 years maximum 1,138,500
-E. G. Galante 242,000 5 years maximum 726,000
R. W. Tillerson 242,000 5 years maximum 726,000
J. L. Thompson 209,550 S years maximum 628,650
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The awards shown above are earnings bonus units. Each earnings bonus unit entitles the executive to
receive an amount equal to ExxonMobil's cumulative net income per common share as announced each
quarter beginning after the grant. Payout occurs on the fifth anniversary of the grant or when the
maximum settlement value of $3.00 per unit is reached, if earlier. SEC rules classify earnings bonus
units as long term incentives, but because of the nature of ExxonMobil's business, we view earnings
bonus units as short term incentive awards. See page 18 for more details.

22

Pension Plan Table

Years of Accredited Service

Remuneration* 30 35 40 45

$ 500,000 $ 240,000 $ 280,000 ° $ 320,000 $ 360,000
1,000,000 480,000 560,000 640,000 720,000
1,500,000 720,000 840,000 960,000 1,080,000
2,000,000 960,000 1,120,000 1,280,000 1,440,000
2,500,000 - 1,200,000 1,400,000 1,600,000 1,800,000
3,000,000 1,440,000 1,680,000 1,920,000 2,160,000
3,500,000 1,680,000 1,960,000 2,240,000 2,520,000
4,000,000 1,920,000 2,240,000 2,560,000 2,880,000
5,000,000 2,400,000 2,800,000 3,200,000 : 3,600,000
6,000,000 2,880,000 3,360,000 3,840,000 4,320,000
7,000,000 3,360,000 3,920,000 4,480,000 5,040,000
8,000,000 3,840,000 4,480,000 5,120,000 5,760,000
9,000,000 4,320,000 5,040,000 5,760,000 6,480,000

10,000,000 4,800,000 5,600,000 6,400,000 7,200,000
11,000,000 5,280,000 6,160,000 7,040,000 7,920,000

For plan purposes, this means: (1) average annual salary over the highest paid 36-month period
during the employee's last 10 years of employment; plus, (2) the average of the three highest cash
bonus and earnings bonus unit awards during the employee's last five years of employment. For
executives who separate from the company before age 55, only average annual salary is used to
calculate pension benefits.

Employees who imeet the age, service, and other requirements of ExxonMobil's pension plans are
eligible for a pension after retirement. The table shows the approximate yearly benefit that would be
paid to an ExxonMobil employee in the top compensation and period of service categories. The table
reflects a five-year certain and life annuity form of payment for an employee retiring after age 60.
Retiring employe«es may also elect to receive an equivalent lump-sum payment instead of an annuity. -
For an employee who retires before age 60, the benefit would be reduced. The actual benefit is also
reduced by a portion of the employee's Social Security benefits.

Under the ExxonMobil plans, covered compensation for the named executive officers includes the
amount shown in the "Salary" column of the Summary Compensation Table plus the regular bonus
shown in the "Bonus" column of that table and the earnings bonus unit award shown in the Long Term
Incentive Plans table. If an executive separates from the Company before attaining 15 years of service
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and reaching age 55, covered compensation would include only salary.

At February 29, 20104, the covered compensation and years of service were $9,134,340 (41 years) for
Mr. Raymond; $3,345,682 (41 years) for Mr. Longwell; $585,420 (32 years) for Mr. Galante; $584,727
(29 years) for Mr. Tillerson; and $1,775,231 (42 years) for Mr. Thompson.

23

Executive Life Insurance/Death Benefit Program

The Corporation cffers coverage for key executives in the form of term life insurance or a company-paid
death benefit. Coverage under either option equals four times base salary until age 65 and a declining
multiple thereafter. For executives electing life insurance coverage, annual costs are included in the "All
Other Compensation" column of the Summary Compensation Table on page 21. Mr. Tillerson has

~ elected death benefit coverage and Mr. Raymond converted from life insurance to death benefit
coverage during 2003. Death benefit coverage represents an unfunded promise by the Corporation to
pay the benefit and therefore is not reflected in the Summary Compensation Table.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 requires that our executive officers and
directors file reports of their ownership and changes in ownership of ExxonMobil stock on Forms 3, 4,
and 5 with the Seczurities and Exchange Commission and New York Stock Exchange. We are not aware
of any late or unfiled reports for 2003.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

(2) L] (c)

Number of Securities

Remaining Available

for Future Issuance
Weighted-Average Under Equity

Number of Securities to be Exercise Price of Compensation Plans
Issued Upon Exercise of Outstanding Options, [Excluding Securities
Outstanding Options, Warrants and Rights Reflected in
Plan Category Warrants and Rights (1) Column(a)]
Equity compensation plans approved
by security holders 179,257,359 $35.510) 210,121,891 3ya
Equity compensztion plans not
approved by security holderss) 0 0 0
Total 179,257,359 $35.51 210,121,891

Notes:

(1) The exercise price of each option reflected in this table is equal to the fair market value of the
Company's common stock on the date the option was granted. The weighted-average price reflects
nine prior grants that are still outstanding.
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(2)  Includes restricted stock units and deferred bonuses to be settled in shares.

(3)  Does not include options that ExxonMobil assumed in the 1999 merger with Mobil. At year-end
2003, the number of securities to be issued upon exercise of outstanding options under Mobil
plans was 48,498,237, and the weighted average exercise price of such options was $24.32. No
additional awards may be made under those plans.

(4)  Available shares can be granted in the form of restricted stock, options, or other stock-based
awards.

(5)  Under ExxonMobil's 1997 Restricted Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors, each non-
employee director received 2,400 shares of restricted stock at the beginning of 2003. While on the
Board, each non-employee director receives the same cash dividends on restricted shares as a
holder of re;gular common stock, but the director is not allowed to sell the shares. The restricted
shares can be forfeited if the director leaves the Board early. No further shares may be granted
under the 1997 Plan. Future equity grants to non-employee directors are expected to be granted
under the 2004 Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Plan being submitted for shareholder
approval at the 2004 annual meeting.

24

STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPHS

Annual total returns to ExxonMobil shareholders were 20 percent in 2003, minus nine percent in 2002,
minus eight percent in 2001, and have averaged five percent over the past five years. Total returns mean
share price increase plus dividends paid, with dividends reinvested. The graphs below show the relative
investment performance of ExxonMobil common stock, the S&P 500, and an industry peer group over
the last five and twenty-year periods. The peer group consists of four other international integrated oil
companies: BP, ChevronTexaco, Royal Dutch, and Shell Transport and Trading.

FIVE-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURNS
Value of $100 Invested at Year-End 1998
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The primary function of our Committee is oversight of the Corporation's financial reporting process,
public financial reports, internal accounting and financial controls, and the independent audit of the
annual consolidated financial statements. Our Committee acts under a charter attached to this proxy
statement. We review the adequacy of the charter at least annually. Our members are not professionally
engaged in the practice of accounting or auditing, and are not experts under the Securities Act of 1933 in
either of those fields or in auditor independence.
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In carrying out our responsibilities, we look to management and the independent auditors. Management
is responsible for the preparation, presentation, and integrity of the Corporation's financial statements,
the financial reporting process and internal controls. The independent auditors are responsible for
auditing the Corporation's annual financial statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and expressing an opinion as to the statements' conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles.

In performance of our oversight function, we have reviewed and discussed the consolidated financial
statements with management and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC), the independent auditors.
Management and PwC told us that the Corporation's consolidated financial statements were fairly stated
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. We discussed with PwC matters covered
by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61 (Communication with Audit Committees).

We have also discussed with PwC its independence from the Corporation and management, including
the matters in Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1 (Independence Discussions with Audit
Committees) and the letter and disclosures from PwC to us pursuant to Standard No. 1. We considered
whether the non-audit services provided by PwC to the Corporation are compatible with maintaining the
auditors' independence.

We discussed with the Corporation's internal auditors-and PwC the overall scope and plans for their
respective audits. We met with the internal auditors and PwC, with and without management present, to
discuss the results of their examinations, their evaluations of the Corporation's internal controls, and the
overall quality of the Corporation's financial reporting.

Based on the reviews and discussions referred to above, in reliance on management and PwC, and
subject to the limitations of our role, we recommended to the Board, and the Board has approved, the
inclusion of the zudited financial statements in the Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended Decemmber 31, 2003, for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

We have appointed PwC to audit the Corporation's financial statements for 2004, subject to shareholder
ratification of that appointment.

- James R. Houghton, Chair =~ Reatha Clark King
William R. Howell Marilyn Carlson Nelson
Helene L. Kaplan '
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RATIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
(Item 2 on the proxy card)

The Audit Committee has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) to audit ExxonMobil's
financial statements for 2004. We are asking you to ratify that appointment.

Total Fees
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The total fees paicl to PwC for professional services rendered to ExxonMobil for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2003, were $41.9 million, a decrease of $1.2 million from 2002. The Audit Committee
reviewed and pre-approved all services in accordance with the Pre-Approval Policy and Procedure
Memorandum that is attached as Appendix F to this proxy statement. The Audit Committee did not use
-the "de minimis" exception to pre-approval that is available under SEC rules. The following table
summarizes the fees that are described in more detail below.

2003 2002

(millions of dollars)

Audit Fees 23.5 18.4

Audit-Related 3.6 3.0

Fees :

Tax Fees 14.8 134

All Other Fees — 8.3
Total 41.9 43.1

Audit Fees

The aggregate fecs paid to PwC for professional services rendered for the annual audit of ExxonMobil's
financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, and for the reviews of the financial
statements inclucled in our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q for that fiscal year, were $23.5 million
(versus $18.4 million for 2002). The increase of $5.1 million from 2002 is due mainly to work activities
related to new regulatory requirements, additional audit testing for newly implemented systems, and
foreign exchange effects.

Audit-Related Fees
The aggregate fees billed by PwC for audit-related services rendered to ExxonMobil for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2003, were $3.6 million (versus $3.0 million for 2002). These services were mainly

comprised of benefit plan and joint venture audits, and attestation procedures related to cost
certifications and government compliance.

Tax Fees
The aggregate fees billed by PwC for tax services rendered to ExxonMobil for the fiscal year ended

December 31, 2003, were $14.8 million (versus $13.4 million for 2002). These services are described
below.

PwC assisted in preparing tax returns for individual ExxonMobil expatriate and former expatriate
employees. These fees were $12.8 million for 2003 (versus $11.4 million for 2002).
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d PwC also assisted various ExxonMobil affiliates with the preparation of local tax filings and
related tax services. These fees were $2.0 million for 2003 (versus $2.0 million for 2002).
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All Other Fees

The aggregate fees billed by PwC for services rendered to ExxonMobil, other than the services
described above under "Audit Fees," "Audit-Related Fees," and "Tax Fees," for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2003, were zero (versus $8.3 million in 2002). PwC provided professional services
totaling $8.2 million to two ExxonMobil managed financial information systems design and
implementation projects in 2002. Both projects were completed during 2002.

Other than audit-related and tax services of the type described above, ExxonMobil does not envision
obtaining other non-audit services from PwC.

PwC has been ExxonMobil's independent auditing firm for many years, and we believe they are well
qualified for the job. A PwC representative will be at the annual meeting to answer appropriate
questions and to make a statement if he desires.

The Audit Cominittee recommends you vote FOR this proposal.

APPROVAL O) 2004 NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR RESTRICTED STOCK PLAN
(Item 3 on the proxy card)

We are asking shareholders to approve the Exxon Mobil Corporation 2004 Non-Employee Director
Restricted Stock Plan. The 2004 Plan has been approved by the Board but will not become effective
unless also apprcved by shareholders. :

The 2004 Plan is intended to help ExxonMobil attract and retain highly qualified individuals to serve as
non-employee directors, and to align further their interests with the long-term interests of ExxonMobil
shareholders by paying a substantial portion of non-employee director compensation in the form of
restricted stock or units that must be held until the non-employee director leaves the Board.

The 2004 Plan will replace ExxonMobil's 1997 Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Plan. No new
awards may be granted under the 1997 Plan.

Following is a brief summary of the 2004 Plan. The full téxt of the 2004 Plan is included as Appendix B
to this proxy statement.

Available Shares; Plan Term

The maximum riumber of shares that may be issued under the 2004 Plan is one million. If an award is
forfeited, the shares subject to that award will not be considered to have been issued and will not count
against the Plan maximum. The number of available shares will be adjusted as necessary to reflect future
stock splits or similar events.
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The 2004 Plan does not have a specified term. Unless the Board terminates the Plan early, new awards
may be made until the available shares are depleted.

Administration
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The Board has sole authority to make or amend awards under the 2004 Plan and to determine the terms
and conditions of awards. Subject to oversight by the Board, the Secretary of the Corporation will
establish procedurss and forms, and perform related ministerial duties in connection with the Plan.

Eligibility

Awards may be granted only to directors who are not employed by ExxonMobil or its affiliates. Of our
11 nominees for election at the annual meeting, eight are non-employee directors.

Terms and Conditions of Awards
Only restricted stock or restricted stock units may be granted under the Plan.

Restricted stock is an award of shares that may not be sold or transferred while the director remains on
the Board. The shares will also be forfeited if the director leaves the Board before reaching the
mandatory retirement age established in ExxonMobil's Corporate Governance Guidelines, unless the
Board allows the director to retain the shares. Subject to the restriction on transfer and risk of forfeiture,
a director will otherwise have the same rights as a regular shareholder with respect to restricted stock,
including the right to vote the shares and receive dividends. Unless the shares are forfeited, shares
underlying restricted stock awards will be delivered to the director free of restrictions after the director
leaves the Board. :

Restricted stock units are similar to restricted stock except the award takes the form of stock units
instead of shares. A stock unit is a unit or right with a value equal to the value of one share of stock.
Restricted stock units are subject to the same restrictions on transfer and risk of forfeiture as restricted
stock. During the restricted period, a holder of restricted stock units will be paid cash amounts
corresponding to dividends but will not have voting or other shareholder rights. Unless forfeited,
restricted stock units may be settled by delivery of shares or cash after the director leaves the Board.

Initial Award Amounts

If the Plan is approved by shareholders, the Board expects to grant 1,600 shares of restricted stock under
the Plan to each non-employee director elected at the annual meeting. This grant would be in addition to
the final grant of 2,400 shares made earlier this year under the 1997 Plan described on page 11. The
Board believes it is appropriate to increase the annual restricted stock grant for non-employee directors
in order to remain competitive with other major public companies and to ensure that a substantial
majority of non-employee director compensation continues to be paid in the form of stock that must be
held as long as the director remains on the Board.
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Amendment of the Plan

The Board may amend the 2004 Plan or any outstanding award, except that shareholder approval will be
required for any amendment to increase the number of shares issuable (other than in connection with a
stock split or similar event) or that would be a "material revision" under NYSE rules. Material revisions
requiring shareholder approval would include amending the Plan to expand the types of awards that may
 be made or to allow awards to be made to persons other than the non-employee directors.
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U.S. Federal Tax Consequences

Non-employee dirzctors will generally recognize as taxable income the fair market value of restricted
stock or restricted stock units on the date the restricted period ends. The Corporation is entitled to a
corresponding tax deduction at the same time. Dividends or dividend equivalents paid during the
restricted period are taxable compensation income to the non-employee director and are deductible by
the Corporation.

The Board recommends you vote FOR this proposal.

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS
(Items 4 through 11 on the proxy card)

We expect the following proposals to be presented by shareholders at the annual meeting. Following
SEC rules, other than minor formatting changes, we are reprinting the proposals and supporting
statements as they were submitted to us. We take no responsibility for them. On request to the Secretary
at the address listed under "Contact Information" on page 3, we will provide information about the
sponsors' shareholdings, as well as the names, addresses, and shareholdings of any co-sponsors.

The Board recornmends you vote AGAINST proposals 4 through 11 for the reasons we give after
each one.

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSAL: POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS
(Item 4 on the prroxy card)

This proposal was submitted by Mrs. Evelyn Y. Davis, Watergate Office Building, 2600 Virginia
Avenue, N.W., Suite 215, Washington, D.C. 20037.

"RESOLVED: That the stockholders of ExxonMobil assembled in Annual Meeting in person and by

proxy, hereby recommend that the Corporation affirm its political nonpartisanship. To this end the
following practices are to be avoided: :

(@)  The handing of contribution cards of a single political party to an employee by a supervisor.
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(b)  Requesting an employee to send a political contribution to an individual in the Corporation for a
subsequent delivery as part of a group of contributions to a political party or fund raising
committee:.

(¢)  Requesting an employee to issue personal checks blank as to payee for subsequent forwarding to a
political party, committee or candidate.

(d)  Using supervisory meetings to announce that contribution cards of one party are available and that
anyone desiring cards of a different party will be supplied one on request to his supervisor.

(¢)  Placing a preponderance of contribution cards of one party at mail station locations.
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REASONS: The Corporation must deal with a great number of governmental units, commissions and
agencies. It should maintain scrupulous political neutrality to avoid embarrassing entanglements
detrimental to its business. Above all, it must avoid the appearance of coercion in encouraging its
employees to make political contributions against their personal inclination. The Troy (Ohio) News has
condemned partisen solicitation for political purposes by managers in a local company (not
ExxonMobil). And if the Company did not engage in any of the above practices, to disclose this to ALL
shareholders in each quarterly report. Last year the owners of 261,248,318 shares voted FOR this
resolution, representing approximately 6.4% of shares voting.

If you AGREE, please mark your proxy FOR this resolution.”

The Board recommends you vote AGAINST this proposal for the following reasons:

The Company does not engage in any of the practices listed by the proponent.

. Our policy on political activity is incorporated in our Standards of Business Conduct. This
document i; disseminated to all employees and is available on our internet site at
www.exxonmobil.com. Compliance with these standards is affirmed annually by all employees.

* In the U.S., it is illegal for ExxonMobil to fund political candidates for federal office. ExxonMobil
does not make contributions to political candidates or political parties except as permitted by
applicable laws and authorized by the Board of Directors.

d Individuals are permitted to make political contributions to candidates for political office. In the
U.S., a number of ExxonMobil employees choose to voluntarily participate in the ExxonMobll
Pohtlcal Action Committee (PAC).

~ U.S. federal law prohibits some of the practices listed by the proponent; the Company engages in
none of them. Employees participating in political activity do so as private citizens and not as
representatives of the Corporation.

Board poii-cy on political activities clearly states that "An employee's personal lawful political
contributicns, or a decision not to make contributions, will not influence the employee's
compensation, job security, or opportunities for advancement." This policy is included in the
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remarks made by the executive conducting any meeting where employees are asked to consider
making a voluntary contribution to the ExxonMobil PAC.

The ExxonMobil PAC restricts solicitation for voluntary contributions to senior level managers
and professionals only. Elections to contribute are not collected at Company meetings nor are they
sent to Company managers. Contributions go directly to an outside vendor that collects and
manages the funds available to the ExxonMobil PAC. Neither the names of contributors nor the
amounts cf any contributions are released to ExxonMobil management.

It is the Corporation's policy to communicate information and views on issues of public debate that have
an important impact on our business. Registering and voting; contributing financially to the party or
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candidates of one's choice; keeping informed on political matters; serving on civic bodies; and
campaigning and officeholding at local, state, or national levels are highly important rights and
responsibilities of the citizens of democracies and we encourage our employees to participate.

Since the Company has a policy on political contributions and does not engage in any of the practices
listed by the proponent, the Board believes the Company has already affirmed its political
nonpartisanship.

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSAL: POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS REPORT
(Item 5 on the proxy card)

This proposal was submitted by the Sierra Club, 85 Second Street, Second Floor, San Francisco,
California 94105-3441.

"Resolved:

We hereby request that Exxon Mobil Corporation (the 'Company') prepare and submit to shareholders of
the Company a s¢parate report, updated annually, containing the following information:

a.  Policies for political contributions made with corporate funds, political action committees
sponsored by the Company, and employee political contributions solicited by senior executives of
the Company. This shall include, but not be limited to, policies on contributions and donations to
federal, state, and local political candidates, including any foreign candidates, political parties,

political committees, elected officials and other political entities orgamzed and operatmg under 26
U.S.C. Sec. 527,

b.  Anaccourting of the Company's resources including property and personnel contributed or
donated to any of the persons and organizations described above;

C. A business rationale for each of the Company's political contributions or donations; and

d.  Identification of the person or persons in the Company who participated in making the decisions
~ to contribute or donate.
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Supporting Statecment:

Our company's voluntary contribution of company assets to political campaigns poses grave concerns
for shareholders. We believe that the perception that government contracts or weakening of regulations
are a reward for campaign contributions is not in the long-term best interests of our company or our
country. We believe that reliance on government favor may also prove an uncertain future source of
revenue. In addition, a shareholder with one political persuasion may object if her company is found to
contribute to th: campaign of candidates with dissonant persuasion. At the very least, we believe that
investors will be served with full disclosure.

A case in point is the controversial role of energy companies, such as ExxonMobil, in the formation of
energy policy as part of the Cheney Energy Task Force under the current presidential administration.
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The White House has refused to make Task Force information available under the Freedom of
Information Act not only to the Sierra Club and other non-profits, but also the General Accounting
Office. According to the GAO, 'The extent to which submissions from any of these stakeholders were
solicited, influenced policy deliberations or were incorporated into the final report is not something that
we can determine based on the limited information at our disposal,' the GAO said.
(http://stacks.msnbc.com/news/957178.asp?0cv=CB10)

The GAOs final report confirmed that administration officials met with a procession of lobbyists and
executives from the energy industry, including coal, nuclear, natural gas and electricity companies.
(http://stacks.msnbc.com/news/957178.asp?0cv=CB10) According to one source dated June 16, 2002,
'ExxonMobil was the second largest campaign contributor, after Enron, in the current election cycle.'
(http://www.thenation.com/capitalgames/index. mhtm1?bid=3&pid=74)

The Sierra Club continues to fight for full disclosure of how oil, nuclear and coal companies dictate the
Administration’s energy policy behind closed doors, according to Patrick Gallagher, Director of
Environmental Law for the Sierra Club.

We believe full disclosure of our company's political efforts should be shared with investors.
For this reason we urge you to vote FOR this proposal.”

The Board reédlmmends-you vote AGAINST this proposal for the following reasons:
* Our policy on political activity is incorporated in our Standards of Business Conduct. This
document s disseminated to all employees and is available on our internet site at
www.exxcnmobil.com. Compliance with these standards is affirmed annually by all employees.

* In the U.S,, it is illegal for ExxonMobil to fund political candidates for federal office. ExxonMobil
does not make contributions to political candidates or political parties except as permitted by
applicable laws and authorized by the Board of Directors.

33

Individuals are permitted to make political contributions to candidates for political office. In the
U.S., a number of ExxonMobil employees choose to voluntarily participate in the ExxonMobil
Political Action Committee (PAC).

In the U.S., political contributions of all types are subject to extensive regulation and public
disclosure. The ExxonMobil PAC files monthly reports of receipts and disbursements to the
Federal Election Commission (FEC), as well as pre-election and post-election FEC reports. All
political contributions over $200 are shown in public information made available by the FEC.
Under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, ExxonMobil submits to Congress semi-annual
reports, which are publicly available.

. ExxonMobil was not among the top political party or PAC contributors in the 2001-2002 election
cycle as claimed by the proponent. In fact, according to Political Money Line (an independent
organization that publishes data based on FEC reports), ExxonMobil did not rank among the top
100 political party or PAC contributors. '
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. Canada is the only country outside of the U.S. where an ExxonMobil affiliate makes political
contributions. Political contributions by corporations are legal in Canada within certain prescribed
limits. Imperial Oil Limited, a majority-owned Canadian affiliate of the Corporation, follows strict
guidelines when making political contributions. These contributions are made to registered
political parties and all contributions are within the legal limits. In Canada, all contributions are
published by the Chief Electoral Officer.

It is the Corporation's policy to communicate information and views on issues of public debate that have
an important impact on our business. Registering and voting; contributing financially to the party or
candidates of one's choice; keeping informed on political matters; serving on civic bodies; and
campaigning and officeholding at local, state, or national levels are highly important rights and
responsibilities of the citizens of democracies and we encourage our employees to participate.

Since the information requested by the proponent is already publicly available, the Board does not
believe a separate report is necessary.

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSAL: MEDIA RESPONSE ON EQUATORIAL GUINEA
(Item 6 on the proxy card)

This proposal was submitted by K. Bandell, 11065 East Impenal Highway, Apartment 17, Norwalk,
California 90650-2223.

"Whereas, Exxon Mobil Corporation (EMC) was on 16 November 2003, the focus of a uniformly
critical and unflattering segment of '60 Minutes,' a segment which, produced through CBS, was
nationally televised and which included a statement to the effect that EMC had refused to be interviewed
on the program's terms—that is, by prerecording, and
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Whereas, failure to participate on camera left EMC open to dealing with unchallenged allegations about
its operations in Equatorial Guinea, allegations which included but were not limited to the following:

—  operating offshore both to explore and to extract oil reserves under terms of a contract authorizing
appropriation by EMC of more than ninety per cent of profits generated

—  consciously colluding with a government whose president, Teodoro Obiang Nguema Mbasogo,
unabasheclly diverts royalties from petroleum operations into the service of conspicuous
consumption by himself, by members of his family and by an oligarchical circle of politically
compatible supporters :

—  opulently dining, wining and sequestering from media‘access President Obiang during a visit to
EMC headquarters in Texas

— ignoring blatant human rights abuses and specifically those relating to suppression of free speech
by Equatorial Guineans who object to socioeconomic disparities to which EMC has become an
accessory and an accomplice—that is, disparities in access to education, to participation and to
wealth, and
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Whereas, submitted in writing to '60 Minutes' on 16 October 2003, EMC's response to specific questions
about its operations in Equatorial Guinea, a study in ambiguity and in evasion, was and remains
inclusive of almost no corroboratable data about its alleged stewardship of environmental and of human
rights, and whereas, personnel from shareholder services and from investor relations have discouraged
~ submission of a proposal designed to facilitate public exploration about and illumination of its position
relating to the types of charges heretofore cited, therefore, be it resolved that as an addendum to Exxon
Mobil Corporation's 2005 annual report, an addendum universally available, information about its
operations in Equatorial Guinea will be included and will cover but not be limited to the following:

—  replicating questions posed in writing by '60 Minutes' and EMC's responses

—  accounting for the national origins and numbers of personnel employed in Equatorial Guinea, for
assigned job categories and for salaries

— engaging concerns about sheltering the cynically cavalier plundering of all but a minority of
Equatorial (Guineans by President Obiang and cohorts

— reacting to statements by Human Rights Watch about EMC's passive acquiescence to abuses
which, if allowed to remain unchecked, may help nurture a template of potentially explosive
dissent

—  discussing in detail plans to address a widely disseminated suggestion that EMC functions in
Equatorial Guinea as if a twenty-first century variation on a nineteenth century robber baron."
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The Board recommends you vote AGAINST this proposal for the following reasons:

We believe: the proposal is vague and undefined. The proposal provides little explanation as to
what specific conduct ExxonMobil is accused of "sheltering" and to what actions ExxonMobil is
accused of having passively acquiesced. We believe there is not enough information to enable
shareholders to understand what they are being asked to consider or to enable the Corporation to
know what actions we should take.

We interpret this proposal to ask ExxonMobil to provide information on our operations in
Equatorial Guinea, including employee profiles and issues raised and suggestions made in the 60
Minutes program, as well as to make public our written response to questions submitted by 60
Minutes.

Regarding the 60 Minutes program, following the broadcast, ExxonMobil made public on our
internet siie a specific response to the broadcast. Prior to the broadcast, ExxonMobil provided
written, factual background information and responded in writing to questions presented by the 60
Minutes correspondent. Unfortunately, the program producers chose not to use any of the
information we provided. The written questions posed by 60 Minutes to the Corporation and our
responses have also been made public on our internet site. All of this information was provided to
the proponent.
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ExxonMobil regularly informs shareholders and the public about its operations and activities
worldwide. Our activities in Equatorial Guinea are discussed in our Corporate Citizenship Report.
In addition, a recent search of ExxonMobil's internet site for "Equatorial Guinea" yielded no less
than 90 specific references with information on Equatorial Guinea.

ExxonMobil currently produces oil and gas in a number of West African countries, including Equatorial
Guinea, where our affiliate holds interests in two offshore deepwater blocks. ExxonMobil seeks to
improve the quality of life in all of the communities in which we operate. In addition to providing jobs
to local residents, ExxonMobil provides financial support for many community activities in Equatorial
Guinea, amounting to more than $4 million in recent years. We are involved in projects in partnership
with the government, which include schools, community education programs, and health initiatives.

The people of Equatorial Guinea have benefited and will continue to benefit from the successful growth
and development of their oil and gas resources. Payments made to the government of Equatorial Guinea
are in accordance with the terms of our contractual obligations and include royalties and income taxes.
Wages, benefits, and salaries paid to our Equatorial Guinea employees and contractors also contribute to
the national economy. ExxonMobil and our co-venturer support community and social projects beyond
the requirements of our contract with the government.

ExxonMobil condemns human rights violations in any form. Our Standards of Business Conduct,
available on our internet site, are the foundation policies for the Corporation and establish our approach
for the conduct of each ExxonMobil location around the world, including Equatorial Guinea.
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Since the proposal appears vague and undefined, and information regarding our operations in Equatorial
Guinea, as well as specific information regarding our response to the 60 Minutes program, are already
available to sharcholders and the public on our internet site at www.exxonmobil.com, the Board does

- not believe a separate addendum to the 2005 Summary ‘Annual Report is necessary.

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSAL: BOARD CHAIRMAN AND CEO
(Item 7 on the proxy card)

This proposal was submitted by clients of Ram Trust Services, Inc., 45 Exchange Street, Portland,
Maine 04101. '

"RESOLVED, that the shareholders urge the Board of Directors to take the necessary steps to amend the
by-laws to require that, subject to any presently existing contractual obligations of the Company, an
independent director shall serve as Chairman of the Board of Directors, and that the Chairman of the
Board of Directors shall not concurrently serve as the Chief Executive Officer.

SUPPORTING STATEMENT
ExxonMobil's proxy statement filed on April 17, 2003, the Company states that:

The Board of Directors performs a number of functions for ExxonMobil and its shareholders, i.ncluding:

—  QOverseeing the managemeni of the company on your behalf;
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—  Reviewing FxxonMobil's long-term strategic plans;
—  Exercising direct decision-making authority in key areas, such as declaring dividends;
—  Selecting the CEQ and evaluating the CEQO's performance; and

Reviewing development and succession plans for ExxonMobil’s top executives.
(Emphasis supplied)

Proponent believes that separation of the roles of Chairman of the Board and the CEO will provide
greater accountability of management to the shareholders, and provide more independent oversight of
management, including the CEO, by the Board of Directors.

Corporate governance experts have questioned how one person serving as both Chairman of the Board
and CEO can effectively monitor and evaluate his or her own performance. The NACD Blue Ribbon
Commission on Directors' Professionalism has recommended that an independent director should be
charged with 'organizing the board's evaluation of the CEO and provide ongoing feedback; chairing
executive sessions of the board; setting the agenda and leading the board in anticipating and responding.
to crises.' ExxonMobil itself states that one of the Board's responsibilities is 'selecting the CEO and
evaluating the CEO's performance.' Proponent believes that this responsibility would be best served if
the CEO, whose authority is set and whose '
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performance is evaluated by the Board of Directors, is not a member of that Board. Proponent further
believes that the concern for the Board's ability to independently evaluate the performance of the CEO is
particularly compromised if the individual serving as CEO is also the Chairman of the very Board that is
charged with evaluating his or her performance.

Proponent believes that the independence of the Board of Directors would best be ensured if the office
of CEO remains independent of the Board, the body that is responsible for overseeing management, and
that the position of Chairman of the Board be held by an independent director, a non-employee of
ExxonMobil.

Vote "YES" on this proposal to support Board indépendénce! -
For further information, see www.ragm.com/exxon."

The Board recommends you vote AGAINST this proposal for the following reasons:

Independent directors make up a substantial majority of the Board and normally meet in executive
session after each regular Board meeting.

Only 1ndependent directors serve on the Audlt Board Affairs, Compensation, Contributions, and
Public Issues Committees.
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The-Chairs of two key Board committees serve as co-presiding directors for non-employee
director executive sessions on a structured, rotational basis.

The CEO's service as Chairman contributes to the successful integration of all stakeholder
interests in pursuit of Company objectives and does not impair Board independence.

Ten of ExxonMobil's 13 current directors are independent. The independent directors hold regular and
frequent executive sessions. These sessions—currently scheduled for eight times a year—take place
outside the preserice of the CEO or any other Company employee.

Under our Corporate Governance Guidelines (see Appendix C), the Chair of either the Board Affairs
Committee or the Compensation Committee normally presides at executive sessions. The Compensation
Committee Chair serves as presiding director for executive sessions when the primary topics of
discussion relate to matters such as the performance evaluation and compensation of the CEO or CEO
succession planning. The Board Affairs Committee Chair serves as presiding director for executive
sessions when the primary topics of discussion relate to corporate governance. The independent
directors also have authority to designate a different presiding director depending on the primary subject
matter of a particular executive session.

A premise of the shareholder proposal appears to be that the CEO's service as Chairman could impair
the Board's independence. As demonstrated above, this is not the case at ExxonMobil. Rather, we
believe combmmg the offices of CEO and Chairman contributes to a more efficient and effective Board.
The CEO bears primary responsibility for managing the Company's business day to day. As such, we
believe the CEOQ is the person in the best position to chair regular Board meetings and help ensure that
key business issues and stakeholder interests are
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brought to the Board's attention. However, as provided in our Corporate Governance Guldehnes any
director may request the inclusion of specific agenda items for Board meetings.

The supporting statement for the proposal specifically irnplies that, by serving as Chairman, the CEO .
participates in his own performance evaluation. This is false. At ExxonMobil, the CEO's performance is
evaluated solely by the independent directors meeting outside the presence of the CEO or any other
Company employee. Performance feedback is provided to the CEO by the Chair of the Compensation
Committee.

The Board retains the authority to separate the offices of Chairman and CEO if it deems such a change
appropriate. However, at present the Board believes the rotational presiding director structure described
above effectively meets the concerns expressed by the shareholder proposal and that implementing the
proposal would reduce Board effectiveness.

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSAL: EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
(Item 8 on the proxy card)

This proposal vas submitted by Mr. Robert D. Morse, 212 Highland Avenue, Moorestown, New Jersey
08057-2717.
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"Management and Directors are requested to consider discontinuing all rights, options, SAR's and
possible severance payments to top 5 of Management after expiration of existing plans or commitments.
This does not apply to plans for lesser Managers or employees whom are offered reasonable employee
options or bonuses.

REASONING:

Moderation is needed in corporate remuneration. Any person can live very lavishly on $500,000.00 per
year. Over-paying Management has been ongoing and increasing for years. Many officials have been
awarded with no raention of what was accomplished above and beyond expectation of their positions.
The bookwork involved and expense is tremendous in carrying out these programs. Peer group
comparison and commercial 'Remuneration' entities have been employed by some to recommend
payouts, having nothing to do with a performance record. The product, its advertising, and its
acceptance usually govern earnings. ‘

When Management is hired for their position-at a good salary, they are expected to earn it, and not have
to be paid more when and if they do. Excess wealth passed on may make heirs non-workers, or non-
achievers and of little use in our society.

There are many good Management Training Schools in the United States and the supply is available.
Hiring away from other corporations is a predatory process, increases costs and does not necessarily
'align shareowner/management relations', with any gain to-the shareowners. Think about it! Vote YES
for this proposal, it is your gain.

Thank You, and please vote YES for this Proposal."
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The Board recommends you vote AGAINST this proposal for the following reasons:

It is not legal to discontinue all "rights" that an executive might have, which could be read to
include rights under employment and other laws.

No executive in ExxonMobil has an "employment contract" that provides compensation
assurances.

There is no formal severance payment program for the "top 5 of Management" or any other
executive.

As stated in the Compensation Committee report, stock-based incentive awards are granted to
maintain the business focus of senior executives on achieving superior long-term corporate
performance to enhance shareholder value.

Stock-based incentive awards are also intended to reward and retain selected employees and to
align their interests with the interests of shareholders.

The propnsed resolution to disallow certain incentive awards would make it more difficult to align

executive interests with the interests of shareholders and would place the Corporation at a
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significant competitive disadvaritage with other companies for executive talent.

Incentive awards make up a substantial component of senior executives' potential compensation
dependent upon increased shareholder return through stock ownership. The incentive program helps
align total pay with that of competition; it recognizes increasing levels of responsibility; and it rewards
high levels of individual and corporate performance. Of critical importance, the incentive program
aligns the focus and emphasis of executives with the long investment lead times of the business. The
incentive program is designed to retain the management talent needed to maintain our position of
leadership in the industry.

The Board does not support this proposal as it will limit the ability to retain the key individuals needed
to maintain the Ccrporation's long-term competitive advantage.

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSAL: EQUITY COMPENSATION REPORT
(Item 9 on the proxy card)

This proposal was submitted by Ms. Jennifer Ladd, 245 Main Street, #207, Northampton, Massachusetts
01060, as lead proponent of a filing group.

"WHEREAS,

Commendably, ExxonMobil is one of hundreds of large companies to publish a diversity report,
including its EEO-1 workforce diversity data, that allows shareholders and other interested parties to see
the Company's progress in creating opportunities for women and people of color.

Employee discrimination suits are on the rise nationwide. These suits are costly to companies and risk
damage to a company's reputation. For example, Coca-Cola settled one of the nation's largest racial
discrimination suits for $192 million in 2000.
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" One of the frequent contentions in employee discrimination lawsuits is that employees are compensated
differently on the basis of their race and gender. Historically, these cases have rested largely on the
payment of salaries and bonuses, but we believe that in the future, employees will look more closely at
corporate wealth distributed in the form of stock options. Stock options have allowed employees to
share in tens of tillions of dollars of wealth that they have collectively created.

RESOLVED,

The Board shall prepare a report documenting the distribution of 2003 equity compensation by race and
- gender of the recipient of the stock options and restricted stock awards. The report shall also discuss
recent trends in ¢quity compensation distribution to women and employees of color. The report,
prepared at reasonable cost and omitting proprietary information, shall be available to shareholders,
upon request, no later than four months after the 2004 annual meeting.

SUPPORTING STATEMENT

Stock options have generated enormous wealth over the last decade. With that wealth comes increased
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opportunity and security for the employees receiving stock options. We believe it is important for
companies to document the race and gender composition of their workforces through EEQ-1 disclosures,
but we also believe it is important to know how the wealth created by the company is being shared with

_ those who helped 1o create it. We are proud of the accomplishments of ExxonMobil in moving women
and people of colcr into positions of greater responsibility and leadership. In requesting this report, we
wish to be sure that all of ExxonMobil's employees receive wealth-creating opportunities that fairly
reflect their role and contribution to the Company. We believe this report will help us as investors assure
that there is no equity compensation glass ceiling at ExxonMobil that might create future liabilities for
the Company and its shareholders.

According to the “ederal Reserve's Survey of Consumer Finance, the racial wealth gap in America
continues to widen. There are many causes for this, corporate pay practices being one. The highest
levels of executiva pay in corporate America, and at ExxonMobil, go almost exclusively to white men.
If ExxonMobil is to achieve its stated objective of creating a more diverse company, examining its pay
practices from a variety of perspectives should be an important part of our Company's diversity
commitment.

Please vote FOR this resolution.”

The Board recornmends you vote AGAINST this proposal for the following reasons:

The Corp.dration administers its personnel policies, programs, and practices in a
nondiscriminatory manner in all aspects of the employment relationship worldwide, including the
administration of equity compensation.

41

The distribution of cash and equity compensation is based on an annual process of performance
assessment and the results are analyzed each year to ensure they are nondiscriminatory.

g The level of responsibility of each individual is also a factor in determining annual equity (and
compensation) grants. The process of determining responsibility levels through position
assignments, promotions, and career development is carefully assessed on an ongoing basis to
ensure that all employees have an opportunity to compete fairly, regardless of race or gender,
based on a common set of standards and expectations. '

In 2002 and 2003, the only form of equity compensation awarded was restricted stock. Restricted
stock awards were granted to selected employees of the Corporation and its affiliates in over 80
countries; thus, applying U.S. ethnic categories in such a multinational context would not yield
meaningful information.

Assessing all employees fairly and working to ensure they are representative of the societies in which
we do business is a clear and well-understood strategy among all managers and employees of the
Corporation. This strategy is integral to sustaining a competitive advantage and is vital to maintaining
our position as the premier company in the industry. The Company has programs to support this
strategy. They are described in detail in our annual Corporate Citizenship Report, which is available to
shareholders and the public on our internet site at www.exxonmobil.com. The Company's commitment
and progress in the area of advancing women and minorities is also documented in this report; thus, the
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Board does not believe a separate report relating narrowly to the distribution of equity is required.

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSAL: AMENDMENT OF EEO POLICY
(Item 10 on the proxy card)

This proposal was submitted by the New York City Employees’ Retirement System, 1 Centre Street,
New York, New York 10007-2341, as lead proponent of a filing group.

"WHEREAS: ExxonMobil does not explicitly prohibit discrimination based on sexual orientation in its
written employment policy;

Many of our peers, including Amerada Hess, BP, ChevronTexaco, ConocoPhillips, Marathon Oil,
Occidental Petrolzum, Shell Oil, and Sunoco explicitly prohibit this form of discrimination in their
written policies, according to the Human Rights Campaign;

Two-thirds of the Fortune 500 companies have adopted written nondiscrimination policies prohibiting
harassment and discrimination on the basis of sexual orientation, as have more than 95% of Fortune 100
companies, according to the Human Rights Campaign;

A 2000 study by Hewitt Associates, a compensation and management consulting firm, found that 64%
of large employers prohibited discrimination on the basis of sexual orientation;
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We believe that corporations that prohibit discrimination on the basis of sexual orientation have a
competitive adventage in recruiting and retaining employees from the widest talent pool;

According to a September 2002 survey by Harris Interactive and Witeck-Combs, 41% of gay and
lesbian workers in the United States reported an experience with some form of job discrimination related
to sexual orientation; almost one out of every 10 gay or lesbian adults also stated that they had been
fired or dismissed unfairly from a previous job, or pressured to quit a job because of their sexual
orientation;

Atlanta, San Francisco, Seattle and Los Angeles have adopted legislation restricting business with
companies that do not guarantee equal treatment for lesbian and gay employees;

Fourteen states, the District of Columbia and more than 150 cities and counties, including the city of
Dallas, have laws prohibiting employment discrimination based on sexual orientation;

Our company has operations in, and makes sales to institutions in states and cities that prohibit
discrimination cn the basis of sexual orientation;

National public opinion polls consistently find more than three quarters of the American people support
equal rights in the workplace for gay men, lesbians and bisexuals; for example, in a Gallup poll
conducted in June 2001, 85% of respondents favored equal opportunity in employment for gays and
lesbians;

RESOLVED: The Shareholders request that ExxonMobil amend its written equal employment
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opportunity policy to explicitly prohibit discrimination based on sexual orientation and to substantially
implement that policy.

SUPPORTING STATEMENT: Employment discrimination on the basis of sexual orientation ,
diminishes employee morale and productivity. Because state and local laws are inconsistent with respect
to employment discrimination, our company would benefit from a consistent, corporate-wide policy to
enhance efforts to prevent discrimination, resolve complaints internally, and ensure a respectful and
supportive atmosphere for all employees. ExxonMobil will enhance its competitive edge by joining the
growing ranks of companies guaranteeing equal opportunity for all employees."

The Board recomamends you vote AGAINST this proposal for the following reasons:

. This proposal suggests that ExxonMobil condones discrimination based on sexual orientation,
which is false.

ExxonMobil has zero tolerance discrimination and harassment policies.

Our policies on discrimination and harassment in the Company workplace are comprehensive in
nature, are rigorously enforced, and are followed by all employees wherever we operate in the
world. ‘
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Our all-inclusive global policy, supported by comprehensive ongoing training, eliminates any
doubt among employees, supervisors, contractors, or anyone else in our worldwide operations that
discrimination and harassment for any reason, including sexual orientation, is prohibited.

Country-speciﬁé ﬁolicies are established only to recognize and honor the specific legal
requirements in countries where required.

In responding to this proposal for the sixth consecutive year, the Board reaffirms its strong
position that the Company's policies are comprehensive to meet worldwide operations, and
specific to meet country-specific laws and regulations. There has been no evidence of a problem
regarding discrimination on the basis of sexual orientation raised by the employees of
ExxonMobil.

The request to amend the Company's policies is unwarranted and unnecessary. Discrimination of
any form in the Company is not tolerated and the Company's steadfast adherence to these policies
ensures that is the case.

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSAL: CLIMATE SCIENCE REPORT
(Item 11 on the proxy card)

This proposal was submitted by Christian Brothers Investment Services, Inc., 90 Park Avenue, 29t
Floor, New York, New York 10016-1301, as lead proponent of a filing group. :

"Whereas:
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Corporations have a social responsibility to create value for shareholders and benefits for society.
However, companies acting to maximize shareholder value may in the course of business impose costs
on the public, including environmental degradation and climate change. 1t is in the long-term interest of
society to minimize these 'externalities,' partly because they may hamper economic growth.

Government is responsible for creating standards for business conduct that will ensure respect for the
environment and the public welfare. It is in the interest of shareholders for companies to act within a
legal and regulatory framework that is consistent, predictable and effective.

Effective policymaking requires the best possible information. Without the cooperation of business,
policymakers may lack crucial information that may impact the quality of regulation. Companies have a
responsibility to be as transparent as possible in providing information to the public and the government.
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- Whereas:

The Intér,goyg:_rmnpqtal Panel on Climate Change (IPCC), the international body of experts charged with
climate change fesearch, stated in its 2001 Third Assessment Report:

'There is new and stronger evidence that most of the warming observed over the last 50 years is
attributable to human activity...Human influences will continue to change atmospheric

composition throughout the 215 century.

The study describes climate impacts, such as higher global temperatures and increased precipitation, as
‘very likely.'

The National Academy of Sciences (NAS) concurs:

"The degree of confidence in the IPCC assessment is higher today than it was 10, or even five
years ago...there is general agreement that the observed warming is real and particularly strong
within the past 20 years.'

ExxonMobil has funded scientific studies and made public statements regarding the science of climate
change that appear to conflict with these conclusions. According to the June 2002 edition of ExxonMobil
Perspectives:

"There continue to be substantial and well-documented gaps in climate science. These gaps limit
scientists' ability to assess the extent of any human influence on climate...’'

Whereas:

A worldwide movement towards greater regulation to mitigate climate change has resulted from IPCC
reports. Consistent with its own position, ExxonMobil opposes most such regulation. Yet, it has not
released primary research or an analysis of data supporting its conclusions. The lack of such information
prevents shareholders, policymakers, and the public from being able to make decisions based on the
facts the compzany claims to have.
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Resolved: That, by the 2005 annual shareholder meeting, the Board of Directors make available to
shareholders all research data relevant to ExxonMobil's stated position on the science of climate change,
omitting proprietary information and at reasonable cost.

Supporting Statement: :

These data should:

1. Explain the specific differences between the company's position and that of the IPCC and NAS.

2. Describe company claims about 'gaps in climate science.'

3. Project the estimated costs of mitigating climate change compared to the costs of failing to do so.
45

4. Discuss all relevant peer reviewed research data leading to the company's conclusions, including

data that do not support the company's position."

The Board recornmends you vote AGAINST this proposal for the following reasons:

ExxonMotil's position on climate change is based on direct engagement in the ongoing scientific
process and not on any particular set of "data" from among the tens of thousands of papers and
research results published in this area.

- The recently released ExxonMobil 4 Report on Energy Trends, Greenhouse Gas Emissions and
Alternative Energy refers to the complex, interrelated set of issues and disciplines relevant to -~
climate change.

A

This repor: can be viewed and printed from our internet site at www.exxonmobil.com, or a copy
requested by using the "Contact Information" on page 3.

The scientific process on climate change is immense, complex and evolving with new information
emerging every month. Research has been well-funded by the U.S. government for many years, with
recent budgets in the neighborhood of two billion dollars per year. Relevant research covers natural
science, technology, economics, and policy analysis.

ExxonMobil has been an industry leader in climate science since 1980. Our scientists interact with
researchers at universities, national labs, and other institutions; as well as participate in and help to
organize research seminars, symposia, and workshops in which results and ideas are disseminated. Our
scientists have authored nearly 60 papers in scientific and technical publications on climate change (with
over 30 published in peer-reviewed journals). Our scientists have also been nominated to serve on
numerous review boards and assessments, including acting as lead authors with the Intergovernmental
Panel on Climate Change. We have supported, and in some cases helped to create, cutting edge climate-
related research at leading institutions, including Camegie Mellon University, Lamont-Doherty Earth
Observatory at Columbia University, MIT, Princeton, Yale, and Stanford.
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ExxonMobil's views on climate science are available to the public in 4 Report on Energy Trends,
Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Alternative Energy, scientific journals, and on our internet site at
www.exxonmobil.com. As explained in this response, these views are not based on any particular set of
climate data or papers, from among the thousands of lengthy publications that might be compiled in a
report as requested by the proponents. Rather, our views are based on long-term direct participation in,
and support for, climate science research.

Since our views o: climate science are not based on a specific set of climate data and research, the
Board believes that amassing information on climate science is not practical and no single report can
accurately represent the complexity of climate science.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Other Business

We are not currently aware of any other business to be acted on at the meeting. Under the laws of New
Jersey, where Ex:xonMobil is incorporated, no business other than procedural matters may be raised at
the meeting unless proper notice has been given to the shareholders. If other business is properly raised,
your proxies have authority to vote as they think best, including to adjourn the meeting.

People with Disabilities

We can provide reasonable assistance to help you participate in the meeting if you tell us about your
disability and your plans to attend. Please call or write the Secretary at least two weeks before the
meeting at the telephone number or address listed under "Contact Information" on page 3.

Outstanding Shares

On February 29, 2004, 6,559,511,302 shares of common stock were outstanding. Each common share
has one vote.

How We Solicit Proxies

In addition to this mailing, ExxonMobil officers and employees may solicit proxies personally,
electronically, by telephone, or with additional mailings. ExxonMobil pays the costs of soliciting this
proxy. We are paying D. F. King & Co. a fee of $27,500 plus expenses to help with the solicitation. We
also reimburse brokers and other nominees for their expenses in sending these materials to you and
getting your voting instructions.

Shareholder Proposals for Next Year

Any shareholder proposal for the annual meeting in 2005 must be sent to the Secretary at the address of
ExxonMobil's principal executive office listed under "Contact Information" on page 3. The deadline for
receipt of a proposal to be considered for inclusion in the proxy statement is 5:00 p.m. Central Standard
Time on December 15, 2004. The deadline for notice of a proposal for which a shareholder will conduct
his or her own solicitation is February 28, 2005. On request, the Secretary will provide instructions for
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submitting proposals.
Duplicate Anpual Reports

Registered shareholders with multiple accounts may authorize ExxonMobil to discontinue mailing extra
summary annual reports by marking the "discontinue annual report mailing for this account" box on the
proxy card. If you vote via the internet or by telephone, you will also have the opportunity to indicate
that you wish to discontinue receiving extra annual reports. At least one account must continue to
receive an annual report. Eliminating these duplicate mailings will not affect receipt of future proxy
statements and proxy cards. ‘
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Also, you may call ExxonMobil Shareholder Services at the toll-free telephone number listed on page 3
at any time during the year to discontinue duplicate mailings.

Shareholders with the Same Addréss

If you share an address with one or more other ExxonMobil shareholders, we send only one annual
report and proxy statement to that address unless one or more shareholders at that address specifically
elect to receive separate mailings. We will promptly send a separate annual report and proxy statement
to a shareholder at a shared address on request. Shareholders with a shared address may also request us
to send separate annual reports and proxy statements in the future, or to send a single copy in the future
if we are currently sending multiple copies to the same address. All requests may be made by calling
ExxonMobil Shareholder Services at the telephone number listed under "Contact Information” on page
3.

Financial Section’

The year 2003 consolidated financial statements and auditor's report; management's discussion and
analysis of financial condition and results of operations; information concerning the quarterly financial
data for the past two fiscal years; and other information are provided in Appendix A.

SEC Form 10-K

Shareholders mey obtain a copy of the Company's Annual Report to the Securities and Exchange
Commission on Form 10-K without charge by writing to the Secretary at the address listed under
"Contact Information" on page 3 or by visiting ExxonMobil's internet site at www.exxonmobil.com.
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BUSINESS PRQFILE
Return on
Average Capital and
Earnings After Average Capital Capital Exploration
Income Taxes Employed Employed Expenditures
Financial _ 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
(miliions of dollars) (percent) {millions of dollars)
Upstream
United States ‘ $ 3905% 2,524 $ 13,508 § 13,264 289 19.0 § 2,125 § 2,357
Non-U.S. : 10,597 7,074 34,164 29,800 31.0 23.7 9,863 8,037
Total - - $ 14,5028 9,598 $ 47672 % 43,064 304 223 $ 11,988 $ 10,394
Downstream '
United Stgtes $ 1348 % 693 § 8,090 3 8060 167 86 $ 1244 % 980
Non-U.S.‘ 2,168 607 - 18,875 17,985 115 34 1,537 1,470
Total $ 3516 % 1,300 $ 26,965 $ 26,045 130 50 $ 2,781 § 2,450
Chemicals ) -
United States $ 381 % 384 $§ 5,194 § 5235 73 73 § 333 § 575
Non-U.S. 1,051 446 8,905 8,410 118 5.3 ) 359 379
Total $ 1432 % 830 § 14,099 § 13,645 102 6.1 § 692 § 954
Corporate and financing 1,510 (442) 6,637 4,878 —_ - 64 77
Merger related expenses — (275) — — —_ — — —
Discontinued operations — 449 — 710 — 632 — 80
Accounting change 550 — — —_ = - — —
Total $ 21,510 $ 11,460

facticnr s ds e S T i L

See Frequently Used Terms on pages A4 and A5 for a definition and calculation of capital employed and return on average
capital employed.

Operating 2003 2002 2003 2002
(thousands of barrels (thousands of barrels
daily) . daily)
Net liquids production . Petroleum product sales
United States 610 681 United States 2,729 2,731
Non-U.S. 1,906 1,815 Non-US. 5228 5,026
Total 2,516 2,49 Total 7957 17,957
(millions of cubic feet (thousands of barrels
daily) daily)
Natural gas production available
for sale Refinery throughput
United States 2,246 2,375 United States . 1,806 1,834
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Non-U.S.

7,873 3,077

Total

10,119 10,452

{thousands of oil-

Non-U.S.

Total
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3,704 3,609

5,510 5,443

(thousands of metric

equivalent barrels daily) tons)
Oil-equivalent production (7) 4,203 4,238 Chemical prime product sales
. United States 10,740 11,386
Non-U.S. 15,827 15,220
Total 26,567 26,606
(1) Gas converted to oil-equivalent at 6 million cubic Jfeet = 1 thousand barrels.
A2
FINANCIAL SUMMARY
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(millions of dollars, except per share amounts)
Sales and other operiting revenue (1)
Upstream ©8 21,330 § 16484 $ 18,567 § 21,509 § 14,565
Downstream 195,511 168,032 174,185 188,563 153,345
Chemicals 20,190 16,408 15,943 17,501 13,777
Other 23 25 20 23 72
Total $ 237,054 § 200,949 $ 208,715 $ 227,596 § 181,759
Earnings
Upstream $ 14,502 § 9,598 $§ 10,736 § 12,685 § 6,244
Downstream 3,516 1,300 4,227 3,418 1,227
Chemicals 1,432 830 707 1,161 1,354
Corporate and financing 1,510 (442) (142) (538) (511)
Merger related expenses — 275 (525) (920) (469)
Income from continuing operations $ 20960 $§ 11,011 $ 15,003 § 15,806 § 7,845
Discontinued operations — 449 102 184 65
Extraordinary gain ) — — 215 1,730 —
Accounting change 550 — — — —
Net income $ 21,510 § 11,460
DEECRENSRTEE ETRTEIS T
Net income per common share 5 324 §$ 1.69
Net income per common share — assuming _
dilution $ 323§ 1.68 § 221§ 252 § 1.12
Cash dividends per common share $ 0.980 § 0.920 § 0910 § 0.880 § 0.844
Net income to average shareholders' equity
(percent) 26.2 15.5 21.3 26.4 12.6
Net income to total revenues and other income
(percent) 8.7 5.6 7.2 7.6 4.3
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Working capital $ 7,574 § 5116 § 5,567 § 2208 $ (7,592)
Ratio of current assets to current liabilities 1.20 1.15 1.18 1.06 0.80
Additions to property, plant and equipment $ 12,859 § 11,437 $ 9,989 § 8,446 § 10,849
Property, plant and equipment, less allowances $ 104965 $§ 94940 § 89602 $§ 89,829 § 94,043
Total assets $ 174278 § 152,644 $§ 143,174 § 149,000 §$ 144,521
Exploration expenses, including dry holes $ 1,010 § 920 $§ 1,175 § 936 § 1,246
Research and development costs ) 618 % 631 § 603 § 564 § 630
. Long-term debt $ 4756 § 6,655 §$ 7099 § . 7280 § 8,402

Total debt $ 9545 § 10,748 § 10,802 $§ 13,441 §$ 18,972
Fixed charge coverage ratio (times) . 30.8 13.8 17.7 15.6 - 6.6
Debt to capital (percent) 9.3 12.2 12.4 15.4 220
Net debt to capital (percent) (1.2) 4.4 5.3 7.9 20.4
Shareholders' equity at year-end $ 89915 § 74597 § 73,161 $ 70,757 § 63,466
Shareholders' equity per common share b 1369 § 11.13 § 1074 § 1021 § 9.13
Average number of common shares outstanding

(millions) 6,634 6,753 6,868 6,953 6,906
Number of regular ernployees at year-end

(thousands) (2) 88.3 92.5 97.9 99.6 106.9
CORS employees nct included above

(thousands) (3) 174 - 16.8 19.9 18.7 15.7

(1) Sales and other operating revenue includes excise taxes of 323,855 million for 2003, $22,040 million for 2002,
321,907 million for 2001, $§22,356 miliion for 2000 and §21,646 million for 1999.

(2) Regular employees are defined as active executive, management, professional, technical and wage employees who
work full-time or part-time for the company and are covered by the company's benefit plans and programs.

(3) CORS empluyees are employees of company-operated retail sites.

A3

FREQUENTLY USED TERMS

Listed below are definitions of several of ExxonMobil's key business financial performance measures. These definitions
are provided to facilitate understanding of the terms and their calculation,

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS AND ASSET SALES

Cash flow from operations and asset sales is the sum of the net cash provided by operating activities and proceeds from
sales of subsidiaries, investments and property, plant and equipment from the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. This
cash flow is the total sources of cash from both operating the company's assets and from the divesting of assets. The
corporation employs a long-standing disciplined regular review process to ensure that all assets are contributing to the
company's strategic and financial objectives. Assets are divested when they are no longer meeting these objectives or are
worth considerably more to others. Because of the regular nature of this activity, we believe it is useful for investors to
consider sales proceeds together with cash provided by operating activities when evaluating cash available for investment in
the business and financing activities, including shareholder distributions.

Cash flow from operations and asset sales 2003 2002 2001
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(millions of dollars)

Net cash provided by operating activities | - § 28498 § 21,268 § 22,889
Sales of subsidiaries, investments and property, plant and equipment 2,290 2,793 1,078
Cash flow from operations and asset sales $ 30,788 § 24,061 $ 23,967

CAPITAL EMPLOYED

Capital employed is a measure of net investment. When viewed from the perspective of how the capital is used by the
businesses, it includes ExxonMobil's net share of property, plant and equipment and other assets less liabilities, excluding
both short-term and long-term debt. When viewed from the perspective of the sources of capital employed in total for the
corporation, it includes ExxonMobil's share of total debt and shareholders' equity. Both of these views include ExxonMobil's
share of amounts applicable to equity companies, which the corporation believes should be included to provxde a more
comprehensive measure of capital employed.

Capital employed . 2003 2002 2001

: : (millions of dollars)
Business uses: asset and liability perspective

Total assets $ 174278 $§ 152,644 § 143,174
Less liabilities and minority share of assets and liabilities
Total current liabilities excluding notes and loans payable (33,597) (29,082) (26,411)
Total long-term liabilities excluding long-term debt and equity of -
minority and preferred shareholders in affiliated companies (37,839) (35,449) (29,975)
Minority share of assets and liabilities - (4,945) 4,210) (3,985)
Add ExxonMobil share of debt-financed equity company net assets 4,151 4,795 5,182
Total capital employed $ 102,048 § 88,698 3 87,985

Total corporate sources: debt and equity perspective

Notes and loans payable $ 4,789 § 4,093 § 3,703
" Long-term debt ‘ 4,756 6,655 7,099
Shareholders' equity 89,915 74,597 73,161
Less minority share of total debt (1,563) (1,442) (1,160)
Add ExxonMobil share of equity company debt 4,151 4,795 5,182
Total capital employed : $ 102,048 $ 88,698 § 87,985

A4

RETURN ON AVERAGE CAPITAL EMPLOYED

Return on average capital employed (ROCE) is a performance measure ratio. From the perspective of the business
segments, ROCE is annual business segment earnings divided by average business segment capital employed (average of
beginning and end-of-year amounts). These segment earnings include ExxonMobil's share of segment earnings of equity
companies, consistznt with our capital employed definition, and exclude the cost of financing. The corporation's total ROCE
is net income excluding the after-tax cost of financing, divided by total corporate average capital employed. The corporation
has consistently applied its ROCE definition for many years and views it as the best measure of historical capital productivity
in our capital intensive long-term industry, both to evaluate management's performance and to demonstrate to shareholders
that capital has been used wisely over the long term. Additional measures, which tend to be more cash flow based, are used
for future investment decisions. .
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Return on average capital employed ' 2003 2002 2001

{millions of dollars)

Net income . | , $ 21,510 $§ 11,460 $ 15,320
Financing costs (after tax)
Third-party debt (69) (81) (96)
ExxonMobil share of equity companies (172) (227) (229)
All other financing costs — net (/) 1,775 127) (25)
Total financing costs 1,534 (435) (350)
Earnings excluding financing costs $ 19976 §
CTNTRCTIRIE L
Average capital employed $ 95373 §
Return on average capital employed — corporate total 20.9% 13.5% 17.8%
(1) "All other financing costs — net" in 2003 includes interest income (after tax) associated with the settlement of a U.S.

tax dispute.

A5

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

FUNCTIONAL EARNINGS 2003 2002 2001

(millions of dollars, except per share amounts)

Net income (U.S. GAAP)

Upstream '
United States _ $§ 3905 § 2524 § 3,933
Non-U.S. 10,597 7,074 6,803
Downstream '
United States 1,348 693 1,924
Non-U.S. , 2,168 607 2,303
Chemicals '
United States 381 384 298
Non-U.S. 1,051 446 409
Corporate and financing 1,510 (442) (142)
Merger related expenses . — @275) (525)
Income from continuing operations $ 20960 $ 11,011 § 15,003
Discontinued operations = 449 102
Extraordinary gain - — — 215
Accounting change 550 — —
Netincome (U.S. GAAP) $ 21,510 § 11,460 § 15320
GRS  CENREEEY e
Net income per common share (U.S. GAAP) 3 324 % 169 $ 223
Net income per common share — assuming dilution (U.S. GAAP) 3 323 § 168 $ 2.21
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Special items included in net income
Non-U.S. upstream

Gain on transfer of Ruhrgas shares , $ 1,700 3 — § —

U K. deferred income tax adjustment $ — ¥ 215) § —
Corporate and financing ‘

U.S. tax settlement ' $ 2230 § — —
Ab

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Statements in this discussion regarding expectations, plans and future events or conditions are forward-looking
statements. Actual future results, including production growth; financing sources; the resolution of contingencies; the effect
of changes in prices; interest rates and other market conditions; and environmental and capital expenditures could differ
materially depending on a number of factors, such as the outcome of commercial negotiations; changes in the supply of and
demand for crude oil, natural gas, and petroleum and petrochemical products; and other factors discussed herein and under
the caption "Factors Affecting Future Results" in Item 1 of ExxonMobil's 2003 Form 10-K.

OVERVIEW

The following discussion and analysis of ExxonMobil's financial results, as well as the accompanying financial
statements and related notes to consolidated financial statements to which they refer, are the responsibility of the
management of Exxon Mobil Corporation. The corporation's accounting and financial reporting fairly reflect its
straightforward business model involving the extracting, refining and marketing of hydrocarbons and hydrocarbon-based
products. The corporation's business model involves the production (or purchase), manufacture and sale of physical products,
and all commercial activities are directly in support of the underlying physical movement of goods.

This straightforward approach extends to the financing of the business. In evaluating business or investment
opportunities, the corporation views as economically equivalent any debt obligation, whether included on the face of the
consolidated balance sheet, or disclosed as other debt-like obligations in notes to the financial statements, 'such as
ExxonMobil's share of equity company debt and noncancelable, long-term operating leases. This consistent, conservative
approach to financing the capital intensive needs of the corporation has helped ExxonMobil to sustain the "triple-A" status of
its long-term debt securities for 85 years.

ExxonMobil, with its resource base, financial strength, disciplined investment approach and technology portfolio, is well
positioned to participate in substantial investments to deveiop new energy supplies. While commodity prices remain volatile
on a short-term basis depending on supply and demand, ExxonMobil's investment decisions are based on long-term outlooks,
using a disciplined approach in selecting and pursuing the most attractive investment opportunities. The corporate plan is a
fundamental annual management process that is the basis for setting near-term operating and capital objectives in addition to
providing the longer-term economic assumptions used for investment evaluation purposes. Annual volumes are based on
individual field production profiles which are also updated arnually. Prices for natural gas and other products sold under
contract are based on corporate plan assumptions developed annually by major region/contract and used for investment
evaluation purposes. Potential investment opportunities are tested over a wide range of economic scenarios to establish the
resiliency of each opportunity. Once investments are made, a reappraisal process is completed to ensure relevant lessons are
learned and improvements are incorporated into future projects. ExxonMobil views return on capital employed as the best
measure of historical capital productmty

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT AND OUTLOOK
Upstream

Economic growth is expected to remain the primary driver of energy demand. The corporation expects the global

http /Iwww.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/34088/000104746904011934/a2130444zdef14ah... 2/15/2005
,,,,, SR - O OO




Page 60 of 156

economy to grow at an average rate of about 3 percent per year through 2020. World energy demand should grow by about

2 percent per year, and hydrocarbons - oil, gas and coal — are expected to still account for about 80 percent of energy supply
by 2020.

Natural gas is expected to be the fastest growing primary energy source, capturing about one-third of all incremental
energy growth and approaching one-quarter of global energy supplies. Natural gas remains the primary choice of fuel to meet
worldwide electricity demand, which is expected to grow by about 3 percent per year. An area of significant interest is
development of a worldwide liquefied natural gas (LNG) market. The corporation expects the LNG market to quadruple by
2020, accounting for about 13 percent of total world gas demand. During the same period, ExxonMobil's LNG production is
expected to outpace market growth and increase by a factor of six. With equity positions in many of the largest remote gas
accumulations in the world, the corporation is positioned to benefit from its technology advances in gas hquefactlon
transportation and regasification that enable distant gas supplies to reach markets economically.

Meeting growing oil and gas demand will be a challenge, but new technologies will continue to extend the recoverable
hydrocarbon resource. The costs to develop these resources are large. According to the International Energy Agency's 2003
report on the world energy investment outlook, the investment required to meet total oil and gas energy demands through
2030 will average about $200 billion per year.

ExxonMobil has a large and diverse global portfolio of both developed and undeveloped acreage which helps mitigate
the overall political and technical risk of the corporation's upstream segment. As these resources are converted into
production volumes, the corporation expects a shift in the geographic mix of production volumes between now and 2010. For
example, oil and natural gas output from Africa, the Caspian region, the Middle East and Russia will more than double
during the next seven years based on current capital project execution plans. Currently these growth areas account for less
than 20 percent of the corporation's production. By the end of the decade they are expected to generate about 40 percent of
total volumes. Production from. established areas, including Europe and North America, will decline as a percentage of the
corporation's total production but still is expected to represent over half of 2010 volumes.

In addition to a changing geographic mix, there will also be a change in the type of opportunities from which volumes
are produced. Production from non-conventional sources using arctic technology, deepwater drilling and production systems,
heavy oil recovery processes and LNG is expected to grow from 20 percent to 40 percent of the corporation's output between
now and 201 0. :

A7

Downstream

The downstreain continues to experience significant volatility in industry margins. Refining margins are a function of
the difference between what a refinery pays for its raw materials (primarily crude oil) and the market prices for the range of
products produced (primarily gasoline, heating oil, jet fuel and fuel oil). Crude oil and many products are widely traded with
published prices, including those quoted on multiple exchanges around the world (e.g., New York Mercantile Exchange and
International Petroleum Exchange). Prices for these commodities (crude and various products) are determined by the
marketplace and are impacted by many industry factors, including global and reglonal supply/demand balances, inventory
levels, refinery operations, import/export balances, seasonality and weather. These prices and factors are continuously
monitored and input to decisions about which raw materials to buy, facilities to operate and products to make. However, there
are no reliable indicators of future market factors that accurately predict changes in margins from period to period.

The objectives of ExxonMobil's downstream strategies are to position the corporation to be the industry leader and
outperform competition under a variety of market conditions. These strategies inciude maintaining best-in-class operations in
all respects, maximizing value from leading-edge technology, capitalizing on integration with other ExxonMobil businesses,
and providing quality, valued products and services to the corporation's customers. ExxonMobil has an ownership interest in
45 refineries, located in 25 countries, with distillation capacity of 6.3 million barrels per day and lubricant basestock
manufacturing capacity of about 150 thousand barrels per day. ExxonMobil's fuels marketing business portfolio includes
operations in over 100 countries on six continents, serving a globally diverse customer base.

Chemicals
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Worldwide industry chemical demand grew 3 percent during 2003, primarily driven by demand growth in Asia. Demand
in the established North American markets remained relatively flat, with industrial production lagging the economic
recovery. European demand grew marginally. Growth in Asia slowed at the beginning of the year and recovered sharply
during the second half. Chalienged by high energy costs and volatile feedstock prices, industry margins improved slightly.
ExxonMobil's portfolio includes many of the largest-volume and highest-growth petrochemicals in the global economy. In
addition to being a werldwide supplier of primary petrochemical products, the corporation also has a diverse portfolio of less-
cyclical business lines. The corporation's competitive advantages are achieved through combinations of low cost feedstocks,
proprietary technology, operational excellence, product application expertise and synergies between businesses.

REVIEW OF 2003 AND 2002 RESULTS i

2003 2002 2001

(millions of doliars)

Income from Continuing Operations $ 20960 $§ 11,011 § 15,003
Discontinued operations — 449 102
Extraordinary gain — — 215
Accounting changg 550 — —

Net Income (U.S. GAAP) , | $ 21,510 11,460 § 15,320

Tl B “: RS T AN T Tk oty it e e ]

2003

Net income in 2003 was $21,510 million, an increase of $10,050 million from 2002. Excluding a $550 million positive
impact for the requir:d adoption of FAS 143 relating to accounting for asset retirement obligations, income from continuing
operations was $20,960 million. 2003 net income also included one-time special items of $2,230 million relating to the
positive settlement of a long-running U.S. tax dispute and $1,700 million from a gain on the transfer of shares in Ruhrgas
AG, a German gas transmission company. Revenues and other income for 2003 totaled $247 billion, up 21 percent from
2002. Interest expense in 2003 was $207 million compared to $398 million in 2002, reflecting lower debt levels and non-debt
related items.

Total assets at December 31, 2003 of $174 billion increased by approximately $21.6 billion from 2002, reflecting the
corporation's active investment program and the effect of the weaker U.S. dollar.

2002

Net income in 22002 was $11,460 million, a decrease of $3,860 million from 2001. Excluding earnings from
discontinued operations of $449 million, income from continuing operations in 2002 was $11,011 million. Excluding
‘earnings of $102 million from discontinued operations and an extraordinary gain of $215 million, income from continuing
operations in 2001 was $15,003 million. Revenues and other income for 2002 totaled $205 billion, down 4 percent from
2001. Interest expense in 2002 was $398 million compared to $293 million in 2001 primarily reflecting non-debt related
items.

Total assets at December 31, 2002 of $153 billion increased by approximately $9.5 billion from 2001 reflecting the
corporation’s active investment program and the effect of the weaker U.S. dollar.

Upstream
2003 2002 2001
(millions of dollars)
Upstream
United States $ 3905 $ 2524 § 3,933
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Non-U.S. ' 10,597 7,074 6,803

Total ' | 0§ 14502 § 9,598 § 10,736

iyt et Fimsirns R s s i R e e e

2003

Upstream earnings totaled $14,502 million, including $1,700 million from a gain on the transfer of shares in Ruhrgas
AG. Absent this, upstream earnings increased by $3,204 million from 2002 due to higher liquids and natural gas realizations.
Oil-equivalent production was up 1 percent versus 2002 excluding the effects of operational outages in the North Sea and
West Africa, the natinnal strike in Venezuela and price-related entitlement effects. Total actual oil-equivalent production was
down 1 percent. Liquids production of 2,516 kbd (thousands of barrels daily) increased 20 kbd from 2002. Production
increases from new projects in West Africa, Norway and Canada, and lower OPEC-drivén quota constraints, were partly
offset by natural field decline, operational problems in the North Sea and West Africa, and the impact of the national strike in
Venezuela. Natural gas production of 10,119 mcfd (millions of cubic feet daily) in 2003 compared with 10,452 mcfd in 2002.
Higher demand in the first half of the year in Europe and contributions from new projects and work programs were more than
offset by natural field decline, reduced entitlements and operational

A8

outages in the North Sea. Improved earnings from both U.S. and non-U.S. upstream operations were driven by higher liquids
and natural gas realizations. Earnings from U.S. upstream operations for 2003 were $3,905 million, an increase of

$1,381 million. Earnings outside the U.S. for 2003, including $1,700 million from a gain on the transfer of shares in Ruhrgas
AG, were $10,597 million. Farnings outside the U.S. for 2002, including a special charge of $215 million relating to a United
Kingdom tax rate change, were $7,074 million.

2002

Upstream earnings totaled $9,598 million, including a special charge of $215 million relating to the impact on deferred
taxes from the United Kingdom supplementary tax enacted in 2002, Absent this, upstream earnings of $9,813 million
decreased $923 million primarily due to lower natural gas realizations, particularly in North America, where prices reached
historical highs at the beginning of 2001. Higher crude oil realizations partly offset declines in natural gas prices. Oil-
equivalent production was up 1 percent versus 2001 excluding the impact of OPEC quota restrictions. Total actual oil-
equivalent production was flat as the resumption of full production at Arun and contributions from new projects and work
programs offset natural field declines and OPEC quota restrictions. Liquids production of 2,496 kbd decreased 46 kbd from
2001. Production increases from new projects in Angola, Canada, Malaysia and Venezuela offset natural field declines in
mature areas. OPEC quota restrictions increased in 2002. Excluding the effect of these restrictions, liquids production was
flat with 2001, Worldwide natural gas production of 10,452 mcfd in 2002 compared with 10,279 mcfd in 2001.
Improvements in Asia-Pacific volumes, mainly from the return to full production levels at the Arun field in Indonesia
following curtailments due to security concerns in 2001, more than offset lower weather-related demand in Europe and
natural field decline in the U.S. Weather-related demand in Europe reduced total gas volumes by about 1 percent. Earnings
from U.S. upstream operations for 2002 were $2,524 million, a decrease of $1,409 million due to fower gas realizations and
reduced gas and liquids volumes. Including the $215 million special charge relating to the United Kingdom tax rate change
reported in 2002, earnings outside the U.S. were $7,074 million, $271 million higher than 2001 with higher crude oil
realizations and increased gas and liquids volumes partly offset by lower gas realizations.

Downstream
2003 2002 2001
(millions of dollars)
Downstream
United States $ 1,348 3 693 § 1924
Non-U.S. 2,168 607_ 2,303
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Total : _ ‘ $ 3,516 $ 1,300 § 4,227

2003

Downstream earnings of $3,516 million increased by $2,216 million from 2002, reflecting higher worldwide refining
and marketing margins, Earnings also benefited from a planned reduction in inventories as a result of optimizing operations
around the world. Petroleum product sales of 7,957 kbd were 200 kbd higher than 2002, largely related to increased refinery
runs due to strong margins and higher demand for distillates. Refinery throughput was 5,510 kbd compared with 5,443 kbd in
2002. U.S. downstream earnings of $1,348 million increased by $655 million, reflecting higher refining and marketing
margins partly offset by increased refinery turnaround activity in the year. Non-U.S. downstream earnings of $2,168 million
were $1,561 million higher than 2002 due to higher refining and marketing margins, increased refinery runs and positive
inventory impacts.

2002

Downstream earnings of $1,300 million decreased by $2,927 million from a record 2001, reflecting significantly lower
refining margins in rnost geographical areas, and further weakness in marketing margins. Improved refining operations and
lower expenses provided a partial offset to the margin decline. Earnings also benefited from a planned reduction in
inventories as a result of optimizing operations around the world. Petroleum product sales of 7,757 kbd decreased 214 kbd
from 2001, largely r:lated to reduced refinery runs due to weak margins and lower demand for distillates and aviation fuels.
Refinery throughput was 5,443 kbd compared with 5,542 kbd in 2001, U.S. downstream earnings were $693 million, down
$1,231 million due to weaker refining margins. Earnmgs outside the U.S. of $607 million were $1,696 million lower than
2001 due to lower refining and marketing margins.

Chemicals

2003 2002 2001

(millions of dollars)
Chemicals
United States ' $ 381 § 384 $§ 298
Non-U.S. 1,051 446 409
Total $ 1,432

2003

Chemicals earnings of $1,432 million were up $602 million from 2002. Earnings benefited from improved worldwide
margins and favoreble foreign exchange effects. Prime product sales of 26,567 kt (thousands of metric tons) were in line with
record sales of 26,606 kt in 2002, Prime product sales are total chemical product sales including ExxonMobil's share of
equity-company volumes and finished-product transfers to the downstream business. Carbon black oil volumes are excluded.
U.S. chemicals earnings of $381 million were $3 million lower than 2002 with higher margins offset by lower volumes on
weaker demand. Non-U.S. chemicals earnings of $1,051 million were $6035 million higher than 2002 due to higher margins,
strong demand in Asia and favorable foreign exchange effects.

A9

2002

Chemicals ezrnings of $830 million for 2002 were $123 million higher than 2001. Earnings benefited from record prime

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/34088/000104746904011934/a2130444zdef14a.h... 2/15/2005




Page 64 of 156

product sales volumes of 26,606 kt which were 3 percent above 2001, reflecting capacity additions in Singapore and Saudi

~ Arabia. Worldwide chemicals margins remained weak during 2002.

All Other Segments

2003 2002 2001
(millions of dollars)
All Other Segments
" Corporate and financing $ 1,510 § (442) § (142)
Merger expenses — (275) (525)
Discontinued operitions , — 449 102
Extraordinary gain — — 215
Accounting change 550 — —
Total $ 2,060 $ (268) § (350)
ETRNTETESY  CERCIET  RNTOETEERd
2003

All other segments totaled a gain of $2,060 million in 2003 compared to a loss of $268 million in 2002.

Corporate and financing in 2003, including $2,230 million relating to the settlement of a long-running U.S. tax dispute,
contributed $1,510 million to earnings. Excluding this settlement, corporate and financing expenses increased by
$278 million mainly due to higher U.S. pension expense.

Merger related activities were completed in 2002 and net income included $275 million of merger related expenses. Net
income in 2002 also included discontinued operations earnings of $449 million, including a gain associated with the sale of
the Chilean copper business.

2002
All other segments represented a loss of $268 million in 2002 compared to a loss of $350 million in 2001,

Corporate and financing expenses increased $300 million to $442 million, primarily due to higher U.S. pension expense,
reflecting lower returns on fund assets and the effects of lower interest rates and lower cash balances on interest income.
Merger related expenses decreased $250 million to $275 million reflecting the completion of merger related activities at year-
end 2002. Discontinued operations earnings of $449 million, including a gain associated with the sale of the Chilean copper
business, compared to $102 million in 2001.

Accounting Change

As of January 1, 2003, the corporation adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 143 (FAS 143), "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” The primary impact of FAS 143
is to change the method of accruing for upstream site restoration costs. Asset retirement obligations are not recorded for

. downstream and chemical facilities because such potential obligations cannot be measured since it is not possible to estimate

the settlement dates.

Upstream costs were previously accrued ratably over the productive lives of the assets in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 19 (FAS 19), "Financial Accounting and Reporting by Oil and Gas Producing
Companies." At the end 0of 2002, the cumulative amount accrued under FAS 19 was approximately $3.5 billion. Under
FAS 143, the fair values of asset retirement obligations are recorded as liabilities on a discounted basis when they are
incurred, which is typically at the time the assets are installed. Amounts recorded for the related assets will be increased by
the amount of these obligations. Over time the liabilities will be accreted for the change in their present value and the initial
capitalized costs will be depreciated over the useful lives of the related assets.
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The cumulative adjustment for the change in accounting principle reported in the first quarter of 2003 was after-tax
income of $550 millicn (net of $442 million of income tax effects, including ExxonMobil's share of related equity company
income taxes of $51 million), or $0.08 per common share. The effect of this accounting change on the balance sheet was a
$0.3 billion increase t property, plant and equipment, a $0.6 billion reduction to the accrued liability and a $0.4 billion
increase in deferred iricome tax liabilities.

This adjustment is due to the difference in the method of accruing site restoration costs under FAS 143 compared with
the method required by FAS 19, the accounting standard that the corporation has been required to follow since 1978. Under
FAS 19, site restoration costs were accrued on a unit-of-production basis of accounting as the oil and gas was produced. The
FAS 19 method matched the accruals with the revenues generated from production and resulted in most of the costs being
accrued early in field life, when production is at the highest level. Because FAS 143 requires accretion of the liability as a
result of the passage of time using an interest method of allocation, the majority of the costs will be accrued toward the end of
field life, when production is at the lowest level. The cumulative income adjustment described above resulted from reversing
the higher liability accumulated under FAS 19 in order to adjust it to the lower present value amount resulting from transition
to FAS 143, This amount being reversed in transition, which was previously charged to operating earnings under FAS 19,
will again be charged to those earnings under FAS 143 in future years.

If FAS 143 had %een in effect in 2002, net income that would have been reported would not have been materially
different from the net income that was reported under FAS 19. The effect of FAS 143 on net income in the current year
period is also not material.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Sources and Uses-of Cash

2003 2002

{millions of dollars)

Net cash provided by/(used in) .
Operating activitics : $ 28498 § 21,268

Investing activities (10,842) (9,758)
Financing activitics (14,763) (11,353)
Effect of exchange rate changes 504 525

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ‘ b 3397 § 682

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 10,626 $ 7,229

Cash and cash equivalents were $10,626 million at the end of 2003, an increase of $3,397 million, including $504 million of
foreign exchange rate effects from the generally weaker U.S. dollar. Cash and cash equivalents increased $682 million in
2002, including $525 million due to foreign

AlO

exchange, to end the year at $7,229 million. Cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities are discussed
below. For additional details, see the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows on page A24.

Although the corporation issues long-term debt from time to time and maintains a revolving commercial paper program,
internally generated funds cover the majority of its financial requirements. The management of cash that may be temporarily
available as surplus to the corporation's immediate needs is carefully controlled, both to optimize returns on cash balances,
and to ensure that it is secure and readily available to meet the corporation's cash requirements as they arise.

Production from existing oil and gas fields has declined about 6 percent on average over the past two years and is
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expected to continue to decline in the future at approximately the same rate. The impact on cash flows from production is
highly dependent on crude oil and natural gas prices. Decline rates vary widely by individual field and the overall decline rate
for a geographical area will be heavily influenced by the type of reservoir and age of the fields in that region.

The corporation will need to continually find and develop new fields, and continue to develop and apply new
technologies and recovery processes to existing fields, in order to maintain or increase production and resulting cash flows in
future periods. The corporation has been successful in offsetting the effects of field decline through these measures and
anticipates similar results in the future. Projects are in place, or underway, to increase production capacity. However, these
volume increases are subject to a variety of risks including project execution, operational outages, reservoir performance and
regulatory changes.

The corporation's financial strength, as evidenced by its AAA/Aaa debt rating, enables it to make large, long-term
capital expenditures. ExxonMobil anticipates spending approximately $80 billion over the next eight years on upstream
capital and exploration expenditures. The corporation has a large and diverse portfolio of development projects and
exploration opportunities which helps mitigate the overall political and technical risks of the company's upstream segment
and associated cash flow. Further, due to its financial strength, debt capacity and diverse portfolio of opportunities, the risk
“ associated with failure or delay of any single project would not have a significant impact on the corporation's liquidity or
ability to generate sufficient cash flows for operations and its fixed commitments. The purchase and sale of oil and gas
properties have not had a significant impact on the amount or timing of operating cash flows.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
2003

Cash provided by operatinig activities totaled $28.5 billion in 2003, a $7.2 biltion increase from 2002 influenced by -
higher net income. Major sources of funds were net income of $21.5 billion and non-cash provisions of $9.0 billion for
depreciation and depletion.

In 2003, ExxonMobil completed a divestment of interests in shares of Ruhrgas AG, a German gas transmission
company. These shares were held in part by BEB Erdgas und Erdoe! GmbH (BEB), an investment accounted for by the
equity method, and in part by a consolidated affiliate in Germany. In 2002, cash in the amount of $1,466 million was
received from BEB, an equity company, and included in cash flows from operating activities (see Ruhrgas transaction line on
Statement of Cash Flows, page A24). This cash from BEB was a loan and was part of a restructuring that enabled BEB to
transfer its holdings in Ruhrgas AG provided regulatory approval was received. No income was recorded in 2002.

In 2003, upon receipt of regulatory approvals, the Ruhrgas AG shares held by BEB were transferred, cash was received
for the shares held by the consclidated affiliate and a one-time gain of $1,700 million after tax was recognized in net income.
The $2,240 million reduction in 2003 cash flow from operating activities reflects the pre-tax gains from the transaction. The
cash generated from these gains for the BEB portion of the transaction was reported in 2002. For the shares held by the
consolidated affiliatz, the cash received was reported in cash flows from investing activities in 2003..

2002

Cash provided by operating activities totaled $21.3 billion, down $1.6 billion from 2001. Major sources of funds were
net income of $11.5 billion and non-cash provisions of $8.3 billion for depreciation and depletion. Cash from operating
activities included $1,466 million of funds received from BEB, a German exploration and production company. The funds
were loaned in conniection with a restructuring that would enable BEB to transfer its holdings in Ruhrgas AG. Net income
was recognized in 2003 upon finalization of regulatory reviews and completion of the transfer of the Ruhrgas AG shares.

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
2003

Cash used in iavesting activities totaled $10.8 billion in 2003, $1.0 billion higher than 2002. Spending for property,
plant and equipmerit increased $1.4 billion, continuing to reflect the company’s active investment program. Proceeds from the
sales of subsidiaries, investments and property, plant and equipment in 2003 were $2.3 billion, including $1.2 billion from
the sale of an interest in Ruhrgas AG partly held by a consolidated affiliate.

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/34088/000104746904011934/a2130444zdef14a.h... 2/15/2005




Page 67 of 156

2002

Cash used in investing activities totaled $9.8 billion, $1.6 billion higher than 2001 and included increased spending for
property, plant and equipment and other investments and advances. Proceeds from the sales of subsidiaries, investments and
property, plant and equipment were $2.8 billion, including the divestment of Colombian coal operations and the company's
copper business in Chile in 2002.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities
2003 :

Cash used in financing activities was $14.8 billion, an'increase of $3.4 billion from 2002, reflecting higher levels of debt
reductions and purchases of ExxonMobil shares. Dividend payments on common shares increased to $0.98 per share from
$0.92 per share and totaled $6.5 billion, a payout of 30 percent. Total consolidated short-term and long-term debt declined
$1.2 billion to $9.5 billion at year-end 2003. Shareholders' equity increased $15.3 billion in 2003, to $89.9 billion, reflecting
$21.5 billion of net income partly offset by $6.5 billion of dividends paid to ExxonMobil shareholders and $5.4 billion of net
purchases of shares of ExxonMobil stock. Shareholders’ equity, and net assets and liabilities, also increased $4.4 billion,
representing the foreign exchange translation effects of stronger foreign currencies on ExxonMobil's operations outside the
U.s.

During 2003, E:cxon Mobil Corporation purchased 163 million shares of its common stock for the treasury at a gross
cost of $5.9 billion. These purchases were to offset shares issued in conjunction with

All

company benefit plans and programs and to reduce the number of shares outstanding. Shares outstanding were reduced from
6,700 million at the end of 2002 to 6,568 million at the end of 2003. Purchases were made in both the open market and
through negotiated t-ansactions. Purchases may be increased, decreased or discontinued at any time without prior notice.

2002

Cash used in financing activities was $11.4 billion, down $3.7 billion, reflecting lower debt reductions. Dividend
payments on common shares increased to $0.92 per share from $0.91 per share and totaled $6.2 billion, a payout of
54 percent. Total consolidated short-term and long-term debt was comparable at $10.7 billion. Shareholders' equity increased
by $1.4 billion to $74.6 billion.

During 2002, Exxon Mobil Corporation purchased 127 million shares of its common stock for the treasury at a gross
cost of $4.8 billion. These purchases were to offset shares issued in conjunction with company benefit plans and programs
and to reduce the number of shares outstanding. Shares outstanding were reduced from 6,809 million at the end of 2001 to
6,700 million at the end of 2002. Purchases were made in both the open market and through negotiated transactions.

Commitments

Set forth belovv is information about the corporation's commitments outstanding at December 31, 2003. It provides data
for easy reference from the consolidated balance sheet and from individual notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Payments Due by Period

Note 2009 2003 2002
Reference 2005- and Total Total
Commitments Number 2004 2008 Beyond Amount Amount

(millions of dollars)

Long-term debt (1) 15 $ — 3 877 § 3,879 8 4,756 $ 6,655
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- in one year (2) 1,903 — — 1,903 884

Asset retirement obligations (3) » 10 125 461 2,854 3,440 3,454
Pension obligations (4) 18 - 1,180 1,720 4,937 7,837 9,385
Operating leases (5) : 11 1,299 2,730 2,160 6,189 6,945
Unconditional purchase obligations (6) 17 520 1,703 2,563 4,78 3,649
Take-or-pay obligations (7) 833 1,874 1,340 4,047 3475
Firm capital commitments (8) 4,251 2,173 595 7,019 8,449

This table excludes commodity purchase obligations for which an active, highly-liquid market exists and which are
expected to be re-sold shortly after purchase. Inclusion of such amounts would not be meaningful in assessing liquidity and
cash flow, since such purchases will be offset in the same periods by cash received from sales.

Notes:

(D Includes capitalized lease obligations of $370 million. Long-term debt amounts exclude the corporation's share of
equity company debt, which is included in the calculation of return on average capital employed as shown on
page AS.

) The amount clue in one year is inciuded in notes and loans payable of $4,789 million (note 7).

3) The discountcd present value of upstream asset retirement obligations, primarily asset removal costs at the completion
of field life.

(4)  The amount by which accumulated benefit obligations (ABO) exceeded the fair value of fund assets for certain U.S,
and non-U.S. plans at year end (note 18 on page A43). For funded pension plans, this difference was $3.0 billion at
December 31, 2003 (U.S. $0.5 billion, non-U.S. $2.5 biilion). For unfunded plans, this was the ABO amount of
$4.9 billion (U.S. $1.0 billion, non-U.S. $3.9 billion). The payments by period include expected contributions to
funded pension plans in 2004 and estimated benefit payments for unfunded plans in all years.

) Minimum commitments for operating leases, shown on an undlscounted basis, cover drilling equipment, tankers,
service stations and other properties.

6) Unconditional purchase obligations (UPOs) are those ]ong-term commitments that are noncancelable and that third

- parties have used to secure financing for the facilities that will provide the contracted goods or services. The
undiscounted obligations of $4,786 million mainly pertain to pipeline throughput agreements and include
$1,887 million of obligations to equity companies. The present value of the total commitments, excluding imputed
interest of $1,543 million, was $3,243 million.

7 Take-or-pay obligations are noncancelable, Jong-term commitments for goods and services other than uncondmonal
purchase obligations. The undiscounted obligations of $4,047 million mainly pertain to transportation, refining and
natural gas purchases and include $622 million of obligations to equity companies. The present value of the total
commitments, excluding imputed interest of $663 million, totaled $3,384 million.

(8) Firm commitments related to capital projects, shown on an undiscounted basis, totaled approximately $7.0 billion at
the end of 2003, compared with $8.4 billion at the end of 2002. These commitments were predominantly associated
with upstream projects outside the U.S., of which the largest single commitment outstanding at the end of 2003 was
$1.6 billion associated with the development of crude oil and natural gas resources in Malaysia. The corporation
expects to fund the majority of these commitments through internal cash flow.

Guarantees
Equity QOther
Company Third Party
Obligations © Obligations Total

{milliouns of dollars)

Guarantees of excise taxes/customs duties under reciprocal

arrangements $ — 983 § 983
Other guarantees ’ 1,872 - 424 2,296
Total $ 1,872 $ 1,407 § 3,279

The corporation and certain of its consolidated subsidiaries were contingently liable at December 31, 2003 for
$3,279 million, primarily relating to guarantees for notes, loans and performance under contracts (note 17). This included
$983 million representing guarantees of non-U.S. excise taxes and customs duties of other companies, entered into as a
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normal business practice, under reciprocal arrangements. Also included in this amount were guarantees by consolidated
affiliates of $1,872 mililion, representing ExxonMobil's share of obligations of

Al2

certain equity companies. The above-mentioned guarantees are not reasonably likely to have a material current or future
effect on the corporation's financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations,
liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.

Financial Strength

On December 31, 2003, unused credit lines for short-term financing totaled approximately $4.3 billion (note 7 on
page A28).

The table below shows the corporation's fixed charge coverage and consolidated debt to capital ratios. The data
demonstrate the corporation’s creditworthiness. Throughout this period, the corporation's long-term debt securities
maintained the top cradit rating from both Standard and Poor's (AAA) and Moody's (Aaa), a rating it has sustained for
85 years. ’

2003 2002 2001
Fixed charge covefage ratio (times) ) 30.8 13.8 17.7
Debt to capital (percent) 9.3 12.2 12.4
Net debt to capital (percent) (1) (1.2) 44 53
Credit rating AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa

(1) Debt net of a’l cash

Management views the corporation's financial strength, as evidenced by the above financial ratios and other similar
measures, to be a competitive advantage of strategic importance. The corporation's sound financial position gives it the
opportunity to acces: the world's capital markets in the full range of market conditions, and enables the corporation to take on
large, long-term capital commitments in the pursuit of maximizing shareholder value.

In addition to the above commitments, the corporation makes limited use of derivative instruments, which are discussed
in Risk Managemen: on page A15 and note 14 on page A33.

Litigation and Other Contingencies

As discussed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements, a number of lawsuits, including class actions, were
brought in various courts against Exxon Mobil Corporation and certain of its subsidiaries relating to the accidental release of
crude oil from the tanker Exxon Valdez in 1989. The vast majority of the compensatory claims have been resolved. All of the
punitive damage claims were consolidated in the civil trial that began in May 1994.

In that trial, on September 24, 1996, the United States District Court for the District of Alaska entered a judgment in the
amount of $5 billion in punitive damages to a class composed of all persons and entities who asserted claims for punitive
damages from the corporation as a result of the Exxon Valdez grounding. ExxonMobil appealed the judgment. On
November 7, 2001, the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit vacated the punitive damage award as being
excessive under the Constitution and remanded the case to the District Court for it to determine the amount of the punitive
damage award consistent with the Ninth Circuit's holding. The Ninth Circuit upheld the compensatory damage award which
has been paid. On December 6, 2002, the District Court reduced the punitive damage award from $5 billion to $4 billion.
Both the plaintiffs and ExxonMobil appealed that decision to the Ninth Circuit. The Ninth Circuit panel vacated the District
Court's $4 billion punitive damage award without argument and sent the case back for the District Court to reconsider in light
of the recent U.S. Supreme Court decision in Campbell v. State Farm. On January 28, 2004, the District Court reinstated the
punitive damage avrard at $4.5 billion plus interest. ExxonMobil will appeal the decision to the Ninth Circuit. Management
believes that the likelihood of the jury verdict being upheld is remote. While it is reasonably possible that a liability may have
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been incurred arising from the Exxon Valdez grounding, it is not possible to predict the ultimate outcome or to reasonably
estimate any such potential liability.

On December 1¢, 2000, a jury in Montgomery County, Alabama, returned a verdict against the corporation in a dispute
over royalties in the amount of $87.69 million in compensatory damages and $3.42 billion in punitive damages in the case of
Exxon Corporation v. State of Alabama, et al. The verdict was upheld by the trial court on May 4, 2001. On December 20,
2002, the Alabama Supreme Court vacated the $3.5 billion jury verdict. The case was retried and on November 14, 2003, a
state district court jury in Montgomery, Alabama returned a verdict against Exxon Mobil Corporation. The verdict included
$63.5 million in compensatory damages and $11.8 billion in punitive damages. ExxonMobil believes the verdict is not
justified by the evidence and that the amount of the award is grossly excessive and unconstitutional. ExxonMobil will appeal
the decision. Management believes that the likelihood of the jury verdict being upheld is remote. While it is reasonably
possible that a liability may have been incurred by ExxonMobil from this dispute over royalties, it is not possible to predict
the ultimate outcome or to reasonably estimate any such potential liability.

On May 22, 2001, a state court jury in New Orleans, Louisiana, returned a verdict against the corporation and three
other entities in a case brought by a landowner claiming damage to his property. The property had been leased by the
landowner to a company that performed pipe cleaning and storage services for customers, including the corporation. The jury
awarded the plaintiff $56 million in compensatory damages (90 percent to be paid by the corporation) and $1 billion in
punitive damages (all to be paid by the corporation). The damage related to the presence of naturally occurring radioactive
material (NORM) on the site resulting from pipe cleaning operations. The award has been upheld at the trial court.
ExxonMobil has appzaled the judgment to the Louisiana Fourth Circuit Court of Appeals and believes that the judgment
should be set aside o: substantially reduced on factual and constitutional grounds. Management believes that the likelihood of
the jury verdict being upheld is remote. While it is reasonably possible that a liability may have been incurred by
ExxonMobil from this dispute over property damages, it is not possible to predict the ultimate outcome or to reasonably
estimate any such potential liability.

Issues pending before the U.S. Tax Court for 1979 have been resolved. While issues for 1980-93 remain pending before
the court, the ultimate resolution of these issues is not expected to have a materially adverse effect upon the corporation’s
operations or financial condition.

Based on a consideration of all relevant facts and circumstances, the corporation does not believe the ultimate outcome
of any currently pending lawsuit against ExxonMobil will have a materially adverse effect upon the corporation's operations
or financial condition. There are no events or uncertainties known to management beyond those already included in reported
financial information that would indicate a material change in future operating results or financial condition.

Al3
CAPITAL AND EXPLORATION EXPENDITURES
2003 2002
U.s. Non-U.S. U.S. Non-U.S.
(millions of dollars)

Upstream (1) $ 2,125 §$ 9,863 3§ 2357 % 8,037
Downstream ' 1,244 1,537 980 1,470
Chemicals 333 359 575 379
Other 64 — 45 112

Total $ 3,766 $ 11,759 § 3,957 § 9,998

m Exploration expenses included
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Capital and exploration expenditures in 2003 were $15.5 billion, up from $14.0 billion in 2002, reflecting the
corporation's active investment program and impacts of the weaker U.S. dollar. Capital and exploration expenditures in the
U.S. totaled $3.8 billion in 2003, down $0.2 billion from 2002, reflecting lower spending in the upstream and chemicals,
partly offset by increzsed spending in the downstream, Spending outside the U.S. of $11.8 billion was up $1.8 billion from
2002, reflecting higher expenditures in the upstream, partly offset by lower expenditures in chemicals.

Upstream spending was up 15 percent to $12.0 billion in 2003, from $10.4 billion in 2002, as a result of higher spending
on major projects in Africa, the Caspian, Qatar and Russia. These increases were partly offset by lower development drilling
in the U.S. and United Kingdom. Capital investments in the downstream totaled $2.8 billion in 2003, up $0.3 billion from
2002, primarily reflecting investments in cogeneration plants in North America and increased spending required for low-
sulfur motor fuels. Chemicals capital expenditures were $0.7 billion in 2003, down $0.3 billion from 2002, due to lower
spending on base activities and the absence of the acquisition of the joint venture partner's interest in Advanced Elastomers
Systems in 2002.

TAXES
2003 2002 2001
{millions of dollars)

Income taxes : § 11,006 $ 6,499 $§ 8,967
Excise taxes 23,855 22,040 21,907
All other taxes and duties 40,107 35,746 35,653

Total o $ 74968 § 64,285 § 66,527

FEEIR ) COSMETEENTSR  NRUTEENEETES

Total effective tax rate 36.4% 39.8% 39.3%
2003

Income, excise and all other taxes totaled $75.0 billion in 2003, an increase of $10.7 billion or 17 percent from 2002,
Income tax expense, both current and deferred, was $11.0 billion, $4.5 billion higher than 2002, reflecting higher pre-tax
income in 2003. The effective tax rate was 36.4 percent in 2003. Excluding the income tax effects of the 2003 gain on the
Ruhrgas AG share transfer and settlement of a U.S. tax dispute, the effective rate in 2003 was similar to the prior year.
During both periods, the corporation continued to benefit from the favorable resolution of other tax-related issues. Excise and
all other taxes and duties of $64.0 billion in 2003 mcreased $6.2 billion from 2002, reflecting higher prices and foreign
exchange effects.

2002

Income, excise and all other taxes and duties totaled $64.3 billion in 2002, a decrease of $2.2 billion or 3 percent from
2001. Income tax expense, both current and deferred, was $6.5 billion compared to $9.0 billion in 2001, reflecting lower pre-
tax income in 2002. The effective tax rate of 39.8 percent in 2002 compared to 39.3 percent in 2001. During 2002, the
company continued to benefit from favorable resolution of tax-related issues. Excise and all other taxes and duties were
$57.8 billion.

MERGER EXPENSES AND REORGANIZATION RESERVES

In association with the merger between Exxon and Mobil, $410 million pre-tax ($275 million after-tax) and
$748 million pre-tax ($525 million after-tax) of costs were recorded as merger related expenses in 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Charges included separation expenses related to workforce reductions (approximately 8,200 employees at year-
end 2002), plus implementation and merger closing costs. The separation reserve balance at year-end 2003 of approximately
$48 million is expected to be expended mainly in 2004. Merger related expenses for the period 1999 to 2002 cumulatively
totaled approximan ly $3.2 billion pre-tax. Pre-tax operating synergies associated with the merger, including cost savings,
efficiency gains and revenue enhancements, cumulatively reached over $7 billion by 2002 Reflecting the completion of
merger related activities, merger expenses were not reported in 2003.

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/34088/000104746904011934/a2130444zdefl4a.h... 2/15/2005




rage /2ot 156
The following table summarizes the activity in the reorganization reserves. The 2001 opening balance represents
accruals for provisions taken in prior years,

Opening Balance at
Balance Additions Deductions Year End

(millions of doliars)

2001 . 3 339§ 187 § 329§ 197
2002 . 197 93 189 101
2003 101 . — 53 48

ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS AND ENVIRONMENTAL COSTS
Asset Retirement Obligations

The methodologry of accounting for asset retirement obligations was modified as of January 1, 2003 per FAS 143 (see
page A10, Accounting Change). The fair values of asset retirement obligations are recorded as liabilities on a discounted
basis when they are incurred, which is typically at the time assets are installed, with an offsetting amount booked as additions
to property, plant and equipment ($253 million for 2003). Over time, the liabilities are accreted for the increase in their
present value, with this effect included in expenses (3174 million in 2003). Payments made for asset retirement obligations in
2003 were $113 million and the ending balance of the obligations recorded on the balance sheet at December 31, 2003
totaled $3,440 millicn.

Environmental Costs

2003 2002

(millions of doHars)

Capital expenditures § 1,306 § 1,054
Included in expenses 1,497 1,289
Total . $ 2,803

o i s s

Al4

Throughout ExxonMobil's businesses, new and ongoing measures are taken to prevent and minimize the impact of our
operations on the air, water and ground. This includes a significant investment in refining technology to manufacture low-
sulfur motor fuels and projects to reduce nitrogen oxide and sulfur oxide emissions. ExxonMobil's 2003 worldwide
environmental costs for all such preventative and remediation steps were about $2.8 billion, of which $1.3 billion were
capital expenditures and $1.5 billion were included in expenses. The total cost for such activities is expected to decrease to
about $2.6 billion in both 2004 and 2005 (with capital expenditures representing just over 40 percent of the total). The
projected decrease reflects the near completion of low-sulfur motor fuels projects in Canada and the U.S., partly offset by
increases in Europe and Japan.

The corporaticn accrues liabilities for environmental liabilities when it is probable that obligations have been incurred
and the amounts can be reasonably estimated. This policy applies to assets or businesses currently owned or previously
disposed. ExxonMobil has accrued liabilities for probable environmental remediation obligations at various sites, including
multi-party sites where the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency has identified ExxonMobil as one of the potentially
responsible parties. The involvement of other financially responsible companies at these multi-party sites mitigates
ExxonMobil's actual joint and several liability exposure. At present, no individual site is expected to have losses material to
ExxonMobil's operations, financial condition or liquidity. Provisions made in 2003 for new environmental liabilities were
$275 million (included in the $1.5 billion of 2003 expenses noted above) and the balance sheet reflects accumulated
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liabilities of $528 miltion as of December 31, 2003 and $468 million as of December 31, 2‘002.

MARKET RISKS, INFLATION AND OTHER UNCERTAINTIES

Worldwide Average Realizations 2003 2002 2001

Crude oil and NGL ($/barrel) ) 3 2664 $ 2225 § 21.10
Natural gas ($/kcf) 4.02 2.77 3.39.

Crude oil, natural gas, petroleum product and chemical prices have fluctuated widely in response to changing market forces.
The impacts of these price fluctuations on earnings from upstream operations, downstream operations and chemicals
operations have been varied, tending at times to be offsetting. Nonetheless, the global energy markets can give rise to
extended periods in which market conditions are adverse to one or more of the corporation's businesses. Such conditions,
along with the capital-intensive nature of the industry and very long lead times associated with many of our projects,
underscore the importance of maintaining a strong financial position. Management views the corporation's financial strength,
including the AAA and Aaa ratings of its long-term debt securities by Standard and Poor's and Moody's, as a competitive
advantage.

In general, segment results are not dependent on the ability to sell and/or purchase products to/from other segments.
Instead, where such sales take place, they are the result of efficiencies and competitive advantages of integrated
refinery/chemical complexes. Additionally, intersegment sales are market related. The products bought and sold between
segments can also be acquired in worldwide markets that have substantial liquidity, capacity and transportation capabilities.
About half of the corporation's intersegment sales are crude oil produced by the upstream and sold to the downstream. Other
intersegment sales-include those between refineries and chemical plants related to raw materials, feedstocks and finished
products.

Although price levels of crude oil and natural gas may rise or fall significantly over the short- to medium term due to
political events, OPEC actions and other factors, industry economics over the long term will continue to be driven by market
supply and demand. Accordingly, the corporation tests the viability of all of its assets based on long-term price projections.
The corporation's assessment is that its operations will continue to be successful in a variety of market conditions. This is the
outcome of disciplinzd investment and asset management programs. Investment opportunities are tested against a variety of
market conditions, including low price scenarios. As a result, investments that would succeed only in highly favorable price
environments are screened out of the investment plan.

The corporatior: has had an active asset management program in which under-performing assets are either improved to
acceptable levels or considered for divestment. The asset management program involves a disciplined, regular review to
ensure that all assets are contributing to the corporation's strategic and financial objectives. The result has been the creation of
a very efficient capital base and has meant that the corporation has seldom been required to write-down the carrying value of
~ assets, even during periods of low commodity prices.

Risk Management

The corporation's size, geographic diversity and the complementary nature of the upstream, downstream and chemicals
businesses mitigate the corporation'’s risk from changes in interest rates, currency rates and commodity prices. The
. corporation relies ori these operating attributes and strengths to reduce enterprise-wide risk. As a result, the corporation
makes limited use of derivatives to offset exposures arising from existing transactions.

The corporation does not trade in derivatives nor does it use derivatives with leverage features. The corporation
maintains a system of controls that includes a policy covering the authorization, reporting and monitoring of derivative
activity. The corporation's derivative activities pose no material credit or market risks to ExxonMobil's operations, financial
condition or liquidity. Interest rate, foreign exchange rate and commodity price exposures arising from derivative contracts
undertaken in accordance with the corporation’s policies have not been significant.

Derivatives ‘ 2003 2002 2001

(millions of dollars)
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Net receivable/(payable) §f (178 20 § (0
Net gain/(loss), before-tax v 4 (35) 23

The fair value of derivatives outstanding and recorded on the balance sheet are shown in the table above. This is the
amount that the corporation would have paid to or received from third parties if these derivatives had been settled. These
derivative fair values were substantially offset by the fair values of the underlying exposures being hedged. The gains/losses
before-tax include the offsetting amounts from the changes in fair value of the items being hedged by the derivatives. The fair
value of derivatives outstanding at year-end 2003 and gain recognized during the year are immaterial in relation to the
corporation's year-endl cash balance of $10.6 billion, total assets of $174.3 billion or net income for the year of $21.5 billion.

AlS

Debt-Related Instruments

The corporation is exposed to changes in interest rates, primarily as a result of its short-term debt and long-term debt
carrying floating interest rates. The corporation makes limited use of interest rate swap agreements to adjust the ratio of fixed
and floating rates in the debt portfolio. The impact of a 100 basis point change in interest rates affecting the corporation's debt
would not be material to earnings, cash flow or fair value.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Instruments

The corporation conducts business in many foreign currencies and is subject to foreign currency exchange rate risk on
cash flows related to sales, expenses, financing and investment transactions, The impacts of fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates on ExxonMobil's geographically diverse operations are varied and often offsetting in amount. The corporation
makes limited use of currency exchange contracts to reduce the risk of adverse foreign currency movements related to certain
foreign currency debt obligations. Exposure from market rate fluctuations related to these contracts is not material. Aggregate.
foreign exchange transaction gains and losses included in net income are discussed in note 5 on page A28.

Commodity Instruments -

The corporation makes limited use of commodity forwards, swaps and futures contracts of short duration to mitigate the
risk of unfavorable price movements on certain crude, natural gas and petroleum product purchases and sales. Commodity
price exposure related to these contracts is not material.

Inflation and Other Uncertainties

The general rate of inflation in most major countries of operation has been relatively low in recent years, and the
associated impact on costs has been countered by cost reductions from efficiency and productivity improvements.

The operations and earnings of the corporation and its affiliates throughout the world have been, and may in the future
be, affected from time to time in varying degree by political developments and laws and regulations, such as forced
divestiture of assets; restrictions on production, imports and exports; price controls; tax increases and retroactive tax claims;
expropriation of property; cancellation of contract rights and environmentali regulations. Both the likelihood of such
occurrences and their overall effect upon the corporation vary greatly from country to country and are not predictable.

RECENTLY ISSUED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In December 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued a revised Interpretation No. 46 (FIN 46),
"Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” replacing the original interpretation issued in January 2003. FIN 46 provides
guidance on when certain entities should be consolidated or the interests in those entities should be disclosed by enterprises
that do not control them through majority voting interest. Under FIN 46, entities are required to be consolidated by
enterprises that lack majority voting interest when equity investors of those entities have insignificant capital at risk or they
lack voting rights, the obligation to absorb expected losses, or the right to receive expected returns. Entities identified with
these characteristics are called variable interest entities and the interests that enterprises have in these entities are called
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variable interests. These interests can derive from certain guarantees, leases, loans or other arrangements that result in risks
and rewards that are disproportionate to the voting interests in the entities.

The provisions of FIN 46 must be immediately applied for variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003 and
for variable interests in entities commonly referred to as "special purpose entities." For all other variable interest entities,
implementation is required by March 31, 2004.

There have been no variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003 in which the corporation has an interest. The
corperation identified three venture operating entities in which the corporation has variable interests primarily through lease
commitments and certain guarantees extended by the corporation. The corporation chose to implement FIN 46 in the fourth
quarter 2003 by consolidating these entities, which were previously accounted for under the equity method. There was no
effect on net income, because the corporation was already recording its share of net income of these entities. The impact to
the balance sheet was to increase both assets and liabilities by about $500 million. However, there was no change to the
calculation of return on average capital employed, because the corporation already includes its share of equity company debt
in the determination of average capital employed.

REPORTING INVESTMENTS IN MINERAL INTERESTS IN OIL AND GAS PROPERTIES

Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141 (FAS 141), "Business Combinations," and No. 142 (FAS 142),
"Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” were issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) in June 2001 and
became effective for the corporation on July 1, 2001 and January 1, 2002, respectively. Currently, the Emerging Issues Task
Force (EITF) is considering the issue of whether FAS 141 and 142 require interests held under oil, gas and mineral leases to
be separately classified as intangible assets on the balance sheets of companies in the extractive industries. If such interests
were deemed to beintangible assets by the EITF, mineral rights to extract oil and gas for both undeveloped and developed
leaseholds would be classified separately from oil and gas properties as intangible assets on the corporation's balance sheet.
Historically the corporation has capitalized the cost of oil and gas leasehold interests in accordance with statement of
Financial Accounting Standard No. 19 (FAS 19), "Financial Accounting and Reporting by Oil and Gas Producing
Companies." Also, consistent with industry practice, the corporation has reported these assets as part of tangible oil and gas
property, plant and equipment.

This interpretation of FAS 141 and 142 would only affect the classification of*oil and gas leaseholds on the corporation’s
balance sheet, and would not affect total assets, net worth or cash flows. The corporation's results of operations would not be
affected, since these leasehold costs would continue to be amortized in accordance with FAS 19. The amount that is subject
to reclassification as of December 31, 2003 was $4.5 billion, and as of December 31, 2002 was $4.6 billion.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The corporation's accounting and financial reporting fairly reflect its straightforward business model involving the
extracting, refining and marketing of hydrocarbons and hydrocarbon-based products. The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires management to

Al6

make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities. The following summary provides further information about the critical accountmg policies
and the judgments that are made by the corporation in the application of those policies.

Qil and Gas Reserves

Evaluations of oil and gas reserves are important to the effective management 'of upstream assets. They are integral to
making investment decisions about oil and gas properties such as whether development should proceed or enhanced recovery
methods should be undertaken. Oil and gas reserve quantities are also used as the basis of calculating the unit-of-production
rates for depreciaticn and evaluating for impairment. Oil and gas reserves are divided between proved and unproved reserves.
Proved reserves are the estimated quantities of crude oil, natural gas and natural gas liquids that geological and engineering
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data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years from known reservoirs under existing economic
and operating conditions, i.e., prices and costs as of the date the estimate is made. Unproved reserves are those with less than
reasonable certainty of recoverability and are classified as either probable or possible. Probable reserves are reserves that are
more likely to be recovered than not and possible reserves are less likely to be recovered than not.

The estimation of proved reserves, which is based on the requirement of reasonable certainty, is an ongoing process
based on rigorous technical evaluations and extrapolations of well information such as flow rates and reservoir pressure
declines. In certain deepwater fields, proved reserves are recorded in a limited number of cases before flow tests are
conducted because of the safety and cost implications of conducting the tests. In those situations, other industry accepted
analyses are used such as information from well logs, a thorough pressure and fluid sampling program, conventional core
data obtained across the entire reservoir interval and nearby analog data. Historically, proved reserves recorded using these
methods have been immaterial when compared to the corporation's total proved reserves and have also been validated by
subsequent flow tests or actual production levels. Furthermore, the corporation only records proved reserves for projects
which have received significant funding commitments by management made toward the development of the reserves.
Although the corporation is reasonably certain that proved reserves will be produced, the timing and ultimate recovery can be
affected by a number of factors including completion of development projects, reservoir performance, regulatory approvals
and significant changes in projections of long-term oil and gas price levels.

At year-end 2003, proved oil and gas reserves were 21.2 billion oil-equivalent barrels. These proved reserves can be
further subdivided into developed and undeveloped reserves. The percentage of proved developed reserves has remained
relatively stable over the past five years at over 60 percent of total proved reserves, indicating that proved reserves are
consistently moved from undeveloped to developed status. Management is not aware of any factors that would significantly
change this historical relationship in the next several years. The corporation added 1.7 billion oil-equivalent barrels to proved
reserves in 2003. The majority of these additions were undeveloped reserves. Over time these reserves will be reclassified to
the developed category as new wells are drilled, existing wells are recompleted and/or facilities to collect and deliver the
production from existing and future wells are installed. Major development projects typically take two to four years from the
time of recording proved reserves to the start of production from these reserves. The corporation's 2003 proved reserves
additions replaced 108 percent of the 1.6 billion oil-equivalent barrels produced, excluding sales. With sales included, the
corporation replaced 106 percent of reserves produced. Both reserve replacement percentages exclude tar sands. This is the
tenth consecutive year that the corporation's reserves replacement has exceeded 100 percent.

Revisions can include upward or downward changes in the previously estimated volumes of proved reserves for existing
fields due to the evaluation of (1) already available geologic, reservoir or production data or (2) new geologic or reservoir
data obtained from vsells. Revisions can also include changes associated with the performance of improved recovery projects,
fiscal terms, and significant changes in development strategy, oil and gas prices, or production equipment/facility capacity.

The corporation uses the "successful efforts" method to account for its exploration and production activities. Under this
method, costs are accumulated on a field-by-field basis with certain exploratory expenditures and exploratory dry holes being
expensed as incurred. The corporation continues to carry as an asset the cost of drilling exploratory wells that find sufficient
quantities of reserves to justify their completion as producing wells if the required capital expenditure is made and drilling of
additional exploratory wells is under way or firmly planned for the near future. Once exploration activities demonstrate that
sufficient quantities of commercially producible reserves have been discovered, continued capitalization is dependent on
project reviews, which take place at least annually, to ensure that satisfactory progress toward uitimate development of the
reserves is being achieved. Exploratory well costs not meeting these criteria are charged to expense. Costs of productive
wells and development dry holes are capitalized and amortized on the unit-of-production method for each field. The
corporation uses this accounting policy instead of the "full cost” method because it provides a more timely accounting of the
success or failure of the corporation's exploration and production activities. If the full cost method were used, all costs would
be capitalized and depreciated on a country-by-country basis. The capitalized costs would be subject to an impairment test by
country. The full cost method would tend to delay the expense recognition of unsuccessful projects.

Impact of Oil and Gas Reserves on Depreciation. The calculation of unit-of-production depreciation is a critical
accounting estimate that measures the depreciation of upstream assets. It is the ratio of (1) actual volumes produced to
(2) total proved developed reserves (those proved reserves recoverable through existing wells with existing equipment and
operating methods) applied to the (3) asset cost. The volumes produced and asset cost are known and while proved developed
reserves have a high probability of recoverability they are based on estimates that are subject to some variability. This
variability has generally resulted in net upward revisions of proved reserves in existing fields, as more information becomes
available through research and production. Revisions have averaged 650 million oil-equivalent barrels per year over the last
five years, and have resulted from effective reservoir management and the application of new technology. While the upward
revisions the corporation has made in the past are an indicator of variability, they have had a very small impact on the unit-
of-production rates because they have been small compared to the large reserves base.
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Impact of Oil and Gas Reserves and Prices on Testing for Impairment. Proved oil and gas properties held and
used by the corporation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverabile. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are identifiable cash flows that are largely
independent of the cash flows of other groups of assets.

The corporation estimates the future undiscounted cash flows of the affected properties to judge the recoverability of
carrying amounts. In general, analyses are based on proved reserves. Where probable reserves exist, an appropriately risk-
adjusted amount of these reserves may be included in the impairment evaluation. An asset would be impaired if the
undiscounted cash flows were less than its carrying value. Impairments are measured by the amount by which the carrying
value exceeds its fair value.

The corporation performs asset valuation analyses on an ongoing basis as a part of its asset management program. These
analyses monitor the performance of assets against corporate objectives. They also assist the corporation in assessing whether
the carrying amounts of any of its assets may not be recoverable. In addition to estimating oil and gas reserve volumes in
conducting these anzalyses, it is also necessary to estimate future oil and gas prices. The impairment evaluation triggers
include a significant decrease in current and projected prices or reserve volumes, an accumulation of project costs
significantly in excess of the amount originally expected, and historical and current negative operating losses.

In general, the corporation does not view temporarily low oil prices as a triggering event for conducting the impairment
tests. The markets for crude oil and natural gas have a history of significant price volatility. Although prices will occasionally
drop precipitously, industry prices over the long term will continue to-be driven by market supply and demand. On the supply
side, industry production from mature fields is declining, but this is being offset by production from new discoveries and
field developments. OPEC production policies also have an impact on world oil supplies. The demand side is largely a
function of global economic growth. The relative growth/decline in supply versus demand will determine industry prices over
the long term and these cannot be accurately predicted. Accordingly, any impairment tests that the corporation performs
make use of the corporation's long-term price assumptions for the crude oil and natural gas markets, petroleum products and
chemicals. These ar: the same price assumptions that are used in the corporation's annual planning and budgeting processes
and are also used for capital investment decisions. The corporate plan is a fundamental annual management process that is the
basis for setting near-term operating and capital objectives in addition to providing the longer-term economic assumptions
used for investment evaluation purposes. Annual volumes are based on individual field production profiles which are also
updated annually. Prices for natural gas and other products sold under contract are based on corporate plan assumptions
developed annually by major region/contract and used for investment evaluation purposes. Cash flow estimates for
impairment testing exclude the use of derivative instruments.

Supplemental information regarding oil and gas results of operations, capitalized costs and reserves can be found on
pages A48 to AS52. The standardized measure of discounted future cash flows on page A52 is based on the year-end 2003
price applied for all future years, as required under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 69 (FAS 69). Future
prices used for any impairment tests will vary from the one used in the FAS 69 disclosure, and could be lower or higher for
any given year.

Consolidations

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of those significant subsidiaries that the corporation controls.
They also include the corporation's undivided interests in upstream assets and liabilities. Amounts representing the
corporation’s percentage interest in the underlying net assets of other significant affiliates that it does not control, but
exercises significant influence, are included in "Investments and advances”; the corporation's share of the net income of these
companies is included in the consolidated statement of income caption "Income from equity affiliates." The accounting for
these non-consolidated companies is referred to as the equity method of accounting.

Majority ownership is normally the indicator of contro! that is the basis on which subsidiaries are consolidated.
However, certain factors may indicate that a majority-owned investment is not controlled and therefore should be accounted
for using the equity method of accounting. These factors occur where the minority shareholders are granted by law or by
contract substantivz participating rights. These include the right to approve operating policies, expense budgets, financing
and investment plans and management compensation and succession plans.
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The corporation consolidates certain affiliates in which it has less than a majority ownérship, because of guarantees or
other arrangements that create majority economic interests in those affiliates which are greater than the corporation's voting
interests.

Additional disclosures of summary balance sheet and income information for those subsidiaries accounted for under the
equity method of accounting can be found in note 8 on page A29. The corporation believes this to be important information
necessary to a full understanding of the corporation's financial statements.

Investments in companies that are partially owned by the corporation are integral to the corporation's operations. In
some cases they serve to balance worldwide risks and in others they provide the only available means of entry into a
particular market or area of interest. The other parties who also have an equity interest in these companies are either
independent third parties or host governments that share in the business results according to their percentage ownership. The
corporation does not invest in these companies in order to remove liabilities from its balance sheet. In fact, the corporation
has long been on record supporting an alternative accounting method that would require each investor to consolidate its
percentage share of all assets and liabilities in these partially owned companies rather than only the percentage in the net
equity. This method of accounting for investments in partially owned companies is not permitted by GAAP except where the
investments are in the direct ownership of a share in the upstream assets and liabilities. However, for purposes of calculating
return on average capital employed, which is not covered by GAAP standards, the corporation includes its share of debt of
these partially owned companies in the determination of average capital employed.

Al8

Annuity Benefits

The corporation and its affiliates sponsor over 100 defined benefit (pension) plans in more than 50 countries. The
funding arrangement for each plan depends on the prevailing practices and regulations of the countries where the company
operates. Note 18, pages A41 to A43, provides details on pension obligations, fund assets and pension expense.

Some of these plans (primarily non-U.S.) provide pension benefits which are paid directly by their sponsoring affiliates
out of corporate cash flow rather than a separate pension fund. Book reserves are established for these plans, because tax
conventions and regulatory practices do not encourage advance funding. The portion of the pension cost attributable to
employee service is expensed as services are rendered. The portion attributable to the increase in pension obligations due to-
the passage of time is expensed over the term of the obligations, which ends when all benefits are paid. The primary
difference in pension expense for unfunded versus funded plans is that pension expense for funded plans also includes a
credit for the expected long-term return on fund assets.

For funded plans, including many in the U.S., pension obligations are financed in advance through segregated assets or
insurance arrangements. These plans are managed in compliance with the requirements of governmental authorities, and meet
or exceed required funding levels as measured by relevant actuarial and government standards at the mandated measurement
dates. In determinir.g liabilities and required contributions, these standards often require approaches and assumptions which
differ from those used for accounting purposes. Contributions to funded plans totaled $2,833 million in 2003 (U.S.
$2,054 million, non-U.S. $779 million).

The corporaticn will continue to make contributions to these funded plans as necessary. All defined benefit pension
obligations, regardless of the funding status of the underlying plans, are fully supported by the financial strength of the
corporation or the respective sponsoring affiliate.

Pension accounting requires explicit assumptions regarding, among others, the long-term expected earnings rate on fund
assets, the discount rate for the benefit obligations, and the long-term rate for future salary increases. All the pension
assumptions are reviewed annually by outside actuaries and senior financial management. These assumptions are adjusted
only as appropriate to reflect changes in market rates and outlook. For example, the long-term expected earnings rate on U.S,
pension plan assets was reduced in 2003 from 9.5 percent to 9.0 percent. This compares to an actual rate of return over the
past decade of 11 percent. The company establishes the long-term expected rate of return by developing a forward-looking
long-term return assumption for each asset class, taking into account factors such as the expected real return for the specific
asset class and inflation. A single, long-term rate of return is then calculated as the weighted average of the target asset
allocation and the long-term return assumption for each asset class. A worldwide reduction of 0.5 percent in the pension fund
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earnings rate would increase pension expense by approximately $80 million before-tax.

Under GAAP, differences between actual returns on fund assets versus the long-term expected return are not recorded in
the year that the difference occurs, but rather are amortized in pension expense, along with other actuarial gains and losses,
over the expected remaining service life of employees. The corporation uses the fair value of the plan assets at year end to
determine the amount of the actuarial gain or loss that will be amortized and does not use a moving average value of plan
assets.

Due to the general decline in the market value of pension assets and in interest rates in 2002, and the weaker U.S. dollar
in 2003, pension expense grew from $995 million in 2002 (U.S. $470 million, non-U.S, $525 million) to $1,938 million in
2003 (U.S. $1,015 million, non-U.S. $923 million).

Litigation and Other Contingencies

A variety of claims have been made against ExxonMobil and certain of its consolidated subsidiaries in a number of
pending lawsuits and tax disputes. These are summarized on page A13, with a more extensive discussion included in note 17
on page A40. v

. GAAP requires that liabilities for contingencies be recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred before
the date of the balance sheet and that the amount can be reasonably estimated. These amounts are not reduced by amounts
that may be recovered under insurance or claims against third parties, but undiscounted receivables from insurers or other
third parties may be iiccrued separately. The corporation revises such accruals in light of new information.

Significant management judgment is required related to contingent liabilities and the outcome of litigation because both
are difficult to predict. However, the corporation has been successful in defending litigation in the past, and actual payments
have not been material. In the corporation's experience, large claims often do not result in large awards. Large awards are
often reversed or substantially reduced as a result of appeal or settlement. :

Foreign Currency Translation

The method of translating the foreign currency financial statements of the corporation's international subsidiaries into
U.S. dollars is prescribed by GAAP. Under these principles, it is necessary to select the functional currency of these
subsidiaries. The functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the subsidiary operates.
Management selects the functional currency after evaluating this economic environment. Downstream and chemicals
operations normally use the local currency, except in highly inflationary countries, primarily Latin America, as well as in
Singapore, which uses the U.S. dollar, because it predominantly sells into the U.S. dollar export market. Upstream operations
also use the local currency as the functional currency, except where crude and natural gas production is predominantly sold in
the export market in U.S. dollars. These operations, which use the U.S. dollar as their functional currency, are in Malaysia,
Indonesia, Angola, Nigeria, Equatorial Guinea and the Middle East countries.

Factors considered by management when determining the functional currency for a subsidiary include: the currency
used for cash flows related to individual assets and liabilities; the responsiveness of sales prices to changes in exchange rates;
whether sales are into local markets or exported; the currency used to acquire raw materials, labor, services and supplies;
sources of financing; and significance of intercompany transactions.

AlS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION OF INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management :s responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls and procedures for the
preparation of financial reports. Accordingly, comprehensive procedures and practices are in place. These procedures and
practices are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the corporation's transactions are properly authorized; the
corporation's assets are safeguarded against unauthorized or improper use; and the corporation's transactions are properly
recorded and reported to permit the preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. Generally Accepted
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Accounting Principles.

- Internal controls and procedures for financial reporting are regularly reviewed by management and by the ExxonMobil
internal audit function and findings are shared with the Audit Committee of the Board. In addition, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
the corporation's independent auditor, who reports to the Audit Committee of the Board, considers and selectively tests
internal controls in planning and performing its audits. Management's review of the design and operation of these controls
and procedures in 2003, including review as of year end, did not identify any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses,
including any deficiencies which could adversely affect the corporation's ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial data.

L Alha. Mu(-_ Db FL‘O""“&"’ Y

Lee R. Raymond Donald D. Humphreys Frank A. Risch
Chief Executive Officer Vice President and Controller Vice President and Treasurer
(Principal Accounting Officer) (Principal Financial Officer)

REPORT OF INBEPENDENT AUDITORS

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

To the Shareholders of Exxon Mobil Corporation

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements appearing on pages A21 through A46 present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Exxon Mobil Corporation and its subsidiary companies at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
and the resuits of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the corporation's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the corporation changed its method of accounting for
asset retirement obligations in 2003,

Dallas, Texas
February 25, 2004

A20
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

Revenues and other income
Sales and other operating revenue (7)

Income from equity affiliates
Other income

Total revenues and other income

Costs and other deductions
Crude oil and product purchases

Production and manufacturing expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Depreciation and depletion

Exploration expenses, including dry holes

Merger related expenses

Interest expense

Excise taxes (1)

.Other taxes and duties

Income applicable: to minority and preferred interests

Total costs and other deductions

Income before incorae taxes -- ..
Income taxes

Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations, net of income tax

Extraordinary gain, net of income tax

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of income tax

Net income

Net income per common share — (dollars)
Income from con:inuing operations

Discontinued operations, net of income tax
Extraordinary gain, net of income tax

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of income tax

Net income

Net income per common share — assuming dilution (dollars)

Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations, net of income tax
Extraordinary gain, net of income tax

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of income tax

Note
Reference
Number 2003 2002 2001
(millions of dollars)
$ 237,054 § 200949 §$- 208,715
8 4,373 2,066 2,174
5,311 1,491 1,896
$ 246,738 § 204,506 § 212,785
$ 107,658 $§ 90,950 § 92,257
21,260 17,831 17,743
13,396 12,356 12,898‘
9,047 8,310 7,848
1,010 1920 1,175
4 — 410 748
207 398 293
20 23,855 22,040 21,907
20 37,645 33,572 33,377
694 209 569
$ 214,772 § 186,996 § 188,815
$ 31,966 § 17,510 § 23,970
20 ' 11,006 6,499 8,967
§ 20,960 § 11,011 § 15,003
3 — 449 102
3 — —_ 215
2,10 550 — —_
o 215100 8 11460 8 15,320
13
$ 3.16 § 162 % 2.19
— 0.07 0.01
— — 0.03
0.08 — —
§ 324§ 169 § 223
13
$ 315  §$ 1.61 § 2.17
— 0.07 0.01
— — 0.03
0.08 — o —
2/15/2005
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Net income | $ 323§ "1.68 §

[ b G T £ )i

(1) Sales and oth:zr operating revenue includes excise taxes of $23,855 million for 2003,.822,040 million for 2002 and
$21,907 million for 2001. '

The information on pages A25 through A46 is an integral part of these statements.

A21

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Note

Reference Dec. 31 Dec. 31
Number 2003 2002
(millions of dollars)
Assets
Current assets -
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,626 $ 7229
Notes and accounts receivable, less estimated doubtful amounts 7 24,309 21,163
Inventories
Crude oil, products and 